
 

January 07, 2020~4:30 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 171 

OROVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
Council Chambers 

1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA. 95965 

 

January 07, 2020 
REGULAR MEETING 

CLOSED SESSION 4:30 PM 
OPEN SESSION 5:00 PM 

AGENDA 

 

 
REQUESTS TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 

If you would like to address the Council at this meeting, you are requested to complete the blue 
speaker request form (located on the wall by the agendas) and hand it to the City Clerk, who is 
seated on the right of the Council Chamber.  The form assists the Clerk with minute taking and 
assists the Mayor or presiding chair in conducting an orderly meeting. Providing personal 
information on the form is voluntary.  For scheduled agenda items, please submit the form prior 
to the conclusion of the staff presentation for that item.  Council has established time limitations of 
two (2) minutes per speaker on all items and an overall time limit of thirty minutes for non-agenda items. 
If more than 10 speaker cards are submitted for non-agenda items, the time limitation would be reduced 
to one and a half minutes per speaker. If more than 15 speaker cards are submitted for non-agenda 
items, the first 15 speakers will be randomly selected to speak at the beginning of the meeting, with the 
remaining speakers given an opportunity at the end. (California Government Code §54954.3(b)). 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2, the Council is prohibited from taking action except for a 
brief response from the Council or staff to statements or questions relating to a non-agenda item. 

 

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL  

Council Members: David Pittman, Eric Smith, Linda Draper, Art Hatley, Janet Goodson, Vice Mayor 

Scott Thomson, Mayor Chuck Reynolds  

CLOSED SESSION 

The Council will hold a Closed Session on the following: 

1. Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(2), the Council will meet with the City 
Administrator and City Attorney regarding potential exposure to litigation – two cases. 

2. Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.6, the Council will meet with Labor Negotiators 
and City Attorney to discuss labor negotiations for the following represented groups: Oroville 
Firefighters’ Association, Oroville Police Officers Association (Sworn and Non-Sworn), Oroville 
Public Safety Mid-Managers Association, Oroville Management and Confidential Association, 
and Oroville City Employees Association. 

OPEN SESSION  

1. Announcement from Closed Session 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Adoption of Agenda 

1



 

January 07, 2020~4:30 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 171 

 

PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 

1. Presentation from AMG & Associates - Riverbend Family Apartments  

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – HEARING OF NON-AGENDA ITEMS  

This is the time to address the Council about any item not listed on the agenda. If you wish to address 
the Council on an item listed on the agenda, please follow the directions listed above. 

CONSENT CALENDAR  

Consent calendar items 1 - 4 are adopted in one action by the Council. Items that are removed will be 
discussed and voted on immediately after adoption of consent calendar items. 

1. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES  

The Council may approve the minutes of December 3, 2019 and December 17, 2019.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the City Council Minutes of December 3, 2019 and December 17, 2019 

2. AFFORDABLE HOUSING AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES GRANT APPLICATION  

The Council may consider the submittal of an Application for the Affordable Housing and 
Sustainable Communities “AHSC” Program. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt Resolution No. 8827- A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITTAL OF AN APPLICATION FOR THE AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES (AHSC) PROGRAM 

3. CONSIDER AND APPROVE A JOB DESCRIPTIONS FOR COLLECTION SYSTEM 

OPERATORS I, II AND LEAD FOR THE SEWER DIVISION 

The City Council will consider and adopt job descriptions for Collection System Operator I, II 

and Lead for the Sewer Division. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the attached job descriptions for Collection System Operator I, II and Lead. 

 

 

 

 

 

2



 

January 07, 2020~4:30 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 171 

4. CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE AMENDED AND RESTATED MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF OROVILLE AND THE OROVILLE CITY 
EMPLOYEE’S ASSOCIATION AND AUTHORIZATION TO GRANT STEP H TO ONE 
EMPLOYEE 

The City Council will consider and adopt the new amended and restated Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City of Oroville and the Oroville City Employee’s Association (OCEA) 
and to authorize Step H for one employee.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt Resolution No. 8829 - A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AMENDED AND RESTATED 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF OROVILLE AND THE 
OROVILLE CITY EMPLOYEE’S ASSOCIATION – (Agreement No. 1432-15).  

Approve and authorize staff to move one employee to Step H of the current salary range. 

REGULAR BUSINESS  

5. FIRST READING OF A DRAFT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OROVILLE AMENDING 
SECTIONS 17.04.060 AND 5.28.010 AND ADDING SECTIONS 5.28.095, 5.28.130 AND 
5.28.140 OF THE OROVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING PROHIBITING THE SALE OF 
FLAVORED TOBACCO 

The Council will hold a public hearing to consider approving the first reading of an ordinance to 
prohibit the sale of flavored tobacco within the City limits. Input will be considered from the 
Planning Commission and the public on both sides of the issue. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Provide direction to staff on these options: 

Approve first reading of ordinance as is, which prohibits the sale of all flavored tobacco products 
within the City limits; 

Modify the ordinance to allow sale of flavored tobacco products at Oroville’s five smoke shops 
only; 

Adopt the Planning Commission’s recommendation to take no action, but send a letter 
encouraging the State to prohibit flavored tobacco products statewide; 

If adopting a ban, the Council may also consider whether to make the ban effective immediately 
or to wait a period of time to allow retailers to sell their existing inventory. 

6. ADOPTION OF BUTTE COUNTY LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 

The Council will consider adopting the Butte County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the adoption of the Butte County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

 

 

3



 

January 07, 2020~4:30 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Agenda Page 4 of 171 

7. ADOPTION OF FORMAL MEETING SCHEDULE FOR 2020 

The Council will consider the formal meeting schedule for 2020. The Council may adjust times 
of open session and closed session.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Provide Staff direction and approve the City’s formal meeting schedule for 2020 

REPORTS / DISCUSSIONS / CORRESPONDENCE 

1.   Council Announcements and Reports 

2.   Future Agenda Items 

3.   Administration Reports 

4.   Correspondence 

i. Letter from Comcast regarding price changes 

ADJOURN THE MEETING 

The meeting will be adjourned. A regular meeting of the Oroville City Council will be held on January 
21, 2020 at 5:30 p.m. 

 
 
Accommodating Those Individuals with Special Needs – In compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, the City of Oroville encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 
meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 538-2535, well in advance of the regular meeting you 
wish to attend, so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you. Documents distributed 
for public session items, less than 72 hours prior to meeting, are available for public inspection at City 
Hall, 1735 Montgomery Street, Oroville, California. 
 
Recordings - All meetings are recorded and broadcast live on cityoforoville.org and YouTube. 
  

4



 

December 03, 2019~5:30 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 5 

JOINT MEETING OF THE 
OROVILLE CITY COUNCIL AND 

*OROVILLE SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Council Chambers 

1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA. 95965 

 

December 03, 2019 
MINUTES 

 

This meeting was recorded and can be viewed at cityoforoville.org. The agenda for this meeting was 
posted on November 27, 2019 at 1pm.  
 

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL  

Mayor Reynolds called the meeting to order at 5:30pm.  

PRESENT:  Council/Committee Members: David Pittman, Eric Smith, Linda Draper, Art Hatley, Janet 

Goodson, Vice Mayor Scott Thomson, Mayor Chuck Reynolds  

ABSENT: None 

STAFF:  City Administrator Bill LaGrone, Assistant City Administrator of Administration Ruth 

Wright, Project Manager Tom Lando, Assistant City Clerk Jackie Glover, City Attorney 

Sam Emerson, Community Development Director Leo DePaola, Public Safety Director 

Joe Deal, Treasurer Karolyn Fairbanks 

CLOSED SESSION 

The Council held a Closed Session on the following: 

1. Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(2), the Council will meet with the City 
Administrator and City Attorney regarding potential exposure to litigation – two cases. 

2. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b), the Council will meet with the City      
Administrator, Personnel Officer, and City Attorney to consider the employment related to the 
following position: Assistant City Administrator. 

3. Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.6, the Council will meet with Labor Negotiators 
and City Attorney to discuss labor negotiations for the following represented groups: Oroville 
Firefighters’ Association, Oroville Police Officers Association (Sworn and Non-Sworn), Oroville 
Public Safety Mid-Managers Association, Oroville Management and Confidential Association, 
and Oroville City Employees Association. 

OPEN SESSION  

The council reconvened at 5:59pm.  

1. Announcement from Closed Session – Mayor Reynolds announced that no action was taken; 
direction was given.  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance – Led by Mayor Reynolds 
 

5

Item 1.



 

December 03, 2019~5:30 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 5 

3. Adoption of Agenda – Motion by Council Member Goodson and second by Council Member 
Smith to adopt the agenda.  

AYES:  Council Members Hatley, Smith, Pittman, Goodson, Draper, Vice Mayor Thomson, 
Mayor Reynolds 

NOES: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

ABSENT: None 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – HEARING OF NON-AGENDA ITEMS  

The Following individuals spoke on non-agenda items:  

 Beth Bello 

 Bill Speer 

 The Camera Man 

The Following individuals spoke on agenda items:  

 The Cameraman – Items 2, 7, 10 

 Bill Speer – Item 10 

 Bobby O’Reiley – Item 10 

CONSENT CALENDAR  

Motion by Council Member Pittman and second by Council Member Thomson to adopt the consent 

calendar. Motion passed.  

AYES:  Council Members Hatley, Smith, Pittman, Goodson, Draper, Vice Mayor Thomson, 
Mayor Reynolds 

NOES: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

ABSENT: None 

1. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 

The City Council approved the minutes of the November 19, 2019 City Council Meeting.  

2. FREE ADMISSION DAYS FOR ALL CITY MUSEUMS 

Council authorized a free admission days for all City Museums on February 29, 2020 and March 

1, 2020 in support of Explore Butte County 

3. 2020 SEWER LINING PROJECT – DESIGN TASK ORDER 

Mayor and council awarded a task order to Bennett Engineering Services to design and release 

for construction bid, a sewer lining rehabilitation project to improve problematic sewer pipelines 

and reduce infiltration to the sewer system. 

4. ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 1840 ADOPTING THE 2019 CALIFORNIA BUILDING 

STANDARDS CODE TITLE 24, PARTS 1-6 AND 8-12  

6

Item 1.



 

December 03, 2019~5:30 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 5 

The Council adopted Ordinance 1840 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

OROVILLE, ADOPTING BY REFERENCE THE 2019 EDITION OF THE CALIFORNIA CODE OF 

REGULATIONS TITLE 24, KNOWN AS THE CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CODE PARTS 1-6 

AND 8-12 AND THE UNIFORM HOUSING CODE 1997 EDITION, AND THE UNIFORM CODE FOR THE 

ABATEMENT OF DANGEROUS BUILDINGS 1997 EDITION AND THE 2019 EDITION OF THE 

INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE AND AMENDING CERTAIN PORTIONS OF THE 

CALIFORNIA CODE OF REGULATIONS TITLE 24 

5. LETTER TO THE FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION REGARDING 

PROJECT NO. 2001 NEW LICENSE 

The Council approved a revised letter to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) 

regarding Project No. 2100 – Request for Issuance of new license. 

REGULAR BUSINESS  

6. SUCCESSOR AGENCY PROPERTY SALE - 750 MONTGOMERY STREET* 

The Successor Agency considered an option for the sale of a commercial property asset of the 
former Oroville Redevelopment Agency located at 750 Montgomery Street.  

Motion by Council Member Goodson and second by Council Member Draper to adopt 
Successor Agency Resolution No. 19-01 - A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY OF THE FORMER OROVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF 
OROVILLE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CHAIRPERSON TO SIGN A RESOLUTION 
RECOMMENDING TO THE BUTTE COUNTY OVERSIGHT BOARD OF THE SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY TO THE CITY OF OROVILLE THAT THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 750 
MONTGOMERY STREET, OROVILLE BE SOLD TO BSJ ENTERPRISES, LLC FOR THE 
APPRAISED VALUE OF $56,000 LESS THE CLEANUP, DEMO AND ESCROW COSTS; and 
direct staff to sign Successor Agency Agreement No. 19-01. Motion passed.  

AYES:  Council Members Hatley, Smith, Pittman, Goodson, Draper, Vice Mayor Thomson, 
Mayor Reynolds 

NOES: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

ABSENT: None 

7. CITY OF OROVILLE NEIGHBORHOOD TRAFFIC CALMING PROGRAM  

The Council provided direction on accepting the proposed Neighborhood Traffic Calming Program 
(NTCP).  Council provided direction on the potential purchase of speed enforcement/traffic 
counting trailers.   

Motion by Council Member Draper and second by Council Member Goodson to approve moving 
forward with the implementation of the proposed Neighborhood Traffic Calming Program and to 
purchase two (2) TrafficLogix VMS30 signboard / trailers in an amount not to exceed $15,000.00 
each. Motion passed.  

AYES:  Council Members Hatley, Smith, Pittman, Goodson, Draper, Vice Mayor Thomson, 
Mayor Reynolds 

NOES: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

ABSENT: None 

7

Item 1.



 

December 03, 2019~5:30 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Agenda Page 4 of 5 

 

8. OLD FERRY ROAD ACCESS AGREEMENT FOR CA DEPT. OF WATER RESOURCES 

(DWR) 

City council approved and directed the mayor may sign a long-term access agreement between 

the City of Oroville and the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) to allow DWR 

crews to access their infrastructure adjacent to the Thermalito Diversion Dam. 

Motion by Council Member Goodson and second by Council Member Draper to approve the 

agreement and direct staff to sign it. Motion passed.  

AYES:  Council Members Hatley, Smith, Pittman, Goodson, Draper, Vice Mayor Thomson, 
Mayor Reynolds 

NOES: None 

ABSTAIN: None 

ABSENT: None 

9. LIMITING OR PROHIBITING THE SALE OF FLAVORED TOBACCO PRODUCTS IN 
OROVILLE 

This item was pulled from the agenda. No action or discussion on this item.  

10. RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO INITIATE PROCEDURES FOR ESTABLISHING AND 
IMPLEMENTING BY-DISTRICT ELECTIONS FOR COUNCIL MEMBERS  

The Council considered the adoption of Resolution No. 8823 to initiate procedures for 
establishing and implementing by-district elections for Council Members of the City of Oroville. 

Motion by Council Member Smith and second by Council Member Draper to adopt 
Resolution No. 8823 – A Resolution of the Oroville City Council Expressing the Council’s 
Intention, Pursuant to Elections Code Section 10010 to Initiate Procedures for Establishing and 
Implementing By-District Elections for Council Members. Motion passed.  

AYES:  Council Members Hatley, Smith, Goodson, Draper, Mayor Reynolds 

NOES: Council Member Pittman 

ABSTAIN: Vice Mayor Thomson 

ABSENT: None 

REPORTS / DISCUSSIONS / CORRESPONDENCE 

1. Council Announcements and Reports 
a. Draper – Attended the Arts Commission Meeting on December 2nd.  
b. Pittman – Attended the Oro Dam Citizens Advisory Committee meeting, interested in 

looking at resolutions and ordinances enacted by other cities to remove people from 
around riverbeds.  

c. Smith – Explained an incident that happened at Smart and Final  
d. Reynolds – Attended the Oro Dam Citizens Advisory Committee meeting, had a 

meeting to discuss issues along the river, Attended the Hmong New Year 
Dinner/Celebration, watched his son Graduate basic training in Chicago.  

2. Future Agenda Items 
a. Goodson – Laurens Law Presentation 

3. Administration Reports 

8

Item 1.



 

December 03, 2019~5:30 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Agenda Page 5 of 5 

a. Assistant City Administrator of Administration Ruth Wright– Announced that 
OpenGov is up to date on the city website and that she is willing to hold a workshop 
on how to use it.  

b. Project Manager Tom Lando – Working on the Annexations 
c. City Administrator Bill LaGrone – 2019 Paving project is almost complete and a list is 

being compiled for 2020, Working to address issues with campers being along the 
river – looking at safety, environmental impact, digging, etc.  

d. Community Development Director Leo DePaola – Permits officially issued for Vista 
Del Oro, DR Horton is looking at Linkside Place 2 – a meeting is happening soon.  

e. Public Safety Director Joe Deal – Two new police officers starting next week.   

4.   Correspondence 

i. PG&E Rate Change Notice  

ii. FERC - 2018 Dam Safety Surveillance and Monitoring Report 

iii. Email in support of Flavored Tobacco Ban 

ADJOURN THE MEETING 

Mayor Reynolds adjourned the meeting at 7:32pm. A regular meeting of the Oroville City Council will be 
held on December 17, 2019 at 5:30 p.m. 

 
Approved:        Attested: 
 
 
_________________________________________   _____________________________ 
Mayor Chuck Reynolds      Assistant City Clerk Jackie Glover  

9

Item 1.



 

December 17, 2019~5:00 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 4 

OROVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
Council Chambers 

1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA. 95965 

 

December 17, 2019 
MINUTES 

 

This meeting was recorded live and can be viewed at cityoforoville.org. The agenda for this meeting was 
posted on December 12, 2019 at 2pm.  

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL  

Mayor Reynolds called the meeting to order at 5pm.  

PRESENT:  Council Members: David Pittman, Eric Smith, Linda Draper, Art Hatley, Janet Goodson, 

Vice Mayor Scott Thomson, Mayor Chuck Reynolds  

ABSENT: None 

STAFF: City Administrator Bill LaGrone, Assistant City Clerk Jackie Glover, Assistant City 

Administrator of Administration Ruth Wright, Project Manager Tom Lando, City Attorney 

Sam Emmerson, Principle Planner Wes Ervin, Assistant City Administrator of Public 

Safety Joe Deal, Management Analyst III Amy Bergstrand, Human Resource Manager 

Liz Ehrenstrom 

CLOSED SESSION 

The Council convened to Closed Session on the following: 

1. Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(2), the Council will meet with the City 
Administrator and City Attorney regarding potential exposure to litigation – two cases. 

2. Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.6, the Council will meet with Labor Negotiators 
and City Attorney to discuss labor negotiations for the following represented groups: Oroville 
Firefighters’ Association, Oroville Police Officers Association (Sworn and Non-Sworn), Oroville 
Public Safety Mid-Managers Association, Oroville Management and Confidential Association, 
and Oroville City Employees Association. 

OPEN SESSION  

Mayor Reynolds reconvened the meeting at 5:29pm.  

1. Announcement from Closed Session – Mayor Reynolds announced – no action taken; direction 
given.  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance – Led By Mayor Reynolds 
 

3. Adoption of Agenda – Motion by Council Member Goodson and second by Council Member 
Draper to adopt the agenda. Motion passed 

AYES:  Council Members Hatley, Pittman, Goodson, Smith, Draper, Vice Mayor Thomson, 
Mayor Reynolds 

NOES: None 

ABSENT:  None 

ABSTAIN: None  
10

Item 1.



 

December 17, 2019~5:00 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 4 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – HEARING OF NON-AGENDA ITEMS  

Pastor Steve spoke on a non-agenda item at this time. There were no public speakers for agenda 
items.  

CONSENT CALENDAR  

Motion by Council Member Goodson and second by Council Member Thomson to adopt the consent 
calendar items 1-8. Motion passed.  

AYES:  Council Members Hatley, Pittman, Goodson, Smith, Draper, Vice Mayor Thomson, 
Mayor Reynolds 

NOES: None 

ABSENT:  None 

ABSTAIN: None 

1. UNANTICIPATED REVENUE 

Council received Information regarding unanticipated revenue into the 2019-20 budget. 

2. 2019 CALHOME PROGRAM GRANT APPLICATION 

The Council adopted Resolution No. 8824 - A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE CITY 
COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITTAL OF A GRANT APPLICATION TO THE 
CALIFORNIA STATE DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FOR 
FUNDING UNDER THE CALHOME PROGRAM; THE EXECUTION OF A STANDARD 
AGREEMENT IF SELECTED FOR SUCH FUNDING, AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO; 
AND ANY RELATED DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO PARTICIPATE IN THE CALHOME 
PROGRAM. 

3. HOUSING SUCCESSOR AGENCY ANNUAL REPORT 

The Council will received the Housing Successor Agency Annual Report for fiscal year ending 
2019.   

4. APPROVE THE SELECTION OF MARK THOMAS AND COMPANY TO PROVIDE DESIGN 
AND PROJECT MANAGEMENT FOR THE STATE ROUTE 162 PEDESTRIAN/BICYCLE 
DISABLED MOBILITY AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

The Council approved the selection of Mark Thomas and Co to provide design and project 
management services for the Grant funded State Route 162 Pedestrian/Bicycle Disabled Mobility 
and Safety Improvements Project.  

5. PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
OROVILLE AND JOE DEAL 

The Council will consider an employment agreement between the City of Oroville and Joe Deal 
for the position of Public Safety Director for the City of Oroville and adopted Resolution No. 8825 
- A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE 
MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF OROVILLE 
AND JOE DEAL TO SERVE AS ASSISTANT CITY ADMINISTRATOR - PUBLIC SAFETY 
(PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR) – (Agreement No. 3290).  

 

11

Item 1.



 

December 17, 2019~5:00 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 4 

6. INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION FOR 2020 

The Council adopted Resolution No. 8826 - A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ADOPTION OF AN 
INVESTMENT POLICY FOR THE CITY OF OROVILLE FOR 2020. 

7. ASSISTANT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR JOB DESCRIPTION 
AND SALARY SCHEDULE   

The Council adopted a job description and salary schedule for Assistant Development Services 
Director; and authorized Staff to advertise for the new position and return to Council with a list of 
applicants for the Council to interview.   

8. CONSIDER AND APPROVE A JOB DESCRIPTION FOR GIS INTERN AND AUTHORIZE 

HIRING FOR THE POSITION 

The City Council approved the attached job descriptions for GIS Intern and authorize staff to 

hire for the position. 

REGULAR BUSINESS  

9. AUTHORIZATION TO AWARD CONTRACT FOR JANITORIAL SERVICE AT CITY HALL  

The Council awarded a contract for Janitorial services for City Hall to Pro Line Cleaning 
Services Inc., in an amount not to exceed $1625.00 per month or $19,500 annually. 

Motion by council member Goodson and second by Council Member Smith to authorize Staff to 
award the bid and sign a contract for janitorial services at City Hall, with Pro Line Cleaning 
Services Incorporated. Motion passed. 

AYES:  Council Members Hatley, Pittman, Goodson, Smith, Draper, Vice Mayor Thomson, 
Mayor Reynolds 

NOES: None 

ABSENT:  None 

ABSTAIN: None 

10. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019  

The Council received annual unaudited financial information for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
Motion by council member Draper and second by Council Member Goodson to transfer the 
surplus as follows:  
  
$1,500,000 be added to the City’s General Reserve to bring it to approximately 17%.  

$1,406,618 is the ending fund balance in the 1% District tax Fund.  

$1,000,000 additional payment to our CalPERS unfunded liability. 

Motion passed.  

AYES:  Council Members Hatley, Pittman, Goodson, Smith, Draper, Vice Mayor Thomson, 
Mayor Reynolds 

NOES: None 

ABSENT:  None 

ABSTAIN: None 
12

Item 1.



 

December 17, 2019~5:00 PM Oroville City Council Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 4 

REPORTS / DISCUSSIONS / CORRESPONDENCE 

1. Council Announcements and Reports 
a. Draper – Attedended the December 7, 2019 NAACP Black and White Gala 
b. Goodson – Attended the December 7, 2019 NAACP Black and White Gala and was 

a part of the committee, She shared the description of the vision and mission of the 
NAACP.  

c. Smith – Attended the Parade of Lights – great event – 65 entries. Attended the 
Continuum of Care Meeting on the 16th – hopeful with what the county will bring to 
the table. 

d. Pittman – Spoke about completing a property inventory and getting properties sold, 
spoke about creating an ordinance about loitering around ATM Machines.  

e. Reynolds – Congratulated Chief Deal on his promotion and asked to be given regular 
updates on the POP team.  

2. Future Agenda Items – Stated in council announcements and reports 
 

3. Administration Reports 
a. Principle Planner Wes Ervin – Planning Commission will be reviewing a use permit 

for a new Starbucks to be built where Ron’s Drive-In is 
b. Chief Deal – Thanked the council for the opportunity to serve in the new position.  

4.   Correspondence 

i. Letters - FERC Correspondence 

ii. Notice for PG&E's request to change rates 

iii. Letters - Tobacco Ban 

ADJOURN THE MEETING 

Mayor Reynolds adjourned the meeting at 5:48pm. A regular meeting of the Oroville City Council will be 
held on January 7, 2019 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

APPROVED:       ATTESTED: 

 

________________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Mayor Chuck Reynolds     Assistant City Clerk Jackie Glover 

13

Item 1.





Page 1 

 
CITY OF OROVILLE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

FROM: AMY BERGSTRAND, MANAGEMENT ANALYST III                                        
BUSINESS ASSISTANCE AND HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 

RE: AFFORDABLE HOUSING AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES GRANT 
APPLICATION  

DATE: JANUARY 7, 2020 

SUMMARY 

The Council may consider the submittal of an Application for the Affordable Housing and 
Sustainable Communities “AHSC” Program. 

DISCUSSION 

The California Strategic Growth Council (SGC) and the Department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD) issued a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) dated November 1, 2019, 
for the availability of approximately $550 million inf funding for the Affordable Housing and 
Sustainable Communities (AHSC) Program.  The purpose of the AHSC Program is to reduce 
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions through projects implementing land-use, housing, 
transportation, and agricultural land preservation practices to support infill and compact 
development and support related and coordinated public policy objectives.  Funding for the 
AHSC Program is provided from the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (GGRF), an account 
established to receive Cap-and-Trade auction proceeds.  

The AHSC Program furthers the purposes of AB32 (Chapter 488, Statutes of 2006) and SB 
375 (Chapters 728, Statutes of 2008).  AHSC is part of the California Climate Investments, a 
statewide program funded through GGRF that puts billions of Cap-and- trade dollars to working 
using GHG emissions, strengthening the economy, and improving public health and the 
environment.in particularly disadvantaged communities. 

The AHSC Program funds will be used for loans or grants, or a combination thereof, to projects 
that will achieve GHG emission reductions to benefit all California communities, particularly 
through increasing accessibility to affordable housing and key destinations via low-carbon 
transportation, resulting in fewer vehicles miles traveled (VMT) through shortened or reduced 
trip length or mode shift from Single Occupancy Vehicle (SOV) use to transit, bicycling or 
walking. 

AMG & Associates, LLC (AMG) is proposing to construct a 72-unit affordable housing 
development in the vacant area of Table Mountain Blvd. and Nelson Ave., at the round-about.  
The development will consist of a 72-unit complex that will be available to low, moderately-low 

14

Item 2.



Page 2 

and extremely- low income families.  AMG & Associates, LLC has retained the Community 
Development Resource Group (CDRG) to prepare the 2019 AHSC Application to fund the 
construction of the project.  In order to be eligible for AHSC funding, the project must include 
improvements that will enhance and promote transit accessibility within the neighborhood by 
providing a variety of supporting infrastructure improvements focused on connecting residents 
and key neighborhood destinations.  Such improvements include active transportation 
improvements that would encourage walking and biking, safe and accessible street 
improvements, enhancing the visibility of neighborhood pathways, and improving transit station 
and express bus stop areas. 

Staff has been working with AMG and CDRG in preparing the AHSC Application that will be 
submitted by February 11, 2020.  As part of the application, Staff is proposing to construct more 
than 2,000 linear feet of new sidewalks with curb and gutter and street lighting along Table 
Mountain from Nelson Avenue to Montgomery St. and more than one half of a mile of bike trail. 
In addition to sidewalks and bike trails, staff is also proposing the addition of a bus stop and 
bus pull out at Nelson at Table Mountain. Additionally, Butte County Agency of Governments 
(BCAG) which operates the B-Line bus system, will receive $1 million for a new electric bus 
and to install power at Mitchell and 3rd to support the charging equipment for the new bus.   A 
breakdown of the estimated project budget is listed below. 

Activity Approximate Budget 

Affordable Housing Development-72 units $10,650,000.00 

Sustainable Transit Infrastructure (STI) Bicycle and Pedestrian-
City of Oroville 

$2,003,000.00 

Sustainable Transit Infrastructure (STI)-BCAG (Route 24 
improvements, bus purchase, charging infrastructure) 

$1,846,600.00 

Transit Related Amenities (street trees, street lighting) $775,000.00 

Transit Bus Passes (for residents at the new housing 
development) 

$53,376.00 

Workforce Development Program  $50,000.00 

Total (approximately) $15,377,976.00 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no fiscal impact at this time.  If awarded, the grant funding will be distributed directly 
to the Affordable Housing Developers, AMG & Associates.  For sidewalk and bicycle 
improvements components to the application, the City and State would enter into a 
subsequent grant agreement that will come back to council to establish a budget. 

RECOMMENDATION 

15

Item 2.



Page 3 

Adopt Resolution No. 8827- A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITTAL OF AN APPLICATION FOR THE AFFORDABLE 
HOUSING AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES (AHSC) PROGRAM 

ATTACHMENTS 

 
R- 8827 
Site Plan – Provided under separate cover 

 

16

Item 2.



 
 

Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF OROVILLE 
RESOLUTION NO. 8827 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OROVILLE, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITTAL OF AN APPLICATION FOR THE AFFORDABLE 
HOUSING AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES (AHSC) PROGRAM 
 
 

WHEREAS, The State of California, the Strategic Growth Council (SGC) and the 
Department of Housing and Community Development (Department) has issued a Notice of 
Funding Availability dated November 1, 2019 (NOFA), under the Affordable Housing and 
Sustainable Communities (AHSC) Program established under Division 44, Part 1 of the 
Public Resources Code commencing with Section 75200; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Oroville (Applicant) desires to apply for AHSC Program funds 
and submit the Application Package released by the Department for the AHSC Program; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the SGC is authorized to approve funding allocations for the AHSC 

Program, subject to the terms and conditions of this NOFA, Program Guidelines, Application 

Package, and Standard Agreement.  The Department is authorized to administer the 

approved funding allocations of the AHSC Program. 

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oroville City Council as follows:   

 
Section  1. Applicant is hereby authorized and directed to apply for and submit to 

the Department the AHSC Program Application as detailed in the NOFA dated November 

1, 2019, for round 5 in the total amount up to $15,377,976.00 of which $10,650,000 is 

requested as a loan for an Affordable Housing Development (AHD)(‘AHSC Loan”) and 

$4,727,976.00 is requested for a grant for Housing-Related Infrastructure(HRI), Sustainable 

Transportation Infrastructure (STI), Transit-Related Amenities (TRA) or Program (PGM) 

activities (‘AHSC grant”) as defined in the AHSC Program Guidelines adopted by SGC on 

October 31, 2019.  If the application is approved, the Applicant is hereby authorized and 

directed to enter into, execute, and deliver a State of California Standard Agreement 

(Standard Agreement) in a total amount up to exceed $15,337,976.00($10,650,000.00 for 

the AHSC Loan and $4,727,976.00 for the AHSC Grant), and  any and all other documents 

reuired or deemed necessary or appropriate to secure the AHSC Program funds from the 

Department, and all amendments thereto (collectively , the AHSC Documents”) 

 

Section  2.  Applicant shall be subject to the terms and conditions as specified in 

the Standard Agreement.  Funds are to be used for allowable capital asset project 

expenditures to be identified in Exhibit A of the Standard Agreement.  The application in full 

is incorporated as part of the Standard Agreement.  Any and all activities funded, information 

provided, and timelines represented in the application are enforceable through the Standard 

Agreement.  Applicant hereby agrees to use the funds for eligible capital asset(s) in the 

17

Item 2.



 
 

Page 2 of 2 

manner presented in the application as approved by the Department and in accordance with 

the NOFA and Program Guidelines and Application Package. 

Section 3. The City Administrator, or designee, is authorized to execute in the 
name of the Applicant the AHSC Program Application Package and the AHSC Program 
Documents as required by the Department for participation in the AHSC Program 

 
Section 4. The Resolution shall be effective upon adoption. 
 
Section 5. The Assistant City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution. 
 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Oroville at a regular 

meeting on January 7, 2020, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  

 
 
                          

       Chuck Reynolds, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
                                                                     
Scott E. Huber, City Attorney   Jackie Glover, Assistant City Clerk 
 

18

Item 2.





Page 1 

 
CITY OF OROVILLE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

 
TO: OROVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: LIZ EHRENSTROM, HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGER 

RE: CONSIDER AND APPROVE A JOB DESCRIPTIONS FOR COLLECTION 
SYSTEM OPERTORS I, II AND LEAD FOR THE SEWER DIVISION 

DATE: JANUARY 7, 2020 

SUMMARY 

The City Council will consider and adopt job descriptions for Collection System Operator I, II 
and Lead for the Sewer Division. 

DISCUSSION 

The City Council will consider the adoption of the attached job descriptions for Collection 
System Operator I, II and Lead.  Employees from the sewer division approached staff to revise 
their job descriptions to more accurately reflect the duties they perform in the sewer division.  
Staff has worked with the employees to create new job descriptions to include Collection 
System Operator I, II and Lead positions.  Respective salary ranges will remain the same.  Staff 
recommends approval. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the attached job descriptions for Collection System Operator I, II and Lead. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Lead Collection Systems Operator Job Description 
Collection System Operator II Job Description 

  Collection system Operator I Job Description 

19

Item 3.



CITY OF OROVILLE 

 

COLLECTION SYSTEM OPERATOR I 

 

DEFINITION 

To perform skilled and semi-skilled manual labor in the construction maintenance and 

repair of city sewer systems, and related Infrastructures: To operate light and moderate 

heavy maintenance and construction equipment used on city sewer system projects: and 

to perform related duties and responsibilities as required. 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

Receives close supervision from Public Works Supervisor or Manager and direction from 

Collection System Lead Operator and Collection System Operator II. 

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS - Essential functions may include, but are not 

limited to, the following: 

Performs heavy manual labor duties as required in the construction, maintenance and 

repair of city sewer systems, including but not limited to preparing street surfaces for 

patching, and/or shoveling and spreading gravel, sand, asphalt, and other materials on 

streets: assisting with the paving, patching, laying pipes for sewer, cleaning, maintaining, 

and repairing sewer mains, lines, and lift stations. 

Sets forms and finishes concrete for manholes and cleanouts. 

May operate light and moderately heavy construction and maintenance equipment 

including vehicles. Various trucks, Sewer jet rodder, street roller, manlift, tamper, lawn 

care equipment, concrete mixer, CCTV van: uses a two-way radio, masonry tools, 

carpentry tools, mechanic’s tools, plumbing tools, various other common hand and power 

tools, measuring devices and safety gear. 

Operates vehicles, various trucks, loader, backhoe, sewer jet rodder, street roller, 

manlift, tamper, lawn care equipment, concrete mixer: operates or uses a TV van/ 

camera, diagnostic tools, masonry tools, carpentry tools, mechanics tools, 

plumbing tools, welding tools, various other common hand and power tools, 

measuring devices, meters, and safety gear. 

Loads and hauls water, gravel, rock, debris, and various other materials to and from 

construction sites. 

May be required to accurately mark underground sewer and storm drain lines for 

private contractors and utility companies. 

Transports and tows various pieces of equipment and materials to and from 

jobsites. 

Provides traffic control around work sites, including setting up barricades, warning signs, 

cones, and flagging traffic. 

20

Item 3.



CITY OF OROVILLE 

 

Responds to emergency situations with appropriate equipment as required. 

Performs general building and grounds maintenance work as requested: maintains clean 

and orderly work areas. 

Performs weed abatement duties related to lift stations, off road lines, and easements. 

Performs routine inspection and safety checks on equipment; cleans, maintains and 

performs minor adjustments to equipment as necessary. 

Maintains routine records of work performed. 

Performs all work in compliance with department policies and procedures, standards of 

quality and safety, approved plans and specifications. 

Work on call during evenings, weekends and holidays as scheduled.  

Assist with special projects or assignments as required. 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 

Knowledge of: 

Modern principles, practices, techniques, equipment, materials and tools used in general 

construction and maintenance operations. 

Safe and proper operation and maintenance of tools and equipment used in collection 

system construction and maintenance operations. 

General use and purpose of construction maintenance materials. 

Basic record keeping techniques. 

Ability to: 

Read, learn, understand and apply pertinent policies, procedure, regulations and 

standards. 

Read and understand maps, sketches, diagrams and blueprints. 

Perform heavy construction work and manual labor work. 

Safely operate assigned equipment and tools: work safely in heavy traffic or limited space 

conditions. 

Read and write at a level required for successful job performance. 

Maintain accurate work records and prepare routine reports records. 

Perform mathematical computations with accuracy. 

Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course 

of work. 

21

Item 3.



CITY OF OROVILLE 

 

Meet the physical requirements necessary to safely and effectively perform the required 

duties. 

Understand and follow oral and written instructions. 

Experience: 

One year of experience in sewer collection system maintenance or general construction. 

Education: 

High school diploma or GED equivalent. 

Additional Requirements: 

Possession and maintenance of a valid California driver’s license and the ability to obtain 

a class A driver’s license within one year of employment. (City will assist) 

TYPICAL WORKING CONDITIONS  

Work is regularly performed in field environment. Incumbent drives on surface streets, 

operates heavy machinery on surface streets and construction sites: traverse’s uneven 

terrain on foot. Worker may be exposed to traffic and construction hazards, electrical 

currents, air contaminants, adverse weather conditions, temperature and noise extremes, 

wetness, humidity, heights, confined spaces, fumes, dusts, odors, toxic or caustic 

chemicals, pathogens, solvents, grease/oil, vibration. 

TYPICAL PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS 

Requires the mobility and stamina to exert strenuous physical effort in a field environment. 

Requires the ability to operate vehicles and heavy equipment: walk, stand, climb, balance, 

stoop, kneel, crouch, crawl, and reach while performing field work: lift and or move up to 

25 pounds frequently and up to 100 pounds occasionally: use hands to finger, handle, 

feel, or operate objects, tools and controls. Tasks require visual and sound perception 

and discrimination, and oral communications ability.  

 

This class specification lists the major duties and requirements of the job and is 

not all inclusive. Incumbents may be expected to perform job related duties other 

than those contained in this document. 

 

22

Item 3.



CITY OF OROVILLE 
 

COLLECTION SYSTEM OPERATOR II 

 

DEFINITION 

To operate light to heavy equipment in the construction, maintenance and repair of city 

sewer systems, and related infrastructures: to perform heavy manual labor when 

equipment operation is unnecessary: and to perform related duties and responsibilities 

as required. 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED  

Receives supervision from Public Works Supervisor or Manager and direction from 

collection system lead operator: may provide direction to collection system operator I. 

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS - Essential functions may include, but are not 

limited to, the following: 

Performs heavy manual labor duties as required. when equipment operation 

unnecessary, Including, but not limited to shoveling and spreading gravel, sand, asphalt 

and other materials on streets: assisting with paving and patching streets: laying pipes 

for sewer system, cleaning, maintaining and repairing sewer mains and lift stations.   

Performs heavy manual labor duties as required in the construction, maintenance 

and repair of city sewer systems, including but not limited to preparing street 

surfaces for patching, and/or shoveling and spreading gravel, sand, asphalt, and 

other materials on streets: assisting with the paving, patching, laying pipes for 

sewer, cleaning, maintaining, and repairing sewer mains, lines, and lift stations. 

Sets forms and finishes concrete for manholes and cleanouts. 

Operates vehicles, various trucks, loader, backhoe, sewer jet rodder, street roller, manlift, 

tamper, lawn care equipment, concrete mixer: operates or uses a tv van/camera, 

diagnostic tools, masonry tools, carpentry tools, mechanics tools, plumbing tools, welding 

tools, various other common hand and power tools, measuring devices, meters, and 

safety gear. 

Loads and hauls water, gravel, rock, debris, and various other materials to and 

from construction sites. 

May be required to accurately mark underground sewer and storm drain lines for 

private contractors and utility companies. 

Provides traffic control around work sites, including setting up barricades, warning signs 

and cones, and flagging traffic. 

Responds to emergency situations with appropriate equipment as required. 

23

Item 3.



CITY OF OROVILLE 
 

Performs general building and grounds maintenance work as requested: maintains 

clean and orderly work areas.   

Performs weed abatement duties related to lift stations, off road lines and easements.  

Performs routine inspection and safety checks on equipment; cleans, maintains and 

performs minor adjustments to equipment as necessary. 

Maintains routine records of work performed and materials used. 

Performs all work in compliance with department policies and procedures, standards of 

quality and safety, approved plans and specifications. 

Work on call during evenings, weekends, and holidays as scheduled. 

Assist with special projects or assignments as required. 

Operates heavy, power driven equipment in the construction and maintenance of city 

sewer system. 

Transports and tows various pieces of equipment to and from job sites; loads and hauls 

water, gravel, rock, debris, and various other materials to and from construction sites. 

Assists with stocking and maintaining supply inventory. 

Assist with employee training as assigned. 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 

Knowledge of: 

Modern principles, practices, techniques, equipment, materials and tools used in 

general construction and maintenance operations. 

Safe and proper operation and maintenance needs of heavy construction/maintenance 

equipment; safe and proper use of other tools and equipment used in city sewer system 

construction and maintenance operations. 

General use and purpose of construction and maintenance materials. 

Basic record keeping and report preparation techniques. 

Department policies, procedures and standards related to city sewer system, construction 

projects and maintenance operations. 

Ability to: 

Read, learn, understand and apply pertinent policies, procedures and regulations 

standards. 

Read and understand maps, sketches, diagrams and blueprints. 

Perform heavy construction and manual labor work. 

24

Item 3.



CITY OF OROVILLE 
 

Safely operate assigned equipment and tools; work safely in heavy traffic or limited 

space conditions. 

Read and write at a level required for successful job performance. 

Maintain accurate work records and prepare routine records and reports. 

Perform mathematical computations with accuracy. 

Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course 

of work. 

Meet the physical requirements necessary to safely and effectively perform the required 

duties. 

Understand and follow oral and written instructions. 

Experience: 

Two years of experience in sewer system maintenance and construction, including the 

operation of light equipment such as trucks, tractors and related maintenance equipment. 

Education: 

High school diploma or GED equivalent. 

Additional Requirements: 

Possession and maintenance of a valid California Class A driver’s license. 

TYPICAL WORKING CONDITIONS 

Work is regularly performed in field environment. Incumbent drives on surface streets 

operates heavy machinery on surface streets and construction sites: traverse’s uneven 

terrain on foot. Worker may be exposed to traffic and construction hazards, fire hazards, 

electrical currents, air contaminants, adverse weather conditions, temperatures and noise 

extremes, wetness, humidity, heights, confined spaces, fumes, dusts, odors, toxic or 

caustic chemicals, pathogens, solvents, grease/oil, vibration. 

TYPICAL PHISICAL REQUIREMENTS 

Requires the mobility and stamina to exert strenuous physical effort in a field environment. 

Requires the ability to operate vehicles and heavy equipment: walk, stand, climb, balance, 

stoop, kneel, crouch, crawl, and reach while performing field work: lift and/or move up to 

25 pounds frequently and up to 100 pounds occasionally: use hands to finger, handle, 

feel or operate objects, tools and controls. Tasks require visual and sound perception and 

discrimination and communications ability. 

This class specification lists the major duties and requirements of the job and is 

not all-inclusive. Incumbents may be expected to perform job-related duties other 

than contained in this document. 

25

Item 3.



CITY OF OROVILLE 

LEAD COLLECTION SYSTEM LEAD OPERATOR 

 

DEFINITION 

To provide lead direction and participate in the operation of light and heavy equipment in 

the construction, maintenance and repair of city sewer system, and related 

infrastructures: and perform related duties and responsibilities as required. 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED  

Receives general supervision from the Public Works Operations Supervisor or Manager. 

May provide direction to Collection System Operator I and II. 

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS - Essential functions may include, but are not 

limited to, the following: 

Performs heavy manual labor duties as required. when equipment operation 

unnecessary, Including, but not limited to shoveling and spreading gravel, sand, asphalt 

and other materials on streets: assisting with paving and patching streets: laying pipes 

for sewer system, cleaning, maintaining and repairing sewer mains and lift stations.   

Performs heavy manual labor duties as required in the construction, maintenance 

and repair of city sewer systems, including but not limited to preparing street 

surfaces for patching, and/or shoveling and spreading gravel, sand, asphalt, and 

other materials on streets: assisting with the paving, patching, laying pipes for 

sewer, cleaning, maintaining, and repairing sewer mains, lines, and lift stations. 

Designs, sets forms, and finishes concrete for manholes and cleanouts. 

Operates vehicles, various trucks, loader, backhoe, sewer jet rodder, street roller, manlift, 

tamper, lawn care equipment, concrete mixer: operates or uses a TV van/ camera, 

diagnostic tools, masonry tools, carpentry tools, mechanics tools, plumbing tools, welding 

tools, various other common hand and power tools, measuring devices, meters, and 

safety gear. 

Loads and hauls water, gravel, rock, debris, and various other materials to and 

from construction sites. 

Oversees traffic control efforts around work sites, including setting up barricades, warning 

signs, cones, and flagging traffic. 

Responds to emergency situations with appropriate equipment as required. 

Performs general building and grounds maintenance work as requested: maintains 

clean and orderly work areas.   

Performs weed abatement duties related to lift stations, off road lines and easements. 

26

Item 3.



CITY OF OROVILLE 

Performs routine inspection and safety checks on equipment; cleans, maintains 

and performs minor adjustments to equipment as necessary. 

Cleans, maintains and performs minor adjustments to equipment as necessary. 

Maintains routine records of work performed and materials used. 

Performs all work in compliance with department policies and procedures, 

standards of quality and safety, approved plans and specifications. 

Work on call during evenings, weekends, and holidays as scheduled. 

Assists with special projects or assignments as required. 

Operates heavy, power driven equipment in the construction and maintenance of city 

sewer system. 

Transports and tows various pieces of equipment to and from job sites; loads and hauls 

water, gravel, rock, debris, and various other materials to and from construction sites.  

Assists with stocking and maintaining supply inventory. 

Provides leadership and assistance to subordinate collection system operators on 

assigned projects and participates in employee training.  

Receives, distributes and explains work assignments to crew members. 

Assists in estimating materials for projects and repairs. 

Inspects the work of subordinates and contractors for compliance with department 

policies and procedures, standards of quality and safety, approved plans and 

specifications. 

Locates and marks underground sewer and storm drain lines for private contractors and 

utility companies. 

Receives and responds to inquiries, requests for assistance, concerns and complaints 

from the public regarding city sewer system. 

Performs the duties of Public Works Operations Supervisor or Manager in his/her 

absence. 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 

Knowledge of: 

Modern principles, practices, techniques, equipment, materials and tools used in city 

sewer system construction and maintenance operations. 

Safe and proper operation and maintenance needs of heavy construction/maintenance 

equipment: safe and proper use of other tools and equipment used in city sewer system 

construction and maintenance operations. 

27

Item 3.



CITY OF OROVILLE 

General use and purpose of construction and maintenance materials. 

Basic record keeping and reporting preparation techniques. 

Department policies, procedures and standards related to city sewer system, construction 

projects and maintenance operations. 

Pertinent federal, state and local laws, regulations, codes and ordinances. 

Methods of training and leadership. 

Ability to: 

Read, understand and apply pertinent federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances, 

rules and regulations. 

Read and understand complex plans, sketches, specifications and blueprints. 

Perform heavy construction work and heavy manual labor work. 

Safely operate assigned equipment and tools; work safely in heavy traffic or limited space 

conditions.  

Read and write at a level required for successful job performance. 

Maintain accurate work records and prepare routine reports. 

Perform mathematical computations with accuracy. 

Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course 

of work. 

Meet the physical requirements necessary to safely and effectively perform the required 

duties. 

Train, coordinate and oversee the work of others in a lead supervisory capacity. 

Coordinate, work and perform confined space activity in accordance with applicable 

health and safety standards. 

Operate and maintain electrical control panels for machinery and equipment such as 

wastewater treatment plants and pump stations. 

Apply technical knowledge and follow proper inspection techniques to examine 

workmanship and materials, and detect deviations from plans, specifications, regulations 

and standard construction practices. 

Accurately estimate equipment and materials required to complete assigned projects. 

Experience: 

Four years of experience in sewer system maintenance and construction. 

28

Item 3.



CITY OF OROVILLE 

Education: 

High school diploma or GED equivalent. 

Additional Requirements: 

Possession and maintenance of a valid California Class A driver’s license. 

TYPICAL WORKING CONDITIONS  

Work is regularly performed in field environment. Incumbent drives on surface streets,  

operates heavy machinery on surface streets and construction sites: traverse’s uneven 

terrain on foot. Worker may be exposed to traffic and construction hazards, fire hazards, 

electrical currents, air contaminants, adverse weather conditions, temperatures and noise 

extremes, wetness, humidity, heights, confined spaces, fumes, dusts, odors, toxic or 

caustic chemicals, pathogens, solvents, grease/oil, vibration. 

TYPICAL PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS 

Requires the mobility and stamina to exert strenuous physical effort in a field environment. 

Requires the ability to operate vehicles and heavy equipment: walk, stand, climb, balance, 

stoop, kneel, crouch, crawl, and reach while performing field work: lift and/or move up to 

25 pounds frequently and up to 100 pounds occasionally: use hands to finger, handle, 

feel or operate objects, tools and controls. Tasks require visual and sound perception and 

discrimination and communications ability. 

 

This class specification lists the major duties and requirements of the job and is 

not all-inclusive. Incumbents may be expected to perform job-related duties other 

than contained in this document. 

 

29

Item 3.





Page 1 

 
CITY OF OROVILLE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

 
TO: OROVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: LIZ EHRENSTROM, HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGER 

RE: CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE AMENDED AND RESTATED 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
OROVILLE AND THE OROVILLE CITY EMPLOYEE’S ASSOCIATION AND 
AUTHORIZATION TO GRANT STEP H TO ONE EMPLOYEE 

DATE: JANUARY 7, 2020 

SUMMARY 

The City Council will consider and adopt the new amended and restated Memorandum of 
Understanding between the City of Oroville and the Oroville City Employee’s Association 
(OCEA) and to authorize Step H for one employee.  

DISCUSSION 

City staff has been meeting with the Oroville City Employee’s Association (OCEA) for a 
successor Memorandum of Understanding and have come to an agreement.  Highlights of the 
agreement include 3% COLA increases upon ratification and July 1 of 2020, 2021 and 2022 for 
a 3-year term from January 7, 2020 through January 6, 2023, which includes  OCEA member’s 
agreeing to Advisory Arbitration.  Staff is recommending adoption of this Memorandum. 

Staff is also seeking authorization to move a previous Park Maintenance Technician to Step H 
of the current salary range.  This employee was hired as a park maintenance technician I, which 
did similar work to that of a public works operator I.  However, the public works operator I salary 
range was approximately 45% above the park tech I salary range.  Staff had talked for years 
about making these positions equal on the same salary range since the Park Maintenance 
Technician and Public Works Operator II and III’s were already on the same salary range.   Staff 
finally made the salary ranges the same with the budget that passed for fiscal year starting July 
1, 2019.  However, this created an inequality between the park maintenance technician I and 
the current park tech I employee.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

Effective Date                      Amount 
     1/2020                             $19,606 
     7/2020                             $43,069 
     7/2021                             $44,361 
     7/2022                             $45,692 
Total Salary and Benefits   $152,728  

30

Item 4.



Page 2 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt Resolution No. 8829 - A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AMENDED AND 
RESTATED MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF OROVILLE 
AND THE OROVILLE CITY EMPLOYEE’S ASSOCIATION – (Agreement No. 1432-15).  
 
Approve and authorize staff to move one employee to Step H of the current salary range. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Resolution No. 8829 – Will be provided under separate cover 
Agreement 1432-15 – Will be provided under separate cover 
 
 

 

31

Item 4.



Page 1 

 
CITY OF OROVILLE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

FROM: BILL LAGRONE, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

RE: FIRST READING OF A DRAFT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OROVILLE 
AMENDING SECTIONS 17.04.060 AND 5.28.010 AND ADDING SECTIONS 
5.28.095, 5.28.130 AND 5.28.140 OF THE OROVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE 
REGARDING PROHIBITING THE SALE OF FLAVORED TOBACCO 
 

DATE: JANUARY 7, 2020 

SUMMARY 

The Council will hold a public hearing to consider approving the first reading of an ordinance 
to prohibit the sale of flavored tobacco within the City limits. Input will be considered from the 
Planning Commission and the public on both sides of the issue. 

DISCUSSION 

In the interest of improved public health and especially for Oroville’s youth, on October 
1, 2019, the City Council heard for the second time testimony from many individuals 
and groups who pointed out the health effects and increasing use by youth of e-
cigarettes and flavored tobacco liquids. The Council then directed staff to prepare an 
ordinance to prohibit the sale of flavored tobacco products within the City limits. 
Because some of the code changes would affect Title 17 (Zoning Code), the Council 
also directed the Planning Commission to hear the question1. 
 
The Planning Commission met twice on the issue and recommended that the City 
Council take no action at this time to ban or limit flavored tobacco products in Oroville.  
Instead the Commission recommends the City send a letter to the Governor and the 
State Legislature urging immediate action to ban flavored vaping products statewide, 
and/or take other appropriate measures to protect the health of our State’s youth. The 
primary reason for this recommendation was to avoid creating a commercial advantage 
to tobacco retailers outside the city limits at the expense of our retailers. More 
background can be found in the Commission’s October 29 and November 21 meeting 
agenda packets (attached). 
 
There is almost universal acknowledgement that vaping by our youth has reached 
epidemic proportions across the nation, and the Federal government, the State 

                                                           
1 The Planning Commission’s charge in this case was to “    evaluate information from staff and testimony for the 
purpose of making recommendations to guide legislative action”  from The Job of the Planning Commissioner, by 
Albert Solnit, ©1987, 3rd edition revised, page 5. 

32

Item 5.



Page 2 

government, and dozens of local jurisdictions are acting to restrict, educate, and/or 
study vaping and its health effects. On October 1, there were 29 California jurisdictions 
that had enacted some form of an ordinance.  As of November 14 there are over 50 
who had done so. 
 
The attached draft ordinance prohibits the sale by any retailer of all flavored tobacco 
products including menthol, whether smoked, chewed or vaped.  It is modeled after the 
enacted Sacramento City Ordinance.   
 
If approved, the second reading and adoption would be scheduled for Tuesday, 
January 20, 2020.  
 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Assuming a ban on all flavored tobacco products, the lost sales of e-cigarettes and 
other flavored tobacco products would mean minimal sales tax revenue losses to the 
City -- in the range of $10,000 - $20,000 per year.  Total sales tax revenues in 2018 
from those likely to be tobacco retailers were $660,334 (service stations, food markets, 
and liquor stores combined). However, if Oakland’s experience is repeated in Oroville 
and our stores are bypassed, lost City sales tax revenue could be up to $90,000 per 
year. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

Provide direction to staff on these options: 

1. Approve first reading of ordinance as is, which prohibits the sale of all 
flavored tobacco products within the City limits; 

2. Modify the ordinance to allow sale of flavored tobacco products at Oroville’s 
five smoke shops only; 

3. Adopt the Planning Commission’s recommendation to take no action, but 
send a letter encouraging the State to prohibit flavored tobacco products 
statewide; 

4. If adopting a ban, the Council may also consider whether to make the ban 
effective immediately or to wait a period of time to allow retailers to sell their 
existing inventory. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Draft ordinance assuming a full ban on flavored tobacco products. 

2. Planning Commission and Council meeting staff reports and backup materials. 
 

33

Item 5.



Oroville Municipal Code 

Proposed changes to affect a prohibition on flavored tobacco products 

 

These changes are intended to prohibit the sale of flavored tobacco products in the City of Oroville. The 
changes will: 

1. Effectively remove flavored tobacco products from smoke shops and from stores that sell 
tobacco under a Tobacco Retailers License; 

2. Continue to prohibit sale of tobacco products and/or paraphernalia to persons younger than 
the minimum age; 

3. Will not eliminate the sale of electronic cigarettes, but will prohibit selling any product other 
than tobacco or nicotine for use with them; 

4. “Smoking” as defined in OMC 9.04.170 includes … ”inhaling, exhaling burning or carrying any 
lighted …..combustible substance in any manner and in any form.”  Smoking, including vaping, 
will thus continue to be prohibited in enclosed public places and other places as defined;  

 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OROVILLE AMENDING SECTIONS 17.04.060 AND 5.28.010 AND 
ADDING SECTIONS 5.28.095, 5.28.130 AND 5.28.140 OF THE OROVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE 

REGARDING PROHIBITING THE SALE OF FLAVORED TOBACCO 

WHEREAS, tobacco use remains the leading cause of preventable death in the United 

States, killing more than 480, 000 people each year. It causes or contributes to many forms of 

cancer, as well as heart disease and respiratory diseases, among other health disorders.  
Tobacco use remains a public health crisis of the first order, in terms of the human suffering 
and loss of life it causes. the financial costs it imposes on society, and the burdens it places on 
our health care system; and 

WHEREAS, flavored tobacco products are commonly sold by California tobacco retailers. 

For example: 97.4% of stores that sell cigarettes sell menthol cigarettes; 94.5% of stores that 
sell little cigars sell them in flavored varieties; 84.2% of stores that sell electronic smoking 
devices sell flavored varieties; and 83.8% of stores that sell chew or snus sell flavored varieties; 
and 

WHEREAS, each day, approximately 2,500 children in the United States try their first 

cigarette; and another 8,400 children under 18 years of age become new regular, daily 
smokers. 81% of youth who have ever used a tobacco product report that the first tobacco 
product they used was flavored. Flavored tobacco products promote youth initiation of tobacco 

34

Item 5.



use and help young occasional smokers to become daily smokers by reducing or masking the 
natural harshness and taste of tobacco smoke and thereby increasing the appeal of tobacco 
products. As tobacco companies well know, menthol, in particular, cools and numbs the throat 
to reduce throat irritation and make the smoke feel smoother, making menthol cigarettes an 
appealing option for youth who are initiating tobacco use. Tobacco companies have used 
flavorings such as mint and wintergreen in smokeless tobacco products as part of a "graduation 
strategy" to encourage new users to start with tobacco products with lower levels of nicotine 
and progress to products with higher levels of nicotine. It is therefore unsurprising that young 
people are much more likely to use menthol-, candy and fruit-flavored tobacco products, 
including not just cigarettes but also cigars, cigarillos, and hookah tobacco, than adults. Data 
from the National Youth Tobacco Survey indicate that more than two-fifths of U.S. middle 
school and high school smokers report using flavored little cigars or flavored cigarettes. Further, 
the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention has reported a more than 800% increase in 
electronic cigarette use among middle school and high school students between 2011 and 
2015. Nicotine solutions, which are consumed via electronic smoking devices such as electronic 
cigarettes, are sold in thousands of flavors that appeal to youth, such as cotton candy and 
bubble gum; and 

WHEREAS, much as young people disproportionately use flavored tobacco products 

including menthol cigarettes, the same can be said of certain minority groups. In one survey, 
the percentage of people who smoke cigarettes that reported smoking menthol cigarettes in 
the prior month included, most dramatically, 82.6% of Blacks or African-Americans who smoke 
cigarettes.  The statistics for other groups were: 53.2% of Native Hawaiians or other Pacific 
Islanders who smoke cigarettes; 36.9% of individuals with multiracial backgrounds who smoke 
cigarettes; 32.3% of Hispanics or Latinos who smoke cigarettes; 31.2% of Asians who smoke 
cigarettes; 24.8% of American Indians or Alaska Natives who smoke cigarettes; and 23.8% of 
Whites or Caucasians who smoke cigarettes. People who identify as LGBT and young adults with 
mental health conditions also struggle with disproportionately high rates of menthol cigarette 
use. The disproportionate use of menthol cigarettes among targeted groups, especially the 
extremely high use among African-Americans, is troubling because of the long-term adverse 
health impacts on those groups; and 

WHEREAS, between 2004 and 2014, overall smoking prevalence decreased, but use of 

menthol cigarettes increased among both young adults (ages 18-25) and other adults (ages 
26+). These statistics are consistent with the finding that smoking menthol cigarettes reduces 
the likelihood of successfully quitting smoking. Scientific modeling has projected that a national 
ban on menthol cigarettes could save between 300,000 and 600,000 lives by 2050. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Oroville does ordain as follows: 

 

35

Item 5.



SECTION 1. Oroville Municipal Code Section 17.04.060 is hereby amended as follows:  

Characterizing Flavor. A taste or aroma, other than the taste or aroma of tobacco, imparted either prior 
to or during consumption of a tobacco product or any byproduct produced by the tobacco product, 
including, but not limited to, tastes or aromas relating to menthol, mint, wintergreen, fruit, chocolate, 
vanilla, honey, candy, cocoa, dessert, alcohol beverage, herb, or spice.  A tobacco product shall not be 
determined to have a characterizing flavor solely because of the use of additives or flavorings or the 
provision of ingredient information. Rather, it is the presence of a distinguishable taste or aroma, or 
both, as described in the first sentence of this definition, that constitutes a characterizing flavor. 

 

"Flavored tobacco product" means any tobacco product that contains a constituent that imparts a 
characterizing flavor. 

……… 

Tobacco paraphernalia. Cigarette papers or wrappers, pipes, holders of smoking materials of all types, 
cigarette rolling machines, vaporizers and any other item designed for the smoking, preparation, storing, 
or consumption of tobacco products. For the purpose of this title, electronic cigarette supplies are 
considered tobacco paraphernalia. 

Tobacco product. Any substance containing tobacco leaf, including but not limited to cigarettes, cigars, 
pipe tobacco, hookah tobacco, snuff, chewing tobacco, dipping tobacco, snus, bidis, or any other 
preparation of tobacco; and any product or formulation of matter containing biologically active amounts 
of nicotine that is manufactured, sold, offered for sale, or otherwise distributed with the expectation 
that the product or matter will be introduced into the human body, but does not include any cessation 
product specifically approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration for use in treating 
nicotine or tobacco dependence. For the purpose of this title, electronic cigarettes are considered a 
tobacco product. For the purposes of this title, tobacco products exclude products with a characterizing 
flavor.  

 

 

SECTION 2. Oroville Municipal Code Section 5.28.010  is hereby amended to read as follows: 

“5.28.010 Definitions. 

The following words and phrases, whenever used in this chapter, shall have the meanings defined in this 
section unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 

“Arm’s length transaction” means a sale in good faith and for valuable consideration that reflects the 
fair market value in the open market between 2 informed and willing parties, neither of which is under 
any compulsion to participate in the transaction. A sale between relatives, related companies or 
partners, or a sale for which a significant purpose is avoiding the effect of the violations of this chapter is 
not an arm’s length transaction. 

36

Item 5.



“Characterizing Flavor” means a taste or aroma, other than the taste or aroma of tobacco, imparted 
either prior to or during consumption of a tobacco product or any byproduct produced by the tobacco 
product, including, but not limited to, tastes or aromas relating to menthol, mint, wintergreen, fruit, 
chocolate, vanilla, honey, candy, cocoa, dessert, alcohol beverage, herb, or spice.  A tobacco product 
shall not be determined to have a characterizing flavor solely because of the use of additives or 
flavorings or the provision of ingredient information. Rather, it is the presence of a distinguishable taste 
or aroma, or both, as described in the first sentence of this definition, that constitutes a characterizing 
flavor. 

"Flavored tobacco product" means any tobacco product that contains a constituent that imparts a 
characterizing flavor. 

 

“Person” means any natural person, partnership, cooperative association, corporation, personal 
representative, receiver, trustee, assignee, or any other legal entity. 

“Proprietor” means a person with an ownership or managerial interest in a business. An ownership 
interest shall be deemed to exist when a person has a 10% or greater interest in the stock, assets, or 
income of a business other than the sole interest of security for debt. A managerial interest shall be 
deemed to exist when a person can or does have or share ultimate control over the day-to-day 
operations of a business. 

“Self-service display” means the open display or storage of tobacco products or tobacco paraphernalia 
in a manner that is physically accessible in any way to the general public without the assistance of the 
retailer or employee of the retailer and a direct person-to-person transfer between the purchaser and 
the retailer or employee of the retailer. A vending machine is a form of self-service display. 

“Smoking.” Refer to Section 9.04.170 for definition. 

“Tobacco paraphernalia” means cigarette papers or wrappers, pipes, holders of smoking materials of all 
types, cigarette rolling machines, vaporizers and any other item designed for the smoking, preparation, 
storing, or consumption of tobacco products. For the purpose of this chapter, electronic cigarette 
supplies are considered tobacco paraphernalia. 

“Tobacco product” means any substance containing tobacco leaf, including, but not limited to, 
cigarettes, cigars, pipe tobacco, hookah tobacco, snuff, chewing tobacco, dipping tobacco, snus, bidis, or 
any other preparation of tobacco; and any product or formulation of matter containing biologically 
active amounts of nicotine that is manufactured, sold, offered for sale, or otherwise distributed with the 
expectation that the product or matter will be introduced into the human body, but does not include 
any cessation product specifically approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration for use 
in treating nicotine or tobacco dependence. For the purpose of this chapter, electronic cigarettes are 
considered a tobacco product. For the purposes of this title, tobacco products exclude products with a 
characterizing flavor. 

“Tobacco retailer” means any person who sells, offers for sale, or exchanges for any form of 
consideration, tobacco, tobacco products or tobacco paraphernalia. “Tobacco retailing” shall mean the 
doing of any of these things. This definition is without regard to the quantity of tobacco, tobacco 

37

Item 5.



products, or tobacco paraphernalia sold, offered for sale, exchanged, or offered for exchange. (Ord. 
1794 § 1)” 

 

SECTION 3. Section 5.28.095 is hereby added to the Oroville Municipal Code to read as follows: 

“5.28.095 Sale or offer for sale of flavored tobacco products prohibited. 

(a)The sale or offer for sale, by any person or tobacco retailer of any flavored tobacco product is 
prohibited and no person or tobacco retailer shall sell, or offer for sale, any flavored tobacco product. 

(b)There shall be a rebuttable presumption that a tobacco product is a flavored tobacco product if a 
manufacturer or any of the manufacturer's agents or employees, in the course of their agency or 
employment, has made a statement or claim directed to consumers or to the public that the tobacco 
product has or produces a characterizing flavor including, but not limited to, text, color, and/or images 
on the product's labeling or packaging that are used to explicitly or implicitly communicate that the 
tobacco product has a characterizing flavor.” 

 

SECTION 4. Sections 5.28.130 and 5.28.140 are hereby added to the Oroville Municipal Code to read 
as follows: 

“5.28.130 No conflict with federal or state law. 

Nothing in this chapter shall be interpreted or applied so as to create any requirement, power, or duty 
that is preempted by federal or state law. 

 

5.28.140 Severability. 

If any provision, section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of this Chapter 5.28, or any 
application thereof to any person or circumstance, is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions or 
applications of the chapter. The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this chapter, and 
each provision, section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, and word not declared invalid or 
unconstitutional without regard to whether any other portion of this chapter or application thereof 
would be subsequently declared invalid or unconstitutional.” 

 

38

Item 5.



 1 

 

City of Oroville 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2436   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

        
DISCUSSION 

In the interest of improved public health and especially for Oroville’s youth, on October 1, 
2019, the City Council heard testimony from many individuals and groups who pointed 
out the health effects and increasing use by youth of e-cigarettes and flavored tobacco 
liquids. All acknowledge that vaping has reached epidemic proportions across the nation.  
The Council then directed staff to prepare an ordinance to prohibit the sale of flavored 
tobacco products within the City limits. On October 1, there were 29 jurisdictions that had 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT Thursday, November 21, 2019 

RE: ORDINANCE TO LIMIT OR PROHIBIT THE SALE OF FLAVORED TOBACCO 
PRODUCTS IN OROVILLE 

SUMMARY:  The Planning Commission may consider recommending to the City Council 
adoption of changes to Title 17 of the Oroville Municipal Code in order to limit or prohibit the sale 
of flavored tobacco products.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  That the Planning Commission consider several options to regulate 
flavored tobacco, and after consideration recommend to the City Council whether they should 
adopt changes to Oroville Municipal Code 17.04.060, and corresponding changes to Oroville 
Municipal Code 5.28.010. 

 

APPLICANTS: None 

LOCATION:  City wide 

 
GENERAL PLAN:  NA 

ZONING:  NA 

FLOOD ZONE:  NA 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:   Not a project under CEQA (para 21065 & CEQA 
Guidelines 15378(b)(5)) 

REPORT PREPARED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Wes Ervin, Senior Planner 
Community Development Department 

REVIEWED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Leonardo DePaola, Director 
Community Development Director 

Leonardo DePaola 
Community Development Director 

 

3

Item 1.

95

Item 9.

39

Item 5.



 2 

enacted some form of an ordinance.  As of November 14 there are 50 who have done so. 

Some of these changes involve amendments to Title 17, which is the purview of the 
Planning Commission. Accordingly, the Commission is asked to review at its earliest 
opportunity recommended changes to Title 17 and Title 5 of the Oroville Municipal Code, 
and to forward the Commission’s recommendations to the City Council for action.  

At its October 29, 2019 meeting the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing 
and considered the proposed changes, which included: 

 Amending the definitions in OMC 17.04.060 (Zoning Code) to separate flavored 
tobacco from tobacco products so they can be separately regulated; 

 Amending the definitions in OMC 5.28.010 (tobacco retailers), to separate flavored 
tobacco from tobacco products. Tobacco retailers will thus be prohibited from 
selling flavored tobacco products; 

 No changes to OMC 17.16.190 (Smoke Shops). with the definition changes 
proposed above, Smoke shops will be prohibited from selling flavored tobacco 
products to minors or adults; 

 No changes to OMC 9.04.170 (Regulation of Smoking).  Smoking, including vaping 
and use of electronic cigarettes, will still be prohibited wherever already prohibited.  

 

After discussion, rather than accept the recommended ordinance the Commission 
directed staff to develop information on three less restrictive options: 

1. Take no action, assuming the State will soon take action that affects all 
jurisdictions; 

2. Design a more nuanced ordinance that is less restrictive but still targets youth 
access to vaping and flavored products.  May also include hiding flavored products 
on store shelves. 

3. Design an ordinance that limits flavored tobacco products to smoke shops. 

The Chairman also encouraged staff to meet with retailers to get more input prior to the 
November 21 meeting.  

 

No Action Option 

If the City takes no action, it would do so with the expectation that the State or Federal 
governments will ultimately take action against vaping and/or e-cigarettes. 

Governor Newsom issued on September 16 an executive order directing a $20 Million 
campaign to educate youth, young adults, and parents about the health risks of vaping 
and cannabis, and to post warning signs where these products are sold.  

The State Assembly Committee on Health held an informational hearing on October 16, 
20191. Assembly members Gray and McCarty are now expected to introduce legislation 
to regulate vaping, e-cigarettes and/or e-liquids. 

The FDA is advancing a policy to address youth e-cigarette use, but has wavered on 

                     
1 https://cheac.org/2019/10/18/assembly-holds-joint-informational-hearing-on-

vaping-tobacco-and-cannabis-

products/?utm_source=rss&utm_medium=rss&utm_campaign=assembly-holds-joint-

informational-hearing-on-vaping-tobacco-and-cannabis-products  

4

Item 1.

96

Item 9.

40

Item 5.



 3 

banning them until the policy is finalized2.  

 

Limiting sales to Smoke Shops Option 

The rules for sale of tobacco products are the same at smoke shops and tobacco retailers, 
though our five smoke shops all have Use Permits and typically have more security and 
limit patronage to adults only. The City’s smoke shops would certainly gain much of the 
sales lost by tobacco retailers, generating some but not all of the foregone tax revenues.  

 

Nuanced and Less Restrictive Ban Options 

Less restrictive bans that still try to limit youth access have included some of the 
approaches below. 

1. Nine jurisdictions exempt menthol from their bans, which is a long-standing flavor 
in regular cigarettes, and the only flavor FDA allows in cigarettes; 

2. Limit the ban to e-cigarettes and associated e-liquids; 

3. Limit the ban to flavored e-liquids only, exempting pure liquid nicotine, and still 
allowing e-cigarettes;  

4. Ban online sales by sellers located within the jurisdiction; 

5. Prohibit new tobacco retailers within 500 feet of an existing one, or of a school; 

6. Limit sales of flavored cigars and cigarillos to packs of 5 or 20; 

7. Extend the smoking ban to more public places such as parks and public events; 

8. Cap the number of tobacco retailers, much like smoke shops are now limited; 

9. Enact a ban, but delay effective dates and enforcement to give retailers time to 
adjust, and/or give the State Legislature time to act. 

Three examples of unique ordinances: 

 Mono County -- April 17, 2018 

o Mono County prohibited the sale of flavored e-liquids for one year, excluding 
other flavored tobacco products.  However, since October 2019 the County 
now has a complete ban on all flavored tobacco products; 

o The County also banned smoking in county vehicles, public parks, 
recreational areas, service areas, dining areas, and public places when 
used as a public event; 

 Richmond -- July 17, 2018 

o Banned sale of all electronic smoking devices in stores or online; 

o Limits minimum pack size of 20 cigarettes or cigars/cigarillos, except those 
sold for over $5 apiece; 

o Now prohibits new tobacco retailers from opening within 500 feet of another 
tobacco retailer, or within 1,000 feet of a school, park, playground or library; 

o Delayed enforcement until January 1, 2020; 

                     
2 https://www.cnbc.com/2019/11/13/trump-administration-wavers-on-ban-of-

flavored-e-cigarettes-no-final-answer.html  

5

Item 1.

97

Item 9.

41

Item 5.



 4 

 San Francisco -- June 27, 2017 (referendum vote June 5, 2018).  

o Banned sale of all electronic smoking devices in stores or online; 

o Bans new tobacco retailers after a maximum of 45 per supervisorial district; 

o Prohibits new tobacco retailers from opening within 500 feet of a school or 
another tobacco retailer; 

o Enforced beginning January 1, 2019 

Since the options are many, staff will develop a specific draft ordinance after hearing 
direction from the Commission, and will prepare to present the draft to the Council.  

 

Enforcement and Education Considerations 

Staff consulted the Police Department for this item.  Most tobacco related enforcement 
issues are about e-cigarettes, vaping, and youth use of tobacco.  Menthol and other 
flavorings in cigarettes, cigars and smokeless tobacco are much more benign.  Thus, 
from the enforcement standpoint the most effective ban would be e-cigarettes and e-
liquids only.  

There are laws that restrict placement of tobacco products in stores, but compliance is 
uncertain (e.g. behind the counter vs. on the counter).  A code compliance effort may 
be indicated. 

In addition, there is data to suggest that one third of smoke shops sell to minors 
statewide, and that 19% of all tobacco retailers do in fact frequently sell to minors 
despite the law. The Butte County Sheriff’s Office has conducted several sting 
operations, including as recently as last month.  

A ban limited to e-liquids and/or flavored tobacco will help but their effectiveness is 
limited, because online sales, buying at the two reservations, illicit sales, and adults 
supplying youth will all continue regardless. Education is thus a critical component of 
limiting access to youth.  In addition to the many nonprofit organizations now educating 
our youth, the Oroville Police Department has received a 3-year Department of Justice 
grant for $424,240 to help educate students at the Oroville City Elementary School 
District (OCESD), including hiring dedicated staff, installing cameras and smoke and 
vapor detectors, and increased monitoring of tobacco retailers near schools.  OPD and 
OCESD are now actively engaged in tobacco prevention education for grades 4-8, and 
are actively supporting other anti-smoking programs. 

 

Economic Loss to Retailers of a Flavored Tobacco Ban 

The City has 40 licensed tobacco retailers, of which 16 appear to be C-stores (gas 
stations/mini-marts). Gas station/mini marts are typically among the highest sales tax 
generators in a community. Others are grocery markets of all sizes (13), liquor stores 
(3), smoke shops (5), and drug stores (3).  Note that Raley’s and CVS have corporate 
policies not to carry tobacco products.  

Some national sales data are available for convenience stores from the National 
Association of Convenience Stores3.  Using that data, staff estimates that the direct 

                     
3 2018 NACS State of the Industry Summit, published by CSPdailynews.com, 

Volume 29, Issue 7  

http://cdn.coverstand.com/20858/497321/9ff769c3ec0939592ebae907b4ea96529ca9fc

3a.5.pdf  

6

Item 1.

98

Item 9.

42

Item 5.



 5 

sales of e-cigarettes at the average C-store to be about $12,000 per year, or less than 
1% of total store sales. Average C-store tobacco sales including cigarettes, cigars, 
smokeless tobacco and paraphernalia total $102,000 per year, or 43% of total sales. 
Cigarettes are the largest component of tobacco sales. 

 

A ban on flavored tobacco products affects more than just that specific product. Patrons 
seeking e-cigarettes also purchase other goods at the same time. Those stores that do 
not carry flavored tobacco products would lose a greater percentage of sales due to 
customers bypassing that store, instead purchasing gasoline and other products 
elsewhere.  The two Tribal casinos both have gas stations, mini marts and smoke 
shops, which would presumably gain from a ban, as would Billy Bob’s Market and other 
stores in Thermalito. 

For example, Oakland limited the sale of flavored tobacco products effective July 1, 
2018. According to the APCA, the effect to C-store sales was lost revenue of 11% to 
fuel sales, 52% in cigarette and tobacco sales, and 20.47% overall. Similar data is not 
available for liquor stores and smoke shops, but the impact to sales at those stores 
would of course be much greater.   

 

Input from Organizations Received to Date (in order received) 

In addition to the many individuals who have testified, the following organizations have 
provided input to the City Council and/or Planning Commission. Some are attached: 

1. The California Health Collaborative has presented, and has provided much 
information about the health effects of vaping, tobacco, and of youth access to 
those products. Data they provided is included in prior staff reports; 

2. The County Department of Health has presented, and supports a ban on flavored 
tobacco products; 

3. 92 individual form letters were received opposing a ban of flavored tobacco 
products; 

4. The Cancer Action Network supports the ban – letter attached 

5. The American Petroleum and Convenience Store Association opposes the ban and 
supports waiting until the State acts – letter and email attached 

 

FISCAL IMPACT  

Assuming a ban on all flavored tobacco products, the lost sales of e-cigarettes and 
other Tobacco (OTP) products would mean minimal sales tax revenue losses to the 
City -- in the range of $10,000 - $20,000 per year.  Total sales tax revenues in 2018 
from those likely to be tobacco retailers were $660,334 (service stations, food markets, 
and liquor stores combined). However, if Oakland’s experience is repeated in Oroville, 
lost sales tax revenue could be up to $90,000 per year. 

 

7

Item 1.

99

Item 9.

43

Item 5.



 6 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. City Council staff report of October 1, 2019 
2. Planning Commission staff report of October 24/29, 2019 
3. Assembly Informational Hearing background paper of October 16, 2019 
4. Updated matrix of flavored tobacco ordinances as of 11-14-19 
5. Selected correspondence supporting and opposing the ban 
6. Changes to Oroville Municipal Code assuming a full ban 

8

Item 1.

100

Item 9.

44

Item 5.



Page 1 

 
CITY OF OROVILLE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

FROM: BILL LAGRONE, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

RE: LIMITING OR PROHIBITING THE SALE OF FLAVORED TOBACCO 
PRODUCTS IN OROVILLE 

DATE: OCTOBER 1, 2019 

SUMMARY 

The Council may consider adopting an ordinance that either limits the sale of 
flavored tobacco products to smoke shops, or that prohibits the sale outright.  

 

DISCUSSION 

In 2017 the City Council considered but did not enact an ordinance restricting the sale 
of Menthol cigarettes and other flavored tobacco products. At its last meeting on 
September 17, 2019, the Council heard a presentation by the California Health 
Collaborative about the problems associated with menthol and other flavored tobacco 
products.  They directed staff to bring an agenda item forward for consideration. 

Now there are a plethora of well-documented health issues associated with the use of 
this type of product, there is a high percentage of use by youth, and policymakers 
everywhere are acting. For instance: 

 

1. The California Department of Health and Governor Newsome are actively 
warning about the health issues of flavored tobacco use in the media, including 
that there have been 4 deaths and hundreds of illnesses in the State; 

2. The Trump Administration announced on September 11 that it is moving to pull 
flavored e-cigarettes from the market until/unless they are approved by the 
FDA1; 

3. The makers and sellers of flavored cigarettes are under tremendous public 
pressure by public officials at all levels of government.  On September 25 the 
CEO of Juul stepped down, the company announced it would stop saying their 

                                                           
1 https://www.npr.org/sections/health-shots/2019/09/11/759851853/fda-to-banish-flavored-e-cigarettes-to-
combat-youth-vaping  

197

Item 6.

9

Item 1.

101

Item 9.

45

Item 5.



Page 2 

products are safer than traditional cigarettes, and would not oppose new 
regulations for their products. 2  

4. Local and state governments across the country have enacted laws prohibiting 
or restricting the sale of flavored tobacco, including  37 in California (e.g. San 
Francisco, Hermosa Beach, Cloverdale, and Sacramento). On 9/24/19, the LA 
County Board of Supervisors became the latest - voting unanimously to ban 
flavored tobacco products. 

How many retailers in Oroville will be affected? 

There are 40 tobacco retailers in Oroville that sell tobacco as part of their product 
lines, and 5 smoke shops whose main business is tobacco and tobacco products.  
Three smoke shops are on Oro Dam Blvd, one is on Lincoln Blvd, and the fifth is on 
Feather River Blvd @ Bird St.  Prohibition would eliminate a significant line of 
business at the 5 smoke shops. The sale of unflavored tobacco and tobacco products 
would not be affected. 

What is a flavored tobacco product? 

The ordinances of Hermosa Beach and Sacramento both define a flavored tobacco 
product as any tobacco product that imparts a characterizing flavor regardless of the 
name of the product. For example: “Tropical Mist” may be characterized as smelling / 
tasting like coconut 

 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 

Limiting sale to smoke shops would have an undetermined but limited effect on 
annual sales at 40 stores that sell tobacco products in Oroville.   

A prohibition would have a significant effect on sales at the five smoke shops.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 

Direct staff to prepare an ordinance that distinguishes between tobacco products 
and flavored tobacco products, and that also: 

1. Limits the sale of all flavored tobacco products to smoke shops 

or 

2. Prohibits the sale of all flavored tobacco products within City limits.  

and 
                                                           
2 https://www.nytimes.com/2019/09/25/health/juul-vaping.html  

198

Item 6.

10

Item 1.

102

Item 9.

46

Item 5.



Page 3 

Direct Staff to bring the matter before the Planning Commission on October 24, then 
to Council for a First reading on November 5 or 19, and a second reading as soon 
as possible after that.   

 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. California Medical Association White Paper on Flavored and Mentholated Tobacco 
Products; 

2. California Matrix of Local Flavored Tobacco Product ordinances; 
3. Model California Ordinance Restricting Sale 
4. Hermosa Beach Ordinance 
5. Sacramento City Ordinance 
 

 

199

Item 6.

11

Item 1.

103

Item 9.

47

Item 5.



© 2016 California Medical Association

Flavored and Mentholated 
Tobacco Products: 

Enticing a New Generation 
of Users

CMA White Paper

May 2016

200

Item 6.

12

Item 1.

104

Item 9.

48

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org

Acknowledgements and Disclaimers

This document was prepared by the California Medical Association and reviewed by its Council on Science and Public 

Health, a panel of physician experts, with input from subject matter researchers. It was approved by the CMA Board of 

Trustees on April 21, 2016.

CMA would like to thank the following organizations and individuals for their feedback and assistance in the writing of this 

paper: CMA Foundation; Network of Ethnic Physician Organizations; University of California, San Francisco; the LOOP; Valerie 

Yerger, ND; Bettina Friese; African American Tobacco Control Leadership Council;  Phillip Gardiner, DrPH;  Rosalind A. Kirnon, 

MD; Janine Bera, MD; Donald Lyman, MD, MPH; Gordon Fung, MD; Robert Oldham, MD; Pamela Ling, MD, MPH; and Bonnie 

Halpern-Felsher, PhD, FSAHM.

This publication was made possible by financial support provided to the California Department of Public Health by the 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Cooperative Agreement, grant number 1U58DP005969-01. The views 

expressed in this paper are those of the California Medical Association and do not necessarily reflect the policies or official 

views of the California Department of Public Health, the Department of Health and Human Services, nor does the mention 

of trade names, commercial practices, or organizations imply endorsement by the U.S. Government or the California 

Department of Public Health.

201

Item 6.

13

Item 1.

105

Item 9.

49

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org

Introduction ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................1

Background ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 2

Types of Flavored and Mentholated Tobacco Products ....................................................................................................................................3

Cigars…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. .......................................................................3

Smokeless Tobacco………………………………………………………………………………………………………… .................................................................. 5

Hookah Tobacco..………………………………………………………………………………………………………… .......................................................................7

Liquid Nicotine Solution.……………………………………………………………………………………………… ...................................................................... 8

Menthol Cigarettes……………………………………………………………………………………………………… ...................................................................... 10

Priority Populations ....................................................................................................................................................................................................... 12

Adolescents (12-17) and Young Adults (18-26).……………………………………………………………. ................................................................... 12

Racial and Ethnic Minorities………………………………………………………………………………………… ..................................................................... 13

Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, and Transgender (LGBT)………………………………………………………….. ............................................................... 15

Women……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. ........................................................................ 15

Conclusion ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 16

References……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. .................................................................... 17

Table of Contents

202

Item 6.

14

Item 1.

106

Item 9.

50

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org

The California Medical Association’s (CMA) mission is “to promote the science and art of medicine, the care and well-being of 

patients, the protection of the public health and the betterment of the medical profession” and the  

organization has a similar core objective of advancing public health.

CMA has long recognized that tobacco use is a costly habit that often leads to illness and poor health; in 1963, CMA was the 

first among state medical societies to create policy to inform people about the harmful effects of cigarette smoking. Effective 

policy solutions that prevent and reduce tobacco use and the negative health impacts of these products should be guided 

by the current literature and research that indicates these interventions are necessary – namely, that there is a preponder-

ance of evidence that highlights emerging issues and which can be used to help guide tobacco control efforts.

This report presents the evidence and research on the impact of flavored and mentholated tobacco products on public 

health, particularly among priority populations. Priority populations are groups that have higher rates of tobacco use than the 

general population, experience greater secondhand smoke exposure at work and at home, are disproportionately targeted 

by the tobacco industry, and have higher rates of tobacco-related disease compared to the general population.¹ 

Specifically, this report addresses:

• The evidence linking flavored and mentholated tobacco products with initiation of and sustained tobacco use by youth and 

other priority populations, and the resulting negative health effects.

Introduction

Page 1 of 29
203

Item 6.

15

Item 1.

107

Item 9.

51

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org

Background 

The use of flavor and menthol additives in tobacco products 

has long been a popular industry strategy to mask the 

natural harshness and taste of tobacco, making initiation 

easier for younger and beginner smokers.⁴  Like all tobacco 

products, flavored and mentholated tobacco products have 

serious health risks and are not considered safe by the 

United States (U.S.) Food and Drug Administration (FDA).⁵ 

In 2009, the Family Smoking Prevention and Tobacco 

Control Act (FSPTCA) was signed into federal law, making it 

illegal to manufacture cigarettes that contained  

“characterizing flavors” other than that of tobacco. This 

included flavors like strawberry, grape, orange, clove, 

chocolate, and cinnamon. The FDA concluded that flavored 

cigarettes are a gateway for many children and young 

adults to become regular smokers.⁶  

Notably, the federal ban on flavored cigarettes did not 

apply to mentholated cigarettes or other flavored tobacco 

products.⁷   

Page 2 of 29

While great strides have been made in reducing tobacco 

use in California, tobacco use is still the leading preventable 

cause of premature death and disability in the state and 

nationally – more than 440,000 people die prematurely 

from tobacco-related disease.² Evidence indicates that 

lifelong smoking and other tobacco use begins early in life; 

in California, 63% of smokers start by the age of 18, and 97% 

start by age 26.³ 

Although the overall prevalence of youth smoking is 

declining in California, the introduction of novel tobacco 

products that are offered in a variety of flavors designed 

to appeal to children, such as bubblegum, grape, and 

chocolate, may present new public health threats to 

adolescents and young adults. Other evidence indicates 

that flavor additives, such as menthol, may impose 

additional threats, particularly among certain priority 

population groups that have relatively higher use rates.

204

Item 6.

16

Item 1.

108

Item 9.

52

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org

There are several types of flavored tobacco products on 

the market, including cigars, smokeless tobacco, hookah, 

liquid nicotine solutions (used in electronic smoking 

devices), and menthol cigarettes. These products come 

in a variety of candy and fruit flavors such as chocolate, 

watermelon, grape, cherry, apple, and wintergreen. This 

section describes each type of tobacco product and 

consumption patterns, as well as health impacts associated 

with use of these products.

Cigars
• Cigars are sold in a variety of candy, fruit, and alcohol- like 

flavors.

•  Cigars are the second most common form of tobacco 

used by youth, and flavored cigars represent more than 

half of the cigar market.

•  Cigar smoke contains many of the same carcinogens as 

cigarette smoke, and may even be more toxic.

•  Cigars pose significant morbidity and mortality risks to 

users.

Cigar Products and Market Share

Cigars tend to vary in terms of size and the quantity of 

tobacco used in their products. There are three types of 

cigar sizes sold in the United States:

•  Large or Premium Cigars: Contain between 5 and 

20 grams of tobacco, which can equate to a pack of 

cigarettes.

•  Little Cigars: Very similar to cigarettes and sold in the 

same size (e.g., contain 1 gram of tobacco), shape and 

packaging (20 little cigars in a package).

•  Cigarillos: Contain about 3 grams of tobacco, usually 

larger than little cigars and cigarettes.8

In 2014, about 13 billion cigars were sold in the United 

States, including 12.4 billion large cigars and cigarillos and 

0.6 billion little cigars.9 While cigarette consumption has 

declined from 2000 to 2014, total consumption of cigars 

increased by 122% over this same period,10 with flavored 

cigars representing more than half of the U.S. cigar market.11 

Following the Family Smoking Prevention and Tobacco 

Control Act of 2009, research indicates that cigar manu-

facturers and the tobacco industry manipulated flavored 

cigarettes to become flavored cigars in order to circumvent 

the ban on flavored cigarettes.12,13 Cigars are also commonly 

sold as single products, making them an affordable 

alternative to cigarettes which are taxed at higher rates.14 

Swisher International Inc.’s Swisher Sweets and Little 

products represent the most popular cigar brands on 

the market. They come in a variety of flavors, including 

chocolate, strawberry, ice cream, peach, and grape. Black & 

Mild brand cigars, owned by Altria (parent company of Philip 

Morris USA), also maintain a significant market share and 

sell flavors like apple, wine, and cream.16  

Types of Flavored and Mentholated Tobacco Products

Page 3 of 29

Reprinted with permission by Truth Initiative

205

Item 6.

17

Item 1.

109

Item 9.

53

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org

Cigar Use by Certain Groups

Cigars are the second most common form of tobacco used 

by high school students.17 That number increases among 

first-time tobacco users aged 12 and older, with nearly 2.7 

million smoking cigars, in comparison to 2.3 million smoking 

cigarettes.18 

 A recent study found that more than 87% of adolescents 

who used cigarillos in the past 30 days used flavored 

cigarillos.19 When asked, 73.8% of current youth cigar 

smokers said they smoked cigars “because they come in 

flavors I like.”20 More than two fifths of U.S. middle and high 

school smokers report using flavored little cigars or flavored 

cigarettes.21

In fact, a recent study found that flavored tobacco products, 

such as sweet-flavored cigars, are being engineered with 

the same flavor chemicals used in popular candy and drink 

products like LifeSavers and Jolly Ranchers, providing a 

“familiar, chemical-specific flavor cue” to the user.15

   

 

Research indicates that use of flavored cigars decreases 

with age: an analysis of data from the National Adult 

Tobacco Survey show that flavored cigar use among cigar 

smokers was 57.1% for 18-24 year olds, 43.2% for 25-44 year 

olds, 28.9% for 45-64 year olds, and 13.4% for those 65 and 

older.22 In addition, youth, young adults, females, African-

Americans, cigarette smokers, and daily cigar smokers are 

significantly more likely to report smoking a usual cigar 

brand that is flavored, with preference for a usual brand that 

produces flavored cigars decreasing significantly with age.23 

 

Page 4 of 29

Health Impacts of Cigar Use

Cigar smoke contains many of the same carcinogens as 

cigarette smoke, and may even be more toxic.24 As a result 

of the curing and fermentation process involved in producing 

cigar tobacco, higher concentrations of  

cancer-causing nitrosamines are present and released upon 

combustion. Additionally, cigars have more tar for every gram 

of tobacco smoked in comparison to cigarettes, and higher 

concentrations of toxins due to less-porous cigar wrappers.25  

Cigars pose significant morbidity and mortality risks to users. 

While lung cancer risk is less strongly associated with cigar 

smoking than with cigarette smoking, the health risks from 

cigar smoking increase depending upon level of exposure 

as measured by cigars smoked per day, inhalation level, and 

past smoking history.26,27  

Cigar smokers have higher rates of lung cancer, heart 

disease, and lung disease as compared to nonsmokers.28  

Regular cigar smoking is associated with increased risk 

for lung, larynx, oral cavity, and esophageal cancer, and 

has been linked to gum disease and tooth loss.29,30 Cigar 

smokers have also tested for higher levels of toxic and 

carcinogenic substances like cotinine, 4-(methylnitrosami-

no)-1-(3-pyridyl)-1-butanol (NNAL), which is a tobacco- 

specific nitrosamine (TSNA) that is a known lung carcinogen, 

and lead concentrations, as compared to nontobacco users.31

Daily cigar use and deep inhalation has also been linked 

to elevated risk of heart disease and chronic obstructive 

pulmonary disease.32 Cigar smokers also increase their 

mortality risk for an aortic aneurysm.33 Regular cigar smoking 

was responsible for approximately 9,000 premature deaths 

and more than 140,000 years of potential life lost among U.S. 

adults aged 35 years or older in 2010.34 

There is a misperception that cigars are not harmful because 

cigar smoke is not inhaled, however, studies indicate that 

some cigar smokers do inhale, especially current and former 

cigarette smokers.35 Inhalation of cigar smoke into the lungs 

and bloodstream causes smoke particles to deposit into the 

lungs, stomach, and digestive tract and increases the risk 

for cancer.36-38 Other research indicates that some youth and 

adult users of little cigars fully inhale the cigar smoke, similar 

to cigarettes, often indicating that inhaling was necessary to 

get a “buzz” from little cigars.39,40 Regardless of the level of 

inhalation, all cigar smokers expose their lips, tongue, and 

throat to smoke and cancer-causing chemicals.41   

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

18-24 year olds

25-44 year olds

45-64 year olds

65 and older

FLAVORED CIGAR USE AMONG  
U.S. CIGAR SMOKERS

Source: Findings from the 2009–2010 National Adult Tobacco Survey. Nicotine & Tobacco 
Research. 2013;15:608–14.

When asked, 73.8% of current youth cigar smokers said 

they smoked cigars “because they come in flavors I like.”

206

Item 6.

18

Item 1.

110

Item 9.

54

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org

Smokeless Tobacco

• Smokeless tobacco is sold in various flavors and forms, 

with newer products that do not require spitting.

• Moist snuff is the most popular smokeless tobacco product 

and flavors account for the largest portion of moist snuff 

sales.

• Smokeless tobacco users tend to be younger and evidence 

shows the industry has manipulated the nicotine content to 

attract and retain users.

• Smokeless tobacco contains at least 28 cancer-causing 

chemicals. 

Smokeless Tobacco Products and Market Share

Smokeless tobacco contains nicotine and is addictive.42  

It is not burned, and it may be sucked, chewed, spit, or 

swallowed. It can come in a variety of flavors such as win-

ter-green, citrus blend, cinnamon, berry, vanilla, and apple.43,44   

There are three main types of smokeless tobacco:

• Chewing tobacco: includes cured tobacco that comes in 

various forms such as loose leaf, plug, or twist tobacco, 

and is available in multiple flavors. Users place chewing 

tobacco between the cheek and gums.

• Snuff: Oral snuff is a finely cut, processed tobacco which 

the user places between the cheek and gums. Snuff may 

be moist, dry, or packaged in tea-like pouches or packets 

(i.e., snus). Dry snuff may be sniffed or inhaled into the 

nose, while snus is a newer form of snuff that does not 

require spitting.

• Dissolvables: Finely ground tobacco and flavorings, 

shaped into tablets, strips, or other forms, that the user 

ingests orally. These products do not require spitting.

In 2011, smokeless tobacco sales totaled approximately 

124.6 million pounds in the U.S., increasing from the 122.6 

million pounds sold in 2010. Moist snuff is the most popular 

smokeless tobacco product with over 80% of the market 

share, followed by loose leaf at over 17% of the market.45 

Three companies account for nearly 90% of U.S. sales of 

smokeless tobacco—U.S. Smokeless Tobacco Company 

(owned by Altria, popular premium brands like Skoal and 

Copenhagen), American Snuff, and Swedish Match.46 

Between 2005 and 2011, sales of flavored moist snuff across 

all companies increased by 72%; and in 2011, flavored 

products accounted for more than half (56.1%) of all moist 

Page 5 of 29

snuff sales.47 Internal documents for the U.S. Smokeless 

Tobacco Company indicate that flavors were intentionally 

used to “graduate” new users from the “milder-tasting, more 

flavored” products to those with a “more full-bodied, less 

flavored … more concentrated tobacco taste.”48  

Smokeless Tobacco Use by Certain Groups

The current demographics of smokeless tobacco users 

have changed as tobacco manufacturers introduce novel 

smokeless tobacco products with flavorings and new 

delivery methods appealing to a broader consumer base.49 

In 1970, men aged 65 and older were about six times more 

likely to use smokeless tobacco regularly as compared to 

men aged 18 to 24. By 1991, young men were 50% more 

likely than the oldest men to be regular users of smokeless 

tobacco.50,51 

In a 2013 survey of U.S. high school students, 14.7% of 

high-school boys and 8.8% of all high-school students 

reported current use of smokeless tobacco products.52  

Furthermore, each year about 535,000 youth ages 12-17 

report using smokeless tobacco for the first time.53 More 

broadly, the number of persons aged 12 or older who used 

smokeless tobacco for the first time within the past year 

was 1.1 million in 2013.54 Smokeless tobacco use among 

females has historically been low. Among males, smokeless 

use decreased between 1986 and 2000, but has been 

increasing since 2000.55 

There is evidence that users who begin with low-nicotine 

“starter” products are more likely to subsequently “graduate” 

to products with higher nicotine content,56  and that use of 

starter products reinforces use of other tobacco products, 

including cigarettes.57,58 Industry marketing practices and 

introduction of novel products have encouraged cigarette 

smokers to use smokeless tobacco as an alternative in 

locations where smoking is not permitted.59,60 Cigarette 

smokers may also consider smokeless tobacco to be a 

cessation or harm reduction strategy to reduce use of 

combustible tobacco products.61   Studies have found that 

smokers who no longer use combustible tobacco may switch 

to smokeless tobacco as a substitute to smoking or may 

engage in dual use by using both products concurrently.62-64 

Smokeless tobacco is not a safe alternative to combustible 

tobacco, and there is no conclusive evidence that shows 

that switching to smokeless tobacco is an effective long-term 

smoking cessation strategy.65,66

207

Item 6.

19

Item 1.

111

Item 9.

55

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org Page 6 of 29

Health Impacts of Smokeless Tobacco Use

Smokeless tobacco contains at least 28 cancer-causing 

chemicals67 and has been shown to cause gum disease, 

tooth decay and cancers of the oral cavity, esophagus and 

pancreas.68-70 The health risks associated with smokeless 

tobacco use can vary depending upon the product  

characteristics, manner and frequency of use, as well as 

interactions with dual use of other tobacco products.71  

The use of flavorings in some oral smokeless tobacco 

products presents another level of exposure as the 

flavorings are ingested along with the tobacco.72 A 

measurement of the mint and wintergreen contents found in 

popular moist snuff products indicated that these  

products contain far more of these flavorings (i.e., methyl 

salicylate) than found in hard candies – a typical smokeless 

tobacco user could ingest up to 12 times the acceptable 

daily intake level of methyl salicylate as established by a 

scientific expert committee on food additives.73 Smokeless 

tobacco products may also contain additives that have 

been prohibited for use in food; coumarin, for example, 

is an additive that has been banned in foods due to its 

liver toxicity, that is also found in Camel Mellow Orbs, a 

dissolvable tobacco product.74 

Smokeless tobacco products differ considerably in their 

concentrations of nicotine, volatile and nonvolatile nitro-

samines including TSNAs, the most abundant strong 

carcinogens in smokeless tobacco products, as well as toxic 

metals and other compounds.75-77 All smokeless tobacco 

products contain nicotine and almost all contain TSNAs.78 

A comparison of studies found that biomarkers indicating 

exposure to carcinogens in the urine of users of moist snuff 

varied by brand used and, for some brands, were higher 

than levels seen in Marlboro cigarette smokers.79 

Smokeless tobacco use is strongly associated with the 

prevalence of oral lesions on the cheeks, gums, and/or 

tongue, such as leukoplakia.80,81 Lesions typically occur at 

the site in the mouth of smokeless tobacco application and 

indicate a high risk of cancers arising from leukoplakia and 

oral submucous fibrosis.82,83 Research suggests that more 

than half of daily smokeless tobacco users had lesions or 

sores in the mouth,84 and lesions are more severe in people 

who begin use at an earlier age, use for more hours per 

day, use greater dosages, or use on more days per month.85 

Other oral conditions associated with smokeless tobacco 

use include gingival recession, which can be observed 

within one year of smokeless tobacco use, dental decay, 

and caries.86 A study found chewing tobacco users were 

four times more likely than non-users to have decayed 

dental root surfaces.87 

Other health impacts from smokeless tobacco use include 

an association with increased risk of fatal ischemic heart 

disease and stroke.88-90 Use during pregnancy heightens 

risk for early delivery and stillbirth, and can affect how a 

baby’s brain develops before birth.91,92 Research shows 

that users who engage in dual use of smokeless tobacco 

and cigarettes may have greater levels of toxicants and 

may prolong the duration of smoking than those who use 

only one tobacco product, potentially posing greater health 

risks.93,94  

Source: Chen C, et al. (2010)

METHYL SALICYLATE IN “WINTERGREEN” 
TYPES OF SMOKELESS TOBACCO, CANDY, 

AND GUM

208

Item 6.

20

Item 1.

112

Item 9.

56

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org Page 7 of 29

Hookah Tobacco

• Hookah has a wide range of flavors and flavor mixes 

available for purchase.

• Hookah smoking is a social activity and its popularity has 

increased among youth and college students.

• Flavored hookah tobacco is the preferred tobacco for use 

in water pipes.

• Hookah is not safer than cigarettes and has many of the 

same health risks as cigarette smoke.

Hookah Products and Market Share

Hookah —also called shisha, narghile, and goza —refers to 

water pipes that are used to smoke tobacco by indirectly 

heating it with burning embers or charcoal.95 The tobacco 

comes in a range of flavors, such as apple, mint, cherry, 

chocolate, cardamom, watermelon, and cappuccino,96 and 

some manufacturers even mix flavors to produce combi-

nations such as strawberry-peach or raspberry-orange.97  

Several Middle Eastern companies manufacture and import 

the tobacco, including Al Fakher, Al Waha, Nakhla, Romman, 

and Fumari, and there are also U.S. companies that 

manufacture and distribute their own brands of tobacco for 

water pipe smoking.98  

Hookah Use by Certain Groups

Hookah smoking is often a social activity and two or 

more people may share the same waterpipe.99 Hookah 

use began centuries ago in ancient Persia and India,100 

but hookah cafes have gained popularity nationwide in 

the U.S.101 and use by American youth102,103 and college 

students is increasing.104-108 One study found that hookah 

use in California was much higher among young adults 

(24.5% among men, 10% among women) than it was among 

all adults (11.2% among men, 2.8% among women) in the 

U.S.109 A 2014 study found that teens that use hookah are 

two-to-three times more likely to start smoking cigarettes 

or to become current smokers than teens who have not 

tried hookah.110 In addition, an analysis of the 2012–2013 

National Adult Tobacco Survey found that among young 

adults who had never established cigarette smoking, two of 

five hookah smokers reported being susceptible to smoking 

cigarettes.111 

The World Health Organization (WHO) found that the intro-

duction of sweetened flavored water pipe tobacco, called 

maassel, is one of the contributing factors that has caused 

hookah’s explosive growth.112 Prior to the introduction of 

maassel, most water pipe smokers used some type of 

raw tobacco that produced a strong, harsh smoke, unlike 

the smoother, aromatic smoke produced from maassel.113  

Research indicates that maassel is the preferred tobacco 

for use in water pipes, especially among young smokers.114 

One study found that 88.7% of 12-17 year olds who had ever 

smoked hookah used flavored hookah the first time they 

tried the product, and 89% of current hookah smokers used 

a flavored product in the last month.115 Similarly, the 2014 

National Youth Tobacco Survey found that 60.6% of middle 

and high school hookah smokers had used flavored hookah 

in the past month.116 

Health Impacts of Hookah Use

Many young adults falsely believe that hookah smoking 

is safer than cigarette smoking;117 however, hookah poses 

many of the same health risks as cigarette smoking. One 

hookah session delivers approximately 125 times the 

smoke, 25 times the tar, 2.5 times the nicotine, and 10 times 

the carbon monoxide as a single cigarette.118 During an 

hour-long hookah smoking session the average user will 

take 200 puffs, while smoking an average cigarette involves 

only about 20 puffs.119,120 In fact, smoking hookah for 45 

to 60 minutes can be equivalent to smoking 100 or more 

cigarettes.121 

The charcoal that is used to heat the tobacco in a hookah 

can increase health risks for smokers, as the smoke 

contains toxicants emitted from both the charcoal and the 

tobacco product, including flavorings.122 Hookah smoke has 

high levels of carbon monoxide, metals, and cancer-causing 

chemicals.123 As a result, hookah use can cause negative 

health effects on the respiratory system, cardiovascular 

system, oral cavity and teeth, and long-term use has been 

linked to high incidences of chronic obstructive pulmonary 

disease and periodontal disease.124,125 Hookah smokers may 

also be at risk for some of the same diseases as cigarette 

smokers, including oral cancer, lung cancer, stomach cancer, 

and esophageal cancer.126,127 

209

Item 6.

21

Item 1.

113

Item 9.

57

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org

electronic cigarette market is owned by the largest tobacco 

companies, and that market share is expected to reach  

80% in 2021.132 However, sales have decelerated over the 

past year due to customer dissatisfaction, safety concerns, 

and increased state regulation.133  

As a result of this growth, there are now over 460 brands  

of e-cigarettes and more than 7,700 unique e-cigarette 

flavors available for purchase online.134 This includes 

a wide range of candy and fruit-flavors that are not 

permitted in cigarettes, many of which use well-known 

brand name candy and cereal products, such as Wrigley’s, 

Atomic Fireball, Tutti Frutti, and Cap N’ Crunch, which are 

considered to be appealing to children.135  

Liquid Nicotine Use by Certain Groups

Data trends depict increasing use of e-cigarettes by 

youth. From 2013 to 2014, a Centers for Disease Control 

and Prevention (CDC) survey found that youth use of 

e- cigarettes had tripled and now exceeds youth use of 

traditional cigarettes. Current e-cigarette use among high 

school students increased from 4.5% to 13.4%, amounting  

to 2 million high school students and 450,000 middle 

school students who currently use e-cigarettes.136 

 

 

Other studies found similar increases in youth uptake of 

e-cigarettes,138-140 and preliminary California specific data 

indicates e-cigarette youth use to be at much higher rates 

than traditional cigarettes.141 

A gateway effect has been observed for youth users: a 

recent longitudinal study of e-cigarette use found that 

adolescents who use e-cigarettes are more likely to start 

smoking cigarettes. Among nonsmoking students who  

used e-cigarettes, 20% indicated they had smoked their  

first cigarette a year later. Among nonsmokers who had 

not used e-cigarettes, only 6% had used cigarettes a year 

later.142 Similar findings were published in The Journal of 

the American Medical Association (JAMA) Pediatrics that 

indicates young people who smoke e-cigarettes are more 

likely to start smoking traditional cigarettes within a year 

Page 8 of 29

Liquid Nicotine Solution

• Liquid nicotine solution is a broad term that encompasses 

“e-juice” or “e-liquid” which is often used in electronic 

nicotine delivery devices, or electronic cigarettes.

• Liquid nicotine solution is available in a plethora of candy 

and fruit-flavors, many of which use popular brand names 

and logos that appeal to youth.

• Youth uptake of electronic cigarettes has vastly increased 

over the last several years.

• While there is insufficient research on the long-term health 

effects of liquid nicotine solution, evidence shows that 

toxic additives are often included in the aerosol spray.

Liquid Nicotine Products and Market Share

Liquid nicotine solution, also called “e-juice” or “e-liquid,” is 

used in electronic smoking devices such as e-cigrettes and 

vaporizers. The term “electronic cigarette” or “e-cigarette” is 

a common term that can refer to a wide variety of products 

that use liquid nicotine solution, which is a derivative of 

tobacco. Unlike combustible tobacco products, e-ciga-

rettes are battery-operated devices that heat liquid nicotine 

solution to form an inhalable aerosol.128 Some e-cigarettes 

are reusable and users can replace or refill the liquid 

nicotine solution, while others are disposable and cannot be 

refilled.129 Other more advanced devices, called modulars 

or “mods,” can be assembled with separate component 

parts and accessories, which permits greater variation in the 

battery power, style, and size.130 

Sales of electronic cigarettes and supplies have 

experienced triple-digit growth over the past five years, 

climbing to over $3.5 billion with market analyses 

projecting use of e-cigarettes and vaporizers to overtake 

combustible cigarettes in ten years.131 Almost 50% of the 

Reprinted with permission by California Department of Public Health

A 2015 Monitoring the Future study found that 40% 

of youth who used e-cigarettes did so because “they 

tasted good” compared to only 10% who use them to quit 

smoking traditional cigarettes.137

210

Item 6.

22

Item 1.

114

Item 9.

58

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org Page 9 of 29

as compared to their peers who do not use e-cigarettes.143 

Using data from the 2012 National Youth Tobacco Survey, 

one study confirmed that e-cigarette users who had never 

smoked cigarettes and who had experimented with smoking 

had elevated intention to smoke cigarettes compared with 

their counterparts who had never used e-cigarettes.144 

Additionally, a new analysis of a nationally representative 

sample of adolescents supports these findings: use of 

electronic nicotine delivery systems (such as e-cigarettes) 

was associated with initiation of cigarette smoking in the last 

year.145  

Health Impacts of Liquid Nicotine Use

There is insufficient research regarding the long-term health 

effects of using e-cigarettes.146 As e-cigarettes have largely 

been unregulated, they have been heavily marketed as 

a safer alternative to conventional cigarettes.  However, 

the liquid nicotine solution used in e-cigarettes frequently 

contains nicotine, as well as propylene glycol, glycerin, 

flavorings, and other toxic additives.147 Research has found 

chemicals and toxins contained in the aerosol; such as 

nicotine, formaldehyde, lead, nickel, and acetaldehyde, 

all of which are found on California’s Proposition 65 list of 

chemicals known to cause cancer, birth defects, or other 

reproductive harm.148 It is posited that nicotine exposure 

during periods of developmental vulnerability has multiple 

adverse health consequences, including impaired fetal brain 

and lung development, and altered development of cerebral 

cortex and hippocampus in adolescents.149 

Furthermore, certain chemicals used to flavor liquid nicotine, 

like diacetyl, 2,3-pentanedione, and acetoin, are present in 

many e-liquids at levels which are unsafe for inhalation.150 

While diacetyl has been approved for ingestion in human 

food, it has not been similarly evaluated and approved 

for use in tobacco products, which result in exposures 

other than ingestion (e.g., inhalation).151 A recent study 

found diacetyl in 75% of flavored e-cigarette liquids and 

refill liquids that were tested, and at least one of the three 

flavoring chemicals (i.e., diacetyl, 2,3-pentanedione, or 

acetoin) was detected in 92% of the tested e-cigarettes 

and liquids.152 Diacetyl, when inhaled, is associated with the 

development of the severe lung condition called bronchiol-

itis obliterans, also known as “popcorn lung,” which causes 

an irreversible loss of pulmonary function and damage to 

cell lining and airways.153 Still another study has found that 

users of flavored e-cigarettes are likely inhaling a chemical 

called benzaldehyde, a widely used flavoring agent found 

in foods, as well as medicines like cough syrup, that when 

inhaled can irritate the airways.154  

In addition, the liquid nicotine solution contains varying con-

centrations of nicotine, ranging from no nicotine to 100 mg 

per milliliter (a milliliter is approximately a fifth of a teaspoon). 

The lethal dose of nicotine is estimated to be 30-60 mg 

in an adult and 10 mg in a child. The toxicity of a 60 mg 

dose of liquid nicotine is similar to or even higher than that 

of cyanide.155 Accidental exposure to nicotine, particularly 

by children aged five and younger, has lead to significant 

increases in calls to poison control centers in California and 

nationally.156 

Although there are claims that e-cigarettes are an effective 

smoking cessation tool, there is not enough evidence 

to indicate that e-cigarettes will help smokers quit or 

reduce the number of cigarettes smoked.157,158 The U.S. 

Preventive Services Task Force, which makes recommen-

dations about the effectiveness of specific preventive 

care services after a thorough assessment of the science, 

recently concluded that “the current evidence is insuffi-

cient to recommend electronic nicotine delivery systems 

for tobacco cessation...”159 In fact, recent evidence points to 

potential signs of dual use instead of cessation: instead of 

using e-cigarettes as a cessation tool, some users are using 

e-cigarettes in indoor environments where use of traditional 

cigarettes may be prohibited, but continuing to smoke 

traditional cigarettes outdoors.160-163

211

Item 6.

23

Item 1.

115

Item 9.

59

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org Page 10 of 29

Menthol Cigarettes

• Menthol is an anesthetic additive used in cigarettes that 

imparts a cooling effect and minty taste, and reduces the 

harsh taste of cigarette smoke.

• Menthol cigarettes represent about one third of the U.S. 

cigarette market.

• Menthol users tend to be younger, female and members 

of ethnic minorities, and the FDA has concluded that 

menthol cigarettes are “starter” products.

• Menthol cigarettes lead to greater addiction and can 

inhibit cessation.

Menthol Cigarette Products and Market Share

Menthol is an anesthetic additive that can be natural or 

synthetically produced, and is commonly used as a minty 

flavoring in cigarettes. At low doses, menthol has a cooling, 

sensory effect that reduces the perceived harshness of 

tobacco and increases ease of smoking.164 At high doses, 

menthol can cause irritation and pain via effects on certain 

receptors located in the nose, mouth and airways. Menthol 

is present in most cigarettes in the U.S., both as a character-

izing flavor (higher levels) and for other taste reasons (lower 

levels).165,166 Menthol is also an active ingredient in many 

medicinal products, such as cough drops, and it is regulated 

as a drug by the FDA. The use of menthol in tobacco 

products is not regulated by the FDA, and it may be found 

in cigarettes, cigars, smokeless tobacco, and other tobacco 

products.167    

Menthol was first used as a cigarette additive in 1925, with 

sales totaling only 3% of the overall U.S. cigarette market 

prior to 1956.168 Once the tobacco industry realized menthol 

made cigarettes more palatable upon initiation and could be 

used to retain smokers, marketing strategies were refined 

to target youth and certain groups (See Priority Populations 

Section).169,170 

There are approximately 19 million Americans who smoke 

menthol cigarettes, including 1.1 million adolescents, and 

sales of these products comprise between 28% and 

34% of the U.S. cigarette market.171,172 Common menthol 

cigarette brands include Kool, Newport, and Salem, 

although the cigarette market is highly consolidated among 

three companies: Altria (parent company of Phillip Morris, 

Marlboro products), Reynolds American and Lorillard.173 

Lorillard’s brand of mentholated cigarettes, Newport, has 

historically outpaced all other menthol brands and reflects 

its main product line. In 2014, Reynolds acquired Lorillard in 

a merger allegedly designed to give Reynolds access to the 

Newport product.174 

Menthol Cigarettes Use by Certain Groups

Analyses of internal tobacco industry documents reveal that 

the tobacco industry knowingly manipulated the menthol 

content in cigarettes to account for sensory preferences 

among younger and more experienced smokers,175 under-

standing that the amount of menthol in a cigarette changes 

how the cigarette is smoked and how pleasurable it is to 

the smoker.176 Menthol enhances the sensory experience 

or “throat grab” of the smoke, and through desensitization, 

reduces the irritating effect of nicotine, leading to a positive 

association by novice smokers.177,178

Research indicates that menthol cigarettes are a “starter” 

product for youth and use of menthol is more likely among 

those who are recent initiates.179-183 Using data from the 

National Surveys on Drug Use and Health, one study 

found that menthol cigarette use is more common among 

12–17 year olds (56.7%) and 18–25 year olds (45.0%) than 

among 26-34 year olds, 35-49 year olds, and 50+ year olds 

(range of 30.5% to 34.7%). The study also found that while 

adolescent and young adult use of non-menthol cigarettes 

has decreased from 2004-2010, menthol smoking rates 

have remained constant (adolescents) and increased (young 

adults) over this same period.184 

MENTHOL CIGARETTE USE AMONG PAST  
30-DAY U.S. SMOKERS BY AGE

Source: Giovino GA, et al. (2015)

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

212

Item 6.

24

Item 1.

116

Item 9.

60

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org Page 11 of 29

Menthol users are associated with being younger, female, 

and of non-Caucasian race/ethnicity, and use is especially 

high among minority youth. A review of three national data 

sets determined that more than 80% of adolescent African 

American smokers and more than half of adolescent Latino 

smokers use menthol cigarettes. Menthol cigarettes are 

also used by more than half of Asian American middle- 

school smokers.185 In addition, an analysis on the 2008 

and 2009 National Survey on Drug Use and Health found 

that an elevated prevalence of menthol use was found 

among persons with severe psychological distress,186 while 

another study indicated that menthol is disproportionately 

used among young adult tobacco users with mental health 

problems.187

Strong evidence also suggests that use of mentholated 

cigarettes during childhood and early adulthood increases 

nicotine addiction and dependence,188-190 with the FDA 

surmising that youth appeared to be particularly vulnerable 

to the effects of menthol cigarette smoking.191  Further, 

evidence indicates that menthol smokers in general, and 

African American smokers in particular, are less likely to quit 

successfully than non-menthol cigarette users.192-195 

In 2011, after an extensive survey of the literature and 

research, the FDA released a report concluding that 

menthol cigarettes are “starter” products and increase 

smoking initiation among youth and young adults, lead to 

greater addiction, and can inhibit quitting smoking.196 The 

FDA concluded that the removal of menthol cigarettes from 

the marketplace would greatly benefit public health.

Health Impacts of Menthol Cigarettes

Tobacco industry documents and empirical studies suggest 

that consumers, particularly younger users, tend to perceive 

menthol cigarettes as less hazardous than non-menthol 

cigarettes.197 However, menthol cigarettes are not safer than 

non-menthol cigarettes and carry many of the same health 

risks: smokers are more likely than nonsmokers to develop 

heart disease, stroke, lung cancer and other respiratory 

diseases.198   

Due to the anesthetic effect of mentholated cigarettes, 

evidence suggests that they may facilitate deeper and 

more prolonged inhalation of toxic cigarette smoke.199  

Additionally, by reducing airway pain and irritation, 

continuous menthol smoking can mask the early warning 

symptoms of smoking-induced respiratory problems.200 Still 

other evidence has associated menthol with inhibiting the 

metabolism of nicotine in the body, and smokers of menthol 

cigarettes have been found with higher levels of cotinine 

and carbon monoxide in the bloodstream as compared to 

non-menthol smokers.201,202  

Menthol in high concentrations may also inhibit the detox-

ification of tobacco-specific carcinogens (NNAL), which 

could increase the risk of cancer,203 although the FDA in its 

2013 report did not find enough evidence to support this 

claim. Lastly, a study of current smokers using data from the 

2001-2008 U.S. National Health and Nutrition Examination 

Surveys found significantly increased odds of stroke 

for smokers of mentholated cigarettes compared with 

non-mentholated cigarette smokers.204 

213

Item 6.

25

Item 1.

117

Item 9.

61

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org Page 12 of 29

Priority populations are groups that have higher rates 

of tobacco use than the general population, experience 

greater secondhand smoke exposure at work and at 

home, are disproportionately targeted by the tobacco 

industry, and have higher rates of tobacco-related disease 

compared to the general population.205 This section 

describes the evidence which indicates particular priority 

populations (i.e., youth, racial/ethnic minorities, and other 

targeted groups) are more likely to initiate and use flavored 

and mentholated tobacco products.

Adolescents (12-17) and  
Young Adults (18-26) 

A multitude of research indicates that flavored products 

appeal to youth and young adults leading to increased use 

for this population. Despite prevalence rates for cigarette 

use trending downward for youth, research shows that 

more youth are using other flavored tobacco products. A 

national study found that 80.8% of 12-17 year olds who had 

ever used a tobacco product initiated tobacco use with a 

flavored product, and that 79.8% of current tobacco users 

had used a flavored tobacco product in the past month.206  

Additionally, an examination of young adult tobacco users 

(18-34 year olds) found that 18.5% currently use a flavored 

tobacco product, with younger age being a predictor of 

flavored tobacco product use: young adults aged 18-24 

year olds had an 89% increased odds of using a flavored 

tobacco product compared to those aged 25-34 year 

olds.207

Menthol cigarettes carry similar results. Among cigarette 

smokers, menthol cigarette use was more common among 

12-17 year olds (56.7%) and 18-25 year olds (45%) than 

among 26-34 year olds, 35-49 year olds, and 50+ year 

olds (range of 30.5% - 34.7%).208 In fact, adolescents smoke 

menthol cigarettes at a higher rate than any other age 

group.209 

Flavors Make Using Tobacco More Enticing and 
Harder to Quit

Flavorings and menthol additives mask the naturally harsh 

taste of tobacco, making it easier for youth to initiate and 

sustain tobacco use.210,211 A 2014 review of internal tobacco 

industry documents indicate that menthol and candy-like 

flavors in little cigars and cigarillos were used to increase 

product appeal to beginning smokers by masking the heavy 

cigar taste, reducing throat irritation, and making the cigar 

smoke easier to inhale.212  

The majority of youth ever-users reported that the first 

product they had used was flavored, including 88.7% of ever 

hookah users, 81.0% of ever e-cigarette users, 65.4% of ever 

users of any cigar type, and 50.1% of ever cigarette smokers. 

Youth consistently reported product flavoring as a reason 

for use across all product types, including e-cigarettes 

(81.5%), hookahs (78.9%), cigars (73.8%), smokeless tobacco 

(69.3%), and snus pouches (67.2%).213  

Studies indicate that individuals who begin smoking at a 

younger age are more likely to develop a more severe 

addiction to nicotine than those who start later.214 Further, 

both the FDA and the U.S. Surgeon General have warned 

that flavored tobacco products help new users establish 

habits that can lead to long-term addiction.215,216 A recent 

study of middle and high school students supports this: 

among cigar smokers, prevalence of no-intention-to-quit 

tobacco use was higher among flavored-little-cigar users 

(59.7%) than nonusers (49.3%).217 Additionally, youth who 

initiate smoking with menthol cigarettes are more likely 

to become regular, addicted smokers and to show higher 

measures of dependence than youth who initiate with 

non-menthol cigarettes.218 Furthermore, a nationally rep-

resentative sample of U.S. youth tobacco users found that 

dual use (i.e., use of two tobacco product categories) was 

the most prevalent pattern (30.5%) detected among these 

users.219 

Flavored and Mentholated Tobacco Products are 
Heavily Marketed with Sweet Flavors, Colorful 
Packaging, and Brand Recognition

The U.S. Surgeon General concluded that, “… advertising 

and promotional activities by the tobacco companies cause 

the onset and continuation of smoking among adolescents 

and young adults.”220 Tobacco industry documents 

containing information about tobacco companies’ 

advertising, manufacturing, marketing, and research 

activities demonstrate a strategic focus on designing 

brand varieties with particular appeal to youth, such as 

mentholated, candy-flavored, and fruit-flavored brands.221 

Priority Populations

214

Item 6.

26

Item 1.

118

Item 9.

62

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org Page 13 of 29

For example, one internal industry memo described 

sweetened products as “… for younger people, beginner 

cigarette smokers, teenagers … when you feel like a light 

smoke, want to be reminded of bubblegum.”222  

Several flavored tobacco products share the same names, 

packaging and logos as popular candy brands like Jolly 

Rancher, Kool-Aid, and Life Savers.223 They are also 

engineered with the same flavoring agents as those used 

in popular kid-friendly candy and drink products such as 

Life Savers and Jolly Ranchers, providing a “familiar, chem-

ical-specific flavor cue” to the user.224 Bright packaging and 

product placement at the register, near candy, and often at 

children’s eye-level, increases tobacco flavored products’ 

visibility to kids.225 As stated in an industry publication, 

“While different cigars target a variety of markets, all 

flavored tobacco products tend to appeal primarily to 

younger consumers.”226 

The tobacco industry has aggressively used branding 

and advertising as a method to exploit particular youth 

populations and use of mentholated cigarettes. The vast 

majority of adolescents who smoke before the age of 

18 use the three most heavily advertised brands. One of 

these heavily advertised brands, Newport, is the cigarette 

brand leader among African-American youth in the United 

States. Nearly eight out of every ten African American youth 

smokers smoke Newport cigarettes.227 

Many Youth Believe Flavored or Mentholated 
Tobacco Products are Safer than Non-flavored 
Tobacco Products

Multiple studies of youth perception indicate that many 

younger users falsely believe that flavored or mentholated 

tobacco products are safer than non-flavored tobacco 

products. A recent study found that people younger than 

25 years of age were more likely to say that hookahs 

and e-cigarettes were safer than cigarettes,228 and 

that mentholated cigarettes were less hazardous than 

non-menthol cigarettes.229 This finding has been supported 

in other studies that show cigar smokers misperceive cigars 

as being less addictive, more “natural,” and less harmful 

than cigarettes.230 

Recent research indicates that some teens may be more 

likely to use e-cigarettes prior to using combustible tobacco 

because of beliefs that e-cigarettes are not harmful or 

addictive, as a result of youth targeted marketing and 

availability of e-cigarettes in flavors that are attractive to 

youths.231 A longitudinal study of e-cigarette use found that 

adolescents who use e-cigarettes are more likely to start 

smoking cigarettes, and that risk for use was greater for 

students who had the impression that e-cigarettes were less 

dangerous than regular cigarettes.232  

Racial and Ethnic Minorities

Menthol Cigarette Use is Higher Among African 
Americans, Especially Minority Youth

Significant disparities exist in the use of menthol flavored 

tobacco products by certain racial and ethnic minority 

communities. African American smokers are far more likely 

to smoke menthol cigarettes than smokers of other racial 

and ethnic groups, and this trend is pervasive across all 

categories, regardless of stratification by income, age, 

gender, region, education, etc. African American youth are 

especially impacted: more than 80% of all African American 

adolescents who smoke use menthol cigarettes—the 

highest usage among all minority groups.233   

Although African Americans usually smoke fewer cigarettes 

and start smoking cigarettes at an older age, their smok-

ing-related morbidity and mortality is significantly higher 

than white smokers.234,235 This disparity in tobacco-related 

morbidity and mortality among African Americans may partly 

result from the greater use of menthol cigarettes among 

African American smokers.236 A smoking simulation model 

predicted that a 10% quit rate among menthol smokers 

Flavored & 
Mentholated 

Tobacco
Products

Easier

 

Initiation

Increased 
Dependence & 

Addiction, Lower

 

Cessation Rates

Increased 
Incidence of

 

Negative Health

 

Impacts

215

Item 6.

27

Item 1.

119

Item 9.

63

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org Page 14 of 29

would save thousands of lives, preventing more than 4,000 

smoking-attributable deaths in the first ten years, and 

over 300,000 lives over the next 40 years. Approximately 

100,000 of those lives saved would be African Americans.237

In addition, menthol cigarettes are used disproportionately 

by other minority youth groups. Data from the National 

Survey on Drug Use and Health (NSDUH) shows that among 

adolescent smokers aged 12-17 years, 51.5% of Asians, 

47.0% of Hispanics, and 41.4% of Native Hawaiians/Pacific 

Islanders reported smoking a menthol brand in the past 30 

days.238 Further, other research shows that during the last 

year of high school, one third of Asian American youth are 

smokers. Of these youth, 60% report that their usual brand 

of cigarettes is a menthol brand.239  

Lower Cessation Rates Common Among Minority 
Menthol Smokers 

Research indicates that menthol smoking can lead to lower 

rates of cessation outcomes, especially for non-white 

smokers.240 Generally, quitting menthol cigarettes is partic-

ularly difficult because menthol smokers have to overcome 

the dependency on nicotine as well as positive associ-

ations with menthol itself.241 In addition, one study found 

that among African Americans and Hispanic/Latino current 

smokers, those who smoked mentholated cigarettes were 

more likely to be seriously considering quitting smoking 

in the next six months and to think that they would quit 

smoking successfully in the next six months compared 

to non-menthol smokers. However, the evidence did not 

support this outcome: African Americans and Hispanics/

Latinos who smoked mentholated cigarettes were less likely 

to quit successfully for at least six months compared to 

those who smoked non-mentholated cigarettes.242   

Another study found that despite smoking fewer cigarettes 

per day, African American and Hispanic/Latino menthol 

smokers were less likely to successfully quit as compared 

to non-menthol smokers within the same ethnic/racial 

group.243 This suggests that lower rates of cessation among 

these populations may be linked to higher rates of smoking 

mentholated cigarettes.

Tobacco Industry Has a Long History of Targeting 
Racial and Ethnic Minorities 

Through strategic marketing and price discounting, the 

tobacco industry has targeted communities of color with 

mentholated tobacco products and flavored, cheap little 

cigars and cigarillos. Price discounting contributes to 

tobacco-related health disparities because vulnerable 

populations including youth, racial minorities, and persons 

with low incomes are more likely to purchase tobacco 

products through affordable discounts.244,245  

In particular, the tobacco industry has aggressively targeted 

African American populations through the use of multiple 

advertising mediums and branding to convey sociocultural 

messages around menthol products.246  Research indicates 

that African American neighborhoods have a dispropor-

tionate number of tobacco retailers,247  many which employ 

various point-of-sale strategies, such as price discounting, to 

encourage initiation and use in these communities.  

MENTHOL SMOKING BY RACE/ETHNICITY
Percentage of menthol use among cigarette smokers ages 12 and older by race and ethnicity in the past month

Source: Substance Abuse and Mental Health Administration. The National Survey on Drug Use (NSDUH) and Health Report: Use of Menthol Cigarettes. November2009. 

216

Item 6.

28

Item 1.

120

Item 9.

64

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org Page 15 of 29

One study found that a higher proportion of African American 

and young adult residents was associated with more exterior 

little cigar advertising and cheaper prices,  

with 95% of these stores selling little cigars in fruit, candy, and 

wine flavors.248

Other communities of color have similarly been targeted by 

industry. A review of tobacco industry documents suggests 

that RJ Reynolds, one of the leading cigarette manufacturers, 

developed a sophisticated surveillance system to track the 

market behavior of Hispanic/Latino smokers and understand 

their cultural values and attitudes. This information was 

translated into targeted marketing campaigns for the Winston 

and Camel brands, and in 2005, RJ Reynolds launched 

a music-themed marketing campaign to target African 

American and Hispanic/Latino youths.249 Empirical research 

examining menthol and non-menthol advertising also found 

a higher proportion of menthol advertisements out of all 

cigarette advertisements in Hispanic/Latino neighborhoods 

and magazines, than in non-Hispanic white neighborhoods 

and magazines.250   

Since the mid-1980s, tobacco companies have targeted 

Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders in their marketing 

campaigns. The tobacco industry considered these groups 

to be a “potential gold mine” because of high rates of 

smoking in Asia and the Pacific, concentration in certain 

geographic regions, and the high proportion of Asian 

retailers.251 A tobacco industry document review provided 

further evidence that Asian Americans and Hawaiian/Pacific 

Islanders were targeted in menthol marketing by cigarette 

companies.252 

Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual,  
and Transgender (LGBT)

Similar to other priority populations, LGBT individuals have 

been aggressively targeted by tobacco industry through 

advertising and sponsorships on specific themes that 

resonate within the community: liberation, individualism, 

social success, and acceptance.253 For example, an ad for 

Camel Snus directed at LGBT audiences to “Take pride 

in your flavor,” and according to initial assessments of 

prevalence data, this industry messaging may be working.

Overall, LGBT individuals smoke cigarettes at a higher 

rate than the general population.254,255 In a national study 

conducted in 2009-2010, 71% of LGBT young adult smokers 

(18-25) reported smoking menthol cigarettes.256 In addition, 

current menthol cigarette smoking was higher among LGBT 

adults (9.7%) than heterosexual/straight adults (4.2%), and 

LGBT women are more likely to smoke menthols cigarettes 

than straight women (42.9% vs.32.4%).257

LGBT individuals are also more likely to smoke flavored 

cigars (8.2%) than heterosexual/straight individuals (2.7%).258 

Furthermore, 4.5% of LGBT adults use e-cigarettes, compared 

to 1.9% of heterosexuals.259 A Missouri study comparing het-

erosexual general population youth and LGBT youth found 

that these two groups differed significantly on many tobacco 

use related factors. General population youth initiated 

smoking at a younger age, and LGBT youth did not catch up 

in smoking initiation until age 15 or 16. However, LGBT youth 

(41.0%) soon surpassed  

heterosexual general population youth (11.2%) in initiation 

and proportion of current smokers and were more likely 

to use cigars/cigarillos and be poly-tobacco users.260 The 

latter finding is supported in a representative sample of 

U.S. high school youth that examined the concurrent use of 

multiple tobacco products: data indicated the prevalence of 

poly-tobacco use to be 21.7% among sexual minority youth 

compared with only 12.1% among heterosexual youth.261 

Women

Over 18 million adult women and 1.3 million girls in the U.S. 

currently smoke cigarettes.262 Although men are more 

likely to smoke cigarettes than women, that is not the case 

with menthol cigarettes: women are 1.6 times more likely 

to smoke menthol cigarettes than men, and this pattern is 

seen across all racial/ethnic groups, except among American 

Indians/Alaskan Natives.263  

Research suggests that among women smokers, menthol 

cigarette use is associated with higher tobacco dependence. 

More female menthol smokers, as compared to female 

non-menthol smokers, reported smoking their cigarette 

within five minutes of waking up in the morning and fewer 

quit attempts greater than 90 days.264,265

A review of tobacco industry documents show extensive 

research was conducted on female smoking patterns, needs, 

and product preferences, including menthol brands. The 

tobacco industry has targeted some menthol brands to 

women, using women’s social and cosmetic concerns for 

cleanliness and freshness, and incorporated these themes  

in menthol cigarette product design and marketing.266

 

 
217

Item 6.

29

Item 1.

121

Item 9.

65

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org

California and its tobacco control program have achieved 
great success in reducing the burden of tobacco use: over 
a 25 year period, cigarette consumption has decreased in 
California by 65%,267 with over 1 million lives saved268 and 
$134 billion in averted health care costs.269 Despite this 
progress, tobacco use remains the chief risk factor for the 
leading causes of death in the state,270 and evidence shows 
that the tobacco industry continues to engage in efforts 
that entice a new generation of users. A foundation of this 
strategy is the use of candy and fruit flavors and cooling 
additives in tobacco products that are intended to attract 
and retain users by masking the naturally harsh taste of 
tobacco. More specifically, the combination of flavorings, 
the introduction of novel tobacco products, and deployment 
of predatory marketing has presented new public health 
threats in the form of increased initiation and sustained use 
of tobacco, particularly among certain vulnerable groups.

Contrary to popular beliefs, flavorings do not reduce the 
health impacts and risks associated with tobacco use, 
and are not safer than non-flavored tobacco products;271 in 
fact, the literature suggests that flavored and mentholated 
tobacco products pose significant public health risks 
because they make these toxic tobacco substances 
more appealing and palatable upon use. There is also a 

growing body of research which shows that these chemical 
flavorings and additives may present another level of 
exposure that has not been deemed safe for inhalation. 

Furthermore, the literature shows that the tobacco industry 
has manipulated and marketed these flavor and menthol 
tobacco products to account for user preferences that skew 
younger, and reinforce sociocultural messages with priority 
populations. Research supports the finding that flavors 
and menthol tobacco products are “starter” products that 
establish daily habits and increase addiction to tobacco 
products, make it harder to quit, and increase use of 
multiple tobacco products concurrently.

Consumption of flavored tobacco products such as cigars, 
smokeless tobacco, hookah tobacco, and liquid nicotine 
solutions (used in electronic smoking devices) have 
increased in recent years, while menthol cigarettes continue 
to corner a large part of the U.S. cigarette market. Strong 
evidence supports the finding that youth, certain racial/
ethnic groups, and other targeted priority populations (i.e., 
LGBT and women) are particularly vulnerable to sweet 
flavors and menthol, and are largely driving this increased 
uptake and sustained use of flavored tobacco products.

Conclusion

Page 16 of 29
218

Item 6.

30

Item 1.

122

Item 9.

66

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org

1   Tobacco Education and Research Oversight Committee. 2014. Changing Landscape: Countering New Threats, 2015-2017; [cited   
2016 Jan 16]. Available from http://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/tobacco/Documents/TEROC/Master%20Plan/MasterPlan_15-17.pdf.

2   Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids. 2015. The Toll of Tobacco in California; [cited 2016 Jan 16]. Available from http://www.tobaccof  
reekids.org/facts_issues/toll_us/California.

3   California Department of Public Health, California Tobacco Control Program. 2015. California Tobacco Facts and Figures   
in 2015; [cited 2016 Jan 16]. Available from https://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/tobacco/Documents/Resources/Fact%20  
Sheets/2015FactsFigures-web2.pdf.

4   Lee et al. Menthol: Putting the pieces together. Tobacco Control. 2011;20:ii1-ii7.

5   FDA (Food and Drug Administration). 2011. Fact Sheet: Flavored Tobacco Products; [cited 2016 Jan 16].  
Available from http://www.fda.gov/downloads/TobaccoProducts/Labeling/ProductsIngredientsComponents/UCM183215.pdf.

6   FDA. 2009. Candy and fruit flavored cigarettes now illegal in United States; step is first under new tobacco law. [cited 2016 Jan 16].  
Available from http://www.fda.gov/NewsEvents/Newsroom/PressAnnouncements/ucm183211.htm.

7  DHHS (U.S. Department of Health and Human Services). 2012. Preventing Tobacco Use Among Youth and Young Adults: A Report   
of the Surgeon General. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention; [cited 2016 Mar 28].  
Available from http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK99237/.

8   National Cancer Institute. 2010. Cigar Smoking and Cancer. National Institutes of Health; [cited 2016 Mar 28].  
Available from http://www.cancer.gov/about-cancer/causes-prevention/risk/tobacco/cigars-fact-sheet.  

9   Maxwell JC. 2013. The Maxwell Report: Cigar Industry in 2013. Richmond, VA; [cited 2016 Mar 28].

10   Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids. 2016. The Rise of Cigars and Cigar-Smoking Harms; [cited 2016 Mar 28].  
Available from https://www.tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0333.pdf.

11   Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids. 2016. Flavored Tobacco Products Attract Kids; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from  
https://www.tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0383.pdf.

12   CDC (Centers for Disease Control and Prevntion). We Can Make the Next Generation Tobacco Free. CDC Features; [cited 2016 Mar 
28]. Available from http://www.cdc.gov/Features/YouthTobaccoUse/.

13   Kostygina et al. Tobacco industry use of flavors to recruit new users of little cigars and cigarillos. Tobacco Control. 2016;25:66-74.

14  McAfee, Tim. 2014 May 15. Ending Tobacco Use in the United States – Our Past, Present and Future. Testimony before the U.S.   
Senate Health, Education, Labor and Pensions Committee; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from http://www.cdc.gov/washington/  
testimony/2014/t20140515.htm. 

15   Brown et al. Candy Flavorings in Tobacco. New England Journal of Medicine. 2014;370:2250-2252.

16   Maxwell JC. 2013. The Maxwell Report: Cigar Industry in 2013. Richmond, VA; [cited 2016 Mar 28].

17   Eaton et al. Youth risk behavior surveillance-United States, 2011. Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report. 2012;61(4):1-162.

18   SAMHSA (Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration). 2013. Results from the 2012 National Survey on Drug Use   
and Health: Summary of National Findings. NSDUH Series. 2013;H-46(13-4795).

19   Wadley, Jared. 2015. Cigarillo use increases estimates of teen smoking rates by half. University of Michigan News Service; [cited   
2016 Mar 28]. Available from http://www.monitoringthefuture.org/pressreleases/15cigarillopr_complete.pdf. 

20 Ambrose et al. Flavored Tobacco Product Use Among US Youth Aged 12-17 Years, 2013-2014. Journal of the American Medical   

Association. 2015;314(17):1871-1873.

21   King et al. Flavored-little-cigar and flavored cigarette use among U.S. middle and high school students. J Adolesc Health.   
2014;54(1):40-6.

22 King et al. Flavored cigar smoking among U.S. adults: Flavored Cigar Smoking Among U.S. Adults: Findings from the 2009–2010   
National Adult Tobacco Survey. Nicotine & Tobacco Research. 2013;15:608–14. 

23 Delnevo et al. Preference for flavoured cigar brands among youth, young adults and adults in the USA. Tobacco Control.   
2015;24(4):389-94. 

24 National Cancer Institute. 2010. Cigar Smoking and Cancer. National Institutes of Health; [cited 2016 Mar 28].  

219

Item 6.

31

Item 1.

123

Item 9.

67

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org

Available from http://www.cancer.gov/about-cancer/causes-prevention/risk/tobacco/cigars-fact-sheet.  

25 National Cancer Institute. 1998. Smoking and Tobacco Control Monograph 9:  Cigars: Health Effects and Trends. Behavioral   

Research Program. [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from http://www.cancercontrol.cancer.gov/tcrb/monographs/9/index.html.

26   National Cancer Institute. 2010. Cigar Smoking and Cancer. National Institutes of Health; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from  
http://www.cancer.gov/about-cancer/causes-prevention/risk/tobacco/cigars-fact-sheet.  

27   Chang et al. Systematic review of cigar smoking and all cause and smoking related mortality. BMC Public Health. 2015;15:390.

28 National Cancer Institute. 1998. Smoking and Tobacco Control Monograph 9:  Cigars: Health Effects and Trends. Behavioral   

Research Program. [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from  http://www.cancercontrol.cancer.gov/tcrb/monographs/9/index.html..

29   CDC. Cigars Fact Sheet. 2015.[cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from http://www.cdc.gov/tobacco/data_statistics/fact_sheets/tobacco_  
industry/cigars/.

30   American Cancer Society. 2014. Tobacco Related Cancers Fact Sheet; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from http://www.cancer.org/
cancer/cancercauses/tobaccocancer/tobacco-related-cancer-fact-sheet.

31 Chen et al. Biomarkers of exposure among U.S. cigar smokers:  An analysis of 1999-2012 National Health and Nutrition Examination 
Survey (NHANES) Data. Cancer Epidemiol Biomarkers Prev. 2014; 23(12):2906-15.

32 CDC. Cigars Fact Sheet. 2015.[cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from http://www.cdc.gov/tobacco/data_statistics/fact_sheets/tobacco_  
industry/cigars/. 

33 National Cancer Institute. 1998. Smoking and Tobacco Control Monograph 9: Cigars: Health Effects and Trends. Behavioral   

Research Program. [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from http://www.cancercontrol.cancer.gov/tcrb/monographs/9/index.html.

34 Nonnemaker et al. Mortality and Economic Costs from Regular Cigar Use in the United States. American Journal of Public Health.   
2014;104(9): e86-e91.

35   Baker et al. Health Risks Associated With Cigar Smoking. Journal of the American Medical Association. 2000;284(6):735-740.

36 Rodriguez et al. The Association of Pipe and Cigar Use with Cotinine Levels, Lung Function, and Airflow Obstruction: A Cross-  
sectional Study. Annals of Internal Medicine. 2010;152:201-210.

37 McDonald et al. Deposition of Cigar Smoke Particles in the Lung: Evaluation with Ventilation Scan Using mTc-Labeled Sulfur Colloid  
Particles. Journal of Nuclear Medicine. 2002;43:1591-1595.

38 National Cancer Institute. 1998. Smoking and Tobacco Control Monograph 9:  Cigars: Health Effects and Trends. Behavioral   
Research Program. [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from http://www.cancercontrol.cancer.gov/tcrb/monographs/9/index.html.

39 NCI (1998).

40 Jolly DH. Exploring the use of little cigars by students at a historically black university. Preventing Chronic Disease. 2008;5(3):1-9.

41 NCI (1998).

42 World Health Organization. 2007. Smokeless Tobacco and Some Tobacco-Specific N-Nitrosamines IARC Monographs on the   

Evaluation of Carcinogenic Risks to Humans. 2007;89(PDF–3.18 MB). 

43  U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. 2012. Preventing Tobacco Use Among Youth and Young Adults: A Report of the  
Surgeon General. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/
NBK99237/.

44 Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids. 2016. Smokeless Tobacco and Kids; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from https://www.tobaccofreek-
ids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0003.pdf. 

45 Maxwell JC. 2011. The Maxwell Report: Cigar Industry in 2011. Richmond, VA; [cited 2016 Mar 28].

46 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. 2015. Economic Facts About U.S. Tobacco Production and Use; [cited 2016 Jan 16].   
Available from http://www.cdc.gov/tobacco/data_statistics/fact_sheets/economics/econ_facts/.

47 Delnevo et al. Examining market trends in the United States smokeless tobacco use: 2005 – 2011. Tobacco Control.  
2014;23(2):107-12.

48 Connolly G. The Marketing of Nicotine Addiction by One Oral Snuff Manufacturer. Tobacco Control. 1995;4(1):73-79.

220

Item 6.

32

Item 1.

124

Item 9.

68

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org

49 National Cancer Institute. 2014. Smokeless Tobacco and Public Health: A Global Perspective. NIH Publication No. 14-7983; [cited   
2016 Mar 28]. Available from http://cancercontrol.cancer.gov/brp/tcrb/global-perspective/SmokelessTobaccoAndPublicHealth.pdf.

50 Ibid.

51 CDC. Surveillance for Selected Tobacco-Use Behaviors—United States, 1900-1994. Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report.   
1994;43(SS-03).

52 CDC. Youth Risk Behavior Surveillance—United States, 2013. Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report. 2014;63(4).

53 SAMHSA. 2014. Results from the 2013 National Survey on Drug Use and Health: Summary of National Findings. NSDUH Series.   
2013;H-48(14-4863).

54 Ibid.

55 DHHS. 2014. The Health Consequences of Smoking—50 Years of Progress: A Report of the Surgeon General; [cited 2016 Mar 28].   
Available at http://www.surgeongeneral.gov/library/reports/50-years-of-progress/.

56 Tomar SL, Giovino GA, Eriksen MP. Smokeless tobacco brand preference and brand switching among US adolescents and young   
adults. Tobacco Control. 1995;4(1):67–72.

57 Tomar SL. Is use of smokeless tobacco a risk factor for cigarette smoking? The U.S. experience. Nicotine Tob Res. 2003 Dec; 5(4):   
561-569.

58 Grøtvedt et al. Patterns of snus and cigarette use: a study of Norwegian men followed from age 16 to 19. Tobacco Control.   
2013;22(6):382-388.

59 Mejia AB, Ling PM. Tobacco industry consumer research on smokeless tobacco users and product development. Am J Public   

Health. 2010;100:78–87.

60 Carpenter CM, Connolly GN, Ayo-Yusuf OA, Wayne GF. Developing smokeless tobacco products for smokers: an examination of   
tobacco industry documents. Tobacco Control. 2009;18:54–9.

61 Rutqvist LE. Population-based survey of cessation aids used by Swedish smokers. Harm Reduct J. 2012;9:38.

62 DHHS. 2010. How tobacco smoke causes disease: the biology and behavioral basis for smoking-attributable disease: a report of   
the Surgeon General. [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK53017/.

63 Klesges et al. Tobacco use harm reduction, elimination, and escalation in a large military cohort. American Journal of Public Health.  

2010;100(12):2487–92. 

64 Tomar SL, Alpert HR, Connolly GN. Patterns of dual use of cigarettes and smokeless tobacco among US males findings from   
national surveys. Tobacco Control. 2010;19(2):104–9. 

65 Cobb CO, Weaver MF, Eissenberg T. Evaluating the acute effects of oral, non-combustible potential reduced exposure products   
marketed to smokers. Tobacco Control. 2010;19:367–73.

66 Tomar SL, Fox BJ, Severson HH. Is smokeless tobacco use an appropriate public health strategy for reducing societal harm from   
cigarette smoking? Int J Environ Res Public Health. 2009;6(1):10–24.

67 National Cancer Institute. 2014. Smokeless Tobacco and Cancer. [cited 2016 Mar 28]; Available from http://www.cancer.gov/about-can-
cer/causes-prevention/risk/tobacco/smokeless-fact-sheet.

68 Mayo Clinic. 2014. Health risks of chewing tobacco and other forms of smokeless tobacco. Healthy Lifestyle: Quit Smoking; [cited 2016 
Mar 28]; Available from http://www.mayoclinic.org/healthy-lifestyle/quit-smoking/in-depth/chewing-tobacco/art-20047428?pg=2. 

69 DHHS, Public Health Service. 2014. Report on Carcinogens, Thirteenth Edition. [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from http://ntp.niehs.nih.
gov/pubhealth/roc/roc13.

70 National Cancer Institute. 2014. Smokeless Tobacco and Cancer. [cited 2016 Mar 28]; Available from http://www.cancer.gov/about-can-
cer/causes-prevention/risk/tobacco/smokeless-fact-sheet.

71 Ibid.

72 Ibid.

73 Chen C, Isabelle LM, Pickworth WB, Pankow JF. Levels of mint and wintergreen flavorants: smokeless tobacco products vs.  
confectionery products. Food Chem Toxicol. 2010;48(2):755–63.

221

Item 6.

33

Item 1.

125

Item 9.

69

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org

74 Rainey CL, Conder PA, Goodpaster JV. Chemical characterization of dissolvable tobacco products promoted to reduce harm. J   

Agric Food Chem. 2011;23;59(6):2745–51.

75 World Health Organization. 2007. Smokeless Tobacco and Some Tobacco-Specific N-Nitrosamines IARC Monographs on the   

Evaluation of Carcinogenic Risks to Humans. 2007;89(PDF–3.18 MB).

76 Stepanov I, Jensen J, Hatsukami D, Hecht SS. New and traditional smokeless tobacco: comparison of toxicant and carcinogen   
levels. Nicotine Tob Res. 2008;10(12):1773–82. 

77 Stanfill et al. Global surveillance of oral tobacco products: total nicotine, unionised nicotine and tobacco-specific N-nitrosamines.   
Tob Control. 2011;20(3):e2.

78 World Health Organization. 2007. Smokeless Tobacco and Some Tobacco-Specific N-Nitrosamines IARC Monographs on the   

Evaluation of Carcinogenic Risks to Humans. 2007;89(PDF–3.18 MB).

79 Hatsukami DK, Ebbert JO, Feuer RM, Stepanov I, Hecht SS. Changing smokeless tobacco products: new tobaccodeliverysystems.   
Amer J Prev Med. 2007;33(6):S368–78.

80 Boffetta P, Hecht S, Gray N, Gupta P, Straif K. Smokeless tobacco and cancer. Lancet Oncol. 2008;9(7):667–75.

81 Scientific Committee on Emerging and Newly Identified Health Risks. 2008. Health effects of smokeless tobacco products. [cited   
2016 Mar 28]. Available from http://ec.europa.eu/health/ph_risk/committees/04_scenihr/docs/scenihr_o_013.pdf.

82 World Health Organization. 2007. Smokeless Tobacco and Some Tobacco-Specific N-Nitrosamines IARC Monographs on the   

Evaluation of Carcinogenic Risks to Humans. 2007;89(PDF–3.18 MB).

83 Kallischnigg G, Weitkunat R, Lee PN. Systematic review of the relation between smokeless tobacco and non-neoplastic oral   
diseases in Europe and the United States. BMC Oral Health. 2008;8:13.

84 Hatsukami D, Severson H. Oral Spit Tobacco: Addiction, Prevention and Treatment. Nicotine & Tobacco Research. 1999;1:21-44.

85 WHO (2007)

86 Ibid

87 Tomar SL. Chewing Tobacco Use and Dental Caries Among U.S. Men. Journal of the American Dental Association. 1999;130:160.

88 WHO (2007)

89 Piano et al. Impact of smokeless tobacco products on cardiovascular disease: implications for policy, prevention, and treatment.   
Circulation. 2010;122(15):1520–44.

90 Boffetta P, Straif K. Use of smokeless tobacco and risk of myocardial infarction and stroke: systematic review with meta-analysis.   
BMJ. 2009;339:b3060. 

91 DHHS. 2014. The Health Consequences of Smoking—50 Years of Progress: A Report of the Surgeon General; [cited 2016 Mar 28].   
Available at http://www.surgeongeneral.gov/library/reports/50-years-of-progress/.

92 California Environmental Protection Agency. 2014. Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986: Chemicals Known to  the 
State to Cause Cancer or Reproductive Toxicity. California Environmental Protection Agency, Office of Environmental Health Hazard 
Assessment.

93 DHHS. 2010. How tobacco smoke causes disease: the biology and behavioral basis for smoking-attributable disease: a report of   
the Surgeon General. [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK53017/.

94 Benowitz et al. Exposure to nicotine and carcinogens among Southwestern Alaskan Native cigarette smokers and smokeless   
tobacco users. Cancer Epidemiol Biomarkers Prev. 2012;21(6);934–42.

95 American Lung Association. 2007. An Emerging Deadly Trend: Waterpipe Tobacco Use. Tobacco Policy Trend Alert; [cited 2016 Mar 
28]. Available from http://www.lungusa2.org/embargo/slati/Trendalert_Waterpipes.pdf.

96 CDC. 2015. Hookah Fact Sheet; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from http://www.cdc.gov/tobacco/data_statistics/fact_sheets/tobacco_
industry/hookahs.

97 Tobacco Technology, Inc. Manufacture and Technology. 2013. Indulge Your Flavors. Tobacco Journal International. Available from   
http://www.tobaccotech.com/docs/tji0113-p67ff.pdf.

98 American Lung Association. 2007. An Emerging Deadly Trend: Waterpipe Tobacco Use. Tobacco Policy Trend Alert; [cited 2016 Mar 
28]. Available from http://www.lungusa2.org/embargo/slati/Trendalert_Waterpipes.pdf.

222

Item 6.

34

Item 1.

126

Item 9.

70

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org

99 WHO (World Health Organization), Study Group on Tobacco Product Regulation. 2015. Waterpipe tobacco smoking: health effects,   
research needs and recommended actions by regulators–2nd ed. TobReg Advisory Note. 

100 Ibid.

101 Cobb et al. Waterpipe Tobacco Smoking: An Emerging Health Crisis in the United States. American Journal of Health Behavior.   
2010;34(3):275–85.

102 Barnett et al. Water pipe tobacco smoking among middle and high school students. Am J Public Health. 2009;99(11):2014–2019.

103 Primack BA, Walsh M, Bryce C, Eissenberg T. Water-pipe tobacco smoking among middle and high school students in Arizona.   
Pediatrics. 2009;123(2):e282–e288.

104 American College Health Association. 2009. Reference Group Data Report Fall 2008. National College Health Assessment II; [cited 
2016 Mar 28]. Available from http://www.acha-ncha.org/docs/ACHA-NCHA_Reference_Group_Report_Fall2008.pdf.

105  Eissenberg T, Ward KD, Smith-Simone S, Maziak W. Waterpipe tobacco smoking on a US college campus: prevalence and   
correlates. J Adolesc Health. 2008;42(5):526–529.

106  Maziak W. The waterpipe: time for action. Addiction. 2008;103(11):1763–1767.

107  Maziak W, Ward KD, Afifi Soweid RA, Eissenberg T. Tobacco smoking using a waterpipe: a re-emerging strain in a global epidemic. 
Tobacco Control. 2004;13(4):327–333.

108  Primack BA, Sidani J, Agarwal AA, Shadel WG, Donny EC, Eissenberg TE. Prevalence of and associations with waterpipe tobacco   
smoking among US university students. Annals of Behavioral Medicine. 2008;36(1):81–86.

109   Smith et al. Increasing hookah use in California. American Journal of Public Health. 2011;101(10):1876-1879.

110   Soneji et al. Associations between initial water pipe tobacco smoking and snus use and subsequent cigarette smoking: results   
from a longitudinal study of US adolescents and young adults. JAMA Pediatrics. 2015;169(2):129-36.

111  Salloum et al. Waterpipe Tobacco Smoking and Susceptibility to Cigarette Smoking Among Young Adults in the United States,   
2012–2013. Prev Chronic Dis 2016;13:150505. 

112   WHO (World Health Organization), Study Group on Tobacco Product Regulation. 2015. Waterpipe tobacco smoking: health effects,   
research needs and recommended actions by regulators–2nd ed. TobReg Advisory Note.

113   Maziak et al. The global epidemiology of waterpipe smoking. Tobacco Control. 2015;24(Suppl 1):i3–12.

114  Ibid.

115  Ambrose et al. Flavored Tobacco Product Use Among US Youth Aged 12-17 Years, 2013-2014. Journal of the American Medical   

Association. 2015;314(17):1871-1873.

116   Corey et al. Flavored Tobacco Product Use Among Middle and High School Students—United States, 2014. Morbidity and Mortality  

Weekly Report. 2015;64(38):1066-1070.

117  Morris et al. Peer Reviewed: Opportunities for Policy Interventions to Reduce Youth Hookah Smoking in the United States.   

Preventing Chronic Disease. 2012;9:120082. 

118  Primack et al. Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis of Inhaled Toxicants from Waterpipe and Cigarette Smoking. Public Health   

Reports. 2016;131(1):76-85.

119   American Lung Association. 2007. An Emerging Deadly Trend: Waterpipe Tobacco Use. Tobacco Policy Trend Alert; [cited 2016   
Mar 28]. Available from http://www.lungusa2.org/embargo/slati/Trendalert_Waterpipes.pdf.

120  American Lung Association. 2011. Hookah Smoking: A Growing Threat to Public Health Issue Brief. Smokefree Communities   
Project; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from http:/www.lung.org/assets/documents/tobacco/hookah-policy-brief-updated.pdf. 

121  WHO Study Group on Tobacco Product Regulation. 2005. Waterpipe Tobacco Smoking: Health Effects, Research Needs and  
Recommended Actions by Regulators. TobReg Advisory Note. Available from http://www.who.int/tobacco/global_interaction/tobreg/
Waterpipe%20recommendation_Final.pdf.

122 WHO (World Health Organization), Study Group on Tobacco Product Regulation. 2015. Waterpipe tobacco smoking: health effects,   
research needs and recommended actions by regulators–2nd ed. TobReg Advisory Note. 

223

Item 6.

35

Item 1.

127

Item 9.

71

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org

123  Cobb CO, Ward KD, Maziak W, Shihadeh AL, Eissenberg T. Waterpipe Tobacco Smoking: An Emerging Health Crisis in the United   
States. American Journal of Health Behavior. 2010;34(3):275–85.

124   Conference of the Parties to the WHO Framework Convention on Tobacco Control, Sixth session, Control and prevention of waterpipe 
tobacco products.  Moscow, Russian Federation, 13–18 October 2014. Geneva:   
World Health Organization; 2014.

125  El Zaatari ZM, Chami HA, Zaatari, GS. Health effects associated with waterpipe smoking. Tobacco Control. 2015;24(1):i31–43.

126  Cobb CO, Ward KD, Maziak W, Shihadeh AL, Eissenberg T. Waterpipe Tobacco Smoking: An Emerging Health Crisis in the United   
States. American Journal of Health Behavior 2010;34(3):275–85.

127  Akl EA, Gaddam S, Gunukula SK, Honeine R, Jaoude PA, Irani J. The Effects of Waterpipe Tobacco Smoking on Health Outcomes: A 
Systematic Review. International Journal of Epidemiology. 2010;39:834–57.

128  Chapman, Ron. 2015. State Health Officer’s Report on E-Cigarettes: A Community Health Threat. California Department of   
Public Health, Tobacco Control Program. Available at https://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/tobacco/Documents/Media/State%20  
Health-e-cig%20report.pdf.

129  Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids. 2016. Electronic cigarettes: An overview of key issues; [cited 2016 Mar 28].  
Available at https://www.tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0379.pdf. 

130 Ibid.

131   Mincer, Jilian. 2015. The US vaporizer market is booming. Business Insider; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from http://www.businessin-
sider.com/r-in-rise-of-us-vape-shops-owners-eye-new-marijuana-market-2015-7.

132  Craver R. 2013. Analyst projection: E-cigs will overtake traditional tobacco revenue at Reynolds in 2021. Winston-Salem Journal;   
[cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from http://www.journalnow.com/business/business_news/local/analyst-projection-e-cigs-will-over  
take-traditional-tobacco-revenue-at/article_948674ca-1ca9-11e3-a0ae-0019bb30f31a.html.

133 Mickle, Tripp. 2015. E-cigarette sales rapidly losing steam. The Wall Street Journal; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from http://www.wsj.
com/articles/e-cig-sales-rapidly-lose-steam-1447798921.

134  Zhu et al. Four Hundred and Sixty Brands of E-cigarettes and Counting: Implications for Product Regulation. Tobacco Control.   

2014;23(3):iii3-iii9.

135  Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids. 2016. Electronic Cigarettes and Youth; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from https://www.tobaccofreek-
ids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0382.pdf.

136  CDC. Tobacco Use Among Middle and High School Students — United States, 2011-2014. Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report.   

2015;64(14):381-385.

137  Wadley, Jared. 2015. Most youth use e-cigarettes for novelty, flavors—not to quit smoking. University of Michigan News Service;  
[cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from http://ns.umich.edu/new/releases/23371-most-youth-use-e-cigarettes-for-novelty-flavors-not-to-quit-
smoking. 

138 CDC. Frequency of Tobacco Use Among Middle and High School Students — United States, 2014. Morbidity and Mortality Weekly   

Report. 2015;64(38):1061-1065.

139  Bunnell et al. Intentions to smoke cigarettes among never-smoking U.S. middle and high school electronic cigarette users, National 
Youth Tobacco Survey, 2011-2013. Nicotine & Tobacco Research. 2015;17(2):228-35.

140   Ambrose et al. Flavored Tobacco Product Use Among US Youth Aged 12-17 Years, 2013-2014. Journal of the American Medical   

Association. 2015;314(17):1871-1873.

141  Chapman, State Health Officer’s Report on E-Cigarettes: A Community Health Threat (2015).

142  Willis et al. Longitudinal study of e-cigarette use and onset of smoking among high schools students in Hawaii. Tobacco Control.   
2016;0:1–6.

143   Brian et al. Progression to Traditional Cigarette Smoking After Electronic Cigarette Use Among US Adolescents and Young Adults.   
JAMA Pediatrics. 2015;169(11):1018-1023.

144  Ji-Yeun Park, Dong-Chul Seo, and Hsien-Chang Lin.  E-Cigarette Use and Intention to Initiate or Quit Smoking Among US Youths.   
American Journal of Public Health. 2016;106(4):672-678.

224

Item 6.

36

Item 1.

128

Item 9.

72

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org

145 Cardenas et al. Use of electronic nicotine delivery systems and recent initiation of smoking among US youth. Int J Public Health.   
2016;61(2):237-41.

146  National Institute on Drug Abuse. 2015. Electronic Cigarettes (e-Cigarettes). Drug Facts; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from https://
www.drugabuse.gov/sites/default/files/drugfacts_e-cigs_9_15.pdf.

147 Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids. 2016. Electronic Cigarettes and Youth; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available from https://www.tobaccofreek-
ids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0382.pdf.

148  Chapman, State Health Officer’s Report on E-Cigarettes: A Community Health Threat (2015).

149  England et al. Nicotine and the Developing Human: A Neglected Element in the Electronic Cigarette Debate. Am J Prev Med.   
2015;49(2):286-293. 

150  Tierney et al. Flavour chemicals in electronic cigarette fluids. Tobacco Control, 2015:0:1-6.

151  Ibid.

152  Allen et al. Flavoring Chemicals in E-Cigarettes: Diacetyl, 2,3-Pentanedione, and Acetoin in a Sample of 51 Products, Including   
Fruit-, Candy-, and Cocktail-Flavored E-Cigarettes. Environmental Health Perspectives. 2015.

153  Farsalinos et al., Evaluation of electronic cigarette liquids and aerosol for the presence of selected inhalation toxins. Nicotine &   

Tobacco Research. 2015;17(2):168-174.

154  Goniewic et al. Cherry-flavoured electronic cigarettes expose users to the inhalation irritant, benzaldehyde. Thorax. 2016.

155  Mayer B. How much nicotine kills a human? Tracing back the generally accepted lethal dose to dubious self-experiments in the 
nineteenth century. Archives of Toxicology. 2014;88(1):5-7.

156  Chapman, State Health Officer’s Report on E-Cigarettes: A Community Health Threat (2015).

157  Grana et al. E-Cigarettes: A Scientific Review. Circulation. 2014;129(19):1972-86.

158  King et al. Awareness and Ever Use of Electronic Cigarettes Among U.S. Adults, 2010-2011. Nicotine & Tobacco Research.   
2013;15(9):1623-7.

159  Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids. Electronic cigarettes: An overview of key issues. January 19, 2016.

160  King et al, Nicotine & Tobacco Research (2014).

161  Schoenborn et al. Electronic Cigarette Use Among Adults: United States, 2014. National Center on Health Statistics (NCHS)  

Data Brief. 2015(217).

162  Bullen et al. Electronic cigarettes for smoking cessation: a randomised controlled trial. Lancet. 2013;382:1629-37.

163   Grana et al. Circulation (2014).

164  Lee et al. Tob Control (2011).

165 Henningfield et al. Does menthol enhance the addictiveness of cigarettes? An agenda for research. Nicotine & Tobacco Research.  
2003;5(1):9-11.

166  Giovino et al. (2004). Epidemiology of menthol cigarette use. Nicotine & Tobacco Research, 6 Suppl 1, S67-81.

167  Tobacco Products Scientific Advisory Committee (TPSAC). 2011. Menthol cigarettes and public health: Review of the scientific   
evidence and recommendations. FDA; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available at http://www.fda.gov/downloads/AdvisoryCommittees/  
CommitteesMeetingMaterials/TobaccoProductsScientificAdvisoryCommittee/UCM269697.pdf.

168  Sutton CD, Robinson RG. The marketing of menthol cigarettes in the United States: populations, messages, and channels. Nicotine & 

Tobacco Research. 2004;6(1):S83–91.

169  Lee et al. Tob Control (2011).

170  DHHS. 1998. Tobacco use among U.S. racial/ethnic minority groups—African Americans, American Indians and Alaska Natives, Asian 
Americans and Pacific Islanders, and Hispanics: A report of the surgeon general; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available at http://www.cdc.gov/
tobacco/data_statistics/sgr/1998/complete_report/pdfs/complete_report.pdf.

171  SAMHSA (Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration). 2009. Results from the 2008 National Survey on Drug Use 
and Health: Summary of National Findings. NSDUH Series. 2013;H-36(09-4434).

225

Item 6.

37

Item 1.

129

Item 9.

73

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org

172  SAMHSA. 2011. Recent Trends in Menthol Cigarette Use. The NSDUH Report; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available at http://www.samhsa.gov/
data/sites/default/files/WEB_SR_088/WEB_SR_088/WEB_SR_088.htm.

173 CDC. Tobacco Brand Preferences Fact Sheet; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available at http://www.cdc.gov/tobacco/data_statistics/fact_sheets/
tobacco_industry/brand_preference/.

174  Trefis Team. 2015. What does the Reynolds-lorillard deal mean for Altria? Forbes; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available at http://www.forbes.
com/sites/greatspeculations/2015/05/12/what-does-the-reynolds-lorillard-deal-mean-for-altria/#5f3a39556c54.

175  Kreslake et al. The menthol smoker: tobacco industry research on consumer sensory perception of menthol cigarettes and its role in 
smoking behavior. Nicotine Tobacco & Research. 2008;10:705–15.

176  Yerger et al. Menthol sensory qualities and smokng topography: a review of tobacco industry documents. Tobacco Control. 2011; 
20(2):ii37–ii43.

177  Kreslake et al. The menthol smoker: tobacco industry research on consumer sensory perception of menthol cigarettes and in smoking 
behavior. Nicotine Tob Res. 2008;10(4): 705-15.

178  Wayne et al. Assessing internal tobacco industry knowledge of the neurobiology of tobacco dependence. Nicotine Tob Res.   
2004;6(6): 927-940.

179  Hersey et al. Are menthol cigarettes a starter product for youth? Nicotine Tob Res. 2006;8(3):403-13.

180  Kreslake et al. Tobacco industry control of menthol in cigarettes and targeting of adolescents and young adults. Am J Public Health. 

2008;98(9):1685–1692.

181  Ahijevych K, Garrett BE. Menthol pharmacology and its potential impact on cigarette smoking behavior. Nicotine Tob Res.   
2004;6(1):S17–S28.

182  Collins CC, Moolchan ET. Shorter time to first cigarette of the day in menthol adolescent cigarette smokers. Addict Behav.   
2006;31(8):1460–1464.

183 Giovino et al. Differential trends in cigarette smoking in the USA: is menthol slowing progress? Tob Control. 2015;24:28-37.

184  Ibid.

185 TPSAC (2011).

186  Hickman et al., Menthol use among smokers with psychological distress: findings from the 2008 and 2009 National Survey on Drug 
Use and Health. Tob Control. 2014; 23(1): 7–13.

187  Cohn et al. Menthol tobacco use is correlated with mental health symptoms in a national sample of young adults: implications for 
future health risks and policy recommendations. Tobacco Induced Diseases. 2016;14:1.

188  Hersey et al. 2010. Menthol cigarettes, saliva cotinine, and nicotine dependence in adolescents. Report for the Food and Drug 

Administration Center for Tobacco Products; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available at http://www.fda.gov/downloads/AdvisoryCommittees/
CommitteesMeetingMaterials/TobaccoProductsScientificAdvisoryCommittee/UCM237553.pdf.

189 Hersey et al. Are menthol cigarettes a starter product for youth? Nicotine Tob Res. 2006;8(3), 403-413. 

190 Fagan et al. Nicotine dependence and quitting behaviors among menthol and non-menthol smokers with similar consumptive 
patterns. Addiction. 2010;105(1): 55-74.

191  TPSAC (2011).

192 Okuyemi et al. Relationship between menthol cigarettes and smoking cessation among African American light smokers. Addiction. 
2007;102(12).

193 Okuyemi et al. African-American menthol and nonmenthol smokers: differences in smoking and cessation experiences. Journal of the 

National Medical Association. 2004;96(9), 1208-1211.

194  Harris et al. Predictors of smoking cessation among African-Americans enrolled in a randomized controlled trial of bupropion. Prev 

Med. 2004;38(4), 498-502. 

195  Stahre et al. Racial/ethnic differences in menthol cigarette smoking, population quit rations and utilzation of evidence-based tobacco 
cessation treatments. Addiction. 2010;105(1):75-83.

196  TPSAC (2011).

226

Item 6.

38

Item 1.

130

Item 9.

74

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org

197  Ibid.

198  Ibid.

199  Kreslake et al. Tobacco Industry Knowledge of the Role of Menthol in Chemosensory Perception of Tobacco Smoke. Nicotine & 

Tobacco Research. 2010;12(2):S98-S101.

200 Garten et al., Continual smoking of mentholated cigarettes may mask the early warning symptoms of respiratory disease. Preventive 

Medicine. 2003;37(4):291-296.

201  Clark et al. Effect of Menthol Cigarettes on Biochemical Markers of Smoke Exposure Among Black and White Smokers. 1996;110(5): 
194-8.

202  Caraballo R. Racial and ethnic differences in serum cotinine levels of cigarette smokers: The National Health and Nutrition 
Examination Survey, 1998-1991. Journal of the American Medical Association. 1998;280(2):135-9.

203  TPSAC (2011).

204  Vozoris NT. Mentholated Cigarettes and Cardiovascular and Pulmonary Diseases: A Population-Based Study. Arch Intern Med. 

2012;172(7):590-593.

205  CDPH, Changing Landscape Countering New Threats (2015).

206 Ambrose et al (2015).

207  Villanti et al. Flavored Tobacco Product Use Among U.S. Young Adults. American Journal of Preventive Medicine. 2013;44(4):388-391.

208  Giovino et al. Differential trends in cigarette smoking in the USA: is menthol slowing progress? Tobacco Control, 2015;24(1):28-37.

209  SAMHSA. The NSDUH report: Use of menthol cigarettes.(2009).

210  King, et al (2013).

211   Lee YO, Glantz SA. Menthol: putting the pieces together. Tob Control. 2011;20:ii1-ii7 doi:10.1136/tc.2011.043604.

212 Kostygina, et al. Tobacco industry use of flavours to recruit new users of little cigars and cigarillos. Tobacco Control. 2014;25:66-74.

213   Hook et al. Flavored Tobacco Product Use Among US Youth Aged 12-17 Years, 2013-2014. Journal of the American Medical 
Association. 2015;314(17):1871-1873.

214  U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Preventing tobacco use among youth and young adults: a report of the Surgeon 
General. Atlanta, GA: US Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, National Center for 
Chronic Disease Prevention and Health Promotion, Office on Smoking and Health, 2012. 

215  FDA. Flavored Tobacco Products Fact Sheet (2011).

216  U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Preventing tobacco use among youth and young adults: a report of the Surgeon 
General. Atlanta, GA: US Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, National Center for 
Chronic Disease Prevention and Health Promotion, Office on Smoking and Health, 2012.

217  King et al. Flavored-Little-Cigar and Flavored-Cigarette Use Among U.S. Middle and High School Students. Journal of Adolescent 

Health. 2014;54(1):40-46.

218  Nonnemaker, J., et al., Initiation with menthol cigarettes and youth smoking uptake. Addiction, 2013. 108(1): p. 171-178.

219  El-Toukhy S, Choi K. A risk-continuum categorization of product use among U.S. youth tobacco users. Nicotine Tob Res. 2016.

220 DHHS. 2014. The Health Consequences of Smoking—50 Years of Progress: A Report of the Surgeon General; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. 
Available at http://www.surgeongeneral.gov/library/reports/50-years-of-progress/.

221  Carpenter et al. New Cigarette Brands with Flavors That Appeal to Youth: Tobacco Marketing Strategies. Health Affairs. 
2005;24(6):1601-1610.

222 Report from R.M. Manko Assoc. to Lorillard Tobacco Co. (Aug. 1978), available at http://tobaccodocuments.org/lor/85093450-3480. 
html?pattern=85093450-3480#images.

223 Brown et al. Candy flavorings in tobacco. New England Journal of Medicine. 2014;370(23):2250-2252.

224  Ibid.

225 Oregon Public Health Division. Flavored Tobacco: Sweet, Cheap, and Within Kids’ Reach.CD Summary. 2014;63(21).

227

Item 6.

39

Item 1.

131

Item 9.

75

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org

226 Campaign for Tobacco Free Kids (2016). 

227  Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids. 2015. Tobacco Company Marketing to African-Americans; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available at http://
www.tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0208.pdf.

228  Wackowski et al. Young Adults’ Risk Perceptions of Various Tobacco Products Relative to Cigarettes: Results From the NationalYoung  
Adult Health Survey. Health Education & Behavior. 2015.

229 TPSAC (2011).

230 Cullen et al. Seven-year patterns in US cigar use epidemiology among young adults aged 18–25 years: a focus on race/ethnicity and 
brand. American Journal of Public Health. 2011;101(10): 1955-1962.

231  Levanthal et al. Association of Electronic Cigarette Use With Initiation of Combustible Tobacco Product Smoking in Early Adolescence. 
Journal of the American Medical Association. 2015;314(7):700-707.

232  Willis et al. Longitudinal study of e-cigarette use and onset of smoking among high schools students in Hawaii. Tob Control. 2016.

233  TPSAC (2011).

234  DDHS (1998).

235  CDC. 2013. Deaths: Final Data for 2013, Table 13. National Vital Statistics Reports. Atlanta: Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, 
National Center for Health Statistics.

236 DDHS (1998).

237 Pearson et al. Modeling the future effects of a menthol ban on smoking prevalence and smoking-attributable deaths in the 
UnitedStates. American Journal of Public Health. 2011;101(7): p. 1236.

238  Caraballo RS, Asman K. Epidemiology of menthol cigarette use in the United States. Tob Induc Dis. 2011;9(1): S1.

239  Appleyard J, Messeri P, Haviland ML. Smoking among Asian American and Hawaiian/Pacific Islander youth: data from the 2000 
National Youth Tobacco Survey. Asian Am Pac Isl J Health. 2001;9(1):5–14.

240 Gundersen DA, Delnevo CD, Wackowski O. Exploring the relationship between race/ethnicity, menthol smoking, and cessation, in a 
nationally representative sample of adults. Prev Med. 2009;49:533–57.

241  Gardiner P, Clark PI. Menthol cigarettes: moving toward a broader definition of harm. Nicotine & Tobacco Research. 2010;12:85-93.

242 Trinidad et al. Menthol cigarettes and smoking cessation among racial/ethnic groups in the United States. Addiction. 2010; 105(0 1): 
84–94. 

243 Gandhi KK, Foulds J, Steinberg MB, Lu SE, Williams JM. Lower quit rates among African American and Latino menthol cigarette 
smokers at a tobacco treatment clinic. Int J Clin Pract. 2009;63:360–7.

244 U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Preventing tobacco use among youth and young adults: a report of the Surgeon 
General. Atlanta, GA: US Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, National Center for 
Chronic Disease Prevention and Health Promotion, Office on Smoking and Health, 2012.

245  White VM, White MM, Freeman K. Cigarette promotional offers: who takes advantage? Am J Prev Med 2006; 30225–231.231.

246  Gardiner PS. The African Americanization of menthol cigarette use in the United States. Nicotine Tob Res. 2004;6:S55–65.

247  Lee et al. A Systematic Review of Neighborhood Disparities in Point-of-Sale Tobacco Marketing. American Journal of Public Health. 

2015;105(9):e8-18.

248 Iglesias-Rios L, Parascandola, M. A Historical Review of R.J. Reynolds’ Strategies for Marketing.

249 Tobacco to Hispanics in the United States. American Journal of Public Health. 2013;103(5):e15-e27.

250 Altman DG, Schooler C, Basil MD. Alcohol and cigarette advertising on billboards. Health Education Research. 1991;6(4):487–490.

251 APPEAL for Communities. 2014 Tobacco and Health in Asian American, Native Hawaiian and Pacific Islander Communities in California; 
[cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available at http://www.appealforcommunities.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/06/4285_APPEALfactsheet_ENG_
final.pdf.

252  Muggli ME, Pollay RW, Lew R, Joseph AM. Targeting of Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders by the tobacco industry: results from the 
Minnesota Tobacco Document Depository. Tobacco Control. 2002;11:201-209.

228

Item 6.

40

Item 1.

132

Item 9.

76

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org

253  American Cancer Society. Tobacco and the GLBT Community. Available at http://www.glbthealth.org/documents/GLBTTobacco.pdf.

254 King, et al (2013).

255 Lee JG, Griffin GK, Melvin CL. Tobacco use among sexual minorities in the USA, 1987 to May 2007: a systematic review. Tob Control. 
2009;18(4):275–282.

256 National Youth Advocacy Coalition, Coming Out about Smoking: A Report from the National LGBTQ Young Adult Tobacco Project 
2010: Washington, DC.

257 Fallin, A. Menthol Cigarette Smoking among Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, and Transgender Adults. American Journal of Preventative 

Medicine. 2014;8(1),93-97.

258 King, et al (2013).

259 Hagopian, A. 2015. E-cigarettes: Evidence and policy options for Washington State. Seattle, WA: University of Washington, WA   
Department of Health Services.

260 Jordan JN, McElroy JA, Everett KD. Smoking Initiation, Tobacco Product Use, and Secondhand Smoke Exposure Among General 
Population and Sexual Minority Youth, Missouri, 2011–2012. Prev Chronic Dis. 2014;11:140037.

261 Rosario et al. Sexual orientation disparities in cancer related risk behaviors of tobacco, alcohol, sexual behaviors, and diet and 
physical activity: pooled youth risk behavior surveys. Am J Public Health. 2014;104(2):245–54.

262  CDC. Current Cigarette Smoking Among Adults—United States, 2005-2014. Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report. 2015;64(44):1233-
1240. 

263  TPSAC (2011).

264 Rosenbloom et al. A cross-sectional study on tobacco use and dependence among women: Does menthol matter? Tobacco Induced 

Diseases. 2012;10(1):19.

265  Ahijevych K, Parsley LA. Smoke constituent exposure and stage of change in black and white women cigarette smokers. Addict 

Behav. 1999;24:115–120. 

266  Carpenter CM, Wayne GF, Connolly GN. Designing cigarettes for women: new findings from the tobacco industry documents.   
Addiction. 2005;100(6):837-851. 

267  Tobacco Education and Research Oversight Committee. 2015. Changing Landscape Countering New Threats. Master Plan; [cited 2016 
Mar 28]. Available at http://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/tobacco/Documents/TEROC/Master%20Plan/MasterPlan_15-17.pdf.

268  California Department of Public Health, California Tobacco Control Program. About the tobacco control program. Sacramento, CA. 
2012. Accessed at: http://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/tobacco/Documents/Archived%20Files/Making%20a%20Difference%20012012.
pdf.

269 Lightwood J, Glantz S. The effect of the California tobacco control program on smoking prevalence, cigarette consumption, and 
healthcare costs: 1989-2008. PLoS One. 2013;8(2):e47145.

270 CDC. National Health Report Highlights; [cited 2016 Mar 28]. Available at: http://www.cdc.gov/healthreport/publications/compendium.
pdf.

271 FDA (2011).

229

Item 6.

41

Item 1.

133

Item 9.

77

Item 5.



California Medical Association • 800.786.4CMA • www.cmanet.org
230

Item 6.

42

Item 1.

134

Item 9.

78

Item 5.



246

Item 6.

58

Item 1.

150

Item 9.

79

Item 5.



247

Item 6.

59

Item 1.

151

Item 9.

80

Item 5.



248

Item 6.

60

Item 1.

152

Item 9.

81

Item 5.



249

Item 6.

61

Item 1.

153

Item 9.

82

Item 5.



250

Item 6.

62

Item 1.

154

Item 9.

83

Item 5.



251

Item 6.

63

Item 1.

155

Item 9.

84

Item 5.



252

Item 6.

64

Item 1.

156

Item 9.

85

Item 5.



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-0012

Adopted by the Sacramento City Council

April 16, 2019

An Ordinance Amending Various Sections of Chapter 5.138 of the 
Sacramento City Code, Relating to Tobacco Retailers

BE IT ENACTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SACRAMENTO:

SECTION 1. 

Section 5.138.010 of the Sacramento City Code is amended to read as follows:

5.138.010 Legislative findings.

A. State law prohibits the sale or furnishing of cigarettes, tobacco products and smoking 
paraphernalia to persons under 21 years of age except active duty military personnel 
who are 18 years of age or older (California Penal Code § 308).

B. State law requires that tobacco retailers check the identification of tobacco purchasers 
who reasonably appear to be under 21 years of age (California Business & Professions 
Code § 22956) and provides procedures for using persons under 21 years of age to 
conduct onsite compliance checks of tobacco retailers (California Business & 
Professions Code § 22952). 

C. State law requires that tobacco retailers post a conspicuous notice at each point of sale 
stating that selling tobacco products to anyone under 21 years of age is illegal 
(California Business & Professions Code § 22952, California Penal Code § 308).

D. State law prohibits the sale or display of cigarettes through a self-service display and 
prohibits public access to cigarettes without the assistance of a clerk (California 
Business & Professions Code § 22962).

E. State law prohibits the sale of “bidis” (a type of hand-rolled filterless cigarette) except at 
those businesses that prohibit the presence of minors (California Penal Code § 308.1).

F. State law prohibits the manufacture, distribution, or sale of cigarettes in packages of 
less than 20 and prohibits the manufacture, distribution, or sale of “roll-your-own” 
tobacco in packages containing less than six-tenths of an ounce of tobacco (California 
Penal Code § 308.3).

Ordinance 2019-0012 April 16, 2019 Page 1 of 11

253

Item 6.

65

Item 1.

157

Item 9.

86

Item 5.



G. State law prohibits public school students from smoking or using tobacco products while 
on campus, while attending school-sponsored activities, or while under the supervision 
or control of school district employees (California Education Code § 48901(a)). 

H. Sacramento City Code section 5.140.040 prohibits the sale or distribution of tobacco 
products from vending machines.

I. From 2013 to 2015, an estimated 15% of ninth and eleventh grade students in 
California reported using electronic smoking devices.

J. Over 9% of high school students in California reported buying their own electronic 
cigarette from a store.

K. In 2016, an estimated 82% of tobacco retailers in California sold flavored non-cigarette 
tobacco products, over 90% of tobacco retailers sold menthol cigarettes, and 80% 
tobacco retailers near schools sold flavored non-cigarette tobacco products.

L. Mentholated and flavored products have been shown to be “starter” products for youth 
who begin using tobacco and these products help establish tobacco habits that can lead 
to long-term addiction.

M. Between 2004 and 2014, use of non-menthol cigarettes decreased among all 
populations, but overall use of menthol cigarettes increased among young adults (18 to 
25 years of age) and adults (over 26 years of age). 

N. Unlike cigarette use that has steadily declined among youth, the prevalence of the use 
of non-cigarette tobacco products has remained statistically unchanged and, in some 
cases, increased among youth.

O. Flavored tobacco has significant public health implications for youth and people of color 
as a result of targeted industry marketing strategies and product manipulation.

P. The density and proximity of tobacco retailers influence smoking behaviors, including 
the number of cigarettes smoked per day.

Q. Adults who smoke have a harder time quitting when density of tobacco retailers is high. 

R. Policies to reduce tobacco retailer density have been shown to be effective and may 
reduce or eliminate inequities in the location and distribution of tobacco retailers.

S. Neither federal nor California state laws restrict the sale of menthol cigarettes or 
flavored non-cigarette tobacco products, electronic smoking devices, or the solutions 
used in these devices. 

Ordinance 2019-0012 April 16, 2019 Page 2 of 11

254

Item 6.

66

Item 1.

158

Item 9.

87

Item 5.



T. The city has a substantial interest in promoting compliance with federal, state, and local 
laws intended to regulate tobacco sales and use; in discouraging the illegal purchase of 
tobacco products by persons under 21 years of age; in promoting compliance with laws 
prohibiting sales of cigarettes and tobacco products to persons under 21 years of age;
and in protecting youth and underserved populations from the harms of tobacco use. 

U. California courts in Cohen v. Board of Supervisors (1985) 40 Cal.3d 277, Bravo Vending 
v. City of Rancho Mirage (1993) 16 Cal.App.4th 383, and Prime Gas v. City of 
Sacramento (2010) 184 Cal.App.4th 697, have affirmed the power of local jurisdictions 
to regulate business activity in order to discourage violations of law.

V. State law authorizes local tobacco retailer licensing laws to provide for the suspension 
or revocation of the local tobacco retailer license for any violation of a state tobacco 
control law (California Business & Professions Code § 22971.3).

W. A requirement for a tobacco retailer license will not unduly burden legitimate business 
activities of retailers who sell or distribute cigarettes or other tobacco products to adults. 
It will, however, allow the city to regulate the operation of lawful businesses to 
discourage violations of federal, state, and local tobacco-related laws.

SECTION 2.

Section 5.138.030 of the Sacramento City Code is amended to read as follows:

5.138.030 Definitions.

As used in this chapter, the following words and phrases shall have the meaning given them in 
this section, unless the context clearly requires otherwise:

“Arm’s length transaction” means a sale in good faith and for valuable consideration that 
reflects the fair market value in the open market between two informed and willing parties, 
neither under any compulsion to participate in the transaction. A sale between relatives, 
related companies or partners, or a sale for the primary purpose of avoiding the effect of the 
violations of this chapter that occurred at the location, is presumed not to be an “arm’s length 
transaction.” 

“Characterizing flavor” means a taste or aroma, other than the taste or aroma of tobacco, 
imparted either prior to or during consumption of a tobacco product or any byproduct produced 
by the tobacco product, including, but not limited to, tastes or aromas relating to menthol, mint, 
wintergreen, fruit, chocolate, vanilla, honey, candy, cocoa, dessert, alcohol beverage, herb, or 
spice.

“City manager” means the city manager of the city or his or her designee.

Ordinance 2019-0012 April 16, 2019 Page 3 of 11

255

Item 6.

67

Item 1.

159

Item 9.

88

Item 5.



“Flavored tobacco product” means any tobacco product that imparts a characterizing flavor.

“Itinerant tobacco retailing” means engaging in tobacco retailing at other than a fixed location.

“License” means a tobacco retailer license issued by the city pursuant to this chapter.

“Licensee” means any proprietor holding a license issued by the city pursuant to this chapter.

“Proprietor” means a person with an ownership or managerial interest in a business. An 
ownership interest shall be deemed to exist when a person has a 10% or greater interest in the 
stock, assets, or income of a business other than the sole interest of security for debt. A 
managerial interest shall be deemed to exist when a person has, or can have, sole or shared 
control over the day-to-day operations of a business.

“Tobacco product” means: 

1. A product containing, made, or derived from tobacco or nicotine that is intended for 
human consumption, whether smoked, heated, chewed, absorbed, dissolved, inhaled, 
snorted, sniffed, or ingested by any other means, including, but not limited to, cigarettes, 
cigars, little cigars, chewing tobacco, pipe tobacco, or snuff;

2. An electronic device that delivers nicotine or other vaporized liquids to the person 
inhaling from the device, including, but not limited to, an electronic cigarette, cigar, pipe, 
or hookah; and

3. Any component, part, or accessory of a tobacco product, whether or not sold 
separately.

4. “Tobacco product” does not include a product that has been approved by the United 
States Food and Drug Administration for sale as a tobacco cessation product or for 
other therapeutic purposes where the product is marketed and sold solely for such an 
approved purpose.

“Tobacco paraphernalia” means any item designed or marketed for the consumption, use, or 
preparation of a tobacco product. 

“Tobacco retailer” means any person who sells, offers for sale, exchanges, or offers to 
exchange for any form of consideration, tobacco, tobacco products, or tobacco paraphernalia 
without regard to the quantity sold, offered for sale, exchanged, or offered for exchange.

“Tobacco retailing” means selling, offering for sale, exchanging, or offering to exchange for any 
form of consideration, tobacco, tobacco products, or tobacco paraphernalia without regard to 
the quantity sold, offered for sale, exchanged, or offered for exchange.

Ordinance 2019-0012 April 16, 2019 Page 4 of 11

256

Item 6.

68

Item 1.

160

Item 9.

89

Item 5.



SECTION 3.

Section 5.138.040 of the Sacramento City Code is amended to read as follows:

5.138.040 Requirement for tobacco retailer license.

A. It shall be unlawful for any person to act as a tobacco retailer without a valid license for 
each location at which tobacco retailing is to occur. No license will be issued to 
authorize tobacco retailing at other than a fixed location. No license will be issued for 
itinerant tobacco retailing or tobacco retailing from vehicles.

B. No license shall issue, and no existing license shall be renewed, to authorize tobacco 
retailing within 1,000 feet of a tobacco retailer already licensed pursuant to this chapter 
as measured by a straight line from the nearest point of the property line of the parcel 
on which the applicant’s business is located to the nearest point of the property line of 
the parcel on which an existing licensee’s business is located.

C. Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to grant any person obtaining a license any 
status or right other than the right to act as a tobacco retailer at the location in the city 
identified on the face of the license, subject to compliance with all other applicable laws, 
regulations, and ordinances. Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to render 
inapplicable, supersede, or apply in lieu of any other provision of applicable law, 
including, without limitation, any condition or limitation on indoor smoking made 
applicable to business establishments by California Labor Code section 6404.5.

SECTION 4. 

Section 5.138.060 of the Sacramento City Code is amended to read as follows:

5.138.060 Issuance and renewal of license.

A. Upon the receipt of an application for a license and the applicable license fee, the city 
manager shall issue a license unless:

1. The application is incomplete or inaccurate;

2. The application seeks authorization for tobacco retailing at an address that 
appears on a license that is suspended, has been revoked, or is subject to 
suspension or revocation proceedings for violation of any of the provisions of this 
chapter; provided, however, this subparagraph shall not constitute a basis for 
denial of a license if either or both of the following apply:

a. The applicant provides the city with documentation demonstrating that the 
applicant has acquired or is acquiring the premises or business in an 
arm’s length transaction;

b. It has been more than five years since the most recent license for that 
location was revoked;

Ordinance 2019-0012 April 16, 2019 Page 5 of 11

257

Item 6.

69

Item 1.

161

Item 9.

90

Item 5.



3. The application seeks authorization for tobacco retailing that is unlawful pursuant 
to this code, or that is unlawful pursuant to any other local, state, or federal law; 
or

4. The city manager has information that the applicant or his or her agents or 
employees has violated any local, state or federal tobacco control law at the 
location for which the license or renewal of the license is sought within the 
preceding 30-day period.

B. A license is valid for one year and must be renewed not later than 30 days prior to the 
expiration of the license, but no earlier than 60 days prior to the expiration of the 
license. Unless revoked on an earlier date, all licenses expire one year after the date of 
issuance. A license may be renewed for additional one-year periods by submitting an 
application to the city manager and payment of the applicable license fee; provided, 
however, a license that is suspended, has been revoked, or is subject to suspension or 
revocation proceedings shall not be renewed. The application and license fee shall be 
submitted at least 30 days, but not more than 60 days, prior to the expiration of the 
current valid license. The applicant shall follow all of the procedures and provide all of 
the information required by section 5.138.050. The city manager shall process the 
application according to the provisions of this section.

C. Notwithstanding section 5.138.040B, a tobacco retailer operating lawfully on the date 
this subsection C is effective that would otherwise be eligible for a tobacco retailer 
license for the location for which a license is sought may receive or renew a license for 
that location so long as all of the following conditions are met:

1. The license is timely obtained and is renewed without lapse or permanent 
revocation (as opposed to temporary suspension);

2. The tobacco retailer is not closed for business or has not ceased tobacco 
retailing for more than 60 consecutive days;

3. The tobacco retailer does not substantially change the business premises or 
business operation for the purpose of increasing the sale or display of tobacco 
products; and

4. The tobacco retailer retains the right to operate under all other applicable laws.

D. When the city manager does not approve a license or renewal of a license, the city 
manager shall notify the applicant of the specific grounds for the denial in writing. The 
notice of denial shall be served personally or by mail not later than five calendar days 
after the date of the denial. If by mail, the notice shall be placed in a sealed envelope, 
with postage paid, addressed to the applicant at the address as it appears on the 
application. The giving of notice shall be deemed complete at the time of deposit of the 
notice in the United States mail without extension of time for any reason. In lieu of 
mailing, the notice may be served personally by delivering to the person to be served 
and service shall be deemed complete at the time of such delivery. Personal service to 
a corporation may be made by delivery of the notice to any person designated in 
the California Code of Civil Procedure to be served for the corporation with summons 
and complaint in a civil action.

Ordinance 2019-0012 April 16, 2019 Page 6 of 11

258

Item 6.

70

Item 1.

162

Item 9.

91

Item 5.



SECTION 5. 

Section 5.138.100 of the Sacramento City Code is amended to read as follows:

5.138.100 License violation.

A. It is a violation of a license for a licensee or his or her agents or employees to sell or 
offer for sale any flavored tobacco product. There is a rebuttable presumption that a 
tobacco product is a flavored tobacco product if a manufacturer or its agents or 
employees has made a public statement or claim that the tobacco product has or 
produces a characterizing flavor, including, but not limited to, text, color, or images on 
the product’s labeling or packaging that are used to expressly or impliedly communicate 
that a tobacco product has a characterizing flavor.

B. It is a violation of a license for a licensee or his or her agents or employees to violate 
any local, state, or federal tobacco-related law.

SECTION 6. 

Section 5.138.110 of the Sacramento City Code is amended to read as follows:

5.138.110 Suspension or revocation of license.

A. In addition to any other remedy authorized by law, a license shall be suspended or 
revoked as provided in this section, if the city manager finds that the licensee or his or
her agents or employees has or have violated any of the provisions of this chapter; 
provided, however, violations by a licensee at one location may not be accumulated 
against other locations of that same licensee, nor may violations accumulated against a 
prior licensee at a licensed location be accumulated against a new licensee at the same 
licensed location.

1. Upon a finding by the city manager of a first license violation within any five-year 
period, the license shall be suspended for 30 days.

2. Upon a finding by the city manager of a second license violation within any five-
year period, the license shall be suspended for 90 days.

3. Upon a finding by the city manager of a third license violation within any five-year 
period, the license shall be revoked.

B. Notwithstanding section 5.138.110A, a license shall be revoked if the city manager finds 
that either one or both of the following conditions exist:

1. One or more of the bases for denial of a license under section 5.138.060A
existed at the time application was made or at any time before the license issued.

2. The information contained in the license application, including supplemental 
information, if any, is found to be false in any material respect.

Ordinance 2019-0012 April 16, 2019 Page 7 of 11

259

Item 6.

71

Item 1.

163

Item 9.

92

Item 5.



C. In the event the city manager suspends or revokes a license, written notice of the 
suspension or revocation shall be served upon the licensee within five days of the 
suspension or revocation in the manner prescribed in section 5.138.060D. The notice 
shall contain:

1. A brief statement of the specific grounds for such suspension or revocation;

2. A statement that the licensee may appeal the suspension or revocation by 
submitting an appeal, in writing, in accordance with the provisions of 
section 5.138.120, to the city manager, within 10 calendar days of the date of 
service of the notice; and

3. A statement that the failure to appeal the notice of suspension or revocation will 
constitute a waiver of all right to an administrative appeal hearing, and the 
suspension or revocation will be final.

D. A licensee for whom a license suspension is in effect, or whose license has been 
revoked, must cease all tobacco retailing and remove all tobacco products and tobacco 
paraphernalia from public view at the address that appears on the suspended or 
revoked license.

SECTION 7. 

Section 5.138.120 of the Sacramento City Code is amended to read as follows:

5.138.120 Denial, suspension and revocation—Appeals.

A. Any applicant or licensee aggrieved by the decision of the city manager in denying, 
suspending, or revoking a license, may appeal the decision by submitting a written 
appeal to the city manager within 10 calendar days from the date of service of the notice 
of denial, suspension, or revocation. The appeal must be accompanied by an appeal 
fee set by resolution of the city council. The written appeal shall contain:

1. A brief statement in ordinary and concise language of the specific action 
protested, together with any material facts claimed to support the contentions of 
the appellant;

2. A brief statement in ordinary and concise language of the relief sought, and the 
reasons why it is claimed the protested action should be reversed or otherwise 
set aside;

3. The signatures of all parties named as appellants and their official mailing 
addresses; and

4. The verification (by declaration under penalty of perjury) of at least one appellant 
as to the truth of the matters stated in the appeal.

B. The appeal hearing shall be conducted by a hearing examiner appointed pursuant to 
section 8.04.070. 

Ordinance 2019-0012 April 16, 2019 Page 8 of 11

260

Item 6.

72

Item 1.

164

Item 9.

93

Item 5.



C. Upon receipt of any appeal filed pursuant to this section, the city manager shall transmit 
the appeal to the secretary of the hearing examiner who shall calendar it for hearing as 
follows:

1. If the appeal is received by the city manager not later than 15 days prior to the 
next regular appeal hearing, it shall be calendared for hearing at said meeting.

2. If the appeal is received by the city manager on a date less than 15 days prior to 
the next appeal hearing, it shall be calendared for the next subsequent appeal 
hearing.

D. Written notice of the time and place of the hearing shall be given at least 10 calendar 
days prior to the date of the hearing to each appellant by the secretary of the hearing 
examiner either by causing a copy of such notice to be delivered to the appellant 
personally or by mailing a copy thereof, postage prepaid, addressed to the appellant at 
the address shown on the appeal.

E. Failure of any person to file a timely appeal in accordance with the provisions of this 
section shall constitute an irrevocable waiver of the right to an administrative hearing 
and a final adjudication of the notice and order, or any portion of the notice and order. 

F. Only those matters or issues specifically raised by the appellant in the appeal notice 
shall be considered in the hearing of the appeal.

G. Any suspension or revocation of a license shall be stayed during the pendency of an 
appeal which is properly and timely filed pursuant to this section.

SECTION 8. 

Section 5.138.140 of the Sacramento City Code is amended to read as follows:

5.138.140 Conduct of hearing.

A. Hearings need not be conducted according to the technical rules relating to evidence 
and witnesses. California Government Code section 11513, subdivisions (a), (b) and 
(c), shall apply to hearings under this chapter.

B. Oral evidence shall be taken only upon oath or affirmation.

C. Irrelevant and unduly repetitious evidence shall be excluded.

D. Each party shall have these rights, among others:

1. To call and examine witnesses on any matter relevant to the issues of the 
hearing;

2. To introduce documentary and physical evidence;

Ordinance 2019-0012 April 16, 2019 Page 9 of 11

261

Item 6.

73

Item 1.

165

Item 9.

94

Item 5.



3. To cross-examine opposing witnesses on any matter relevant to the issues of the 
hearing;

4. To impeach any witness regardless of which party first called the witness to 
testify;

5. To rebut the evidence presented against the party; and 

6. To represent himself, herself, or itself or to be represented by anyone of his, her, 
or its choice who is lawfully permitted to do so.

E. In reaching a decision, official notice may be taken, either before or after submission of 
the case for decision, of any fact that may be judicially noticed by the courts of this state 
or that may appear in any of the official records of the city or any of its departments.

SECTION 9. 

Section 5.138.150 of the Sacramento City Code is amended to read as follows:

5.138.150 Form and contents of decision—Finality of decision.

A. If it is shown, by a preponderance of the evidence, that one or more bases exist to 
deny, suspend, or revoke the license, the hearing examiner shall affirm the city 
manager’s decision to deny, suspend, or revoke the license. The decision of the hearing 
examiner shall be in writing and shall contain findings of fact and a determination of the 
issues presented.

B. The decision shall inform the appellant that the decision is a final decision and that the 
time for judicial review is governed by California Code of Civil Procedure section 
1094.6. Copies of the decision shall be delivered to the parties personally or sent by 
certified mail to the address shown on the appeal. The decision shall be final when 
signed by the hearing examiner and served as provided in this section.

SECTION 10. 

Section 5.138.160 of the Sacramento City Code is amended to read as follows:

5.138.160 Enforcement.

A. In addition to any other remedy, any person violating any provision of this chapter shall 
be guilty of a misdemeanor for each day such violation continues.

B. Any violation of this chapter may be remedied by a civil action brought by the city 
attorney. The city may recover reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of suit in any civil 
action brought by the city attorney to remedy any violation of this chapter.

Ordinance 2019-0012 April 16, 2019 Page 10 of 11

262

Item 6.

74

Item 1.

166

Item 9.

95

Item 5.



C. Any person violating the provisions of this chapter shall also be liable for civil penalties
of not less $250 or more than $25,000 for each day the violation continues.

D. Violations of this chapter are hereby declared to be public nuisances subject to
abatement by the city.

E. In addition to criminal sanctions, civil penalties as provided in this section, and other
remedies set forth in this chapter, administrative penalties may be imposed pursuant to
chapter 1.28 against any person violating any provision of this chapter. Imposition,
enforcement, collection and administrative review of administrative penalties imposed
shall be conducted pursuant to chapter 1.28.

SECTION 11.

The effective date of this ordinance is January 1, 2020. 

Adopted by the City of Sacramento City Council on April 16, 2019, by the following vote:

Ayes: Members Ashby, Guerra, Hansen, Harris, Jennings, Schenirer and 

Mayor Steinberg 

Noes: Member Carr

Abstain: None

Absent: Members Warren

Attest:

_____________________________________

Mindy Cuppy, City Clerk 

The presence of an electronic signature certifies that the foregoing is a true and correct copy as approved by the 
Sacramento City Council.

Passed for Publication: March 12, 2019
Published: March 15, 2019
Effective: January 1, 2020

Ordinance 2019-0012 April 16, 2019 Page 11 of 11

263

Item 6.

75

Item 1.

167

Item 9.

96

Item 5.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

www.changelabsolutions.org/tobaccoquestions 

 

 

 
 
 
Updated June 2017 
(Originally published January 2014) 
 

 

 

 

 

Developed by ChangeLab Solutions 
 

  
This material was made possible by funds received from Grant Number  
14-10214 with the California Department of Public Health, California Tobacco 
Control Program. 

  
© 2017 California Department of Public Health. This material may not be 
reproduced or disseminated without prior written permission from the California 
Department of Public Health. 
 

  
 
 
 

ChangeLab Solutions is a nonprofit organization that provides legal information on matters relating 

to public health. The legal information provided in this document does not constitute legal advice or 

legal representation. For legal advice, readers should consult a lawyer in their state. 

  

 
Model California Ordinance  
Restricting the Sale of    
Menthol Cigarettes and Other 
Flavored Tobacco Products  
 

  

264

Item 6.

76

Item 1.

168

Item 9.

97

Item 5.



 

 

 

 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Table of Contents         www.changelabsolutions.org    2 

Table of Contents 
 

1. Introduction and Report ......................................................... 3 
Background ................................................................................... 3 
Menthol Cigarettes ......................................................................... 4 
Other Flavored Tobacco Products ................................................. 5 
Considerations When Regulating Flavored Tobacco Products ...... 7 
Legal Issues................................................................................... 8 

i. Federal Preemption ............................................................... 8 
ii. First Amendment.................................................................... 9 

Conclusion ................................................................................... 10 
 

2. Model Ordinance Provisions ............................................... 13 
 

3. Appendix A: Findings. ......................................................... 22 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

265

Item 6.

77

Item 1.

169

Item 9.

98

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Introduction                                     www.changelabsolutions.org                       3 

Introduction and Report 
This Model California Ordinance Restricting the Sale of Menthol Cigarettes and Other Flavored Tobacco 

Products (Model Ordinance) is one potential policy intervention to reduce the consumption of tobacco 

products. It is based on ChangeLab Solutions’ legal research and analysis, as well as the research and 

evidence base regarding consumption of tobacco products and the rising popularity of flavored tobacco 

products. The Model Ordinance should complement other policy and programmatic efforts to reduce tobacco 

use. 

 

This version of the Model Ordinance (revised in June 2017) includes the following changes from the 

previous version: (1) It prohibits the sale of flavored cigarettes (including menthol cigarettes), and (2) it 

provides an optional provision to grandfather certain businesses, which exempts those businesses from 

complying with the flavored tobacco prohibition for a limited period of time.  

 

The Introduction and Report section summarizes our nonpartisan analysis of the health, equity, and 

policy issues related to the use and sale of menthol cigarettes and other flavored tobacco products, and it 

outlines why it is important to restrict the sale of such products. It should be distributed broadly to the 

public and local groups to help people understand the relevant data and the purpose of developing a 

policy restricting the sale of menthol cigarettes and other flavored tobacco products.  

 

This Model Ordinance, including this Introduction and Report, is based on our independent and 

objective analysis of the relevant law, evidence, and available data. It allows readers to draw their own 

conclusions about the merits of this Model Ordinance. 

 

The Model Ordinance offers a variety of options. In some instances, blanks (e.g., [ ____ ] ) prompt you 

to customize the language to fit your community’s needs. In other cases, the ordinance offers you a 

choice of options (e.g., [ choice one / choice two ] ). Some of the options are followed by a comment 

that describes the legal provisions in more detail. Some degree of customization is always necessary to 

make sure that the ordinance is consistent with a community’s existing laws. Your city attorney or 

county counsel will likely be the best person to check this for you. 

Background 
In 2009, the federal Family Smoking Prevention and Tobacco Control Act (Tobacco Control Act) 

banned the manufacture of flavored cigarettes. However, the law contains an exception for menthol 

cigarettes and does not restrict flavored non-cigarette tobacco products, such as smokeless tobacco. 

Moreover, California doesn’t have any state laws that regulate the sale of menthol cigarettes or flavored 

non-cigarette tobacco products.  

 

 

266

Item 6.

78

Item 1.

170

Item 9.

99

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Introduction                                     www.changelabsolutions.org                       4 

Flavored tobacco products are considered “starter” products that help establish long-term tobacco use, 

and they are particularly appealing to youth.1 These products also pose significant barriers to achieving 

health equity. Thanks to tobacco companies’ marketing efforts, youth, communities of color, low-

income populations, and members of LGBTQ communities are significantly more likely to use flavored 

tobacco products, particularly menthol cigarettes, and disproportionately bear the burden of tobacco-

related harm. 

 

This Model Ordinance restricts the sale of all flavored tobacco products, including the following: 

(1) Flavored cigarettes already prohibited by the Tobacco Control Act;  

(2) Menthol cigarettes;  

(3) Flavored other tobacco products (OTPs), such as cigars, little cigars, cigarillos, smokeless 

tobacco, shisha (hookah tobacco), electronic smoking devices (ESDs), and the solutions used in 

ESDs; and 

(4) Flavored components, parts, and accessories, such as flavored rolling papers, filters, and blunt 

wraps. 

Menthol Cigarettes 
For decades, tobacco companies have added menthol—a crisp, minty flavoring—to their products. By 

adding menthol to cigarettes, tobacco companies mask the natural harshness and taste of tobacco. The 

minty flavor makes tobacco products more mild, and therefore easier to use and more appealing to youth 

and new users.2,3  

 

Tobacco companies have manipulated the amount of menthol in cigarettes to encourage many people—

particularly youth and populations targeted by the tobacco industry—to start and continue using 

tobacco.4,1 Smoking menthol cigarettes is associated with increased use of cigars and smokeless tobacco 

products,5 and it reduces the likelihood of successfully quitting smoking.3,6 Indeed, despite decreases in 

overall cigarette use in recent years, the proportion of cigarette smokers who use menthol cigarettes 

continues to rise.5 In 2014, more youth smokers used menthol cigarettes than non-mentholated 

cigarettes.5 Moreover, a 2017 study reported an increase in menthol cigarette use among youth cigarette 

smokers following the 2009 federal ban on flavored non-menthol cigarettes.7 

 

Scientific reviews by the Tobacco Products Scientific Advisory Committee (TPSAC) and the US Food 

and Drug Administration (FDA) found that the marketing of menthol cigarettes likely increases the 

prevalence of smoking among the entire US population, and especially among youth, African 

Americans,3 and possibly Hispanic and Latino populations.6 Indeed, these groups bear the burden of 

menthol cigarette use: 84.6% of non-Hispanic Black smokers in the US reported smoking menthol 

cigarettes in the last month, in addition to 46.9% of Hispanic smokers, 38.1% of non-Hispanic 

multiracial smokers, 38% of non-Hispanic Asian smokers, and 46.7% of other smokers with non-

Hispanic, non-Caucasian racial/ethnic backgrounds.5 Members of LGBTQ communities and young 

267

Item 6.

79

Item 1.

171

Item 9.

100

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Introduction                                     www.changelabsolutions.org                       5 

adults with mental health conditions also struggle with disproportionately high rates of menthol cigarette 

use.8,9 

 

 

 

Tobacco companies have helped create and exacerbate these disparities. The tobacco industry has a 

well-documented history of developing and marketing menthol tobacco products to communities of 

color and youth.10,11 One analysis of cigarette advertising, promotions, and pack prices at stores near 

California high schools found that “for each 10 percentage point increase in the proportion of Black 

students, the proportion of menthol advertising increased by 5.9% … the odds of a Newport [a leading 

brand of menthol cigarettes] promotion were 50% higher … and the cost of Newport was 12 cents 

lower.”12 There was no such association found for non-mentholated cigarettes.12 Similarly, a New York 

study found that promotions that reduce the price of menthol cigarettes are disproportionately targeted to 

youth.13 

Other Flavored Tobacco Products 
In addition to selling menthol cigarettes, tobacco companies have developed flavored OTPs that have 

the same youth-friendly characteristics as the banned flavored cigarettes. For example, many of the cigar 

brands that are popular among teens are available in flavors such as apple, chocolate, grape, and peach.14 

In fact, cigars follow only ESDs and cigarettes as the third most common form of tobacco used by 

youth.15 Smokeless tobacco products, including chewing tobacco, snuff, and snus, come in flavors such 

as mint, wintergreen, berry, cherry, and apple16 to mask the harsh taste of tobacco.14,17 Hookah tobacco 

(shisha) is available in an array of fruit, herbal, and alcoholic beverage flavors, and there is a strong—

and false—perception among young people that smoking hookah is safer than smoking cigarettes.18 

Nicotine solutions, also known as e-liquids and which are consumed via ESDs such as electronic 

84.6%

46.9% 46.7%
38.1% 38.0%

28.9%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Non-Hispanic
Black

Hispanic Non-Hispanic
Other

Non-Hispanic
Multiracial

Non-Hispanic
Asian

Non-Hispanic
Caucasian

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f p
as

t 3
0-

da
y 

sm
ok

er
s 

us
in

g 
m

en
th

ol
 c

ig
ar

et
te

s

Race/Ethnicity

Use of Menthol Cigarettes Among Past 30-Day Smokers in the USA, 2012-20145

268

Item 6.

80

Item 1.

172

Item 9.

101

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Introduction                                     www.changelabsolutions.org                       6 

cigarettes, are sold in dozens of flavors that are attractive to youth, such as cotton candy and bubble 

gum.19  

 

Consumption of flavored tobacco products has grown in recent years. From 1995 to 2008, sales of little 

cigars increased by 316%,20 and in 2014, “flavored cigars accounted for more than half of all cigar sales 

(53.3%).”21 A 2009-2010 survey found that 42.9% of adult cigar smokers used flavored cigars,2 and a 

2014 survey found that 66.4% of people who smoked little cigars or cigarillos used flavored products.22 

In 2014, nearly two-thirds of US middle school and high school cigar smokers reported using flavored 

cigars, and more than 1.5 million students reported using a flavored ESD within the past 30 days.23 

Moreover, a 2013-2014 survey found higher rates of flavored cigar use among vulnerable populations, 

including “cigar smokers with lower income, with less education and those who were lesbian, gay or 

bisexual.”24 

 

Like menthol, flavorings such as chocolate or apple help mask the naturally harsh taste of tobacco, 

making it easier for young people to start and continue using tobacco products.2 In fact, a 2013-2014 

survey found that “80.8 percent of 12-17 year olds who had ever used a tobacco product initiated 

tobacco use with a flavored product.”25,26 Policy interventions that target youth tobacco use are 

particularly critical because most individuals start using tobacco as minors or young adults.27 In 

California, 64% of smokers start smoking by age 18, and 96% start smoking by age 26.28 Compared 

with individuals who start smoking later in life, individuals who start smoking at a young age are at 

increased risk for severe addiction to nicotine.14 

 

OTPs pose a threat to public health for several reasons. One major concern is that many users, especially 

young people, assume that OTPs do not pose significant health risks. Research shows that cigar smokers 

have misconceptions about the safety of cigars; for example, they often believe cigars are less harmful 

and less addictive than cigarettes.20 Studies have found that young people believe smoking hookah is 

safer than smoking cigarettes, and incorrectly believe that hookah smoke is less toxic than cigarette 

smoke.29,30 Moreover, 58.8% of 12th-grade students report that they don’t believe regular use of 

smokeless tobacco presents a great risk of harm.27 The misperception among many young people that 

OTPs do not present significant health risks, coupled with the fact that many OTPs are flavored, may 

contribute to increased use of these products among young people.  

 

Despite these misconceptions, the FDA has stated that “[a]ll tobacco products, including flavored 

tobacco products, are as addictive and carry the same health risks as regular tobacco products.”31 

Regular cigar smoking is associated with increased risk for lung, larynx, oral cavity, and esophagus 

cancers.32 Hookah use has been associated with lung cancer, respiratory illness, and periodontal 

disease.33 Smokeless tobacco contains at least 28 carcinogens, and there is strong evidence that users 

have an increased risk of developing oral cancers.14 The Surgeon General has reported that e-cigarettes 

“contain harmful ingredients that are dangerous to youth” and that e-cigarette aerosol “can contain 

269

Item 6.

81

Item 1.

173

Item 9.

102

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Introduction                                     www.changelabsolutions.org                       7 

harmful and potentially harmful constituents.”34 Moreover, multiple studies have confirmed that e-

cigarette vapor contains toxic substances.35–37 To reduce the health impacts of menthol cigarette use and 

OTP use, communities can adopt policy interventions to regulate tobacco industry efforts that encourage 

youth, low-income populations, and communities of color to use mentholated and flavored products. 

Considerations When Regulating Flavored Tobacco Products 
A combination of strategies can protect youth from using tobacco and reduce industry-driven health 

inequities. Many communities are exploring programmatic and policy approaches to address the chronic 

health conditions associated with tobacco use. Some viable approaches are requiring local tobacco 

retailer licenses, limiting tobacco retailer density, setting minimum package sizes, and restricting the 

distribution of free or low-cost tobacco products. ChangeLab Solutions has developed this Model 

Ordinance as one tool to help communities reduce tobacco use, particularly among young people and 

vulnerable populations.  

 

Policies that regulate the sale of flavored tobacco products can raise tensions between the government’s 

duty to protect individual liberty and its duty to promote and protect public health and well-being. 

Tobacco industry representatives and retailer associations have argued that there are already laws that 

prohibit the sale of tobacco products to youth. However, despite youth access laws, young people 

continue to buy and use tobacco products. Indeed, overall youth tobacco use didn’t change significantly 

between 2011 and 2015, with a 2015 survey reporting that nearly one-third (31.4%) of high school 

students used cigarettes, cigars, smokeless tobacco, or ESDs in the 30 days preceding the survey.15 In 

particular, young people are using a variety of OTPs: 

 

 In 2015, 10.3% of high school students reported using cigars, cigarillos, or little cigars.15  

 Youth hookah use increased more than 75% from 2011 to 2015, and youth ESD use increased 

more than tenfold during the same period.38  

 The percentage of high school students using smokeless tobacco products increased from 6.4% in 

201239 to 7.3% in 2015.15  

 A significant percentage of youth cigarette smokers concurrently use OTPs, increasing their risk 

for addiction and other health problems.14  

 In a 2013-2014 survey, more than two-thirds of youth who used a non-cigarette tobacco product 

within the past 30 days reported doing so “because they come in flavors I like.”26 

 

Due to industry practices, individuals from communities of color, particularly young adults of color, are 

also more likely to use OTPs, such as little cigars.40 In addition, a study found that daily menthol 

cigarette users are significantly more likely than occasional, non-menthol smokers to use flavored little 

cigars and cigarillos.41 African Americans and other communities of color are burdened with 

270

Item 6.

82

Item 1.

174

Item 9.

103

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Introduction                                     www.changelabsolutions.org                       8 

disproportionately high rates of menthol cigarette use; this data, coupled with the findings from the 

study mentioned above, suggest that these populations are also more likely to use flavored little cigars 

and cigarillos. Many of these disparities are likely the result of tobacco companies’ efforts to make these 

products more available, more heavily advertised, and cheaper in African American communities.42 

Accordingly, interventions such as a flavored tobacco restriction, may be necessary to regulate the 

marketing and sale of flavored tobacco products, including menthol cigarettes, to youth and in 

communities of color.  

 

Tobacco industry representatives have asserted that laws restricting the sale of flavored tobacco products 

overreach because they strip adults of the ability to buy lawful flavored products that they may prefer to 

non-flavored products. Additionally, retailer associations have asserted that laws restricting flavored 

tobacco products will result in lost revenues for local businesses. Local policymakers have discretion to 

assess whether the public health risks presented by flavored tobacco products are significant enough that 

the sale of these products should be regulated, even if such a regulation restricts the ability of adults to 

purchase these products or results in reduced tobacco sales for local retailers.  

 

Congress grappled with this issue in enacting the Tobacco Control Act. They ultimately determined that 

the government couldn’t meet the Act’s goals of reducing the use of, dependence on, and social costs 

associated with tobacco products by allowing unrestrained access to all tobacco products. For that 

reason, Congress banned flavored cigarettes except menthol-flavored cigarettes (eg, fruit- and candy-

flavored cigarettes), finding that a ban was appropriate given the strong youth appeal of these products.43  

 

Similarly, the US Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit found that New York City’s flavored tobacco 

law advanced the Tobacco Control Act’s goals of reducing the use of tobacco products and the harms 

resulting from such use.44 Restricting the sale of flavored tobacco products is also consistent with the 

California legislature’s decision in 2001 to ban the sale of bidis—hand-rolled filterless cigarettes that 

were sold in a variety of candy flavors. Although tobacco industry groups argued that the California bill 

overreached by prohibiting bidi sales to adults, state lawmakers decided to ban bidis based on the need 

to “reduce youth access to a particularly harmful and addictive form of tobacco.”45 

Legal Issues  
Below we discuss some of the key legal issues associated with this Model Ordinance.  

Federal Preemption 
Preemption is a legal doctrine that provides that a higher level of government may limit, or even 

eliminate, the power of a lower level of government to regulate a certain issue. Under the US 

Constitution’s “Supremacy Clause,” federal law governs over state or local law. So, if a state or local 

law conflicts with a federal law, the federal law trumps the lower-level law.  

 

271

Item 6.

83

Item 1.

175

Item 9.

104

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Introduction                                     www.changelabsolutions.org                       9 

Tobacco industry groups and manufacturers have argued that the Tobacco Control Act, which prohibits 

the manufacture of flavored cigarettes (except menthol), preempts local regulation of flavored tobacco 

products. However, US cities have implemented ordinances restricting the sale of flavored tobacco 

products, including menthol cigarettes and/or flavored OTPs, and these ordinances have survived 

preemption challenges.  

 

In 2009, New York City passed an ordinance restricting the sale of flavored OTPs. A smokeless tobacco 

manufacturer filed a lawsuit arguing that the Tobacco Control Act preempts localities from passing their 

own laws regulating flavored tobacco products. An appellate court upheld the ordinance, finding that 

federal law did not preempt New York City’s ordinance because the ordinance regulated the sale of 

tobacco products, not the manufacture of those products.44  

 

In January 2012, Providence, RI, passed a similar law restricting the sale of flavored OTPs. Tobacco 

industry groups and manufacturers filed a lawsuit claiming that the Tobacco Control Act preempted the 

ordinance. A federal district court upheld the Providence law. The court found that the Tobacco Control 

Act does not preempt local laws related to the sale of tobacco products, such as Providence’s ordinance 

restricting the sale of flavored OTPs. On September 30, 2013, the US Court of Appeals for the First 

Circuit affirmed the district court’s decision.46  

 

In December 2013, Chicago passed a law prohibiting the sale of all flavored tobacco products, including 

menthol cigarettes, within 500 feet of any school. A trade group sued Chicago over the law, claiming 

that the Tobacco Control Act preempted the ordinance. On June 29, 2015, a US District Court in Illinois 

upheld the law, finding that the Tobacco Control Act does not preempt local laws that restrict the sale of 

menthol cigarettes and flavored OTPs.47 

 

Taken together, the decisions from Chicago, New York City, and Providence reaffirm the authority of 

state and local governments to enact laws regulating the sale of tobacco products and to adopt 

restrictions that are more stringent than federal law.  

First Amendment 
The First Amendment of the US Constitution protects the right to freedom of speech. Courts have 

determined that advertising and marketing are forms of expressive conduct—they communicate 

information about products to consumers. Thus, advertising, or commercial speech, is considered a type 

of speech under the First Amendment. For this reason, advertising has some degree of protection against 

government regulation; laws that attempt to restrict marketing, promotional content, or similar types of 

communication may not be permissible. 

 

Under this Model Ordinance, a tobacco product is presumed to be flavored and cannot be sold if the text 

or images on its labeling or packaging indicate that the product imparts a flavor, taste, or aroma other 

272

Item 6.

84

Item 1.

176

Item 9.

105

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Introduction                                     www.changelabsolutions.org                       10 

than that of tobacco. In Providence, tobacco industry groups argued that a similar provision in the city’s 

ordinance was a marketing restriction that implicated the First Amendment. The Providence ordinance 

provides that a public statement made by a manufacturer that a tobacco product has a characterizing 

flavor constitutes presumptive evidence that the product is a flavored tobacco product. A federal court 

rejected the industry’s First Amendment argument, finding that the use of a public statement made by a 

manufacturer to determine whether a product is flavored does not amount to a prohibition against 

speech.  

 

The court noted that the sale of a flavored tobacco product in Providence is illegal, regardless of whether 

the product is specifically described as a flavored tobacco product. In other words, the court found that 

manufacturers are still free to describe their products as having a characterizing flavor, even though their 

flavored tobacco products cannot be sold in Providence. Thus, challenges to flavored tobacco 

regulations on First Amendment grounds have not been successful thus far. 

Conclusion 
Research has shown that cigarette and OTP use have serious health consequences. Young people are 

much more likely than adults to use menthol-, candy-, and fruit-flavored tobacco products, including 

cigarettes and OTPs. These products are considered “starter” products that help establish long-term 

tobacco use. Moreover, flavored tobacco products, particularly menthol cigarettes, pose significant 

barriers to achieving health equity. Thanks to tobacco companies’ marketing efforts, communities of 

color, low-income populations, and LGBTQ communities are significantly more likely to use menthol 

cigarettes and disproportionately bear the burden of tobacco-related harm. Policy interventions designed 

to regulate products that get people hooked on tobacco, such as restrictions on the sale of flavored 

tobacco products, can directly address the public health and equity consequences associated with 

tobacco use.  
  

273

Item 6.

85

Item 1.

177

Item 9.

106

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Introduction                                     www.changelabsolutions.org                       11 

References 
1.  U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Office of Disease Prevention and Health Promotion. Preventing Tobacco Use 

Among Youth and Young Adults A Report of the Surgeon General.; 2012. www.surgeongeneral.gov/library/reports/preventing-

youth-tobacco-use/. 

2.  King BA, Dube SR, Tynan MA. Flavored cigar smoking among U.S. adults: Findings from the 2009-2010 national adult tobacco 

survey. Nicotine Tob Res. 2013;15(2):608-614. doi:10.1093/ntr/nts178. 

3.  Food and Drug Administration. Preliminary Scientific Evaluation of the Possible Public Health Effects of Menthol Versus 

Nonmenthol Cigarettes.; 2013. 

www.fda.gov/downloads/ScienceResearch/SpecialTopics/PeerReviewofScientificInformationandAssessments/UCM361598.pdf. 

4.  Kreslake JM, Wayne GF, Alpert HR, Koh HK, Connolly GN. Tobacco industry control of menthol in cigarettes and targeting of 

adolescents and young adults. Am J Public Health. 2008;98(9):1685-1692. doi:10.2105/AJPH.2007.125542. 

5.  Villanti AC, Mowery PD, Delnevo CD, Niaura RS, Abrams DB, Giovino GA. Changes in the prevalence and correlates of 

menthol cigarette use in the USA, 2004–2014. Tob Control. October 2016. doi:10.1136/tobaccocontrol-2016-053329. 

6.  Tobacco Products Scientific Advisory Committee. Menthol Cigarettes and Public Health: Review of the Scientific Evidence and 

Recommendations.; 2011. 

www.fda.gov/downloads/AdvisoryCommittees/CommitteesMeetingMaterials/TobaccoProductsScientificAdvisoryCommittee/UC

M269697.pdf. 

7.  Courtemanche CJ, Palmer MK, Pesko MF. Influence of the Flavored Cigarette Ban on Adolescent Tobacco Use. Am J Prev Med. 

January 2017. doi:10.1016/j.amepre.2016.11.019. 

8.  Fallin A, Goodin AJ, King BA. Menthol cigarette smoking among lesbian, gay, bisexual, and transgender adults. Am J Prev Med. 

2015;48(1):93-97. doi:10.1016/j.amepre.2014.07.044. 

9.  Cohn AM, Johnson AL, Hair E, Rath JM, Villanti AC. Menthol tobacco use is correlated with mental health symptoms in a 

national sample of young adults: implications for future health risks and policy recommendations. Tob Induc Dis. 2016;14(1):1. 

doi:10.1186/s12971-015-0066-3. 

10.  United States v. Philip Morris, 449 F. Supp. 2d 1, 71 (D.D.C. 2006) aff’d, 566 F.3d 1095 (D.C. Cir. 2009). 

11.  Yerger VB, Przewoznik J, Malone RE. Racialized Geography, Corporate Activity, and Health Disparities: Tobacco Industry 

Targeting of Inner Cities. J Health Care Poor Underserved. 2007;18(4A):10-38. doi:10.1353/hpu.2007.0120. 

12.  Henriksen L, Schleicher NC, Dauphinee AL, Fortmann SP. Targeted advertising, promotion, and price for menthol cigarettes in 

California high school neighborhoods. Nicotine Tob Res. 2012;14(1):116-121. doi:10.1093/ntr/ntr122. 

13.  Waddell EN, Sacks R, Farley SM, Johns M. Point-of-Sale Tobacco Marketing to Youth in New York State. J Adolesc Heal. 

2016;59(3):365-367. doi:10.1016/j.jadohealth.2016.05.013. 

14.  U.S. Surgeon General. Preventing Tobacco Use Among Youth and Young Adults. A report from the Surgeon General. US Dep 

Heal Hum Serv. 2012:1395. www.surgeongeneral.gov/library/reports/preventing-youth-tobacco-use/factsheet.ht... 

15.  Kann L, McManus T, Harris WA, et al. Youth Risk Behavior Surveillance United States, 2015. MMWR Surveill Summ. 

2016;65(6):1-174. doi:10.15585/mmwr.ss6506a1. 

16.  Chen C, Isabelle LM, Pickworth WB, Pankow JF. Levels of mint and wintergreen flavorants: Smokeless tobacco products vs. 

confectionery products. Food Chem Toxicol. 2010;48(2):755-763. doi:10.1016/j.fct.2009.12.015. 

17.  Nelson DE, Mowery P, Tomar S, Marcus S, Giovino G, Zhao L. Trends in smokeless tobacco use among adults and adolescents in 

the United States. Am J Public Health. 2006;96(5):897-905. doi:10.2105/AJPH.2004.061580. 

18.  Morris DS, Fiala SC, Pawlak R. Opportunities for policy interventions to reduce youth hookah smoking in the United States. Prev 

Chronic Dis. 2012;9(8):E165. doi:10.5888/pcd9.120082. 

19.  Cameron JM, Howell DN, White JR, Andrenyak DM, Layton ME, Roll JM. Variable and potentially fatal amounts of nicotine in 

e-cigarette nicotine solutions. Tob Control. 2014;23(1):77-78. doi:10.1136/tobaccocontrol-2012-050604. 

20.  Cullen J, Mowery P, Delnevo C, et al. Seven-year patterns in US cigar use epidemiology among young adults aged 18-25 years: A 

focus on race/ethnicity and brand. Am J Public Health. 2011;101(10):1955-1962. doi:10.2105/AJPH.2011.300209. 

21.  Viola AS, Giovenco DP, Miller Lo EJ, Delnevo CD. A cigar by any other name would taste as sweet. Tob Control. 

2016;25(5):605-606. doi:10.1136/tobaccocontrol-2015-052518. 

22.  Nyman AL, Sterling KL, Weaver SR, Majeed BA, Eriksen MP. Little Cigars and Cigarillos: Users, Perceptions, and Reasons for 

Use. Tob Regul Sci. 2016;2(3):239-251. doi:10.18001/TRS.2.3.4. 

23.  Corey C, Ambrose B, Apelberg B, King B. Flavored Tobacco Product Use Among Middle and High School Students - United 

States, 2014. Morb Mortal Wkly Rep. 2015;64(38):1066-1070. www.cdc.gov/mmwr/preview/mmwrhtml/mm6438a2.htm. 

24.  Bonhomme MG, Holder-Hayes E, Ambrose BK, et al. Flavoured non-cigarette tobacco product use among US adults: 2013–2014. 

Tob Control. October 2016:tobaccocontrol-2016-053373. doi:10.1136/tobaccocontrol-2016-053373. 

25.  American Academy of Pediatrics, American Cancer Society Cancer Action Network, American Heart Association, American 

Stroke Association, American Lung Association, Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids. The Flavor Trap: How Tobacco Companies 

Are Luring Kids with Candy-Flavored E-Cigarettes and Cigars.; 2017. 

274

Item 6.

86

Item 1.

178

Item 9.

107

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Introduction                                     www.changelabsolutions.org                       12 

www.tobaccofreekids.org/microsites/flavortrap/full_report.pdf. 

26.  Ambrose BK, Day HR, Rostron B, et al. Flavored Tobacco Product Use Among US Youth Aged 12-17 Years, 2013-2014. JAMA. 

2015;314(17):1871. doi:10.1001/jama.2015.13802. 

27.  U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Reducing Tobacco Use: A Report of the Surgeon General. Atlanta, GA; 2000. 

www.cdc.gov/tobacco/data_statistics/sgr/2000/complete_report/pdfs/fullreport.pdf. 

28.  Chapman R. State Health Officer’s Report on Tobacco Use and Promotion in California. Sacramento; 2013. 

www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/tobacco/Documents/Resources/Publications/CA Health Officers Report on Tobacco_FINAL_revised 

01 02 13.pdf. 

29.  Wray RJ, Jupka K, Berman S, Zellin S, Vijaykumar S. Young adults’ perceptions about established and emerging tobacco 

products: results from eight focus groups. Nicotine Tob Res. 2012;14(2):184-190. doi:10.1093/ntr/ntr168. 

30.  Aljarrah K, Ababneh ZQ, Al-Delaimy WK. Perceptions of hookah smoking harmfulness: predictors and characteristics among 

current hookah users. Tob Induc Dis. 2009;5(1):16. doi:10.1186/1617-9625-5-16. 

31.  U.S. Food and Drug Administration. Flavored Tobacco Product Fact Sheet.; 2011. www.fda.gov/syn/html/ucm183198. 

32.  Shanks TG, Burns DM. “Chapter 4: Disease Consequences of Cigar Smoking” Smoking and Tobacco Control Monograph No. 9: 

Cigars: Health Effects and Trends.; 1998. http://cancercontrol.cancer.gov/brp/tcrb/monographs/9/m9_4.pdf. 

33.  Akl EA, Gaddam S, Gunukula SK, Honeine R, Jaoude PA, Irani J. The effects of waterpipe tobacco smoking on health outcomes: 

A systematic review. Int J Epidemiol. 2010;39(3):834-857. doi:10.1093/ije/dyq002. 

34.  U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. E-Cigarette Use Among Youth and Young Adults: A Report of the Surgeon 

General. Atlanta, GA; 2016. 

35.  Goniewicz ML, Knysak J, Gawron M, et al. Levels of selected carcinogens and toxicants in vapour from electronic cigarettes. Tob 

Control. 2014;23(2):133-139. doi:10.1136/tobaccocontrol-2012-050859. 

36.  Cheng T. Chemical evaluation of electronic cigarettes. Tob Control. 2014;23(suppl 2):ii11-ii17. doi:10.1136/tobaccocontrol-2013-

051482. 

37.  Williams M, Villarreal A, Bozhilov K, Lin S, Talbot P. Metal and Silicate Particles Including Nanoparticles Are Present in 

Electronic Cigarette Cartomizer Fluid and Aerosol. PLoS One. 2013;8(3):1-12. doi:10.1371/journal.pone.0057987. 

38.  Singh T, Arrazola RA, Corey CG, et al. Tobacco Use Among Middle and High School Students — United States, 2011–2015. 

MMWR Morb Mortal Wkly Rep. 2016;65(14):361-367. doi:10.15585/mmwr.mm6514a1. 

39.  Arrazola R, Dube S, King B. Tobacco Product Use Among Middle and High School Students — United States , 2011 and 2012. 

Mortal Morb Wkly. 2013;62(45):893-897. www.cdc.gov/mmwr/preview/mmwrhtml/mm6245a2.htm. 

40.  Sterling K, Berg CJ, Thomas AN, Glantz SA, Ahluwalia JS. Factors associated with small cigar use among college students. Am J 

Health Behav. 2013;37(3):325-333. doi:10.5993/AJHB.37.3.5. 

41.  Sterling K, Fryer C, Pagano I, Jones D, Fagan P. Association between menthol-flavoured cigarette smoking and flavoured little 

cigar and cigarillo use among African-American, Hispanic, and white young and middle-aged adult smokers. Tob Control. 

October 2016:tobaccocontrol-2016-053203. doi:10.1136/tobaccocontrol-2016-053203. 

42.  Cantrell J, Kreslake JM, Ganz O, et al. Marketing little cigars and cigarillos: Advertising, price, and associations with 

neighborhood demographics. Am J Public Health. 2013;103(10):1902-1909. doi:10.2105/AJPH.2013.301362. 

43.  H.R. Rep. No. 111–58, pt. 1 (2009). 

44.  U.S. Smokeless Tobacco Mfg. Co. v. City of New York, 708 F.3d 428 (2d Cir. 2013). 

45.  Assembly Committee on Governmental Organization, Committee Analysis, S.B. 322, 2001–2002 Sess. (Cal. 2001). 

46.  Nat’l Ass’n of Tobacco Outlets, Inc. v. City of Providence, R.I., 731 F.3d 71 (1st Cir. 2013). 

47.  Indep. Gas & Serv. Stations Ass’ns, Inc. v. City of Chi., 112 F.Supp.3d 749 (N.D. Ill. 2015). 

275

Item 6.

87

Item 1.

179

Item 9.

108

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Ordinance Provisions       www.changelabsolutions.org       13 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE [ CITY / COUNTY ] OF [ ____ ] 
RESTRICTING THE SALE OF MENTHOL CIGARETTES AND 
OTHER FLAVORED TOBACCO PRODUCTS AND AMENDING 
THE [ ____ ] MUNICIPAL CODE 

 

The [ City Council of the City / Board of Supervisors of the County ] of [ ____ ] does ordain as 

follows: 

 

COMMENT: This is introductory boilerplate language that should be adapted to the conventional form 
used in the jurisdiction. 

 

SECTION I. [ See Appendix A: Findings ] 

 

COMMENT: A draft ordinance based on this Model Ordinance should include findings of fact—data, 
statistics, relevant epidemiological information, for instance—that support the purposes of this 
legislation. The findings section is part of the ordinance and legislative record, and it contains 
information explaining the health and equity issues that the law would help address. A list of findings 
supporting this Model Ordinance appears in “Appendix A: Findings” on page 22. Jurisdictions may 
select findings from that list to insert here, along with additional findings on local or regional conditions, 
outcomes, and issues that help make the case for the law. 

 

SECTION II. [ Article / Section ] of the [ ____ ] Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as 

follows: 

 

Sec. [ ____ (*1) ]. DEFINITIONS. The following words and phrases, whenever used in this 

[ article / chapter ], shall have the meanings defined in this section unless the context clearly 

requires otherwise:  

 

COMMENT: Some terms defined in this Model Ordinance may already be defined in the jurisdiction’s 

municipal code. Include only the definitions that are necessary, and review all definitions for 
consistency. For example, the definition of Tobacco Product below covers a broad range of tobacco 
products (including electronic smoking devices), and may be more expansive than an existing definition 
in the municipal code. In restricting the sale of flavored tobacco products, jurisdictions with an existing 
definition of Tobacco Product need to decide whether to use this Model Ordinance’s definition or rely 

on their current definition. A jurisdiction is allowed to use different definitions of Tobacco Product in 
separate sections of its municipal code. However, to avoid confusion, the jurisdiction should make clear 
which sections of the municipal code are governed by a particular definition. 

276

Item 6.

88

Item 1.

180

Item 9.

109

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Ordinance Provisions       www.changelabsolutions.org       14 

(a) “Characterizing Flavor” means a taste or aroma, other than the taste or aroma of tobacco, 

imparted either prior to or during consumption of a Tobacco Product or any byproduct 

produced by the Tobacco Product, including, but not limited to, tastes or aromas relating 

to menthol, mint, wintergreen, fruit, chocolate, vanilla, honey, candy, cocoa, dessert, 

alcoholic beverage, herb, or spice; provided, however, that a Tobacco Product shall not 

be determined to have a Characterizing Flavor solely because of the use of additives or 

flavorings or the provision of ingredient information. 

 

(b) “Flavored Tobacco Product” means any Tobacco Product that imparts a Characterizing 

Flavor.  

 

COMMENT: This definition of Flavored Tobacco Product includes cigarettes. Federal law 
already prohibits the manufacture of flavored cigarettes, but it excludes menthol cigarettes from 
its prohibition. This Model Ordinance is more restrictive than federal law because it prohibits 
both the sale of menthol cigarettes and the sale of other flavored tobacco products. Below are 
some examples of the types of products prohibited by this Model Ordinance. 
 
 Menthol cigarettes, roll-your-own tobacco, and components (eg, menthol flavored rolling 

papers and filters intended for use with roll-your-own cigarettes) 

 All other flavored cigarettes, roll-your-own tobacco, and components (eg, flavored rolling 
papers and filters intended for use with roll-your-own cigarettes) 

 Flavored cigars and little cigars 

 Flavored smokeless tobacco 

 Flavored electronic smoking devices 

 Flavored non-cigarette components, parts, and accessories (eg, flavored blunt wraps and 
flavored additives for e-liquids) 

 

(c) “Labeling” means written, printed, or graphic matter upon any Tobacco Product or any of 

its Packaging, or accompanying such Tobacco Product. 

 

(d) “Manufacturer” means any person, including any repacker or relabeler, who 

manufactures, fabricates, assembles, processes, or labels a Tobacco Product; or imports a 

finished Tobacco Product for sale or distribution into the United States. 

 

(e) “Packaging” means a pack, box, carton, or container of any kind or, if no other container, 

any wrapping (including cellophane) in which a Tobacco Product is sold or offered for 

sale to a consumer. 

 

277

Item 6.

89

Item 1.

181

Item 9.

110

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Ordinance Provisions       www.changelabsolutions.org       15 

(f) “Person” means any natural person, partnership, cooperative association, corporation, 

personal representative, receiver, trustee, assignee, or any other legal entity. 

 

(g) “Tobacco Paraphernalia” means any item designed or marketed for the consumption, use, 

or preparation of Tobacco Products. 

 

(h) “Tobacco Product” means: 

(1) any product containing, made, or derived from tobacco or nicotine that is intended for 

human consumption, whether smoked, heated, chewed, absorbed, dissolved, inhaled, 

snorted, sniffed, or ingested by any other means, including, but not limited to 

cigarettes, cigars, little cigars, chewing tobacco, pipe tobacco, snuff;  

(2) any electronic device that delivers nicotine or other substances to the person inhaling 

from the device, including, but not limited to an electronic cigarette, electronic cigar, 

electronic pipe, or electronic hookah. 

(3) Notwithstanding any provision of subsections (1) and (2) to the contrary, “Tobacco 

Product” includes any component, part, or accessory intended or reasonably expected 

to be used with a Tobacco Product, whether or not sold separately. “Tobacco 

Product” does not include any product that has been approved by the United States 

Food and Drug Administration for sale as a tobacco cessation product or for other 

therapeutic purposes where such product is marketed and sold solely for such an 

approved purpose. 

COMMENT: This definition of Tobacco Product is designed to cover a wide variety of 
tobacco products, including cigarettes, cigars, smokeless tobacco, shisha (hookah tobacco), 
electronic smoking devices, and the solutions and component parts that are used in these 
devices. The definition includes electronic smoking devices with or without nicotine. The 
definition also includes any component, part, or accessory normally used with a Tobacco 
Product. 

 

(i) “Tobacco Retailer” means any Person who sells, offers for sale, or does or offers to 

exchange for any form of consideration, tobacco, Tobacco Products or Tobacco 

Paraphernalia. “Tobacco Retailing” shall mean the doing of any of these things. This 

definition is without regard to the quantity of Tobacco Products or Tobacco Paraphernalia 

sold, offered for sale, exchanged, or offered for exchange. 

 

 

 
 

278

Item 6.

90

Item 1.

182

Item 9.

111

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Ordinance Provisions       www.changelabsolutions.org       16 

Sec. [ ____ (*2) ]. SALE OF FLAVORED TOBACCO PRODUCTS PROHIBITED 

(a) It shall be a violation of this [ article / chapter ] for any Tobacco Retailer or any of the 

Tobacco Retailer’s agents or employees to sell or offer for sale, or to possess with intent 

to sell or offer for sale, any Flavored Tobacco Product. 

 

COMMENT: Some communities have created “buffer zones” by prohibiting the sale of flavored 
tobacco products within a specific distance of youth-populated areas, such as schools. For 
example, Berkeley, CA, and Chicago, IL prohibit the sale of flavored tobacco products, including 
menthol cigarettes, within 600 feet of any school and within 500 feet of any high school, 
respectively. Although these buffer zones are an important intervention, they’re not 

comprehensive prohibitions on flavored tobacco product sales. 
 
Communities can consider similar policies, but they should weigh the benefits and drawbacks of 
implementing a non-comprehensive flavored tobacco prohibition. A buffer zone approach may 
not provide the same public health benefits as a comprehensive, communitywide flavored 
tobacco restriction. Moreover, local jurisdictions that create buffer zones will likely face increased 
costs for implementation and potential enforcement challenges. For example, before a 
community can implement a buffer zone, it must conduct mapping surveys to determine the 
location of schools and tobacco retailers and measure the distances between them. 
Communities must routinely update the maps to reflect changes that affect where flavored 
tobacco products may be sold (eg, if a school opens, closes, or relocates). Developing and 
updating these maps may require significant resources. 
 
Local jurisdictions must also educate tobacco retailers and the general public on how to 
determine whether a store is located within a buffer zone that prohibits the sale of flavored 
tobacco. This may include developing appropriate tools and resources for tobacco retailers to 
determine whether their store is within a buffer zone.  
 
Despite these considerations, buffer zones remain a viable policy option for communities. If your 
community is interested in adopting a flavored tobacco product buffer zone, contact ChangeLab 
Solutions for assistance. This is introductory boilerplate language that should be adapted to the 
conventional form used in the jurisdiction. 

 

(b) There shall be a rebuttable presumption that a Tobacco Retailer in possession of four or 

more Flavored Tobacco Products, including but not limited to individual Flavored 

Tobacco Products, packages of Flavored Tobacco Products, or any combination thereof, 

possesses such Flavored Tobacco Products with intent to sell or offer for sale. 

 

 (c) There shall be a rebuttable presumption that a Tobacco Product is a Flavored Tobacco 

Product if a Tobacco Retailer, Manufacturer, or any employee or agent of a Tobacco 

Retailer or Manufacturer has:  

279

Item 6.

91

Item 1.

183

Item 9.

112

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Ordinance Provisions       www.changelabsolutions.org       17 

(1) made a public statement or claim that the Tobacco Product imparts a Characterizing 

Flavor; 

(2)  used text and/or images on the Tobacco Product’s Labeling or Packaging to explicitly 

or implicitly indicate that the Tobacco Product imparts a Characterizing Flavor; or 

(3) taken action directed to consumers that would be reasonably expected to cause 

consumers to believe the Tobacco Product imparts a Characterizing Flavor. 

----------OPTIONAL PROVISION---------- 

[ (d) A Tobacco Retailer lawfully operating as of the date this ordinance is adopted is exempt 

from subsection (a) for a period of up to [ 6 months ] from the effective date of this ordinance, 

provided that all of the following requirements are met: 

 

(1) Within [ thirty (30) days ] of the effective date of this ordinance, the Tobacco Retailer 

submits to the [ City Manager / County Manager ] written notice that it seeks temporary 

exemption from subsection (a) and documentation that demonstrates: (i) the Tobacco 

Retailer was lawfully operating as of the date this ordinance was adopted; (ii) [ seventy 

percent (70%) ] or more of gross sales receipts are derived from Tobacco Products, 

Tobacco Paraphernalia, or both, or [ fifty percent (50%) ] or more of completed sales 

transactions include Tobacco Products, Tobacco Paraphernalia, or both; and (iii) the 

amortization period afforded by the [ 6-month ] period for the effectiveness of the 

ordinance adopting this section is insufficient to allow the Tobacco Retailer to sell, 

return to the distributor or wholesaler, or otherwise obtain the benefit of, property 

which has no lawful use by virtue of the ordinance adopting this section. The 

submission shall include all information and documentation the [ City Manager / 

County Manager ] may request to determine the Tobacco Retailer’s qualifications for 

this exemption. 

(2) The [ City Manager / County Manager ] determines the Tobacco Retailer meets the 

qualifications set forth in [ subsection (d)(1) ]. 

(3) The Tobacco Retailer submits all information and documentation requested by the [ 

City Manager / County Manager ] to determine continued qualification for this 

exemption. This exemption to subsection (a) shall not apply if the [ City Manager / 

County Manager ] determines that the Tobacco Retailer no longer meets the 

qualifications set forth in [ subsection (d)(1) ].] 

(4) The [ City Manager / County Manager ] shall offer the Tobacco Retailer an opportunity 

for an oral or paper hearing and render a written decision on the record of that hearing. 

280

Item 6.

92

Item 1.

184

Item 9.

113

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Ordinance Provisions       www.changelabsolutions.org       18 

That decision shall be final as to the [ City / County ] and subject to judicial review 

pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure section 1094.5. ] 

 

COMMENT: This Model Ordinance provides a 6-month delay between when a jurisdiction adopts 
the ordinance and when the flavored tobacco prohibition goes into effect (see “SECTION IV. 

Effective Date” on page 21). This delay provides all tobacco retailers with a 6-month period to 
sell their remaining inventory of flavored tobacco products. The delay also provides the local 
government with time to plan for implementation and enforcement.  
 
The optional provision above (subsection (d)) temporarily grandfathers certain tobacco retailers, 
which exempts them from having to comply with the flavored tobacco prohibition in subsection 
(a) for an additional limited period of up to 6 months. Thus, a local jurisdiction that includes the 
optional subsection (d) above is granting certain tobacco retailers a period of 12 months in which 
to comply with the prohibition following the adoption of the ordinance (6 months is allowed for all 
tobacco retailers pursuant to SECTION IV on page 21, and an additional 6 months is allowed for 
certain tobacco retailers pursuant to subsection (d) above). The exemption in subsection (d) 
applies only to tobacco retailers that primarily sell tobacco products and/or tobacco 
paraphernalia, as specified above (we refer to these businesses informally as “significant 

tobacco retailers”). To qualify for the exemption in subsection (d), a retailer must meet the 

following requirements.   
 
Requirements to Qualify for the Exemption:  

(1) The Tobacco Retailer submits a written notice indicating a request for temporary exemption 
and documentation that demonstrates the following:  

(a) The Tobacco Retailer was lawfully operating on the date the ordinance was adopted; 
(b) 70% or more of gross sales receipts are derived from the sale of Tobacco Products, 

Tobacco Paraphernalia, or both, or 50% or more of completed sales transactions are 
derived from the sale of Tobacco Products, Tobacco Paraphernalia, or both; and  

(c) The amortization period (see explanation below) provided between the date of 
adoption and the effective date is insufficient to allow the Tobacco Retailer to sell or 
return its inventory of prohibited Flavored Tobacco Products.  

(2) The government determines the Tobacco Retailer meets these qualifications and grants it an 
additional 6 months to comply with the prohibition. 

 
Importantly, this exemption lapses if at any time the government determines the tobacco retailer 
no longer meets these qualifications. The government’s decision is not subject to an internal 
appeal, but it can be reviewed in court under the administrative mandamus statute. 
 
Jurisdictions seeking the maximum public health impact from this Model Ordinance should not 
insert this optional provision. Many public health laws take effect immediately and apply to all 
existing businesses without exception. The findings in this Model Ordinance (page 22) explain 
how a flavored tobacco prohibition protects public health, and in particular, how it protects youth 
from the significant harms of tobacco use. Exempting businesses, even temporarily, can slow 
progress and undermine the benefits of this Model Ordinance. 

281

Item 6.

93

Item 1.

185

Item 9.

114

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Ordinance Provisions       www.changelabsolutions.org       19 

Takings 

Sometimes government staff ask whether applying a prohibition on flavored tobacco sales to 
existing businesses is a taking. A taking is a restriction on private property—which, in this case, 
is flavored tobacco products—that is so burdensome that a court determines that the 
government must pay just compensation for the property (because the government has 
effectively “taken” the property). Whether a law amounts to a taking is case-specific—it depends 
on the business—and the burden of proof falls on the business. In most settings, allowing the 
regulated business a reasonable time (typically a few months) to amortize the value of any 
investment in property—selling any remaining flavored tobacco products, for instance—that 
cannot be used after the prohibition takes effect prevents a taking.  
 
An amortization period gives certain existing businesses a period of time to do business as usual 
before they must make changes to comply with a new law. Amortization periods are 
constitutional ways for local governments to balance the public interest and any financial impact 
on a private business. These periods are often short, measured in months, not years.  
It is important to note that the financial impact is less severe for a business that sells many other 
products in addition to tobacco products (eg, convenience stores and grocery stores), and that 
inventory can be returned to the wholesaler or resold for retail sale outside the city or county 
adopting the prohibition. Moreover, the time between adoption of an ordinance and its effective 
date is sufficient to amortize minor investments in inventory and signage. For these reasons, the 
optional temporary grandfathering provision applies only to tobacco retailers that sell a significant 
amount of tobacco products and/or tobacco paraphernalia; these businesses may be most 
affected by a flavored tobacco prohibition. Nevertheless, a flavored tobacco prohibition does not 
require businesses to close, or even to stop selling all tobacco products. It is a reasonable 
restriction on a type of tobacco product that is particularly harmful, especially to youth. Examples 
of reasonable amortization periods in different contexts include the following. 
 
• An amortization period of 1 to 4 years is sufficient for a billboard removal ordinance. 

Metromedia, Inc. v. City of San Diego, 28 Cal.3d 848, 882 (1980), reversed on other 
grounds, 453 U.S. 490 (1981). 

• An amortization period of 32 months is sufficient to amortize a billboard. People ex. rel. 

Department of Pub. Wks. v. Adco Advertisers, 35 Cal.App.3d 507 (1979). (Note: Amortization 
is often litigated in the context of billboards.) 

• An amortization period of 18 months is sufficient to terminate operation of an automobile 
wrecking yard. People v. Gates, 41 Cal. App. 3d 590 (1974). 

• An amortization period of 20 months is sufficient to change or relocate an adult entertainment 
business. World Wide Video of Washington, Inc. v. City of Spokane, 368 F.3d 1186 (9th Cir. 
2004).  

• An amortization period of 24 months is sufficient to terminate operation of a cement batching 
plant that invested $98,000 (1950 dollars) in the business. Livingston Rock & Gravel Co. v. 

Los Angeles County, 43 Cal. 2d 121 (1954). 
 
Notably, a federal district court upheld a San Francisco law prohibiting the sale of all tobacco 
products in pharmacies and requiring that pharmacies comply by the effective date of the 
ordinance. In other words, the law didn’t grant an amortization period. The court explained that 

282

Item 6.

94

Item 1.

186

Item 9.

115

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Ordinance Provisions       www.changelabsolutions.org       20 

the ordinance “merely regulates the sale of tobacco products; it does not force Plaintiff to engage 

in a certain type of business.” The court further concluded that “although Plaintiff has alleged it 
has a vested property right in its [tobacco retailer] permits, it cannot overcome the fact that the 
enactment of the amended ordinance was a reasonable and permissible use of Defendants' 
police power.” Safeway Inc. v. City & Cty. of San Francisco, 797 F. Supp. 2d 964 (N.D. Cal. 
2011). 

----------END OPTIONAL PROVISION---------- 

Sec. [ ____ (*3) ]. ENFORCEMENT.  

 

(a) The remedies provided by this [ article / chapter ] are cumulative and in addition to any 

other remedies available at law or in equity. 
  

COMMENT: The subsections below offer a variety of enforcement options to the drafter and the 
enforcing agency. Drafters may choose to include some or all of these options. Once the 
ordinance is enacted, the enforcing agency has the discretion to choose which enforcement tools 
to use in each case. As a practical matter, these enforcement options would not be applied 
simultaneously, although multiple remedies might be used against a particularly egregious 
violator over time.  
 
The enforcement options included in this Model Ordinance penalize Tobacco Retailers who sell 
or offer to sell Flavored Tobacco Products. In other words, this Model Ordinance does not 
penalize individuals for purchasing, attempting to purchase, possessing, or using Flavored 
Tobacco Products. Well-enforced laws targeting retailers are more effective and provide greater 
public health benefits than laws penalizing users. Moreover, laws penalizing purchasers and 
users raise significant equity concerns because their enforcement often disproportionately affects 
communities of color. 
 
Some communities face challenges in enforcing their Flavored Tobacco Product ordinances. For 
example, enforcement officials may have trouble determining when a Tobacco Product qualifies 
as a Flavored Tobacco Product, particularly when the packaging and marketing materials do not 
explicitly identify a Characterizing Flavor (eg, Tobacco Products using “concept flavors” like 

“Arctic” and “Lightning”). Communities should consider potential challenges and develop 
guidelines for staff enforcement. If your community is concerned about enforcement, please 
contact ChangeLab Solutions for assistance. 

 

(b) Violations of this [ article / chapter ] are subject to a civil action brought by the [ City 

Prosecutor / District Attorney ] or the [ City Attorney / County Counsel ], punishable by a 

civil fine not less than [ two hundred fifty dollars ($250) ] and not exceeding [ one 

thousand dollars ($1,000) ] per violation. 
 

COMMENT: This provision outlines the civil fines for violations of the ordinance. It requires the 

283

Item 6.

95

Item 1.

187

Item 9.

116

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Ordinance Provisions       www.changelabsolutions.org       21 

city or county file a traditional civil suit. The fine amounts can be adjusted but cannot exceed 
$1,000 per violation. Government Code section 36901. 

 

(c) Violations of this [ article / chapter ] may, at the discretion of the [ City Prosecutor / 

District Attorney ], be prosecuted as infractions or misdemeanors when the interests of 

justice so require. 

   

COMMENT: Sometimes called a “wobbler,” this provision affords the prosecuting attorney 

discretion to pursue a violation as an infraction (like a parking ticket) or a misdemeanor (a crime 
punishable by up to a $1,000 fine and/or 6 months in a county jail). Alternatively, violations can 
be set as either an infraction or a misdemeanor in all circumstances. Fines and other criminal 
penalties are established by the Penal Code and are typically reflected in the general 
punishments provision of a local code. 

 

SECTION III. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, 

clause, or phrase of this Ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, is for any 

reason held to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the 

validity or enforceability of the remaining sections, subsections, subdivisions, paragraphs, 

sentences, clauses, or phrases of this Ordinance, or its application to any other person or 

circumstance. The [ City Council / Board of Supervisors ] of the [ City / County ] of [ ____ ] 

hereby declares that it would have adopted each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, 

sentence, clause, or phrase hereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more other sections, 

subsections, subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, or phrases hereof be declared invalid 

or unenforceable.  

 

COMMENT: This is standard language. Often this “boilerplate” is found at the end of an ordinance, but 

its location is irrelevant. 

 

SECTION IV. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and 

after [ 6 months after date of enactment ]. 

 

COMMENT: This section specifies the effective date of the ordinance, and it should be tailored to give 
the enforcing agency adequate time to educate tobacco retailers and the general public. The agency 
should also use this time to determine enforcement protocols for flavored tobacco products. General 
law cities and counties in California must provide a minimum of 30 days between an ordinance’s 

adoption and its effective date. 
  

284

Item 6.

96

Item 1.

188

Item 9.

117

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Findings                                   www.changelabsolutions.org       22 

Appendix A: Findings. 
The [ City Council of the City / Board of Supervisors of the County ] of [ ____ ] hereby finds and 

declares as follows: 

 

WHEREAS, the federal Family Smoking Prevention and Tobacco Control Act (Tobacco Control Act), 

enacted in 2009, prohibited candy- and fruit-flavored cigarettes,1 largely because these flavored products 

were marketed to youth and young adults,2 and younger smokers were more likely than older smokers to 

have tried these products;3 and 

 

WHEREAS, although the manufacture and distribution of flavored cigarettes (excluding menthol) are 

banned by federal law,4 neither federal law nor California law restricts the sale of menthol cigarettes or 

flavored non-cigarette tobacco products, such as cigars, cigarillos, smokeless tobacco, hookah tobacco, 

electronic smoking devices, and the solutions used in these devices; and 

 

WHEREAS, flavored tobacco products are very common in California tobacco retailers as evidenced by 

the following: 

 97.4% of stores that sell cigarettes sell menthol cigarettes;5 

 94.5% of stores that sell little cigars sell them in flavored varieties;6 

 84.2% of stores that sell electronic smoking devices sell flavored varieties;7 and 

 83.8% of stores that sell chew or snus sell flavored varieties;8 and 

WHEREAS, more than 1 in 4 stores located within 1,000 feet of California schools sell tobacco, and 

more than 3 out of 4 of these tobacco retailers sell flavored tobacco products (not including mentholated 

cigarettes);9 and 

 

WHEREAS, mentholated and flavored products have been shown to be “starter” products for youth who 

begin using tobacco10 and that these products help establish tobacco habits that can lead to long-term 

addiction;11 and 

 

WHEREAS, at least one study has found that the majority of smokeless tobacco users reported that the 

first smokeless product they used was mint-flavored (such as ice, mint, spearmint, or wintergreen 

flavors), and almost two-thirds who transitioned to daily use of smokeless tobacco products first used a 

mint-flavored product;12 and 

 

 

 

285

Item 6.

97

Item 1.

189

Item 9.

118

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Findings                                   www.changelabsolutions.org       23 

WHEREAS, young people are much more likely than adults to use menthol-, candy-, and fruit-flavored 

tobacco products, including cigarettes, cigars, cigarillos, and hookah tobacco;13 and 

 

WHEREAS, 70% of middle school and high school students who currently use tobacco, report using 

flavored products that taste like menthol, alcohol, candy, fruit, chocolate, or other sweets;14 and  

 

WHEREAS, data from the National Youth Tobacco Survey indicate that more than two-fifths of US 

middle school and high school smokers report using flavored little cigars or flavored cigarettes;15 and 

 

WHEREAS, much of the growing popularity of small cigars and smokeless tobacco is among young 

adults and appears to be linked to use of flavored products;16 and 

 

WHEREAS, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention has reported a more than 800% increase in 

electronic cigarette use among middle school and high school students between 2011 and 2015;17 

 

WHEREAS, nicotine solutions, which are consumed via electronic smoking devices such as electronic 

cigarettes, are sold in dozens of flavors that appeal to youth, such as cotton candy and bubble gum;18 and 

 

WHEREAS, the California Attorney General has stated that electronic cigarette companies have 

targeted minors with fruit-flavored products;19 and 

 

WHEREAS, between 2004 and 2014 use of non-menthol cigarettes decreased among all populations, 

but overall use of menthol cigarettes increased among young adults (ages 18 to 25) and adults (ages 

26+);20 and 

 

WHEREAS, people ages 12 and older from communities of color are more likely to smoke mentholated 

cigarettes, as evidenced by the following percentages of people who smoke cigarettes reported smoking 

mentholated cigarettes in the last month:21 

 82.6% of Black or African American individuals;  

 53.2% of Native Hawaiians or Other Pacific Islanders;  

 36.9% of individuals with multiracial backgrounds; 

 32.3% of Hispanic or Latino individuals; 

 31.2% of Asian individuals; 

 24.8% of American Indians or Alaska Natives; and 

 23.8% of White or Caucasian individuals; and 

 

WHEREAS, adding menthol and other flavorings to tobacco products, such as cigarettes, little cigars, 

cigarillos, and smokeless tobacco, can mask the natural harshness and taste of tobacco, making these 

286

Item 6.

98

Item 1.

190

Item 9.

119

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Findings                                   www.changelabsolutions.org       24 

products easier to use and increasing their appeal among youth;22 and 

 

WHEREAS, the tobacco industry has been manipulating the dose of menthol in cigarettes to ensure the 

uptake and continued use of tobacco, especially by young people and vulnerable populations for many 

years;23 and 

 

WHEREAS, smoking mentholated cigarettes reduces the likelihood of successfully quitting smoking;24 

and  

 

WHEREAS, the tobacco industry has a well-documented history of developing and marketing 

mentholated brands to communities of color and youth;25 and 

 

WHEREAS, a review of advertising, promotions, and pack prices near California high schools found 

that “for each 10 percentage point increase in the proportion of Black students, the proportion of 

menthol advertising increased by 5.9% … the odds of a Newport [a leading brand of mentholated 

cigarettes] promotion were 50% higher … and the cost of Newport was 12 cents lower.” There was no 

such association found for non-mentholated cigarettes;26 and 

 

WHEREAS, a New York study found that price reduction promotions for menthol cigarettes are 

disproportionately targeted to youth markets;27 and 

 

WHEREAS, scientific reviews by the Tobacco Products Scientific Advisory Committee (TPSAC) and 

the FDA found marketing of menthol cigarettes likely increases the prevalence of smoking among the 

entire population, and especially among youth, African Americans,28 and possibly Hispanic and Latino 

individuals;29  

 

WHEREAS, scientific studies on the impact of a national ban on menthol in cigarettes found 36.5% of 

menthol cigarette users would try to quit smoking if menthol was banned30 and between 300,000 and 

600,000 lives would be saved by 2050;31 and  

 

WHEREAS, an evaluation of New York City’s law, which prohibits the sale of all flavored tobacco, 

excluding menthol, found that as a result of the law, youth had 37% lower odds of ever trying flavored 

tobacco products and 28% lower odds of ever using any type of tobacco.32  

 

287

Item 6.

99

Item 1.

191

Item 9.

120

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Findings                                   www.changelabsolutions.org       25 

1. 21 U.S.C. § 387g(a)(1)(A). 

2.  Carpenter CM, Wayne GF, Pauly JL, Koh HK, Connolly GN. New cigarette brands with flavors that appeal to youth: Tobacco 

marketing strategies. Tobacco industry documents reveal a deliberate strategy to add flavors known to appeal to younger people. 

Health Aff. 2005;24(6):1601-1610. doi:10.1377/hlthaff.24.6.1601. Lewis MJ, Wackowski O. Dealing with an innovative industry: 

A look at flavored cigarettes promoted by mainstream brands. Am J Public Health. 2006;96(2):244-251. 

doi:10.2105/AJPH.2004.061200. Connolly GN. Sweet and spicy flavours: new brands for minorities and youth. Tob Control. 

2004;13(3):211-212. doi:10.1136/tc.2004.009191. U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Office of Disease Prevention 

and Health Promotion. Preventing Tobacco Use Among Youth and Young Adults A Report of the Surgeon General. 2012. 

www.surgeongeneral.gov/library/reports/preventing-youth-tobacco-use/. 

3.  U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Office of Disease Prevention and Health Promotion. Preventing Tobacco Use 

Among Youth and Young Adults A Report of the Surgeon General. 2012. www.surgeongeneral.gov/library/reports/preventing-

youth-tobacco-use/. 

4.  21 U.S.C. § 387g(a)(1)(A). 

5.  Schleicher N, Johnson T, Ahmad I, Henriksen L. Tobacco Marketing in California’s Retail Environment Final report for the 

California Tobacco Advertising Survey (2011-2014) Submitted to the California Tobacco Control Program , California 

Department of Public Health. 2015. 

http://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/tobacco/Documents/CDPH%20CTCP%20Refresh/Research%20and%20Evaluation/Reports/To

bacco%20Marketing%20in%20Californias%20Retail%20Environment_Notations_Final%202.9.16.pdf. 

6.  Id. 

7.  Id. 

8.  Id. 

9.  California Department of Public Health California Tobacco Control Program. Healthy Stores for a Healthy Community: Alameda 

County. 2014. www.healthystoreshealthycommunity.com/documents/counties/Alameda County Data (English).pdf. 

10.  Hersey JC, Ng SW, Nonnemaker JM, et al. Are menthol cigarettes a starter product for youth? Nicotine Tob Res. 2006;8(3):403-

413. doi:10.1080/14622200600670389. Wackowski O, Delnevo CD. Menthol cigarettes and indicators of tobacco dependence 

among adolescents. Addict Behav. 2007;32(9):1964-1969. doi:10.1016/j.addbeh.2006.12.023. U.S. Department of Health and 

Human Services Office of Disease Prevention and Health Promotion. Preventing Tobacco Use Among Youth and Young Adults A 

Report of the Surgeon General. 2012. www.surgeongeneral.gov/library/reports/preventing-youth-tobacco-use/. 

11.  U.S. Food and Drug Administration. Flavored Tobacco Product Fact Sheet. 2011. www.fda.gov/syn/html/ucm183198. U.S. 

Department of Health and Human Services Office of Disease Prevention and Health Promotion. Preventing Tobacco Use Among 

Youth and Young Adults A Report of the Surgeon General. 2012. www.surgeongeneral.gov/library/reports/preventing-youth-

tobacco-use/. 

12.  Oliver AJ, Jensen J a, Vogel RI, Anderson AJ, Hatsukami DK. Flavored and nonflavored smokeless tobacco products: rate, pattern 

of use, and effects. Nicotine Tob Res. 2013;15(1):88-92. doi:10.1093/ntr/nts093. 

13.  King BA, Dube SR, Tynan MA. Flavored cigar smoking among U.S. adults: Findings from the 2009-2010 national adult tobacco 

survey. Nicotine Tob Res. 2013;15(2):608-614. doi:10.1093/ntr/nts178. Villanti AC, Richardson A, Vallone DM, Rath JM. 

Flavored tobacco product use among U.S. young adults. Am J Prev Med. 2013;44(4):388-391. doi:10.1016/j.amepre.2012.11.031. 

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. The NSDUH Report: Recent Trends in Menthol Cigarette Use. 

Rockville, MD; 2011. www.samhsa.gov/data/sites/default/files/WEB_SR_088/WEB_SR_088/WEB_SR_088.htm. 

14.  Corey C, Ambrose B, Apelberg B, King B. Flavored Tobacco Product Use Among Middle and High School Students - United 

States, 2014. Morb Mortal Wkly Rep. 2015;64(38):1066-1070. www.cdc.gov/mmwr/preview/mmwrhtml/mm6438a2.htm. 

15.  King BA, Tynan MA, Dube SR, Arrazola R. Flavored-little-cigar and flavored-cigarette use among U.S. middle and high school 

students. J Adolesc Heal. 2014;54(1):40-46. doi:10.1016/j.jadohealth.2013.07.033. 

16.  U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Office of Disease Prevention and Health Promotion. Preventing Tobacco Use 

Among Youth and Young Adults A Report of the Surgeon General. 2012. www.surgeongeneral.gov/library/reports/preventing-

youth-tobacco-use/. 

17.  Singh T, Arrazola RA, Corey CG, et al. Tobacco Use Among Middle and High School Students — United States, 2011–2015. 

MMWR Morb Mortal Wkly Rep. 2016;65(14):361-367. doi:10.15585/mmwr.mm6514a1. 

18.  Cameron JM, Howell DN, White JR, Andrenyak DM, Layton ME, Roll JM. Variable and potentially fatal amounts of nicotine in 

e-cigarette nicotine solutions. Tob Control. 2014;23(1):77-78. doi:10.1136/tobaccocontrol-2012-050604. U.S. Department of 

Health and Human Services Office of Disease Prevention and Health Promotion. Preventing Tobacco Use Among Youth and 

Young Adults A Report of the Surgeon General. 2012. www.surgeongeneral.gov/library/reports/preventing-youth-tobacco-use/. 

19.  Press Release, State of California Department of Justice, Office of the Attorney General, Brown Announces Electronic Cigarette 

Maker's Agreement to Stop Deceptive Marketing and Sales to Minors (Aug. 3, 2010), oag.ca.gov/news/press-releases/brown-

announces-electronic-cigarette-makers-agreement-stop-deceptive-marketing.  

20.  Villanti AC, Mowery PD, Delnevo CD, Niaura RS, Abrams DB, Giovino DB. Changes in the prevalence and correlates of 

 

                                                 

 

288

Item 6.

100

Item 1.

192

Item 9.

121

Item 5.



 

 

Flavored Tobacco Products: Findings                                   www.changelabsolutions.org       26 

                                                                                                                                                                         

 
menthol cigarette use in the USA, 2004-2014. Tob Control. 2016;25:ii14-ii20. doi: 10.1136/tobaccocontrol-2016-053329.  

21.  Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. The NSDUH Report: Use of Menthol Cigarettes. 2009. 

https://perma.cc/4UG9-HUQ2. 

22.  King BA, Dube SR, Tynan MA. Flavored cigar smoking among U.S. adults: Findings from the 2009-2010 national adult tobacco 

survey. Nicotine Tob Res. 2013;15(2):608-614. doi:10.1093/ntr/nts178. Nelson DE, Mowery P, Tomar S, Marcus S, Giovino G, 

Zhao L. Trends in smokeless tobacco use among adults and adolescents in the United States. Am J Public Health. 2006;96(5):897-

905. doi:10.2105/AJPH.2004.061580. Food and Drug Administration. Preliminary Scientific Evaluation of the Possible Public 

Health Effects of Menthol Versus Nonmenthol Cigarettes. 2013. 

www.fda.gov/downloads/ScienceResearch/SpecialTopics/PeerReviewofScientificInformationandAssessments/UCM361598.pdf. 

23.  Kreslake JM, Wayne GF, Alpert HR, Koh HK, Connolly GN. Tobacco industry control of menthol in cigarettes and targeting of 

adolescents and young adults. Am J Public Health. 2008;98(9):1685-1692. doi:10.2105/AJPH.2007.125542. U.S. Department of 

Health and Human Services Office of Disease Prevention and Health Promotion. Preventing Tobacco Use Among Youth and 

Young Adults A Report of the Surgeon General. 2012. www.surgeongeneral.gov/library/reports/preventing-youth-tobacco-use/. 

24.  Tobacco Products Scientific Advisory Committee. Menthol Cigarettes and Public Health: Review of the Scientific Evidence and 

Recommendations. 2011. 

www.fda.gov/downloads/AdvisoryCommittees/CommitteesMeetingMaterials/TobaccoProductsScientificAdvisoryCommittee/UCM

269697.pdf. Food and Drug Administration. Preliminary Scientific Evaluation of the Possible Public Health Effects of Menthol 

Versus Nonmenthol Cigarettes. 2013. 

www.fda.gov/downloads/ScienceResearch/SpecialTopics/PeerReviewofScientificInformationandAssessments/UCM361598.pdf. 

25.  United States v. Philip Morris, 449 F. Supp. 2d 1, 71 (D.D.C. 2006) aff’d, 566 F.3d 1095 (D.C. Cir. 2009). Yerger VB, 

Przewoznik J, Malone RE. Racialized Geography, Corporate Activity, and Health Disparities: Tobacco Industry Targeting of Inner 

Cities. J Health Care Poor Underserved. 2007;18(4A):10-38. doi:10.1353/hpu.2007.0120. 

26.  Henriksen L, Schleicher NC, Dauphinee AL, Fortmann SP. Targeted advertising, promotion, and price for menthol cigarettes in 

California high school neighborhoods. Nicotine Tob Res. 2012;14(1):116-121. doi:10.1093/ntr/ntr122 

27.  Waddell EN, Sacks R, Farley SM, Johns M. Point-of-Sale Tobacco Marketing to Youth in New York State. J Adolesc Heal. 

2016;59(3):365-367. doi:10.1016/j.jadohealth.2016.05.013. 

28.  Food and Drug Administration. Preliminary Scientific Evaluation of the Possible Public Health Effects of Menthol Versus 

Nonmenthol Cigarettes. 2013. 

www.fda.gov/downloads/ScienceResearch/SpecialTopics/PeerReviewofScientificInformationandAssessments/UCM361598.pdf. 

29.  Tobacco Products Scientific Advisory Committee. Menthol Cigarettes and Public Health: Review of the Scientific Evidence and 

Recommendations. 2011. 

www.fda.gov/downloads/AdvisoryCommittees/CommitteesMeetingMaterials/TobaccoProductsScientificAdvisoryCommittee/UCM

269697.pdf. 

30.  O’Connor RJ, Bansal-Travers M, Carter LP, Cummings KM. What would menthol smokers do if menthol in cigarettes were 

banned? Behavioral intentions and simulated demand. Addiction. 2012;107(7):1330-1338. doi:10.1111/j.1360-0443.2012.03822.x. 

31.  Levy DT, Pearson JL, Villanti AC, et al. Modeling the future effects of a menthol ban on smoking prevalence and smoking-

attributable deaths in the United States. Am J Public Health. 2011;101(7):1236-1240. doi:10.2105/AJPH.2011.300179. 

32.  Farley SM, Johns M. New York City flavoured tobacco product sales ban evaluation. Tob Control. February 2016:tobaccocontrol-

2015-052418. doi:10.1136/tobaccocontrol-2015-052418. 

 

 
 

289

Item 6.

101

Item 1.

193

Item 9.

122

Item 5.



 1 

 

City of Oroville 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2436   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

        
 DISCUSSION 

In the interest of improved public health and especially for Oroville’s youth, on October 
1, 2019, the City Council directed staff to prepare an ordinance to prohibit the sale of 
flavored tobacco products within the City limits.  
Some of these changes involve amendments to Title 17, which is the purview of the 
Planning Commission. Accordingly, the Commission is asked to review at its earliest 
opportunity recommended changes to Title 17 and Title 5 of the Oroville Municipal 
Code, and to forward the Commission’s recommendations to the City Council for 
action.  

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT Thursday, October 24, 2019 

RE: ORDINANCE TO PROHIBIT THE SALE OF FLAVORED TOBACCO PRODUCTS IN 
OROVILLE 
SUMMARY:  The Planning Commission may consider recommending to the City Council 
adoption of changes to Title 17 of the Oroville Municipal Code in order to prohibit the  sale of 
flavored tobacco products.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Recommend that the City Council adopt changes to Oroville Municipal 
Code 17.04.060, and corresponding changes to Oroville Municipal Code 5.28.010 
 
APPLICANTS: None 
LOCATION:  City wide 

 
GENERAL PLAN:  NA 
ZONING:  NA 
FLOOD ZONE:  NA 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:   Not a project under CEQA (para 21065 & CEQA 
Guidelines 15378(b)(5)) 

REPORT PREPARED BY: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Wes Ervin, Senior Planner 
Community Development Department 

REVIEWED BY: 
 
 

___________________________ 
Leonardo DePaola, Director 
Community Development Director 

Leonardo DePaola
Community Development Director

19

Item 3.

102

Item 1.

194

Item 9.

123

Item 5.



Page | 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Assembly Committees on Governmental Organization, Business & 

Professions, and Health Joint Informational Hearing: 
 

Vaping Tobacco and Cannabis Products: Health Effects 

and Deficiencies in Regulation and Current Law 
Wednesday, October 16, 2019 

1:00 p.m., Room 4202 

 

INTRODUCTION 
This will be the first of two hearings. This hearing will provide an overview of the issues related 

to vaping, including the health effects and regulatory landscape, with testimony provided by 

medical professionals, tobacco and vaping experts, and state government regulators. The hearing 

will also look into the growing popularity of e-cigarettes and vaping, and examine the overall 

impact on youth and general consumers. 

BACKGROUND 
On September 10, 2019, President Trump, Health and Human Services Secretary Alex Azar, and Dr. 

Ned Sharpless, the acting Commissioner of the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) announced 

they would issue a draft ban on most flavored e-cigarettes within several weeks. The agencies stated 

that the announcement was prompted by recent findings from the National Youth Tobacco Survey 

that indicate a rise in youth vaping, with over 25% of high school students stating they have used e-

cigarettes in the past 30 days. Pursuant to a final rule from August 8, 2016, all electronic smoking 

devices (ESD) or electronic nicotine delivery system (ENDS) products would be required to file 

premarket tobacco product applications within two years; however, the FDA had delayed the 

requirements until August 2021. In July 2019, a federal judge overseeing a lawsuit brought against 

the FDA by the American Academy of Pediatrics over the delay of the rule, ruled that e-cigarette 

companies must submit their products for FDA review within 10 months, or by May 2020. However, 

the judge held that these products would be allowed to remain on the market in the interim and for up 

to one year while the FDA reviews the applications. 

 

The September 10 announcement is an indication that the FDA intends to finalize enforcement 

guidance to require any non-tobacco flavored product (i.e. kid-appealing flavors) to be removed from 

the market until an application for premarket approval has been obtained under the Tobacco Control 

103

Item 1.

195

Item 9.

124

Item 5.



Page | 2 

 

Act. To provide a non-combustible nicotine option for adults, tobacco-flavored products will be 

exempt from the enforcement order. However, Acting Commissioner Sharpless stated action would 

be taken against tobacco-flavored products if children start to migrate to those products as well. 

 

Prior to this announcement, in September 2018, Dr. Scott Gottlieb, the FDA Commissioner at the 

time, declared that youth vaping is now an epidemic, and the FDA initiated the Youth Tobacco 

Prevention Plan, which focuses on preventing youth access to tobacco products, curbing the 

marketing of tobacco products aimed at youth, and educating teens about the dangers of using 

any tobacco products. The FDA then issued 12 warning letters to companies that continued to 

advertise and sell products to youth. The FDA also sent letters to five ESD manufacturers whose 

products were sold to kids during the FDA’s ramped up enforcement period: JUUL, Vuse, 

MarkTen, blu e-cigs, and Logic, which comprise 97% of the e-cigarette market. The FDA 

requested that these companies provide robust plans on how they will address the widespread use 

of their products by minors or face increased enforcement. 

 

These federal initiatives are a result of a multistate outbreak of lung injuries related to vaping.  

According to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), as of October 8, 2019, 1,299 

lung injury cases associated with using e-cigarette, or vaping, products have been reported to CDC 

from 49 states and one U.S. territory. Twenty-six deaths have been confirmed in 21 states, including 

three in California. All patients have reported a history of using e-cigarette, or vaping, products. Most 

patients report a history of using products containing Tetrahydrocannabinol (THC) [the psychotropic 

ingredient in marijuana]. The latest national and regional findings suggest products containing THC 

play a role in the outbreak. Health officials are advising that people avoid using vaping devices of all 

kinds, whether loaded with nicotine or THC from cannabis. According to the CDC, the 

demographics of the lung injury cases are as follows: approximately 70% of patients are 

male; approximately 80% of patients are under 35 years old; sixteen percent of patients are under 18 

years old; and 21% of patients are 18 to 20 years old.  

It should be noted that e-cigarettes are not currently approved by the FDA as an aid to quit 

smoking. The U.S. Preventive Services Task Force, a group of health experts that makes 

recommendations about preventive health care, has concluded that evidence is insufficient to 

recommend e-cigarettes for smoking cessation in adults, including pregnant women. However, e-

cigarettes may help non-pregnant adult smokers if used as a complete substitute for all cigarettes 

and other smoked tobacco products. To date, the few studies on the issue are mixed. A Cochrane 

Review found evidence from two randomized controlled trials that e-cigarettes with nicotine can 

help smokers stop smoking in the long term compared with placebo (non-nicotine) e-

cigarettes. However, there are some limitations to the existing research, including the small 

number of trials, small sample sizes, and wide margins of error around the estimates. A recent 

CDC study found that many adults are using e-cigarettes in an attempt to quit smoking. 

However, most adult e-cigarette users do not stop smoking cigarettes and are instead continuing 

to use both products (known as “dual use”).  

104

Item 1.

196

Item 9.

125

Item 5.



Page | 3 

 

According to Jeff Chen, Director of the UCLA Cannabis Research Initiative, to date there has 

never been a study on vaping cannabis. The current vaping crisis has focused attention on the 

substances used to dilute cannabis oil for vaping and little is known about what happens when 

those products are heated. There are also concerns about the devices used to vape nicotine and 

cannabis, which almost exclusively come from China. The federal government has left it to the 

states to create testing standards, while companies in the industry have sought to reassure 

consumers that their cannabis oil does not contain harmful chemicals. California tests cannabis 

and vaping products for pesticides and other contaminants from licensed entities. The lack of 

research stems from a longstanding federal prohibition on cannabis that has further impacted 

health studies on overall vaping products, which happens to be the fastest-growing market. 

 

Within the last month, Massachusetts announced a four-month ban on the sale of all vaping 

products. New York and Michigan imposed bans on sales of flavored products, and the retailers 

Walmart and Kroger announced they would stop selling e-cigarettes. On September 27, 2019, 

Washington Governor Jay Inslee, through an executive order, called for the state to impose an 

emergency ban on all flavored vaping products, including those that contain nicotine and THC. 

On October 2, 2019, Utah health officials announced emergency rules requiring all tobacco 

retailers that sell e-cigarettes to post notices regarding the dangers of vaping unregulated THC 

products, and on October 7, 2019, Hawaii state officials issued an advisory to vaping.  

 

CALIFORNIA INITIATIVES 
On September 16, 2019, Governor Gavin Newsom issued an executive order directing the 

California Department of Public Health (DPH) to launch a $20 million statewide digital and 

social media public awareness campaign to educate youth, young adults, and parents about the 

health risks associated with vaping nicotine and cannabis products. DPH was also tasked with 

developing recommendations to reduce smoking among young adults and teens by establishing 

warning signs with health risks where vaping product are sold, and on product advertisements. 

The Governors’ executive order also directs the California Department of Tax and Fee 

Administration (CDTFA) to develop recommendations to remove illegal and counterfeit vaping 

products from stores and include nicotine content in the calculation of the existing tax on 

electronic cigarettes. On September 24, 2019, DPH issued a health advisory urging everyone to 

refrain from vaping, no matter the substance or source.  

 

DPH, other states, the CDC, the FDA, local health departments, and health care providers are 

investigating what is in the vape materials that is making people sick. In the health advisory DPH 

notes that, “All individuals put themselves at risk any time they inhale a foreign substance into their 

lungs. The risk of vaping for any individual may include serious illness and death. Vaping is not just 

a concern for youth; the vaping cases under investigation affect youth and adults alike.”  

 

 

105

Item 1.

197

Item 9.

126

Item 5.



Page | 4 

 

VAPORIZERS, E-CIGARETTES, AND ENDS 
According to the FDA, vapes, vaporizers, vape pens, hookah pens, electronic cigarettes (e-

cigarettes or e-cigs), and e-pipes are some of the many terms used to describe ENDS. ENDS are 

noncombustible tobacco products. These products, or devices, use an “e-liquid” that may contain 

nicotine, as well as varying compositions of flavorings, propylene glycol, vegetable glycerin, and 

other ingredients. The liquid is heated to create an aerosol that the user inhales. ENDS may be 

manufactured to look like conventional cigarettes, cigars, or pipes. Some resemble pens or USB 

flash drives. Larger devices, such as tank systems or “mods,” bear little or no resemblance to 

cigarettes. These devices are also used to vaporize cannabis.  

 

 

Use of e-cigarettes, now the most popular tobacco product among teens, has jumped 78% among 

high school students compared with 2017, with 20.8% (more than 3 million) of high schoolers now 

using e-cigarettes, according to new FDA data. The data also show that more than half of those high 

schoolers (51.2%) use menthol- or mint-flavored e-cigarettes. Research has demonstrated that 

flavored tobacco products play an important role in youth vaping. Almost a third of the middle and 

high school students who used e-cigarettes in 2016 said the availability of flavors is a main reason 

they used the products, according to a report from the CDC and the FDA. A study that included both 

middle and high school students found that 43% of youth who ever used e-cigarettes tried them 

because of appealing flavors. The majority of youth e-cigarette users think they vaped only flavoring, 

not nicotine, the last time they used a product, according to an annual national survey of more than 

40,000 students from the University of Michigan 2016 Monitoring the Future study, even 

though 99% of e-cigarettes sold in most brick-and-mortar stores contain nicotine. California monitors 

smoking rates among high school students using the California Student Tobacco Survey, 

administered by DPH on a biennial basis. One in eight California high school students currently use 

tobacco products, with the most used product among all student being ESDs (10.9%). In addition, 

86.4% of youth tobacco users reported using flavored tobacco products 

106

Item 1.

198

Item 9.

127

Item 5.



Page | 5 

 

HEALTH IMPACTS OF VAPING 
While there is little research on the health effects of vaping THC, in light of the recent outbreak 

of vaping related injuries/illnesses, the CDC recommends while the investigation is ongoing, that 

people consider refraining from using e-cigarette, or vaping products, particularly those 

containing THC. Adults who used e-cigarettes containing nicotine to quit cigarette smoking are 

encouraged not to return to smoking cigarettes, and anyone who recently used an e-cigarette or 

vaping product having symptoms like those reported in this outbreak, see a healthcare provider. 

The CDC also states that anyone who uses an e-cigarette or vaping product should not buy these 

products (e.g., e-cigarette or vaping products with THC or Cannabidiol (CBD) oils) off the street, 

and should not modify or add any substances to these products that are not intended by the 

manufacturer. The CDC notes that youth, young adults, and pregnant women should not use e-

cigarette or vaping products and adults who do not currently use tobacco products should not 

start using e-cigarette or vaping products. 

 

The CDC’s recommendations are bolstered by a growing body of research on the effects of e-

cigarette use. A survey of recent studies, published in 2019 in the American Journal of 

Respiratory and Critical Care Medicine, Journal of the American College of Cardiology, and 

Cardiovascular Toxicology, found that e-cigarette aerosol with nicotine caused a significant 

increase in heart rate and arterial stiffness, having an acute impact on vascular and pulmonary 

function. A Yale study published in July of 2019 in the American Journal of Preventative 

Medicine, focused on the effects of the common flavoring vanillin, which is banned from 

combustible cigarettes, but allowed in e-cigarettes, and was found to irritate airways when 

combined with the acetals (molecules) in the aerosol, also known as vapor, produced by JUUL. 

A March 2018 Dartmouth study, published in the peer reviewed Public Library of Science 

Journal, concluded that, based on existing scientific evidence related to e-cigarettes and 

optimistic assumptions about the relative harm of e-cigarette use compared to cigarette smoking, 

e-cigarette use currently represents more population-level harm than benefit. The study also 

shows that, for every additional adult who quits smoking using e-cigarettes; there are 80 

additional youth who initiate daily tobacco use through e-cigarettes. 

 

Although there have been claims that e-cigarettes assist in quitting smoking, e-cigarettes are not 

currently approved by the FDA as a quit smoking aid. The U.S. Preventive Services Task Force, 

a group of health experts that makes recommendations about preventive health care, has 

concluded that evidence is insufficient to recommend e-cigarettes for smoking cessation in 

adults, including pregnant women.  

TOBACCO LAWS AND REGULATIONS 
Although there are robust combustible tobacco laws and regulations at the federal level, e-

cigarettes have not yet been the subject of final federal regulations. In 1992, Congress passed 

107

Item 1.

199

Item 9.

128

Item 5.



Page | 6 

 

Section 1926 of Title XIX of the federal Public Health Service Act, commonly called the Synar 

Amendment. The Synar Amendment requires states to pass and enforce laws that prohibit the 

sale of tobacco to individuals under 18 years of age. It also requires federal alcohol and 

substance abuse block grant funding to be applied to enforce state law in a manner that can 

reasonably be expected to reduce the illegal sales rate of tobacco products to minors. Up to 40% 

of the block grant funding can be withheld from states for not complying with the Synar 

Amendment. In response to the Synar Amendment, in September 1994, the Stop Tobacco Access 

to Kids Enforcement Act (STAKE Act) was signed into law in California to address the increase 

in tobacco sales to minors and fulfill the federal mandate. The STAKE Act created a new 

statewide enforcement program authorizing regulatory actions against businesses that illegally 

sell tobacco to minors.  

 

Federal law banning cigarette advertisements on television and radio went into effect in 1971; 

however, smokeless tobacco products were not banned until 1986. The Master Settlement 

Agreement (MSA) is an accord reached in November 1998 between the state Attorneys General 

of 46 states (including California), five U.S. territories, the District of Columbia, and the five 

largest tobacco companies in the U.S. concerning the advertising, marketing, and promotion of 

tobacco products. In addition to requiring the tobacco industry to pay the settling states 

approximately $10 billion annually for the indefinite future, the MSA set standards for, and 

imposed restrictions on, the sale and marketing of cigarettes by participating cigarette 

manufacturers including targeting youth, using cartoons to advertise tobacco products, using 

brand-name merchandise, and sponsoring youth-oriented events. E-cigarettes are not part of this 

agreement. Under the MSA, states must pass laws requiring non-participating manufacturers to 

make payments to the state based on their cigarette sales, and, to diligently enforce the payments 

requirements by tracking all cigarettes sold in the state.  

 

In California, e-cigarettes are included in the definition of tobacco products and the same limits 

apply to e-cigarettes as to combustible cigarettes, including limits on where they may be used. 

Existing California law prohibits the sale of tobacco products, including electronic cigarettes to 

individuals under age 21, but does not limit or restrict the types of flavors of electronic 

cigarettes. Recent efforts at the state and local level have focused on restricting the sale of 

tobacco products instead of advertising practices to avoid First Amendment challenges. Over 30 

cities in California have passed local ordinances that ban the sale of flavored tobacco products. 

For example, the City of San Francisco recently banned the sale of all flavored tobacco products 

and e-cigarettes, including mint and menthol. The Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors 

voted unanimously on October 1, 2019, to ban flavored tobacco products, including menthol, 

taking effect in 30 days from the vote.  

 

Approved by voters in 2016, Proposition 56 increased taxes on cigarettes and other tobacco 

products, including e-cigarettes, by $2.00 starting in April 2017. It should be noted that that the 

108

Item 1.

200

Item 9.

129

Item 5.



Page | 7 

 

current vapor product tax is collected based on a percentage of the wholesale price of the end 

product sold to the consumer. The Proposition specifically allocates $30 million of annual 

revenue to the California Department of Justice (DOJ). These funds support local agencies to 

enforce tobacco-related statutes and ordinances, including reducing the illegal sale of tobacco 

products to minors. Grantees may use grant funds to enforce state and local laws related to the 

illegal sale and marketing of tobacco products to minors and youth including: retailer compliance 

checks, retailer training programs, installation of signage, youth outreach, tobacco retail license 

inspections, and/or preventing and deterring use of tobacco products on school premises. On 

October 2, 2019, the Attorney General announced that 76 local agencies would receive a total of 

$30.5 million in Proposition 56-authorized funds for 2019-20 through the DOJ’s Tobacco Grant 

Program. The local entities, which include school districts, police departments and sheriff’s 

offices, can use the money to hire additional officers and roll out enforcement programs and 

educational outreach initiatives. 

 

In addition to being required to verify the purchasers’ age for tobacco sales, retailers of cigarettes 

and tobacco products in California must have a Cigarette and Tobacco Products Retailer's 

License. As of June 9, 2016, state law expanded the definition of a tobacco product for cigarette 

and tobacco products retail licensing purposes to include nicotine products, electronic nicotine or 

other vaporized liquid delivery devices, and any component, part, or accessory of a tobacco 

product. Effective January 1, 2017, any retailer that sells any product included in the expanded 

definition of tobacco products is required to obtain and maintain a Cigarette and Tobacco 

Products Retailer's License from the CDTFA in order to engage in the retail sale of these 

products. A retailer's license is valid for a 12-month period, is not assignable or transferable, and 

must be renewed annually. A license fee payment is required for each retail location at initial 

registration, every year at the time of renewal. Many cities also have local licensing 

requirements, which may be more restrictive than state licensing requirements. 

 

DPH also enforces the STAKE Act and its enforcement authority includes conducting 

unannounced inspections of retailers selling tobacco products to ensure retailers are not selling to 

youth. According to DPH, it conducted 4,675 compliance inspections and collected $265,100 in 

civil penalties in fiscal year (FY) 2018-19. Currently, DPH is required to notify the CDTFA 

within 60 days of the final adjudication of a retailer’s third, fourth, or fifth violation within a 

five-year time frame, however, DPH did not have any retailers that fit these criteria in FY 2018-

19. DPH received an additional $1.9 million in local assistance funding in FY 2019-20 to 

allocate grants to local entities for enforcement activities. According to CDTFA as of August 1, 

2019, there are 30,685 registered cigarette and tobacco retail locations in California.  

CANNABIS LAWS AND REGULATIONS 
The regulation and study of the cannabis industry is particularly complex. Although the 

federal government considers cannabis a controlled substance, 33 states now allow its use for 

109

Item 1.

201

Item 9.

130

Item 5.



Page | 8 

 

either recreational or medicinal purposes, or both. Hundreds of cannabis products are sold, 

legally and illegally, such as THC oil, or cannabis oil with THC. The FDA has warned some 

sellers of cannabis product supplement not to make health claims, but so many are doing so 

that the agency cannot monitor them all. Liquid nicotine and THC, sometimes sold in 

cartridges for use in vaping devices can each contain oils that may be safe to swallow but can 

damage the lung when vaporized into a mix of unknown chemicals. The CDC has noted that 

many vaping injuries have been linked to unregulated THC products.  

 

California first legalized cannabis for medical consumption through Proposition 215, also 

known as the Compassionate Use Act, in 1996. Proposition 215 protected qualified patients 

and primary caregivers from prosecution related to the possession and cultivation of cannabis 

for medicinal purposes. The Legislature passed the Medical Cannabis Regulation and Safety 

Act (MCRSA) in 2015. MCRSA established for the first time, a comprehensive statewide 

licensing and regulatory framework for the cultivation, manufacture, transportation, testing, 

distribution, and sale of medicinal cannabis to be administered by the Bureau of Cannabis 

Control within the Department of Consumer Affairs, DPH, and the California Department of 

Food and Agriculture.  

 

Shortly following the passage of MCRSA in November 2016, California voters passed 

Proposition 64, the "Control, Regulate and Tax Adult Use of Marijuana Act" (AUMA), which 

legalized adult-use cannabis. In California, licensed cannabis retailers are required to sell 

products obtained from a licensed cannabis manufacturer that have been tested by a licensed 

laboratory. Cannabis products sold by licensed sources are tested for a variety of chemicals, 

pesticides, microbial impurities, and heavy metals. Under MCRSA, DPH was given the duty 

of promulgating regulations governing the labeling of all manufactured cannabis products, 

including determining a universal symbol to be used to mark all edible cannabis products.  

 

DPH’s Manufactured Cannabis Safety Branch (MCSB) released its final regulations in 

January of 2019. Under these regulations, a universal symbol must be placed on an inhaled 

product container, like a vape cartridge, if that container is separable from the outer-most 

packaging, like a vape pen. Existing emergency regulations required the universal symbol to 

be at least one-half inch by one-half inch and to be black in color. 

 

 

110

Item 1.

202

Item 9.

131

Item 5.



Page | 9 

 

CONCLUSION 
Vaping has reached epidemic proportions across the nation and in California. The detrimental 

impact of smoking on health has been documented for many years and much like tobacco-use, 

vaping can be considered a risk factor for vascular and pulmonary diseases, as discussed above. 

Exposure to tobacco smoke is a risk factor for chronic diseases and is considered a human 

carcinogen. Acute effects of secondhand smoke are serious and include increased frequency and 

severity of asthma attacks, respiratory symptoms such as coughing and shortness of breath, and 

respiratory infections such as bronchitis and pneumonia. In addition, using tobacco or being 

exposed to tobacco smoke during pregnancy is detrimental in fetal development and increases 

the risk of sudden infant death syndrome.  

 

The safety and long-term health effects of using e-cigarettes or other vaping products are not 

well known. Relating to the current crisis, federal and state officials have reported hundreds of 

total possible cases of pulmonary disease and several deaths related to vaping. State and federal 

health authorities state that the latest finding from their investigation into lung injuries suggest 

products containing THC play a role in the outbreak, however no single product or substance has 

been linked to all lung injury cases. According to the CDC, “THC use has been associated with a 

wide range of health effects, particularly with prolonged heavy use. The best way to avoid 

potentially harmful effects is to not use THC, including through e-cigarette, or vaping products.  

Although the economic costs of vaping to society is not well established, the economic costs of 

smoking nationwide is more than $300 billion a year, including nearly $170 billion in direct 

medical care for adults and more than $156 billion in lost productivity due to premature death 

and exposure to secondhand smoke. The 2012 California DPH State Health Officer's Report on 

Tobacco Use and Promotion in California estimated that adult tobacco related health care 

expenditures cost California $6.5 billion that year, or about $400 per taxpayer. Those figures did 

not include other health care costs for children, costs resulting from secondhand smoke exposure, 

the value of lost time/productivity, or lives lost.  

 

The Governor’s initiatives are prudent first steps to addressing the growing vaping epidemic but 

more needs to be done to address the long-term health and economic cost of vaping, especially 

curbing its use among the youth. A second joint hearing, yet to be scheduled, will focus on how 

best to solve the problem, and how to identify and address obstacles to reducing the incidence of 

vaping, and the associated health risks. 

111

Item 1.

203

Item 9.

132

Item 5.



 California Flavored Tobacco and Menthol Cigarette Policy Matrix Updated 11/14/19 

Jurisdiction  Extent of Policy 

Products 
Covered by 
Policy  

Menthol 
Included Effective Date Exemptions  Notes Enforcement Grandfathering  

Alameda  
Ordinance No.  
3230 
 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted: 
November 27, 
2018 
Effective: July 
1, 2019 
Enforced: July 
1, 2019  

None No TRLs may be issued to a pharmacy 
 
No TRLs may be issued within 300 feet of a youth populated 
area 
 
No TRL’s may be issued within 500 feet of another tobacco 
retailer 
 
The total number of TRLs within the city shall be limited to 
one for each 2,500 inhabitants of the city  
 
No tobacco retailers shall honor or redeem a coupon to allow a 
consumer to purchase a tobacco product for less than full 
price, sell a tobacco product through a multi-package discount, 
provide free or discounted items, or sell a tobacco product for 
less than full retail price 
 
Cigars and little cigars must be sold in packages of at least five 
 
Sets a minimum price of $7 per package of cigarettes and $5 
for cigars  
 

The City’s Planning, Building and transportation 
Department or any other City department shall 
inspect each tobacco retailers for compliance 
 
A violation of the provisions of this chapter 
within any five-year period may result in: 
 

1. A fine of $1500 for a first violation 
2. A 15 day suspension of the tobacco 

retail license for a second violation 
3. A 30 day suspension of the tobacco 

retail license for a third violation 
4. A license will be revoked for a fourth 

violation 
 

No  

Albany 
Ordinance No. 
2019-04 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 
 

Yes Adopted: 
April 15, 2019 
Effective:  
October 16, 
2019 

None No tobacco retailers shall allow a consumer to purchase 
tobacco for less than full retail price through a coupon, multi-
package discount, or provide a tobacco products for free  
 
No retailer shall sell: 
1. Any little cigar unless it is sold in a package of at least 
twenty little cigars or 
2. Any cigar unless it is sold in a package of at least six cigars 
(this does not apply to a cigar that has a price of at least $8.00 
per cigar, including all fees and taxes) 
 
No retailers shall sell cigarettes, little cigars, or a single cigar 
at a price that is less than $8.00, including all applicable fees 
and taxes 
*the minimum price shall be adjusted annually by increments 
of $.25 in proportion with the Consumer Price Index 
 

The City of Albany Police Department  is 
responsible for enforcing this ordinance 
 
A tobacco retailer’s license shall be revoked if 
the licensee is found to have violated any of the 
provisions of this chapter 
 
After revocation at a location within any 60-
month period: 

1. No new license may be issued at a 
location for 30 days after a first violation 

2. No new license may be issued at a 
location for 90 days after a second 
violation and the retailer will be subject 
to a $250 fine 

3. No new license may be issued at a 
location for one year after a third 
violation and the retailer will be subject 
to a $500 fine 

4. No new license may be issued at a 
location for five years after four or more 
violations and the retailer will be subject 
to a $1000 fine 
 

No 

112

Item 1.

204

Item 9.

133

Item 5.



 California Flavored Tobacco and Menthol Cigarette Policy Matrix Updated 11/14/19 

Jurisdiction Extent of Policy 

Products 
Covered by 
Policy 

Menthol 
Included Effective Date Exemptions Notes Enforcement Grandfathering 

Berkeley   
Ordinance No. 
7,672-N.S. 
 
Municipal Code 
Chapter 9.80 

Prohibits the sale of flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted: 
September 
2015  
Effective: 
January 1, 
2017 
Enforced: 
January 1, 
2020 
Updated:  
July 23, 2019  

None 
  

No new TRL may be issued to a pharmacy or renewed by a 
pharmacy 
 
No new TRL may be issued within 600 feet of school  
 
Little cigars/cigarillos must be sold in packages of at least 20 
and cigars must be sold in packages of at least 6 
 
No tobacco retailer may sell cigarettes at a price less than $8 
per package of 20 cigarettes, little cigars at a price less than $8 
per package of little cigars, and cigars at a price less than $7 
per cigar, including all taxes and fees (the established 
minimum prices shall be adjusted annually) 
 
Tobacco retailers may not honor or redeem coupons, sell 
tobacco products through a multi-package discount, or provide 
free or discounted tobacco products 

A violation of the provisions of this chapter 
within any five-year period may result in:  
 

1. The suspension of a license for up to 30 
days for a first violation 

2. The suspension of a license for up to 90 
days for a second violation 

3. The suspension of a license for up to one 
year for a third violation 

4. The revocation of a license upon the 
fourth violation 

 

Beverly 
Hills  
Ordinance No. 
18-2758 
 
Municipal Code 
Chapter 4-2-21 

Prohibits the sale of all tobacco 
products, including flavored and 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 

All tobacco 
products  

Yes Adopted: 
August 21, 
2018 
Effective:  
September 21, 
2018 
Enforced: 
December 21, 
2018 

None The flavors policy is enforced through a TRL that must be paid 
annually 

A violation of the provisions of this chapter will 
result in: 

1. A civil penalty fine of $250 for a first 
violation within any five year period 

2. The suspension of the TRL for 90 days 
and a civil penalty fine of $750 for a 
second violation within a five year 
period  

3. The revocation of the TRL and a civil 
penalty fine of $1,000 for a third 
violation within a five year period 

No  

Burbank 
Ordinance No. 
19-3.921 
 
Municipal Code 
Chapter 3-4-25  

Restricts the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, with the 
exception of flavored hookah 
tobacco for use in a non-e-hookah, 
to a tobacco bar within the city 
limits 

All tobacco 
products (with 
the exemption 
of hookah) 

Yes Adopted: 
October, 2019  
Effective: 
November, 
2019 
Enforced: 
May 1, 2020 

Ordinance exempts tobacco 
bars (including smoking 
bars and hookah bars) 
 
Ordinance exempts the sale 
of hookah tobacco for use 
in a non-e-hookah from any 
tobacco retailer 
 
 

A tobacco bar is defined as a smoking bar including a hookah 
bar that, in the calendar year ending December 31, 2018, and 
each calendared year thereafter, generated 70 percent or more 
of its total annual gross income from the on-site sale of 
tobacco products and the rental of on-site humidors or hookah 
pipes, not including any sales from vending machines, and is 
registered with the Department. Existing hookah lounges are 
exempted from the 70 minimum revenue percentage as long as 
the business remains in its current location AND under current 
ownership. 
 
This policy not only applies to the sale of hookah tobacco at 
any location, but also to any flavored tobacco intended for 
onsite consumption at any tobacco bar.  Further, it exempts 
existing hookah bars from the 70% sales requirement, which 
might theoretically mean that those shops could begin selling 
any type of flavored tobacco product as long as they still offer 
some (even minimal) amount of hookah smoking onsite.   

Compliance is monitored by the Burbank Police 
Department.  
 
A violation of the provisions of this chapter will 
result in: 

1. The suspension of the license for up to 
30 days for a first violation 

2. The suspension of the license for up to 
90 days for a second violation within a 
five year period of the first violation  

3. The revocation of the license for a third 
violation within a five year period of the 
first violation 

 

No 

113

Item 1.

205

Item 9.

134

Item 5.



 California Flavored Tobacco and Menthol Cigarette Policy Matrix Updated 11/14/19 

Jurisdiction Extent of Policy 

Products 
Covered by 
Policy 

Menthol 
Included Effective Date Exemptions Notes Enforcement Grandfathering 

Capitola 
Ordinance No. 
1031 
 
Municipal Code 
Section 
8.38.130 
 
 
 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted:  
July 25, 2019 
Enforced: 
January 1, 
2020 

None No new TRL may be issued within 1,000 feet of a school 
and/or a public library 

A violation of the provisions of this chapter  
within six months of the first violation 
will result in: 
 

1. A fine of $100 and the suspension of the 
TRL for up to 30 days for a first 
violation  

2. A fine of $200 and the suspension for 
the TRL for 90 days for a second 
violation  

3. A fine $400 and the revocation of the 
TRL for a third violation  

4. A fine of $800 for the fourth and each 
subsequent violation  

 

No  

Cloverdale 
Municipal Code 
Chapter 8.08  

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, with the 
exception of menthol flavored 
tobacco products, within the city 
limits  

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 
(excluding 
menthol 
flavored 
tobacco 
products) 

No  Adopted: 
December 12, 
2017 
Effective:  
November 14, 
2017 
 

Menthol tobacco products, 
including cigarettes, are not 
included in the restrictions 
 
 

Smoking (including tobacco and marijuana) is prohibited in 
enclosed places of employment, public places, sports arenas, 
and multi-unit residence common areas; and unenclosed places 
of employment, recreational areas, service areas, outdoor 
dining areas, public places, and multifamily residence common 
areas 
 
No tobacco retailers shall sell any single cigar or any package 
of cigars containing fewer than five cigars (does not apply to 
the sale of single cigars if the price exceeds $5) 
 
Pharmacies may not sell tobacco products 

Any person or business that violates the 
provisions of this chapter shall be guilty of an 
infraction, publishable by:  
 

1. A fine not exceeding $100 for a first 
violation 

2. A fine not exceeding $200 for a second 
violation within one year 

3. A fine not exceeding $500 for each 
additional violation within five years 

No  

Contra 
Costa 
County 
Ordinance No. 
2017-01 
 
Municipal Code 
Chapter 445-2 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco products, 
within 1,000 feet of schools (public 
and private), parks, playgrounds 
and libraries in the unincorporated 
areas of the county 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted: 
July 18, 2017 
Effective: 
August 1, 
2017 
Enforced:  
January 1, 
2018 

Only applies to retailers 
within 1,000 feet of 
schools, parks, playgrounds 
and libraries 

No new tobacco retail licenses may be issued in pharmacies 
 
Little cigars must be sold in packs of at least 10, and cigarillos 
must be sold in packs of at least 10 unless the sales price of 
one cigar is over $5 
 
No new tobacco retail licenses will be granted to businesses 
located within 1,000 feet of schools, parks playgrounds or 
libraries, or within 500 feet of another business that sells 
tobacco 
 
Sets a cap on the total number of tobacco retailers 
 
Prohibits the redemption of coupons or redemptions 
 
Smoking is prohibited in specified enclosed and unenclosed 
areas and in all multi-unit residence areas, with some 
exceptions 
 

A violation of the provisions of this chapter will 
result in: 
 

1. The suspension of the TRL for up to 30 
days for a first violation 

2. The suspension of the TRL for up to 90 
days for a second violation that occurs 
within five years after the first violation 

3. The suspension of the TRL for up to one 
year for a third violation and for each 
subsequent violation that occurs within 
five years after the first violation  

No 

114

Item 1.

206

Item 9.

135

Item 5.



 California Flavored Tobacco and Menthol Cigarette Policy Matrix Updated 11/14/19 

Jurisdiction Extent of Policy 

Products 
Covered by 
Policy 

Menthol 
Included Effective Date Exemptions Notes Enforcement Grandfathering 

Corte 
Madera 
Ordinance No. 
983  

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted: 
March 19, 
2019 
Effective:  
April 18, 2019 
Enforced: 
January 1, 
2020 

None Prohibits the sale of: 
1. any single cigar ,whether or not packaged for 

individual sale  
2. any number of cigars fewer than then number 

contained in the manufacturer’s original consumer 
packaging designed for retail sale 

3. any package of cigars containing fewer than five 
cigars (this does not apply to the sale of a single cigar 
for which the retail price exceeds $5) 

 
No new tobacco retail licenses may be issued in pharmacies 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Compliance is monitored by the Town Manager 
Any peace officer may enforce the penal 
provisions of the policy.  
 
A violation of the provisions of this chapter  
within a 60-month period will result in: 

1. The issuance of a warning for a first 
violation 

2. The suspension of the license for 30 
days for a second violation  

3. The suspension of the license for 90 
days for a third violation  

4. The suspension of the license for one 
year for a fourth violation  

5. The revocation of a license for five or 
more violations  

 
 
 
 
 
 

No 

Culver City 
Ordinance No 
2019-013 § 3 
 
Municipal Code 
Chapter 11.15 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, with the 
exception of flavored tobacco 
products sold in a hookah lounge, 
within the city limits  
 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted: 
October 17, 
2019 
Effective: 
November 27, 
2020 (for all 
tobacco stores 
with a valid 
TRL as of 
October 14, 
2019) 
May 25, 2020 
(for all other 
tobacco 
retailers) 

The ordinance exempts  
hookah lounges that have a 
valid tobacco retail license 
and continue under the 
same ownership and 
control existing as of 
October 14, 2019 
 

A hookah lounge is defined as an establishment holding a 
valid Tobacco Retail License that: (i) exclusively occupies an 
enclosed indoor space and is primarily engaged in the retail 
sale of hookah tobacco for consumption by customers on the 
premises; (ii) generates more than 70% of its gross revenues 
annually from the sale of hookah tobacco and the rental of on-
site hookahs; (iii) does not sell food or beverages for 
consumption on the premises; and (iv) prohibits entry to 
anyone under 21 years of age  
 

Compliance shall be monitored by the Finance 
Department, Police Department and/or 
Enforcement Services Division 
 
A violation of the provisions of this chapter will 
result in: 

1. The suspension of the license for 30 
days for a first violation 

2. The suspension of the license for 90 
days for a second violation within five 
years of the first violation  

3. The revocation of the license for a third 
violation within five years of the first 
violation  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

No 

115

Item 1.

207

Item 9.

136

Item 5.



 California Flavored Tobacco and Menthol Cigarette Policy Matrix Updated 11/14/19 

Jurisdiction  Extent of Policy 

Products 
Covered by 
Policy 

Menthol 
Included Effective Date Exemptions Notes Enforcement  Grandfathering 

El Cerrito  
Ordinance No. 
2015–08 
 
Municipal Code 
6.100.160  

Prohibits the sale of all flavored, 
non-cigarette tobacco products, 
including menthol flavored non-
cigarette tobacco products, within 
the city limits 

All flavored 
non-cigarette 
tobacco 
products  
(excludes 
menthol 
cigarettes) 

Yes 
(only for 
non-
cigarette 
tobacco 
products) 

Adopted: 
October 2015 
Effective: 
January 1, 
2016  
Enforced: 
October 2017 

Menthol cigarettes are not 
included in the restrictions  

No new licenses may be issued to authorize tobacco retailing 
within 500 feet of schools, youth sensitive locations (parks and 
playgrounds, libraries), residential zones, or other tobacco 
retailers (tobacco retailers already in operation are exempt) 
 
No new licenses may be issued to authorize tobacco retailing 
within 1,000 feet of another tobacco retailer (tobacco retailers 
already in operation are exempt) 
 
Single cigar sales prohibited (except single cigars over $5), a 
package of cigars must have at least five cigars  
 
Tobacco samples & coupons prohibited (except as allowed in 
adult-only businesses per state and federal law) 
 
Hookah lounges, cigar lounges, vape shops, or similar 
establishments are prohibited within the city limits 
 
New tobacco retailers may not operate as a “Significant 
Tobacco Retail Establishment” (use over 20% of the store 
display area for or derive over 50% of gross sales receipts 
from tobacco products or smoking paraphernalia) (existing 
tobacco retailers may seek an exception)  
 
Imitation tobacco products also included in prohibition 
  

Compliance is monitored and enforced by the 
City’s Community Development Department, in 
conjunction with the El Cerrito Police 
Department  
 
A violation of the provisions of this chapter 
within a five year period will result in the 
suspension of a license for: 

1. 10 days for first violation 
2. 30 days for second violation 
3. 60 days for third violation 
4. Upon the fourth or more violations the 

license shall be revoked 
 
  

Existing establishments 
within a certain distance 
of schools, youth 
sensitive areas and other 
tobacco retailers are 
allowed to continue to 
sell flavored tobacco 
products until January 
1, 2018 but they must 
comply with all other 
TRL requirements   

Fairfax 
Ordinance No 
 
Municipal Code 
Chapter 8.44 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted: 
December 6, 
2017 
Effective:  
December 6, 
2018 
Enforced:  
January 1, 
2019 
Updated: 
September 4, 
2019 
Effective: 
September 1, 
2020 

None It shall be a violation to sell, offer for sale, or exchange for any 
form of consideration:  

1. Any single cigar, whether or not packaged for 
individual sale 

2. Any number of cigars fewer than the number 
contained in the manufacturer's original consumer 
packaging designed for retail sale to a consumer  

3. Any package of cigars containing fewer than five 
cigars 

*(This does not apply to the sale or offer for sale of a single 
cigar for which the retail price exceeds $5) 

Prohibits the sale of  tobacco products in pharmacies 

 

Regulations shall be monitored by the Town 
Manger and the Marin County Tobacco Program  

A violation of the provisions of this chapter 
within any 60-month period may result in:   

1. A 30 day suspension of a license for a 
first violation of this article 

2. A 90 day suspension of a license for a 
second violation of this article 

3. A one-year suspension for a third 
violation of this article  

4. The revocation of a license for five years 
for a fourth violation of this article  

No 

116

Item 1.

208

Item 9.

137

Item 5.



 California Flavored Tobacco and Menthol Cigarette Policy Matrix Updated 11/14/19 

Jurisdiction  Extent of Policy 

Products 
Covered by 
Policy 

Menthol 
Included Effective Date Exemptions Notes Enforcement Grandfathering 

Fremont 
Ordinance No 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products,  including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted:  
October 8, 
2019 
Effective:  
November 7, 
2019 

None Prohibits the sale of cigar packages containing fewer than 5 
cigars or a single cigar (unless the retail price exceeds $5) 

Requires a pack of cigars to be sold for a minimum price of $8  

Prohibits the sale of cigarette packages containing fewer than 
20 cigarettes or a single cigarette  

Requires cigarettes to be sold for a minimum price of $8 per 
pack (including tax and fees) 

This ordinance will be enforced by a designee 
named by the city manager or a peace officer 

A violation of the provisions of this chapter 
within a 60 month period shall result in the 
issuance of a notice of violation and no new 
license may be issued to the violator for:   

1. 30 days for a first violation  
2. 90 days for a second violation  
3. 12 months for a third violation 
4. Revocation of the license for four or 

more violations  
 

No  

Half Moon 
Bay 
Municipal Code 
Section 
7.60.120 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted: 
October 2018 
Effective: 
April 1, 2019  

None No tobacco retail permits may be issued to new or existing 
pharmacies (this provision effective April 1, 2019) 
 
No tobacco may be sold from a vending machine 
 
No person shall distribute free tobacco products or coupons for 
tobacco products  
 

The ordinance will be enforced by the county of 
San Mateo, its officers, employees and agents 
 
A violation of the provisions of this chapter may 
result in:   
 

1. A suspension of the license for up to 30 
days for the first violation  

2. A suspension of the license for no less 
than 30 days and up to 90 days for the 
second violation of the ordinance within 
24 months of the first determination  

3. A suspension of the license  for no less 
than 90 days and up to one year for the 
third and each subsequent violation of 
the ordinance within 24 months of a 
prior determination 
 

No  

Hayward   
Municipal Code 
Sec. 10-1.2780  
  

Prohibits the sale of flavored 
tobacco products with the 
exception of menthol flavored 
cigarettes within a 500-foot radius 
of schools (public and private 
kindergarten, elementary, middle, 
junior high or high school) for new 
tobacco retailers (established after 
the passage of this policy) within 
the city limits 

All flavored 
non-cigarette 
tobacco 
products,  
(excludes 
menthol 
cigarettes)  

Yes 
(only for 
non-
cigarette 
tobacco 
products) 

Adopted: 
July 1, 2014 
Effective: 
August 1, 
2014 

Menthol cigarettes are not 
included in restrictions 
 
Retailers that sold products 
before provisions took 
effect are exempt  
 
Restrictions only apply to 
retailers within 500 feet of 
schools 
  

Prohibits the sale of cigar packages containing fewer than 5 
cigars or a single cigar (unless the retail price exceeds $5)  
 
No new tobacco retailers or new sales of flavored tobacco 
within 500 feet of a public or private K-12 school 
 
Vapor bars, lounges, smoking device bars, electronic smoking 
device lounges, and hookah bars and lounges are prohibited in 
all zoning districts 
 
Imitation tobacco products also included in prohibition 
 
  

Regulations are enforced by the City’s Planning 
Director, in conjunction with the City’s Code 
Enforcement Division and the Hayward Police 
Department 
 
Any Tobacco Retail Sales Establishment that 
violates regulations in ordinance three times 
within a three-year period shall be subject to 
revocation of its tobacco retail license and/or its 
conditional use permit  

Retailers selling 
flavored tobacco 
products prior to the 
ordinance effective date 
are exempt  

117

Item 1.

209

Item 9.

138

Item 5.



 California Flavored Tobacco and Menthol Cigarette Policy Matrix Updated 11/14/19 

Jurisdiction Extent of Policy 

/products 
Covered by 
Policy 

Menthol 
Included Effective Date Exemptions Notes Enforcement Grandfathering 

Hermosa 
Beach 
Ordinance No. 
18-1389 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted: 
January 8, 
2019 
Effective:  
June 1, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 

None Tobacco retailers must be located at least 500 feet from a 
youth-populated area 
 
No license may be issued to authorize tobacco retail licensing 
at farmers’ markets, special temporary events, or mobile carts 
 
A TRL may not be issued to a pharmacy 
 
No TRL may be issued for businesses licensed to serve alcohol 
 
Minimum pack size requirement of 20 for little cigars 
 
 
 

Compliance checks shall be conducted by any 
member of the Hermosa Beach Code 
Enforcement Department, Police Department, 
the California Department of Health Services, 
the California Alcohol Beverage Control 
Department, and the Los Angeles County 
Sheriff’s Department, or their designees 
 
Tobacco Retailer’s license shall be suspended or 
revoked for a violation of any provision of this 
chapter 
 
 

No  

Lafayette 
Ordinance No. 
675 
  

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 
 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 
 

Yes Adopted:  
May 28, 2019 
Effective:  
August 26, 
2019 
 

None No tobacco retailer shall: 
1. honor a redeem a coupon to allow a consumer to 

purchase tobacco for less than full price 
2. sell a tobacco product through a multiple-package 

discount or for less than the full retail price 
3. provide free or discounted items to a consumer 

 
Prohibits the sale of tobacco products in pharmacies 
 
The total number of tobacco retailer licenses within the city is 
limited to 1 for each 2,500 inhabitants of the city 
 
All tobacco sales shall be conducted in-person and tobacco 
products may not be delivered to the consumer  
 
 
 

Compliance will be monitored by an agency or 
department designated by the city manager, or a 
peace officer 
 
Any violation of the TRL within a 5-year period 
may result in: 

1. The suspension of a license for 30 days 
for a first violation 

2. The suspension of a license for 90 days 
for a second violation  

3. The suspension of a license for up to one 
year without the possibility for renewal 
for a year for a third violation  

4. The revocation of a license for the fourth 
or more violations 

 

Some tobacco retailers 
operating lawfully at the 
date of this chapter may 
apply for an additional 
180 days before 
terminating sale of 
flavored tobacco 
products 

Larkspur 
Ordinance No. 
1037 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted: 
April 3, 2019 
Effective: 
May 3, 2019 
Enforced: 
January 1, 
2020 

None Establishes a minimum pack size of five for cigars, little cigars 
and cigarillos and prohibits the sale of a single cigar or any 
number of cigars fewer than the number contained in the  
original packaging (this does not apply to the sale of a single 
cigar for over $5)   
 
Prohibits the sale of tobacco products in pharmacies 
 

Compliance will be monitored by the City 
Manager and the Marin County Tobacco 
Program 
 
Any violation of the TRL within a 60-month 
period may result in: 

1. A warning for a first violation 
2. The suspension of a license for 30 days 

for a second violation  
3. The suspension of a license for 90 days 

for a third violation 
4. The suspension of a license for one year 

for a fourth violation 
5. The revocation of a license for the fifth 

or more violations 
 

No 

118

Item 1.

210

Item 9.

139

Item 5.



 California Flavored Tobacco and Menthol Cigarette Policy Matrix Updated 11/14/19 

Jurisdiction  Extent of Policy 

Products 
Covered by 
Policy 

Menthol 
Included Effective Date Exemptions Notes Enforcement  Grandfathering 

Livermore 
Ordinance No.  
2088 

Prohibits the sale of all electronic 
smoking devices and other 
flavored tobacco products, 
including menthol flavored 
tobacco products, within the city 
limits 
 

All electronic 
smoking 
devices and 
other flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted:  
July 8, 2019 
Effective: 
August 7, 
2019 
Enforced:  
January 1, 
2020 
 

None The sale  of electronic smoking devices or electronic smoking 
device fluid is prohibited 
 
No tobacco retailing license shall be issued or existing license 
renewed within 1,000 feet of a youth populated area 
 

Compliance shall be monitored by the Livermore 
Police Department or any other City designee  
 
Any violation of the TRL within a 5-year period 
may result in: 

1. The suspension of a license for 30 days 
for a first violation 

2. The suspension of a license for one year 
for a second violation 

3. The revocation of a license for a third or 
more violations 
 

The licensee may request an alternative to these 
penalties for a first or second violation of this 
chapter, which includes: 

1. The cessation of all tobacco retailing and 
removal of all tobacco products from 
public view for one day, a payment of 
$1,000, and the admission that the 
violation occurred for the first violation 

2. The cessation of all tobacco retailing and 
removal of all tobacco products from 
public view for 10 days, a payment of at 
least $5,000, and the admission that the 
violation occurred for the second 
violation 
 
 

No 

Los Angeles 
County 
Ordinance No.  

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the 
unincorporated areas of the county 
 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted:  
October 1, 
2019 
Effective: 
November 1, 
2019 
Enforced:  
May 4, 2020 
 
 

None Establishes a minimum pack size of 20 for little cigars or 
cigarillos, and these products may not be sold individually  
 
Prohibits the sale of tobacco products in pharmacies 
 
Tobacco shops are required to have a tobacco retail license and 
a tobacco business license to sell tobacco products  
 
 

Compliance shall be monitored by the Los 
Angeles County Department of Public Health or 
any law enforcement officer  
 
Any violation of the TRL within a 5-year period 
may result in: 

1. The suspension of the license for up to 
30 days for a first violation 

2. The suspension of the license for up to 
90 days for a second violation 

3. The suspension of the license for up to 
120 days for a third violation 

4. The revocation of the license for a fourth 
violation 

 
 
  

 

No 

119

Item 1.

211

Item 9.

140

Item 5.



 California Flavored Tobacco and Menthol Cigarette Policy Matrix Updated 11/14/19 

Jurisdiction  Extent of Policy 

Products 
Covered by 
Policy 

Menthol 
Included 

Effective 
Date Exemptions Notes Enforcement Grandfathering 

Los Gatos 
Ordinance No. 
2259 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Limits the sale of flavored tobacco 
products, including menthol 
flavored tobacco, to adult-only 
tobacco stores within the city 
limits 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted: 
May 16, 2017 
Effective: 
January 1, 
2018 

Ordinance exempts adult-
only tobacco stores which 
generate over 60% of gross 
income from tobacco sales, 
do not allow anyone under 
21, do not sell food or 
alcoholic beverages for 
consumption on the 
premises, and post a sign 
outside saying that minors 
are prohibited 
 

TRL language is a replica of the Santa Clara County TRL 
 
Prohibits the sale or transfer of tobacco products to anyone 
under the age of 21 (no exemption for military personnel) 
 
Prohibits the sale of tobacco products in pharmacies 
 
Prohibits new tobacco retailing within 1,000 feet of a school 
 
Prohibits any new tobacco retailers within 500 feet of another 
tobacco retailer 
 
Limits storefront advertising to no more than 15% of the 
window and clear doors 
 

Compliance will be monitored by the Town or 
its Designee; a peace officer may enforce the 
provisions in this policy 
 
Any violation of the TRL within a 12-month 
period may result in:  

1. A fine not to exceed $100 for a first 
violation 

2. A fine not to exceed $200 for a second 
violation 

3. A fine not to exceed $500 for each 
additional violation 

 
For any violation of the TRL within a 24-
month period, permit suspension includes:  

1. Permit suspension for up to 30 
calendar days for a first violation 

2. Permit suspension for up to 90 
calendar days for a second violation 

3. Permit suspension for up to one year 
for each additional violation 
 

No 

Manhattan 
Beach 
Ordinance No. 
19-0016-U 
 
Municipal Code 
4.118.030  

Prohibits the sale of all electronic 
smoking devices and other 
flavored tobacco products, 
including menthol flavored 
tobacco products, within the city 
limits 

All  electronic 
smoking 
devices and 
other flavored 
tobacco 
products  

Yes Adopted: 
December 
2015 
Effective: 
January 1, 
2016 
Updated to 
Include 
Menthol:  
November 5, 
2019 

None 
  

No tobacco retailer permit may be issued within 500 feet of a 
school or an existing retailer 
  

The retail permit may be revoked or suspended 
for two or more violations within a 36-month 
period 
  

No 

Marin 
County 
Ordinance No. 
3698 
 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the 
unincorporated areas of the county 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted: 
November 6, 
2018 
Effective: 
December 5, 
2018 
Enforced: July 
1, 2019 (Non-
Tobacco 
Stores) 
July 1, 2020 
(Tobacco 
Stores) 
 

None It is unlawful for any retailer, individual, or entity to sell or 
offer for sale any tobacco products in the unincorporated area 
of the county without first obtaining and maintaining a valid 
tobacco retailer's license from the County of Marin for each 
location where these sales are conducted 

Enforcement shall be conducted by the Marin 
County Dept. of Health and Human Services 
 
A violation of the provisions of this chapter may 
result in:   

1. An administrative citation and fine not 
less than $200 for a first violation 

2. An administrative citation and fine not 
less than $500/violation for subsequent 
violations   

No  

120

Item 1.

212

Item 9.

141

Item 5.



 California Flavored Tobacco and Menthol Cigarette Policy Matrix Updated 11/14/19 

Jurisdiction  Extent of Policy 

Products 
Covered by 
Policy 

Menthol 
Included  Effective Date  Exemptions Notes Enforcement Grandfathering  

Mono 
County 
Ordinance No. 
18-03 
 
Municipal Code 
7.92.070 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored e-
liquids, including menthol flavored 
e-liquids, within the 
unincorporated areas of the county 

All flavored e-
liquids 
(excludes all 
other flavored 
tobacco 
products) 

Yes 
(only for 
menthol-
flavored 
e-liquids) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Adopted:  
April 17, 2018 
Effective:  
May 17, 2018 

Does not include flavored 
tobacco products other than 
e-liquids  

Prohibits smoking in all areas where smoking is prohibited by 
state or federal law, as well as county vehicles, public parks 
recreational areas, service areas, dining areas and public places 
when used for a public event 
 
Smoking may not occur closer than 20 feet outside any 
enclosed area and from entrances, windows, or ventilation 
systems 
 
* Limited flavored e-liquid sales policy is set to sunset in 
October 2019 and a complete ban on all flavored tobacco and 
menthol products will become effective 
 
Policy is not attached to a TRL 
 
 
 
 

The Mono County Public Health Director or 
his/her designee is authorized to enforce this 
ordinance and to refer enforcement to the Mono 
County Code Compliance Division 
 
Any person or business found in violation of any 
provision of this Chapter shall be guilty of an 
infraction and subject to a fine of: 
 

1. $100 for the first violation 
2. $200 for the second violation 
3. $500 for any subsequent violation 

 
 

No 

Novato 
Ordinance No. 
1615 
 
Municipal Code 
7-8 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, with the 
exception of menthol flavored 
tobacco products, within the city 
limits 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products, 
including 
marijuana 
(excludes 
menthol 
flavored 
tobacco 
products) 

No Adopted: 
January 31, 
2017 
Effective:  
January 1, 
2018 
Enforced: 
January 1, 
2019 

Menthol tobacco products 
are not included in the 
prohibition  
 
Flavored tobacco products 
may be sold if the product 
is: 
1. a package of cigars 

containing at least five 
cigars 

2. a single cigar for which 
the retail price exceeds 
five dollars 

3. pipe tobacco 
4. a package of chewing 

tobacco or snuff 
containing at least five 
units or more 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Minimum pack size requirements prohibit the sale of:  
1. A single cigar (unless the price of the single cigar 

exceeds $5) 
2. A package of cigars containing fewer than five cigars, 

or any number of cigars fewer than the number 
contained in the manufacturer’s original consumer 
packaging designed for retail sale to a consumer 

 
No pharmacies may sell tobacco products 
 
Policy includes flavored marijuana  

Compliance will be monitored by the 
Department or other designated agency  
 
Any violation of this chapter within a 60-month 
period may result in:  
 

1. A warning for a first violation 
2. The suspension of a license for 30 days 

for a second violation  
3. The suspension of a license for 90 days 

for a third violation 
4. The suspension of a license for one year 

for a fourth violation 
5. The revocation of a license for the fifth 

or more violations 
 
 

No 

121

Item 1.

213

Item 9.

142

Item 5.



 California Flavored Tobacco and Menthol Cigarette Policy Matrix Updated 11/14/19 

Jurisdiction Extent of Policy 

Products 
Covered by 
Policy 

Menthol 
Included  Effective Date Exemptions Notes Enforcement Grandfathering 

Oakland 
Municipal Code 
5.91 

Limits the sale of flavored tobacco 
products, including menthol 
flavored tobacco products, to 
adult-only tobacco stores within 
the city limits 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted: 
September 19, 
2017 
Effective:  
July 1, 2018 

Flavored tobacco products 
may still be sold in adult-
only tobacco stores  which 
generate over 60% of gross 
income from tobacco sales 
and tobacco paraphernalia, 
do not allow minors under 
the age of 18 unless 
accompanied by a parent or 
legal guardian, and do not 
sell food or alcoholic 
beverages 
 

An amendment allows clerks aged 18 and older to sell tobacco 
 
Tobacco retailers may not sell tobacco products at a discount 
less than full retail price, including honoring or redeeming 
coupons  
 

 

The City designates the Oakland Police 
Department to enforce this Ordinance 
 
A violation of this Chapter at a location within 
any 60-month period may result in: 

1. An agreement to stop acting as a 
Tobacco Retailer for at least one day and 
a settlement payment to the City of at 
least $1,000 for a first violation 

2. An agreement to stop acting as a 
Tobacco Retailer for at least ten days 
and a settlement payment to the City of 
at least $5,000 for a second violation 

3. No new license may be issued until five 
years have passed from the date of the 
violation for a third or subsequent 
violation 

 

No  

Palo Alto 
Ordinance No. 
5418 
 
Municipal Code 
4.64.030 

Limits the sale of flavored tobacco 
products, including menthol 
flavored tobacco products, to 
adult-only tobacco stores within 
the city limits 
 
 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted:  
October 2, 
2017 
Effective:  
January 1, 
2019 

Ordinance exempts adult-
only tobacco stores which 
generate over 60% of gross 
income from tobacco sales 
and tobacco paraphernalia, 
do not allow anyone under 
21, do not sell food or 
alcoholic beverages for 
consumption on the 
premises, and post a sign 
outside saying that minors 
are prohibited 
 

TRL language is a replica of the Santa Clara County TRL 
 
Prohibits the sale or transfer of tobacco products to anyone 
under the age of 21 (no exemption for military personnel) 
 
Prohibits the sale of tobacco products in pharmacies 
 
Prohibits new tobacco retailing within 1,000 feet of a school 
 
Prohibits any new tobacco retailers within 500 feet of another 
tobacco retailer 
 

Compliance will be monitored by the City or its 
Designee, and any peace officer may enforce the 
penal provisions of the ordinance 
  
A violation of the provisions of this chapter may 
result in:   

1. A fine not to exceed $100 (within a 12-
month period) and a suspension up to 30 
days (within any 24-month period) for a 
first violation 

2. A fine not to exceed $200 (within a 12-
month period) and a suspension of the 
retailer permit for up to 90 days (within 
any 24-month period) for a second 
violation 

3. A fine not to exceed $500 (within a 12-
month period) and the suspension of the 
retailer permit for up to one year (within 
any 24-month period)  for each 
additional violation  

 
 
 

 

No 

122

Item 1.

214

Item 9.

143

Item 5.



 California Flavored Tobacco and Menthol Cigarette Policy Matrix Updated 11/14/19 

Jurisdiction Extent of Policy 

Products 
Covered by 
Policy 

Menthol 
Included Effective Date Exemptions Notes Enforcement Grandfathering 

Portola 
Valley 
Ordinance No. 
2018-425 
 
 
 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted: 
September 12, 
2018 
Effective: 
October 11, 
2018 
Enforced:  
January 1, 
2019 

None No existing or new pharmacies may sell tobacco products 
 
 

Compliance monitored will be conducted 
through the Environmental Health Division of 
San Mateo County Health Department 
 
Penalties for violation of this ordinance include:  
 

1. The suspension of the TRL for up to 30 
days and a fine not exceeding $100 for 
the first violation 

2. The suspension of the TRL for no less 
than 30 days and up to 90 days and a 
fine not exceeding $200 for the second 
violation within 24 months of the first 
violation 

3. The suspension of no less than 90 days 
and up to one year of the TRL and a fine 
not exceeding $500 for the third 
violation and subsequent violations 

 

No  

Redondo 
Beach 
Ordinance No. 
O-3194-19 
 
 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, with the 
exception of hookah sold in 
licensed hookah businesses, within 
the city limits 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted: 
October 15, 
2019 
Effective: 
November 14, 
2019 

The ordinance exempts  
licensed hookah business 
that permits only patrons 
twenty-one (21) years of 
age or older, or active duty 
military personnel who are 
eighteen (18) years of age 
or older, to enter the 
location 
 

To meet the qualifications for the exemption, a licensed 
hookah business must only permit patrons 21 years of age or 
older, or active duty military personnel who are 18 years of 
age or older, to enter the location where the tobacco product 
may be consumed or purchased  

Compliance will be monitored by the Chief of 
Police and other designated enforcement 
officials  
 
Penalties for violation of this ordinance include:  

1. The suspension of the license for 60 
days for the first violation 

2. The suspension of the license for 90 
days for the second violation 

3. The revocation of the license for the 
third violation  

 
 

No 

Richmond 
Ordinance No. 
20-18 N.S. 
 
Municipal Code 
7.106  
 
 

Prohibits the sale of all electronic 
smoking devices and other 
flavored tobacco products, 
including menthol flavored 
tobacco products, within the city 
limits 

All electronic 
smoking 
devices* and 
other flavored 
tobacco 
products 
 
*until approved 
by the FDA 

Yes Adopted:  
July 17, 2018 
Effective:  
April 17, 2019 
E-cigarette ban 
adopted:  
September 10, 
2019 
E-cigarette ban 
Enforced: 
January 1, 
2020 
 

None No e-cigarettes may be sold in stores and online with the city  
 
The ordinance establishes a minimum pack-size of 20 cigars 
and cigarillos, except for single cigars that sell for more than 
$5 each, and prohibits the sale of any single little cigar or cigar 
 
Prohibits new tobacco retailers from opening within 500 feet 
of existing tobacco retailers and 1,000 feet from a school, park, 
playground or library 

Compliance will be monitored by the Richmond 
Police Department 
 
A tobacco retail license shall be revoked if the 
licensee, or any of the licensee’s agents or 
employees, has violated any of the requirements, 
conditions, or prohibitions in the municipal code. 
The enforcement agency may also enforce 
through administrative fines 
 
 

Existing tobacco 
retailers not in line with 
the distance requirement 
for tobacco retailers 
from schools and other 
tobacco retailers are 
grandfathered in unless 
the business changes 
ownership 

123

Item 1.

215

Item 9.

144

Item 5.



 California Flavored Tobacco and Menthol Cigarette Policy Matrix Updated 11/14/19 

Jurisdiction Extent of Policy 
Products 
Covered 

Menthol 
Included  Effective Date Exemptions Notes Enforcement Grandfathering 

Sacramento 
Ordinance No. 
2019-0012 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 
 

Yes Adopted:  
April 16, 2019 
Effective: 
January 1, 
2020 

None No new tobacco retail licenses shall be issued or existing 
licenses renewed to authorize tobacco retailing within 1,000 
feet of another tobacco retailer 

Penalties for violation of ordinance within a 5 
year period include:  
 

1. The suspension of a license for 30 days 
for a first violation 

2. The suspension of a license for 90 days 
for a second violation 

3. The revocation of a license for a third 
violation 
 

Any person violating the provisions of this 
chapter shall also be liable for civil 
penalties of not less than $250 or more than  
$25,000 for each day the violation continues 
 
 

No 

San 
Anselmo 
Ordinance No.  

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted: 
March 26, 
2019 
Effective:  
April 25, 2019 
Enforced: 
January 1, 
2020 

None The ordinance establishes a minimum pack-size of 5 cigars, 
little cigars and cigarillos, except for single cigars that sell for 
more than $5 each, and prohibits the sale of any single cigar, 
little cigar or cigar 
 
No existing or new pharmacies may sell tobacco products 
 

Compliance will be monitored by the Finance 
Department, a designee or a peace officer 
 
Penalties for violation of this ordinance within a 
60-month period include:  

1. The issuance of a warning for a first 
violation 

2. The suspension of a license for 30 days 
for a second violation  

3. The suspension of a license for 90 days 
for a third violation 

4. The suspension of a license for one year 
for a fourth violation 

5. The revocation of a license for the fifth 
or more violations 
 

 

No  

San Carlos 
Ordinance No. 
1544 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 
 

Yes Adopted:  
April 8, 2019 
Effective: 
May 8, 2019 

None No existing or new pharmacies may sell tobacco products 
 
Flavor Policy is not tied to a TRL 
 

The City Manager or designee may enforce this 
chapter.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No 

124

Item 1.

216

Item 9.

145

Item 5.



 California Flavored Tobacco and Menthol Cigarette Policy Matrix Updated 11/14/19 

Jurisdiction  Extent of Policy 
Products 
Covered  

Menthol 
Included Effective date Exemptions Notes Enforcement Grandfathering 

San 
Francisco 
Ordinance No. 
140-17 
 

Prohibits the sale of all electronic 
smoking devices and other 
flavored tobacco products, 
including menthol flavored 
tobacco products, within the 
county limits 

All electronic 
smoking 
devices* and 
other flavored 
tobacco 
products 
 
*until approved 
by the FDA 

Yes Adopted: 
June 27,  
2017 
Referendum 
Vote: 
June 5,  
2018 
Effective:  
July 20, 2018 
Enforced: 
January 1, 
2019 

None No e-cigarettes may be sold in stores and online with the 
county  
 
No new permit shall be issued in any supervisorial district that 
has 45 or more Establishments with Tobacco Sales permits 
 
No new permit shall be issued if the Applicant will be within 
500 feet of the nearest point of the property line of a school 
 
No new permit shall be issued if the Applicant will be located 
within 500 feet of the nearest point of the property line of an 
existing tobacco retailer 
 
No existing or new pharmacies may sell tobacco products 

Compliance will be monitored through the 
Director of Health or his or her designee 
 
For a violation of the ordinance, the Director of 
Health may suspend a Tobacco Sales Permit: 
 

1. For a maximum of 90 days of the first 
violation 

2. For a maximum of six months for a 
second violation that occurs within the 
first 12 months of the first violation 

3. For a maximum of one year for a third 
violation if within 12 months of the prior 
violation 
 

No  

San 
Leandro 
Municipal Code 
4-36 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, with the 
exception of menthol flavored 
tobacco products, within the city 
limits (including flavored products 
that do not contain nicotine) 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 
(excluding 
menthol 
tobacco 
products)   

No  Adopted: 
October 16, 
2017 
Effective:  
August 15, 
2018 

Menthol tobacco products 
are not included in the 
prohibition  
 
Wholesale companies are 
excluded from the 
ordinance if the tobacco 
products made or 
distributed in San Leandro 
are sold by retailers outside 
the city  

No tobacco retailer shall sell, offer for sale, or exchange any  
1. Single cigar 
2. Any pack of cigars at a price that is less than $7.00 per 

five cigars (does not apply to the sale or offer for sale of a 
single cigar for which the retail price exceeds either five 
dollars or the dollar amount adopted by resolution of the 
City Council and adjusted from time to time, whichever is 
higher)  

Compliance will be monitored by the San 
Leandro Police Department  
 
Penalties for violation of this ordinance within a 
36 month period include:  

1. A written warning and 30 days to correct 
violation for the first violation 

2. A $2,500 fine for a second violation  
3. A 20 day license suspension for a third 

violation 
4. After four or more violations, the license 

shall be revoked and no new license may 
issue for the location or tobacco retailer 
until three years have passed from the 
date of revocation 
 

No 

San Mateo 
County 
Ordinance No. 
4799 
 
Municipal Code 
7.41 
 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the 
unincorporated areas of the county 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products  

Yes Adopted:  
June 19, 
2018 
Effective:  
July 19, 2018 
Enforcement:  
January 1, 
2019 

None No existing or future pharmacies may sell tobacco products Compliance will be monitored through the 
Environmental Health Division of San Mateo 
County Health Department 
 
Penalties for violation of ordinance include:  

1. A suspension of the TRL for up to 30 
days and a fine not exceeding $100 for 
the first violation 

2. A suspension of the TRL for no less than 
30 days and up to 90 days and a fine not 
exceeding $200 for the second violation 
within 24 months of the first violation 

3. A suspension of no less than 90 days and 
up to one year of the TRL and a fine not 
exceeding $500 for the third violation 
and subsequent violations  

No  

125

Item 1.

217

Item 9.

146

Item 5.



 California Flavored Tobacco and Menthol Cigarette Policy Matrix Updated 11/14/19 

Jurisdiction Extent of Policy 

Products 
Covered by 
Policy 

Menthol 
Included Effective Date Exemptions Notes Enforcement Grandfathering 

San Pablo 
Ordinance No. 
2018-006 
 
Municipal Code 
5.06 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted: 
December 17, 
2018 
Effective: 
March 2019 

None Requires a minimum pack size for cigars (6 per pack), 
cigarillos (25 per pack) and little cigars (20 per pack) 
 
Requires a minimum price of  $10.00 per cigar 
 

Penalties for violation of ordinance within any 
60-month period include: 
 

1. A suspension of the license for up to 30 
days for a first violation. At the election 
of the tobacco retailer, the tobacco 
retailer may pay a penalty of $1000 in 
lieu of such suspension  

2. A suspended of the license for one year 
for a second violation 

3. The revocation of the license for and the 
proprietor or proprietors who had been 
issued the license shall never again be 
issued a tobacco retailer’s license 
pursuant to this chapter for the third and 
subsequent violations 

 
 
 
 

 

No  

San Rafael 
Ordinance No. 
1970 
 
Municipal Code 
Chapter 8.15 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted: 
June 3, 2019 
Effective:  
January 1, 
2021 

None No person shall place any advertisement or promotion of 
tobacco products within 500 feet of an elementary, secondary 
or high school, public playground or public park unless the 
tobacco product is located inside a commercial establishment, 
on a vehicle, on a sign located inside or immediately outside a 
commercial establishment, or on tobacco packaging 
 
No existing or future pharmacies may sell tobacco products 

Compliance will be monitored through the 
Director of Community Development or 
designee 
 
Penalties for violation of ordinance within any 
12-month period include: 

1. The suspension of a license for 90 days 
unless the permitee submits a training 
plan for the training of all sales 
employees in the law pertaining to the 
sale, advertising, and display of tobacco 
products to minor, and the permittee 
files satisfactory evidence that the 
training in the training plan has been 
completed for a first violation 

2. The suspension of a license for 120 
days for a second violation 

3. The suspension of a license for one year 
upon each subsequent violation 
 

A license shall be revoked after not less than 10 
days’ notice if one or more of the bases for 
denial of a permit exists 
 

No 

126

Item 1.

218

Item 9.

147

Item 5.



 California Flavored Tobacco and Menthol Cigarette Policy Matrix Updated 11/14/19 

Jurisdiction  Extent of Policy 

Products 
Covered by 
Policy 

Menthol 
Included Effective Date Exemptions Notes Enforcement Grandfathering 

Santa Clara 
County   
Ordinance No. 
NS-300.883 
 
 

Limits the sale of flavored tobacco 
products, including menthol 
flavored tobacco products, to 
adult-only tobacco stores in the 
unincorporated areas of the County  

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes 
(revised 
in 2016 
to 
include 
menthol) 
 

Adopted: June 
2010  
Effective: 
February 2015 
Amended: 
October 2016 
Amended 
version 
effective: 
July 2017 

Revised ordinance exempts 
adult-only tobacco stores 
which generate over 60% 
of gross income from 
tobacco sales and tobacco 
paraphernalia, do not allow 
minors, do not sell food or 
beverages, and post a sign 
outside saying that minors 
are prohibited 

No TRLs may be issued to a retailer containing a pharmacy  
 
No TRLs may be issued to a retailer within 1,000 feet of a 
school (existing retailers exempt) 
 
No TRLs may be issued to a retailer located within 500 feet of 
another retailer (existing retailers exempt) 

Compliance shall be monitored by the 
Department of Environmental Health 
 
Penalties for violations of this ordinance within a 
12-month period include: 

1. A fine not to exceed $100 for the first 
violation within a 12-month period and a 
license suspension for up to 30 days  
within any 24-month period 

2. A fine not to exceed $200 for a second 
violation within a 12-month period and a 
license suspension for up to 90 days 
within any 24-month period 

3. A fine not to exceed $500 for each 
additional violation within a 12-month 
period and a license suspension for up to 
one year for each additional violation 
within any 24-month period 

 
 

 
 

No  

Santa Cruz 
Ordinance No. 
2018-19 
 
Municipal Code 
6.07 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 
 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 
 

Yes Adopted:  
November 27, 
2018 
Effective: June 
11, 2019 
Enforced: 
January 1, 
2020 
 

None No license shall be issued to authorize tobacco retailing  that is 
within six hundred feet of a high-risk alcohol outlet   
 
No license shall be issued to authorize tobacco retailing  that is 
within that is within one thousand feet of a school 
 
*This prohibition shall not apply to a license applicant whose 
application seeks authorization to conduct tobacco retailing at 
a location where such retailing was taking place as of January 
1, 2014, and has continued without interruption at that location 
since May 8, 2014 
 

Every violation of this chapter determined to be 
an infraction is punishable by: 

1. A fine not exceeding $100 for a first 
violation and a license suspension for up 
to 60 days 

2. A fine not exceeding $200 for a second 
violation and the suspension of a license 
for 120 days  

3. A fine not exceeding $500 for a third 
and each additional violation and the 
suspension of a license for 180 days  

4. The tobacco retailer’s license shall be 
revoked, and no new license may be 
issued for the location until five years 
have passed from the date of revocation 
upon the fourth and each subsequent 
violation 

 
 
 
 

  

No  

127

Item 1.

219

Item 9.

148

Item 5.



 California Flavored Tobacco and Menthol Cigarette Policy Matrix Updated 11/14/19 

Jurisdiction  Extent of Policy 

Products 
Covered by 
Policy  

Menthol 
Included  Effective Date Exemptions Notes Enforcement Grandfathering 

Santa Cruz 
County 
Ordinance 
No.5300 
 
Municipal 
Code Chapter 
5.60 
 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 
 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 
 

Yes Adopted:  
June 11, 2019  
Effective: 
January 1, 
2020 

None No new license shall be issued to authorize tobacco retailing  
that is within six hundred feet of a youth-populated area 
(private or public kindergarten, elementary, middle, junior 
high, or high school) 

Compliance shall be monitored by the Santa 
Cruz County Health Services Agency or any law 
enforcement officer 
 
Penalties for violations of this ordinance within 
any 60-month period include: 

1. The suspension of a license for 60 days 
for a first violation 

2. The suspension of a license for 120 days 
for a second violation 

3. The suspension of a license for 180 days 
for a third violation 

4. The revocation of a license for a fourth 
violation, and no new license shall be 
issued for five years 
 

 

No 

Saratoga 
Municipal Code 
4-90 
 
 
 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, with the 
exception of menthol flavored 
tobacco products, within the city 
limits 
 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 
(excluding 
menthol 
flavored 
tobacco 
products)   

No  Adopted: 
October 3, 
2018 
Effective: 
November 17, 
2018 
 

Menthol flavored tobacco 
products are not included in 
the policy  
 

No tobacco retailer permit tobacco may be issued to a licensed 
pharmacy 
 
No tobacco retailers established after September 16, 2016 shall 
be granted a tobacco retailer license for a location which is 
within 500 feet of another retailer or within 1000 feet of an 
elementary, middle, or high school or a City park 
 
No tobacco product or paraphernalia may be sold from a 
vending machines 
 
 

Penalties for violations of this ordinance within a 
24 month period include: 

1. The suspension of an existing license for 
up to 60 days from the date of the 
citation issuance for a first violation 

2. The revocation of any existing license 
shall for up to 24months from the date of 
the administrative citation issuance for a 
second or subsequent citation 

No  

Sausalito 
Ordinance No. 
1264 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 
 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 
 

Yes Adopted: July 
2018 
Effective: 
November 1, 
2018 

None Ordinance amends city’s current “Clean Indoor Air and Health 
Protection” municipal code chapter to add “Tobacco Retail 
License Requirement and Prohibit the Sale of Flavored 
Tobacco Products”  
 
Smoking is prohibited in all enclosed places of employment, 
public places, recreational areas, common areas 
 
Smoking is prohibited in all unenclosed places of employment, 
recreational areas, services areas, dining areas, common areas 
that meet certain requirements  
 
Smoking restrictions included for multi-unit housing 
complexes and rental units 

Anyone who violates a provision in this chapter 
will be deemed guilty of an infraction 
 
The City may seek the revocation or suspension 
of a tobacco retailer’s license 

No  

128

Item 1.

220

Item 9.

149

Item 5.



 California Flavored Tobacco and Menthol Cigarette Policy Matrix Updated 11/14/19 

Jurisdiction Extent of Policy 

Products 
Covered by 
Policy 

Menthol 
Included  Effective Date Exemptions Notes Enforcement Grandfathering 

Sonoma   
Ordinance No. 
04-2015 
 
Municipal Code 
7.25  

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, with the 
exception of menthol flavored 
tobacco products, within the city 
limits  

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 
(excluding 
menthol 
flavored 
tobacco 
products) 

No Adopted:  
June 1, 2015 
Effective:  
September 1, 
2015 
Enforced:  
September 1, 
2015 

Menthol flavored tobacco 
products are not included in 
the policy  
 
Flavored tobacco products 
may still be sold if  
1. the tobacco product 

consists of a package 
of cigars that contains 
at least five cigars 

2. a single cigar for 
which the retail price 
exceeds $5 

3. the tobacco product 
consists of pipe 
tobacco 

4. the package of 
chewing tobacco or 
snuff contains at least 
five units or more  
  

It is a violation to sell any single cigar (unless the retail price 
of the cigar exceeds $5) and a package of cigars containing 
fewer than five cigars or the number of cigars contained in the 
manufacture’s original consumer packaging 
 
Limits the eligibility of retailers permitted to apply for a 
tobacco retail license  
  

Decoy enforcement operations conducted 
annually by Sonoma Police Department 
 
Penalties for violations of this ordinance within a 
60-month period include: 

1. The suspension of a license for 30 days 
for a first violation  

2. The suspension of a license for 90 days 
for a second violation  

3. The suspension of a license for one year 
for a third violation  

4. The revocation of a license for a fourth 
or subsequent violations 

 
Violations of this chapter are subject to a civil 
action punishable by a fine not less than $250 
and not exceeding $1,000 per violation  

No 

South San 
Francisco 
Ordinance No. 
1455 
 
 

Limits the sale of flavored tobacco 
products, including menthol 
flavored tobacco products, to 
adult-only tobacco stores in the 
city limits 

All electronic 
smoking 
devices and 
other flavored 
tobacco 
products 
 

Yes Adopted:  
October 9, 
2019 
Effective: 
January 1, 
2020 

Ordinance exempts adult-
only retailer stores, 
significant tobacco retailers 
lawfully established before 
the effective date of the 
ordinance, and hookah bars 
and smoking lounges 
 
 

No tobacco retailer permit tobacco may be issued to a licensed 
pharmacy or renewed by an existing pharmacy 
 
Significant tobacco retailers are prohibited in all zones 
throughout the city 
 

The City Manager or his or her designee may 
enforce the provisions of this ordinance 

No  

Watsonville Prohibits the sale of all electronic 
smoking devices and other 
flavored tobacco products, 
including menthol flavored 
tobacco products, within the 
unincorporated areas 

All electronic 
smoking 
devices and 
other flavored 
tobacco 
products 
 

Yes Adopted: 
October 22, 
2019 
Effective: 
November 23, 
2019 

None No tobacco retailer permit tobacco may be issued to a licensed 
pharmacy or renewed by an existing pharmacy 
 

Penalties for violations of this ordinance include: 
1. The suspension of a license for up to 60 

days for a first violation  
2. The suspension of a license for 120 days 

for a second violation within 60 months 
of the first determination 

3. The suspension of a license for 180 days 
for a third violation within 60 months of 
the prior determination 

4. The revocation of a license for a fourth 
or subsequent violations within 60 
months of the prior determination 

 
 
 
 

No 

129

Item 1.

221

Item 9.

150

Item 5.



 California Flavored Tobacco and Menthol Cigarette Policy Matrix Updated 11/14/19 

Jurisdiction Extent of Policy 

Products 
Covered by 
Policy 

Menthol 
Included Effective Date Exemptions Notes Enforcement Grandfathering  

West 
Hollywood  
Ordinance No. 
16-991 
 
Municipal Code 
5.114 

Prohibits the sale of all tobacco 
products within 600 feet of a 
youth-populated area (school, 
youth center, child-care facility, 
etc.) within the city limits 

All tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted: 
October 2016  
Effective: 
November 
2016 

Tobacco retailers operating 
prior to May 1, 2016, adult-
only facilities, and hotels 
that sell tobacco products 
as part of incidental sales 
on the premises may still 
sell all tobacco products 
regardless of location 

Policy includes a ban on the sale of all tobacco products within 
600 feet of youth populated areas 
 
No new tobacco retailer licenses may be issued for tobacco 
retailers within 600 feet of a school 
 
No new licenses may be issued for tobacco product shops 
within 1000 feet of a youth-populated area 
 
Little cigars must be sold in pack size of at least 20  

Any member of the West Hollywood Code 
Compliance Division, Alcohol Beverage Control 
Department, and the Los Angeles County 
Sheriff’s Department, or their designees are 
authorized to monitor and enforce the provision 
  

Yes, existing retailers 
operating prior to May 
1, 2016 are 
grandfathered regardless 
of any change or 
transfer of ownership of 
the business 

Windsor 
Ordinance No. 
2018-323 
 
Municipal Code 
3-11-115 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, with the 
exception of menthol flavored 
tobacco products, within the city 
limits 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 
(excludes 
menthol 
tobacco 
products) 

No Adopted: 
March 7, 2018  
Effective: 
April 6, 2018 
Enforcement:  
July 30, 2018 

Menthol flavored tobacco 
products are not included in 
the policy  
 
Tobacco retailers may sell 
flavored tobacco products 
if:  
1. The tobacco product 

consists of a package 
of cigars containing at 
least five cigars or little 
cigars  

2. The tobacco product is 
a single cigar for which 
the retail price exceeds 
$5.00 

3. The tobacco product 
consists of pipe 
tobacco  

4. The package of 
chewing tobacco or 
snuff contains at least 
five units 

 

No tobacco retailer shall sell to a consumer: 
1. A package of cigarettes at a price that is less than $7.00 per 
package of twenty 20 cigarettes, including all applicable taxes 
and fees 
2. A package of little cigars that is less than $7.00 per package 
of five little cigars, including all applicable taxes and fees 
3. A package of cigars that is less than $7.00 per five cigars, 
including all applicable taxes and fee. 
4. A package of chewing tobacco or snuff that is less than 
$7.00 per package of five units 
 
It shall be a violation of this chapter for any licensee or any of 
the licensee's agents or employees to sell, offer for sale, or 
exchange for any form of consideration: 
1. Any single cigar or little cigar, whether or not packaged for 
individual sale; 
2. Any number of cigars or little cigars fewer than the number 
contained in the manufacturer's original consumer packaging 
designed for retail sale to a consumer; 
3. Any package of cigars or little cigars containing fewer than 
five cigars. 
4. Any package of chewing tobacco or snuff containing fewer 
than five units. 
*This section shall not apply to the sale or offer for sale of a 
single cigar for which the retail price exceeds $5.00 
 
No license may be issued to authorize tobacco retailing within 
1,000 feet of a school (unless the retailer was operating before 
the date of the ordinance codified in this chapter) 
 
Limits the eligibility of retailers permitted to apply for a 
tobacco retail license  
 
 
 
 

The policy will be enforced by the County of 
Sonoma Department of Health Services 
 
Penalties for violations of this ordinance within a 
60-month period include: 
 

1. The suspension of a license for 30 days 
for a first violation 

2. The suspension of a license for 90 days 
for a second violation 

3. The suspension of a license for one year 
for a third violation  

4. 4. The revocation of a license for four or 
more violations  

No 
 
 

130

Item 1.

222

Item 9.

151

Item 5.



 California Flavored Tobacco and Menthol Cigarette Policy Matrix Updated 11/14/19 

 

Jurisdiction  Extent of Policy 

Products 
Covered by 
Policy 

Menthol 
Included Effective Date Exemptions Notes Enforcement Grandfathering 

Woodland 
Ordinance No. 
1652 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the city limits 

All tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted: 
November 5, 
2019 
Effective:  
April 1, 2020 

None Only existing tobacco retailers are eligible for a tobacco 
license 

A tobacco retail license shall be revoked for a 
violation of this ordinance. After a license is 
revoked, a new permit may be issued  
 

1. After 10 days have passed from the date 
of the revocation for a first violation 
within any 60 month period  

2. After 90 days have passed from the date 
of the revocation for a second violation 
within any 60 month period  

3. After a year has passed from the date of 
the revocation for a third violation 
within any 60 month period  

4. After 5 years have passed from the date 
of the revocation for the fourth or more 
violations within any 60 month period  

 

No 

Yolo 
County  
Ordinance No. 
1474 
 
Municipal Code 
6-15.10 

Prohibits the sale of all flavored 
tobacco products, including 
menthol flavored tobacco 
products, within the 
unincorporated areas of the County 

All flavored 
tobacco 
products 

Yes Adopted: 
October 2016 
Effective: 
May 1, 2017 

None Only existing tobacco retailers are eligible for a tobacco 
license 

Yolo County District Attorney is authorized to 
perform stings for any violations of the TRL  
  
A tobacco retail license shall be revoked for a 
violation of this ordinance. After a license is 
revoked, a new permit may be issued  
 

1. After 10 days have passed from the date 
of the revocation for a first violation 
within any 60 month period  

2. After 90 days have passed from the date 
of the revocation for a second violation 
within any 60 month period  

3. After a year has passed from the date of 
the revocation for a third violation 
within any 60 month period  

4. After 5 years have passed from the date 
of the revocation for the fourth or more 
violations within any 60 month period   

No 

131

Item 1.

223

Item 9.

152

Item 5.



132

Item 1.

224

Item 9.

153

Item 5.



133

Item 1.

225

Item 9.

154

Item 5.



134

Item 1.

226

Item 9.

155

Item 5.



135

Item 1.

227

Item 9.

156

Item 5.



136

Item 1.

228

Item 9.

157

Item 5.



137

Item 1.

229

Item 9.

158

Item 5.





Page 1 

 
CITY OF OROVILLE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

 
TO: MAYOR REYNOLDS, COUNCIL MEMBERS AND CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

LAGRONE 

FROM: JOE DEAL, PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR 

RE: ADOPTION OF BUTTE COUNTY LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 

DATE: JANUARY 07, 2020 

SUMMARY 

The Council will consider adopting the Butte County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan.     

DISCUSSION 

During disasters or large-scale incidents, the Butte County Office of Emergency Management 

(OEM) coordinates the overall response through the Emergency Operations Center (EOC). 

When activated, the EOC provides a central location for responding and supporting agencies 

to collaborate response and recovery efforts in order to effectively and efficiently provide 

information and deploy resources. In non-disaster times the Butte County OEM supports and 

coordinates disaster planning, community preparedness, mitigation, and training. 

In order to remain eligible for FEMA hazard mitigation assistance, FEMA requires that local 

governments adopt, then update a hazard plan every five years. The Butte County Hazard 

Mitigation Plan ( http://www.buttecounty.net/oem/mitigationplans ) provides a framework to 

reduce the impacts of natural disasters on our people, places, and economy.   

The City of Oroville participated in the mitigation planning process to prepare this local hazard 

mitigation plan and the California Office of Emergency Services and Federal Emergency 

Management Agency officials have reviewed the Butte County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

and approve it contingent upon official adoption by the Council, which will demonstrate the 

City’s commitment to fulfilling the mitigation goals and objectives outlined within the plan. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None  

159

Item 6.



Page 2 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the adoption of the Butte County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution No. XXXX 
B. Local Hazard Mitigation Plan; Annex D – City of Oroville 

 
 

160

Item 6.



Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF OROVILLE 
RESOLUTION NO. 8828 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OROVILLE, CALIFORNIA, 

ADOPTING THE BUTTE COUNTY LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Oroville recognizes the threat that natural hazards pose to people 
and property within our community; and 
 
WHEREAS, undertaking hazard mitigation actions will reduce the potential for harm to 
people and property from future hazard occurrences; and 
 
WHEREAS, the U.S. Congress passed the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (“Disaster 
Mitigation Act”) emphasizing the need for pre-disaster mitigation of potential hazards; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Disaster Mitigation Act made available hazard mitigation grants to state and 
local governments; and 
 
WHEREAS, an adopted Local Hazard Mitigation Plan is required as a condition of future 
funding for mitigation projects under multiple FEMA pre- and post-disaster mitigation grant 
programs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Oroville fully participated in the FEMA-prescribed mitigation planning 
process to prepare this local hazard mitigation plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the California Office of Emergency Services and Federal Emergency 
Management Agency, Region IX officials have reviewed the Butte County Local Hazard 
Mitigation Plan and approve it contingent upon this official adoption of the participating 
governing body; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Oroville desires to comply with the requirements of the Disaster 
Mitigation Act and to augment its emergency planning efforts by formally adopting the Butte 
County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan by reference into the Safety Element of the General 
Plan in accordance with the requirements of AB 2140; and  
 
WHEREAS, adoption by the governing body for the City of Oroville demonstrates the 
jurisdiction’s commitment to fulfilling the mitigation goals and objectives outlined in this Local 
Hazard Mitigation Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, adoption of this legitimizes the plan and authorizes responsible agencies to 
carry out their responsibilities under the plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

161

Item 6.



Page 2 of 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Oroville adopts the Butte County 
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan as an official plan; and  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Oroville adopts the Butte County Local Hazard Mitigation 
Plan by reference into the safety element of their general plan in accordance with the 
requirements of AB 2140; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City of Oroville will have this adoption resolution 
submitted to the California Office of Emergency Services and FEMA Region IX officials to 
enable the plan’s final approval in accordance with the requirements of the Disaster 
Mitigation Act of 2000 and to establish conformance with the requirement of AB 2140. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Oroville at a regular meeting on 
January 07, 2020, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
 

____________________________ 
Chuck Reynolds, Mayor 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________ __________________________________                                          
Scott E. Huber, City Attorney   Jackie Glover, Assistant City Clerk 
 

162

Item 6.



Page 1 

 
CITY OF OROVILLE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

 
TO: MAYOR REYNOLDS AND CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

FROM: BILL LAGRONE, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

RE: ADOPTION OF FORMAL MEETING SCHEDULE FOR 2020 
 

DATE: JANUARY 7, 2020 

SUMMARY 

The Council will consider the formal meeting schedule for 2020. The Council may 
adjust times of open session and closed session.  

DISCUSSION 

Each year in January the Council sets the meeting times for Council Meetings. It is in 
the interest of transparency that we adhere to this schedule as much as possible. The 
Community becomes accustom to the Meetings occurring at certain times and it 
becomes confusing when the time is changed.  From time to time it becomes 
necessary to change the time due to conflicts of schedules or complex issues that will 
require more time to discuss and debate.  

Attached is a proposed schedule of meetings and times. The attachment is only a 
proposal. The only significant change is the start time of the meetings. It is proposed 
that closed session start at 4:30 pm and open session start at 5:00 pm. If there are 
several significant issues that require more closed session time the closed session 
could start at 4:00pm or continue to after the regular meeting. This is only a proposal if 
the Council wishes to start at another time, staff will adjust the calendar and distribute 
it in final form after direction is given. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

RECOMMENDATION 

 Provide Staff direction and approve the City’s formal meeting schedule for 2020 

 

 

163

Item 7.



Page 2 

 

164

Item 7.



S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4   1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30

31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S  S M T W T F S

  1 2 3 4  1  1 2 3 4 5

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30

30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3  1 2 3 4 5

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 27 28 29 30 31

28 30

Citizens Oversight Committee (4th Tuesday of each quarter at 6:00)

Executive Committee (2nd and 4th Monday at 9am) 

Housing Loan Advisory Committee (2nd Thursday of each month at 10:00 a.m.)

Economic Development Loan Advisory Committee (meets on an as needed basis) 

Holiday 

APRIL

CITY OF OROVILLE MEETING SCHEDULE - 2020
JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH

MAY JUNE

Planning Commission (4th Thursday of each month at 7:00 p.m.) 

Development & Public Facilities Committee  (meets on an as needed basis)

FINAL 01/07/19

AUGUST SEPTEMBER

Regular Meetings - *Closed Session  ** Open Session 

OCTOBER NOVEMBER

Finance Committee (meets on an as needed basis)

JULY

DECEMBER

Park Commission (2nd Tuesday every other month at 5:00 p.m. )

Arts Commission (2nd Tuesday  every other month at 4:00 p.m. )

City Council (1st and 3rd Tuesday of each month at 5:30 p.m.* AND 6:00 p.m**)

Supplemental Benefits Fund Steering Committee (4th Wednesday of each quarter at 2 p.m)

165

Item 7.





COMCAST California Region
305S Comcast Place

Llvormore, CA 94551-9559

December 27, 2019

City Administrator's Office
City of Oroville
1735 Montgomery Street
Oroviile, CA. 95965

Re: Important Information - Price Changes

Dear Sir or Madam,

At Comcast, we're committed to delivering the entertainment and services that matter most to our
customers residing in your community, as well as exciting experiences they won't find anywhere
else. As we continue to invest in our network, products, and services, the cost of doing business
rises. Programming fees - the cost associated with carrying the programming our customers
demand, especially broadcast television and sports programming - continue to rise each year
and are one of our biggest expenses. While we absorb some of these costs, these fee increases
affect service pricing. As a result, starting February 1, 2020, prices for certain services and fees
will be increasing, including the Broadcast TV Fee and the Regional Sports Network Fee. Please
see the enclosed Customer Notice for more information.

While some prices may increase, we continue to invest in technology to drive innovation. We work
hard to bring our customers great value every day and exciting new developments, including:

•  Xfinity Stream app included with Xfinity TV which has the most free shows and movies
•  Apps like Netflix, Pandora, Amazon, and YouTube integrated on our X1 platform and

easily accessed using our Voice Remote
•  163,000+ shows and movies on Xfinity On Demand
•  Enhanced control of in-home Wi-Fi with Xfinity xFi
•  Advanced security with the Xfinity Wireless Gateway
•  The fastest Internet speeds in the country
•  19 miiilon Xfinity Wi-Fi hotspots nationwide

We know you may have questions about these changes. If I can be of any further assistance,
please contact me at (925) 424-0207 or via email at Mitzi Givens-Russell@comcast.com.

Sincerely,

Mitzi Givens-Russeil

Franchise Operations Manager
Comcast California

Attachment: Customer Notice

166

Item i.



Important information Regarding
Xfinity Services and Pricing

To our streamers, gamers, and online shoppers,

At Xfinity, we love keeping you connected to what matters most We're proud to deliver
exciting experiences you won't find anywhere else.

We want to let you know about some improvements we've made to your services, and
also to tell you the cost of some of our services will be increasing.

Nobody likes price increases, including us, but they happen periodically due to rising
business costs.

We continue to invest in our products and services. These investments lead to big
improvements year after year, including:

• Powerful in-home WiR and a more reliable network with more capacity

• The fastest Internet speeds in the country

• Exciting new technology you depend on, and the integration of the apps
you use every day

You deserve the best, so we won't compromise on the experiences we create for you. As
always, we sincerely thank you for being an Xfinity customer.

Your Xfinity Team

If you currently have a promotional offer or minimum term agreement with your services,
those prices will stay the same throughout your promotional period or contract term.
However, equipment charges, charges for additional features, taxes, and other fees may
change. When your promotional offer or contract term ends, your bill will reflect our new
package prices.

Experience the benefits of Xfinity

Xfinity internet:

With Xfinity Flex, now includeci with
Xfinity liileriiel-urily service, stream your Netflix.
HBO®, Prime Video, music, and more than 10,000
free movies and shows—all in one place on your TV

Enhanced security and control of your in-home WIR
with Xfinity xFi

The fastest Internet speeds in the country, including
1 Gigabit download speeds available to
98% of customers

19 million Xfinity WIR hotspots nationwide

More details on these price changes are enclosed. For
additional information, go to xtinity.com/prlcechanges.
For details on Xfinity features included with your
service, see my.xfinity.com,

Biggs, Butte County. Chico, Corning, Durham, Glenn County, Grass Valley, Gridley, Hamilton City, Magalia, Nevada City, Orland, Oroville, Paradise, Willows, CA

31556000 lOnO-0150,0i90-0200,0230-0360)

168

Item i.



Important Information Regarding
Xflnlty Services and Pricing

XFINITY Internet

Internet/Voice Equipment Rental

Current New

$13.00 $14,00

Biggs, Butte County, Chico, Corning, Durham, Glenn County, Grass Valley, Gridley, Hamilton City, Magalia, Nevada City, Orland, Oroville, Paradise, Willows, CA

P0040R20

169

Item i.



Important Information Regarding
Xfinity Services and Pricing

To our Viewers, streamers, gamers, and online shoppers.

At Xfinity, we love keeping you connected to what matters most. We're proud to deliver

exciting experiences you won't find anywhere else.

We want to let you know about some improvements we've made to your services,

and also to tell you the cost of some of our services will be increasing. Nobody likes

price increases, including us, but they happen periodically for a few reasons. Network
programming fees—^the amount networks charge us to put their channels on our cable
system—go up every year, and they are among our biggest expenses. While we absorb
some of these costs, these fee increases affect service pricing.

We continue to invest in our products and services. These investments lead to big

improvements year after year, including:

• Powerful in-home WiFi and a more reliable network with more capacity

• The fastest Internet speeds in the country

• Exciting new technology you depend on, and the integration of the apps

you use every day

• Thousands of shows and movies available to watch on any screen, for our TV and

Internet customers alike

You deserve the best, so we won't compromise on the experiences we create for you. As

always, we sincerely thank you for being an Xfinity customer.

Your Xfinity Team

if you currently have a promotional offer or minimum term agreement with your services,

those prices will stay the same throughout your promotional period or contract term.
However, equipment charges, charges for additional features, taxes, and other fees,

including the Broadcast TV Fee and Regional Sports Network Fee, may change. When

your promotional offer or contract term ends, your bill will reflect our new package
prices.

Experience the benefits of Xfinity

Xfinity Internet:

The fastest Internet speeds in the country

Advanced security with our Xfinity Wireless Gateway

19 miliion Xfinity WiFi hotspots nationwide

Xfinity TV:

Xfinity Stream app included with Xfinity TV has the
most free shows and movies

Stream apps like Netflix, Pandora, Prime Video, and
YouTube on XI with the Voice Remote

163,000+ shows and movies on Xfinity On Demand

More details on these price changes are enclosed. For
additional information, go to xfinlty.com/pricechanges,
For details on Xfinity features included with your
service, see my.xfinity.com.

Biggs, Butte County, Chico, Coming, Durham, Glenn County, Grass Valley, Gridley, Hamilton City, Magalia, Nevada City, Orland, Oroviile, Paradise, Willows, CA

Bl 556000 (0110-0150.0190-0200, D230-0360)

170

Item i.



Important Information Regarding
Xfinity Services and Pricing

BASIC SERVICES

Broadcast TV Fee

Current New

$10.00 $14.95

PAY-PER-VIEW AND ON DEMAND

SUBSCRIPTION SERVICES

CuriosttyStream On Demand

Current New

XFINITY TV EQUIPMENT

TV Box Limited Basic

Current

HD TV Box Limited Basic

XFINITY Internet

internet/Voice Equipment Rental

Current New

$13.00 $14.00

Biggs, Butte County, Chico, Corning, Durham, Glenn County, Grass Valley, Gridley, Hamilton City, Magalia, Nevada City, Orland, Oroville, Paradise, Willows, CA

P004BR20

171

Item i.



Handouts at 
Meeting 

January 7, 2020



Annex D City of Oroville

D.L Introduction

This Annex details thehazard, mitigation planning elements specific to the City of Oroville, a previously
participating jurisdiction to the 2014 Butte County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) Update. This
Annex is not intended to be a standalone document, but appends to and supplements the information
contained in the Base Plan document. As such, all sections of the Base Plan, including the planning process

and other procedural requirements apply to and were met by the City. This Annex provides additional
information specific to the City of Oroville, with a focus on providing additional details on the risk
assessment and mitigation strategy for this community.

D.2 Planning Process

As described above, the City of Oroville followed the planning process detailed in Chapter 3 of the Base

Plan. In addition to providing representation on the Butte County Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee
(HMPC), the City formulated their own internal planning team to support the broader planning process

requirements. Intemal planning participants, their positions, and how they participated in the planning
process are shown in Table D-1. Additional details on plan participation and City representatives are

included in Appendix A.

Table D-1 City of Orouille - Planning Team

Coordination with other community planning efforts is paramount to the successful implementation of this
Plan. This section provides information on how the City integrated the previously approved 20 14 Plan into
existing planning mechanisms and programs. Specifically, the Cify incorporated into or implemented the

2014 LHMP through other plans and programs shown in Table D-2.

Butte County
Local Flazard Mitigation Plan Update
()ctober 2019

z\nnex D-1

Joe Deal City of Oroville
Police

Attended meetings. Provided hazard identJ'frcation table. Provided
hazard rclated data. Reviewed and provide data and edits for Plan
drafts.

Steve Solano City of Oroville
Pol-ice

Attended LHMP Update and HIVIPC Meeting. Gathered Mitigation
Action Plan information.

Jesse Smith City GIS Specialist Reviewed drafts, provided data

Wes Erwin City Planner Reviewed drafts, provided data

Mike Mixon City Planning
Commission

Reviewed drafts, provided data

Narne Position/Title Horv Participated

City of Oroville rd.



Table D-2 2014 LHMP Incorpotation

D.3 Community Profile

The community profile for the City of Oroville is detailed in the following sections. Figure D-l displays a
i:L-.--.-...,- ---) Ll-- l---L:-,- -f Ll-- F:-. 

-f 
A----ill- ---:-l-:,, D--4^ 

^^---^lLiry rnap anc -rne iocarioii or ffre Llry or ul'ovliie wiTnin iJuTte Loiinly.

2015 City of C)toville General Plan Data was used from the LHMP to create the Safety Element. Under
Goal SAF-7, Policy P7.4 states "use the Butte County Locall{iazal.d
Mitigation Plan as the guide for disaster planning in the Oroville
Planning Area."

2017 City of Oroville Evacuation Planning
Operational Commitee

The City of Oroville developed an Emetgency Operations Plan.

,
City of Oroviile , 2017).

The2O74 LHMP In 2076, a Disaster Council Meeting was scheduled to discuss the
LHlvIP.

I)etails: lloli- lr.urs it incorporated?PlarurinE lVlechanisrn 2()1,[ LFII\IP W:rs
Incorporated,/ Ilnplcnrented Irr,

Butte County
LocoJ I-lazatd Nlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

Citv of Oroville Annex D-2



.Fig'ut'e D-l City of Otouille

s

D

5

oosoo\r
OO-

-_r m ri, e.
a;rt---

E':aBBQs-ooE-t-l-t lo::'l ! I Iur--l I I I

oqfra(fiii:
z3!ci9
uc9!o
L'q6'.i:qlI>lCtr ril +i

I

ssElsBh
{t ..,1
ilF

-.r E

x{I
'-rJb

co
5

{
==J
o.

;i

)
.n

(l)

,]
a

=
(!
a
5
6,)
n
I

c
3)
tD

f
:o
a
1
B
fi{
t1

J

:\z
J:

;...
:./,

r\nncx [)-3(iity of ()rovilleButtc Oounly
Locrl I lazard Nlitigation l)lan [Jpclatc

Octobcr 2019



D.3.1. Geography anci Climate

The City of Oroville is one of five incorporated municipalities in Butte County and is the county seat. The
Ciiiz's incorporated atca consisis of a i 3 square-mile area located 65 miles north of Sacramento, where the
Sacramento Valley meets the Sierra Nevada foothills. Oroville lies 5 miles west of Highway 99 along
Highway 70, a pimary transportation route connecting Oroville with Sacramento to the south and Plumas
County to the north.

Otoville is primarily a single-family residential community with an historie downtown district and a main
commercial eorriclor along Oroville Dam Borlleva,rd. As a cha.rter eit_w, Orovi.lle operates la-rgely tn
accordance with its own City Charter, compared to general law cities, which are governed according to
State stafiites. The City's southern and r^/estern areas are primarily flat river basin lands that rise into the
Sien'a Nevada foothills in the northeast. The eastern portion of the City is located in an urban-wildland
interface that begins the Sierra Nevada foothills, Development in this eastern area occurs in and around
tracts of oak woodlands and chaparral.

D,3.2. History

Oroville is situated on the banks of the Feather River where it flows out of the Sierra Nevada onto the flat
floor cf the California Central Valley. It was established as the heaC of navigation on the Feather River to
supply gold miners during the Califomia Gold Rush.

Gold found at Bidwell Bar, one of the first gold mining sites in Califomia, brought thousands of prospectors

to the Oroville area seeking riches. Now under the enormous Lake Oroville, Bidwell Bar is memorialized.
1^=.4-^ r-il--.^11 D^-- D-il,-- -,- -,-:-:,-^1 --^----^=-! C----- L1-^ ^,-_^ _-^J -L^ C-^r -___--^--_:^-- l--:J*_ :,- n_1't, .,auy urc Druwtrfl D.1r DrruBtr,4Ir urrBr{rar i.ErtlrrailL rr.u,ll] [itE areaatTg IrrE Iirsl suspensioii ur_ioge ii1 uaiilor'nia
(California Flistorical Landmark i+314).In the early 20th century the Western Pacific Railroad completed
consbuction of the all-weather Feather River Canyon route through the Sierra lJevadas giving it the
.;-1,-.*^ ^c '('FL^ D--r!.^. Di'.'^. D^',t^'r (1.^,,i!!^ ..,^,.|J ^^-.,^ ^.. ^- i--^* 4'^- rL^ f^-^.,^trluNll4lltl ur r rrt r'eaLllul t\rvgl r\\JULU . iiiUViiiU WUiiiLi SrJiVg aJ ati iilipuiiaiiI StiJp iUf iiie iamoiis
California Zephyr during its 20-year run. In I 983, this became a part of the Union Pacific Railroad as their
Feather River Canyon Subdivision. A major highway, State Route 70, roughly paraliels the railroad line
through the canyon.

The Chinese Temple (CHL #770) and listed on the National Register of Historic Places is another
monument to Oroville's storied past. Chinese laborers from the pioneer era established the Temple as a
place of worship for followers of Chinese Popular Religion and the three major Chinese religions: Taoism,
Buddhism, and Confucianism. The Chinese Temple and Garden, as it is now called, has an extensive
collection ofarlifacts and a serene garden to enjoy.

Ishi, Oroville's most famous resident, was the last of the Yahi Indians and is consideredthe last "stone
Age" Indian to come out of the wilderness and into western civilization. When he appeared in Oroville
around 191 1, he was immediately thrust into the national spotlight.

Buttc County
Loca.l L laz.artl Vlitiganon Plan Updatc
()ctober 2019

(litv of ()roville r\nncx D-4



D.3.3. Economy andTax Base

US Census estimates show economic characteristics for the City of Oroville. These are shown in Table

D-3 and Table D-4. Mean household income in the City was $56,328. Median household income in the

City was 546,233.

Table D-3 City of Orcuille - Ciuilian Employed Population 16 years and Ovet

Source: US Census Bureau American Community Survey 2013-2017 Estimates

Table D-4 City of Orouille - Income and Benefits

Source: US Census Bureau,2010

According to the US Census, the retail trade business sector brings in the most revenue in Oroville; in20l2
(the most recent data as of the writing of this Plan), this sector generated approximately $396 million in

Butte County
Local I-Iazard Nlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

1.26 2.00hAgriculture, forestry, fishing and hunting, and mining

431. 7.0%Construct-ion

351 5.7o/oManufacturing

134 2.2%Wholesale trade

692 77.2o/oRetail trade

r87 3.0%Transportation and warehousing, and utilities

81 7.30Information

385 6.2YoFinance and insurance, and teal estate and rental and leasing

415 6.70hProfessional, scientific, and management, and administative and waste management

services

7,606 25.9o/oEducational services, and health cate and social assistance

966 16.7YoArts, entertainment, and recteation, and accommodation and food services

4.0%247Other services, except public administration

547 8.9VoPublic administration

Estirnated Pc'rcent
Emplovment

Industn'

552 8.90h<$10,000

539 9.70h$1o,ooo -ff1.4,999

1.J01. 1,7.80h$15,ooo - ff24,9999

860 1.3.90$25,000 -$34,999
1,006 16.30k$35,000 -fi49,9ee
1,100 17.8%$50,ooo -fi74,999
493 8.00k$75,ooo -$99,999
340 5.5%$100,000 -fi149,9ee

1.20k74$150,000 - $199,999

105 1.7Vo$200,000 or rnore

Income Bracket Poptrlation Percent

City of Oroville Annex D-5



revenue, which was about 39 percent of total industry revenue in Oroville. Manufacturing was next at 31
percent of total revenue, followed by health care and social assistance at 20 percent. Together these top
business sectors made up alrnost 90 percent of Oroville's tstal business sales and revenue.

According to the City of Oroville 2030 General Plan Economic Development Element, similar to the sales
and revenue data discussed above, the health care and social assistance, retail trade, and manufacturing
sectors employ the most pecple in Oro.,'ille, together comprising about 75 percent of the total employees in
the City. Largest pmployers in the City and their employment counts, from the Butte County Auditor's
Qfftgg, are listed bclow:

D.3.4. Population

The Califomia Departrnent of Finance estimated the January 1,2019 total population for the City of
Oroville was21,773.

D.4 Hazatd,Identification

Oroville's planning team identified the hazards that affect the City and summarized their location, extent,
frequency of occurrence, potential magnitude, and significance specific to Oroville (see Table D-5).

Butte County
Local L lazard Nlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

Oity of Otovilie Annex D-6



Table D-5 Ci4, of Orouille-I{azatd fdentifrcation Assessrnent

Climate Change Extensive Likely Limit.ed Low

Dam Failure Extensive Unlikely Catastrophic High Medium

Drought & $Vater shortage Limited Likely Negligible Medium High

Earthquake and Liquefaction Significant Occasional Critical Medium Low

Floods:700/200/5O0yeat Significant Occasional Critical Nledium Medium

Floods: Localized Stormwater Significant Occasional Critical Medium Medium

Hazardors Materiais
Transportation

Highly Likely Negligible LowLimited Low

Invasive Species: Aquatic Significant Occasional Critical Low Medium

InvasiveSpecies:Pests/Plants Limited Unlikeiy Negligible Low Low

Landslide, Mudslide, and
Debtis Flow

Limited LowUnlikely Negligible Low

Levee Failure Significant Likely Medium MediumLimired

Severe Weather: Extreme Fleat Limited Highly Likely Negligible Nledium High

Severe Weather: Fteeze znd
rVinter Storm

Negligtble Medium MediumSignificant Occasional

Severe \Weathet: Heavy Rarn
and Storms (Hail, Lightning,
!7ind)

Limited N{edium MediumSignificant Likely

Severe lTeather: !7ind and
Tornado

LowExtensive Unlikely Catastrophic Low

Stream Bank Erosion Limited Unlikely Low LowLimited

Volcano Significant Unlikely Critical Low Low

Wildfte Extensive Highly Likeiy Critical Hlgh Hish

Geographic Extent
Limited: Less than I)oh of planr:'ng
a.te

SigniEcant: l0-50oh of planning area
Extensive: 5l-100oh of planning area
Likelihood of Future Occurrences
Highly Likely: Near 100%o chance of
occurrence in next year, or happens
evefy year.
Likely: Between 10 and 10070 chance of
occuffeflce in next yeat, othas a

recurrence interval of 10 years or less.

Occasional: Between 1 and 1,0oh chance
of occurrence in the next yeat, ot has a
recurrence interval of 11 to 100 years.
Unlikely: Less than 7oh chance of
occurrence in next 100 yeats, or has a
tecurrence interval ofgreater than every
100 years.

Magnitude/Severity
Catastrophic-More than 50 percent of property severely damaged;
shutdown of facilities for more than 30 days; andf or multiple deaths
Citttcal-2l-SO percent of property severely damaged; shutdown of facilities
for at least two weeks; andf or injuries and/or illnesses result in permanent
disabiliry
Limited-10-25 percent of property severely damaged; shutdown of facilities
fot more than a week; and,/or iniudes/illnesses treatable do not result in
permanent disability
Negligible-Less than 10 percent of property severely damaged, shutdown
of faci.lities and services for less than 24 hours; and/or injuries/illnesses
tteatable with fust aid
Significance
Low: minimal potential impact
Medium: moderate potential impact
High: widespread potential impact
Climate Change Influence
Low: minimal potential impact
Medium: moderate potentiai impact
High: widespread potential impact

Geogtaphic
Extent

Likelihood of
Future
Oct:ttrrences

lVlagnittrdc/
Severifl,

Climate
Change

Signilicance Inl'luenceI:lazatd

Butte County
Local Flazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

Citv of Oroville Annex D-7



D.5 Hazard Profile and Vulnerability Assessment

The intent of this section is to profile Oroville's hazards and assess the City's vulnerability separate from

that of the Planning Area as a whole, which has already been assessed in Sections 4.2Hazard Profiles and

4.3 Vuinera'oilify Assessmeni in the Base Plan. Thehazard pi'ofiies iir the Base Plarr diseuss overall impacts

to the Planning Area and describes the hazard problem description, hazard location and extent,

magnitude/severity, previous cccuffences of haza,rdevents and the likelihood of future occulrences. Hazard

profile information specific to the City is included in this annex. This vulnerability assessment analyzes

the properry, population, critical facilities, and other assets at risk to hazards ranked of medium or high

significance specific to the City and also includes a vulnerability assessment to the three primary haaards

to the State of California: earthquake, flood, and wildfire. For more information about how hazards affect

the Counfy as a whole, see Chapter 4 Risk Assessment in the Base Plan.

D.5.1. Hazard Profiles

Eac,hhazardvulnerability assessment in Section D.5.3, includes ahazardprofile/problem description as to

lrow each medium or high significant hazard affects the City and includcs information on past hazard

occurrences. The intent of this section is to provide jurisdictional specific information on hazards and

fuither describe how the hazards and risks differ across the Planning Area.

D.5.2. Vulnerability Assessment and Assets at Risk

This section identifies Oroville's total assets at risk, including values at risk, populations at risk, critical

facilities and infrastructure, natural resources, and historic and cultural resources. Growth and development

trends are also presented for the community. This data is not hazard specific, but is representative of total

assets at risk within the community.

17,r____ _- n:^f
v arues at r.Jsrs.

The following data from the Butte County Assessor's Office is based on the 312812019 (post-Camp Fire)

Assessor's data. The methodology used to derive property values is the same as in Section 4.3.1 of the

Base Plan. This data should only be used as a guideline to overall values in the County, as the information
L^^ ^^-^ li*i+^+i^-^ 'rL^ -^-+ ^:^^ifi^^^+ l:*:+^+:^- i- ^-^^r^A L-, D.^^^.lfi^- 1 ? --l fL- \trI:ll:-*.^- A ^+iiAJ ;UiiiU iiiilitaljuliij. t Ittr liIUSL biBilif lu(tifL iiiliiLclLiUii iD viEAIEU UJ i iUPUolLlVlr I J 4llu Lllu Yv llll4llrDvll ^vt
as detailed in the Base Plan. With respect to Proposition 13, instead of adjr:sting propertv values ann':ally,

the values are not adjusted or assessed at fair market value until a property transfer occurs. As a result,

overall value information is most likely low and does not reflect current market value of properties within

the County. It is also important to note, in the event of a disaster, it is generally the value of the

infrastructure or improvements to the land that is of concem or at risk. Generally, the land itself is not a

loss. However, depending on the type of hazard and impact of any givenhazard event, land values may be

adversely affected; thus, land values are included as appropriate. Table D-6 shows the 312812019 Assessor's

values (e.g., the values at risk) broken down by property type for the City of Oroville.

Butte County
l,ocal Hazard Nlitigation Plan Updatc
Octobcr 2019

Oity of Oroville ;\nnex D-8



Table D-6 City of Otowlle - Total Values at Risk by Prcpeny Use

Source: Butte County 9 Parcel/Assessor's Data

The City Planning Team noted late in the Planning Process that mapping for the City provided by Butte

County did not account for annexations that had occurred since 2012. These annexations are shown on

Figure D-2. Due to its late inclusion, GIS analysis of these annexed areas was not perfotmed. The map is

included here for reference purposes only.

Figure D-2 City of Orouille - Annexations since 2012

Source: City of Oroville

$o $1,299,023fi7,e47fir,297,076 $o9 0Agricultural

$338,951.,493 $706,417,5't2$338,957,493 $19,007,806699 fi1,07,833,747Commercial 1,042

$60,148,157 $192,568,485fi40,098,777 fi42,318,61072 fi26,057,297Industdal 227

fi882,337,953$7,000 fi252,405,359$185,105,000 $504,810,7185,705 4,728Residential

fi377,654$ $0$64,518 $374,266162 2Unknown

$1,783,000,627$61,34L,363 $651,505,009$320,351,638 $884,175,2487,145 5,501City of Oroville
Total

Total Imptoved Total Land
Parcel Parcel Value
Count Counf

Impro'r,etl
Structure
Value

Other Value Estimatetl
Contertts
Value

Total ValuePropertr Use

Annexations since 2012

!lo.rovm
lcmttts-sm
!s.rr-rulAo-
!sr*a-rulm

o o25 05

Butte County
L,ocoJ Flazard tvlitigation Plan Update

October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-9



Population and Special Populations at Risk

General Population

As previously described in the commu-nity profile, based on Califomia f)epartment of Finanee estimates,

the eur+ent January I , 2A1.9 total populatisn f,or the City of Oroville was 2l ,773 , all of which are potentially

vulnerable to hazar d, events.

Special Populations and Disadvantaged Communities

The City of Oroville 2030 General Plan Land Use Element noted that Senate Bill (SB) 244 requires that the

Land Use Element identiff Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities (DUCs) within the City's SOI,

analyze infrastructure and fire service needs and deficiencies, and assess potential funding mechanisms for

expansions of services and facilities. DUCs are defined as follows:

for more than 50 years; and

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities in Oroville's SOI The DUCs within Oroville's SOI are shown

in Figure D-3. These communities were mapped using the following steps:

that are less than 80 percent cf the statewide median (based on 2010 Census data).

ciata. Communities are defineci as having ten or more

As shown in Figwe D-3, ihere are nine DUCs in Oroville's SCI ranging in size from 9 acres to 1,940 acres.

Some mapped DUCs encompass multiple communities that are adjacent to one another.

Butte County
Local Elazatd Nlitigation Plan Update

October 2019

City of Oroville z\nnex D-10



Figure D-3 City of Otouille - Disadvantaged Communities

Source: City of Oroville 2030 General Plan Land Use Element

I
E

J
It
I I

i3
tttt66

ii il
I
I

II

I
II

..j''':i,

Butte County
LocoJ Llazard Nlitigation Plan Update

October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-11



The Ciry of Oroville recognizes special populations and implemented the Butte County Precautionary

Emergency Evacuation Plan for Special Needs population. This Plan was activated during the Oroville
n^- /--:^:^ :^ a/.)11rJaltl \-l rJlJ ttt Lv L t .

Ctitical Facilities and fnftas ttucture

For purposes of this plan, a critical facility is defined as

Any facilityo including without limitation, a structute, inftasttucture, propetty,
equipment ot setuice, that if advetsely affected during a hazatd event may result in
sevete conseqluences to public heahh and safety or intemtpt essential setuices and
operations for the communiqr at any time before, dudng and aftet the hazard event

A critical facility is classified by the following categories: (1) Essential Services Facilities and, (2) At-Risk
Populations Facilities, as discussed in Section 4.3. I of the Base Plan.

An inventory of critical facilities in the City of Oroville from Butte County GIS is shown on Figure D-4.
Table D-7 gives summary information about the critical facilities in the City. Table D-8 details the facility
categories and breaks them ciown by facility type. Details of critical facility definition, type, name, address,

and jurisdiction by hazardzone are listed in Appendix F.

Butte County
Locil l-luz,ard lVlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-12



$f
tst{* rJ

3

I
0rl-ll t

E

n
3

it
al

Figure D-4 City of Orouille - Ctitical Facilities r
I

a
6t

d

!
F

T

I
I
T

d

I
I
I
I

o

$
Annex D-13City of OrovilleButte County

Local blazatd Nlitigation Plan Update
October 2019



Essential Services Facilities 40

At Risk Population Facitties 20

City of Oroville Total 60

Critical Facilin Catr:gon' Iacilitr Curnrt

Table D-7 City of Orouille - Critical Facilit-v Summaty

Source: County GLS

Table D-8 City of Orouille - Cdtical Facilities by Facility Type

Soufce: Butte County GIS

It{atatal Resoutces

Biological communities in the City of Oroville Planning Area were siguificantly impacted beginning in the
mid-1800s as the area was first hydraulically mined, and later dredged for gold, as well as developed for
agriculture. Despite these human modifications to the natural environment, important biological resources
continue to exist in and around Oroville.

Within the Planning Area, several regional parks and other protected public lands contain sensitive
biological habitats (e.g. riparian, oak woodland and vemal pool) and may support State and federally listed
species. These lands inchude the Thermalito Afterbay, Thermalito Forebay, Oroville Wildlife Area and
other natural lands managed by the Califomia Department of Fish and Game (DFG), California Department
of Parks and Recreation (DPR) and the Feather River Recreation and Parks District. Although not in the
Planning Area, nearby open space and wildemess areas such as the Plumas National Forest and North Table

Buttc County
I-ocal Flazard Nlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

Wsstewater Treatrrrent-PlaA.t--- 7- .--, -.,.-.

Fire J

Health Care 79

Law Enforcement J

Public Assembly Point / Evacuat-ion Center 2

Radio Sites 5

Logistics Hub 6

Emergency Operation Center 1

DOC 1

Emergency Animal' Sheker-

Essential Servicesllasilities Tofdt -**---- *--

School 20

4tr ---

Grand Total

At Risk Facilities Total 20

60

At Risk Population Fat:ilirit's

iraeiliil Cr>uctCritical Facilii,r, Catcgor'r 7/ [iar:ilitv T-1 pc

Essential Sertite s i;at iiiric"

City of Oroville z\nnex D-'[4



Mountain Wildlife Area provide important biological resources to the region. Wide-ranging wildlife

species (e.g. blacktailed deer, osprey, golden eagle, bald eagle and numerous species of migratory birds)

within these areas could migrate through or forage in the Planning Area. Important biological resources in

the Planning Area are described in greater detail below.

Nine main types of biological communities occur in the Planning Area. These nine communities include:

Planning Area but are concentrated in the eastern half of the Planning Area in a mostly rural setting,

with extensive woodlands occurring around Lake Oroville.

portioor of the Feather River, Thermalito Afterbay and Forebay, Thermalito Diversion Pool and along

orr*.ror5 perennial and ephemeral drainages in the eastern portion of the Planning Area. Riparian

woodlandJare also commonly associated with dredge tailings throughout the Planning Area.

annual grasslands occur primarily in the western half of the Planning Area and are typically gtazing

pastures=for livestock. Annual grasslands also form the understory for foothill pine-blue oak woodland

and occur on vacant parcels in developed areas.

the south-facing slopes of South Table Mountain. Small scattered areas of chapanal are also present

within the understory of woodlands throughout the Planning Area.

and rice fields occur predominantly in mostly flat areas in the northwest portion of the Planning Area

along Highway 99. Within the Planning Area small olive groves occur on hillsides in the southeastern

portion and citrus orchards in the southwest corner.

should be given special consideration in the Planning Area because they provide a variety of important

ecologicalhnctions and essential habitat for wildlife resources. Natural wetland habitats are steadily

declining compared to their historical distribution, as a result of land management practices and

development activities. Four types of wetlands occur in the Planning Area.

concentrated in the areai shown on Figure D-5. The largest area of vernal pools is located north and

south of Cottonwood Road between Highways 99 and 70; these pools are northern volcanic mud flow

vernal pools. Vernal pools in the Planning Area occur within annual grasslands and represent a variety

of pooi types, including northern hardpan and northern volcanic mud flow pools. Vernal pools may

o""u1. u, inaiviauat pools with discrete boundaries or be connected with other vernal pools via vernal

swales to form a vernal pool complex. Vernal swales consist of vernal pools that occur within shallow,

linear depressions.

Figure i-5. Th.r" drainag-s are typically associated with riparian habitat described above and may

support patches of freshwa-ter marsh. Primary drainages within the Planning Area include the Feather

Rivir, Cbttonwood Creek, Little Cottonwood Creek, Wyman Ravine, Wyndotte Creek and the Western

Canal.

margins of flooded rice fields adjacent to Highway 99. Drainages and open water habitats in the

Planning Area may also support patches of freshwater marsh.

River in the western portion of the Planning Area formed by earthen dams. The Thermalito Afterbay

and Thermalito Forebay provide resting and foraging habitat for migratory waterfowl traveling along

the Pacific Flyrrvay. The Thermalito Afterbay is part of the larger Oroville Wildlife Area (shown on

Butte County
Local L'lazard &Iitigation Plan Update
()ctober 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-15



Figure D-5). The eastern portion of the preserve surrounding the Feather River contains numerous

dredge tailings and bon'ows pits.

Butte County
l.oca,l [lazard tu[ittgation P]an I Indatc
()ctober 2019

City of Otoville ;\nnex I)-1(r



Figute D-5 Vemal Pools and Dninage Cortidots in Otouille

Source: City of Oroville 2030 Genetal Plan Open Space, Natural Resources, and Conservation Element

;-.oOa
la
6O:u

a
5
t
-
o
a
I
ra

o
o

rl
aa

tt
I

i
N

lr
li
i|

I
II

t
I

il
II

K\

l
il v

J
.--i

I
\

It et

I

J /

Butte County
Local Llazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-17



The distribution of biological communities in the Planning Area is closely associated with topography and

hydrology. Some of the flat valley area supports agricultural lands, the hilly portions support most of the

remaining grassland and woodland communities and stream corridors support riparian communities.

The California Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB) is a "natural heritage program" and is part of a

nationwide network of similar programs overseen by NatureServe (formerly part of The Nature
Conservancy). All natural heritage programs provide location and natural history information on special

status plants, animals, and natural communities to the public, other agencies, and conservation
organizations. The data help drive conservation decisions, aid in the environmental review of projects and
land use changes, and provide baseline data helpful in recovering endangered species and for research

projects. Spatial information regarding these program areas in the City of Oroville is shown on Figure D-6.

Butte County
I ^..1 ll^.^.4 l\/r:ri^"+;,,- Dl-- I l^,1,,r-

October 2019

City of Oroville Anncx D-18



-:q7i.]4
g-^
j 

- 
:,

lJ\*.
--a-1-

7

39

3
a-

G:

fD

Iq
n

d

*
6'
7
ri-

n1a
\

c

c

l rr.1.r.J
\l()t't l\tltt

o

LEGEND

- 
Hrghways

l,4a;,ir Roads

-+* Rddtudrls

tlevdlrorr (n)

0-i500
1 501 3 000

3001.5000

[- 
' 'i:, 

ou r 7 124

Rtvet >

- Lakes

Cilres

U ountles

.1It,t tLI.f

CALIFORNIA T'IATU RAL DIVERSITY

Fl.lt)t

ffi At,rn,rl

Sffi Terrestrrai Ccxnn'r

-:.-ffi Aquatrc

,, l.,lr.rltrple

[]itaSuurec Oa|lorrrraNdtutdt Dtvct$tyOaUrbase CAFtshJndWtldhfc.tsuttel:uuiltyr.jls Oat-Atl.rb hl.rpDafe.,t/1i?0 l9

5 hlles



Ifisntic and Cultutat Resoutces

The City of Oroville has a stock of historically significant homes, public buildings, and landmarks. To
inventory these resources, the HMPC collected information from a number of sources. The Califomia
Department of Parks and Recreation Office of Historic Preservation (OHP) was the primary source of
information. The OHP is responsible for the administration of federally and state mandated historic
preservation programs to further the idontification, evaluation, registration, and protection of California's
irreplaceable archaeological and historical resources. OHP administers the National Register of Historic
Places, the Califomia Register of Historical Resources, Califomia Historical Landmarks, atd the Califomia
Points of Historical Interest programs. Each program has different eligibility criteria and procedural

requirements These reqlirements are detailed in Section 4.3.1 of the base plan. Historic properties in
Oroville are shown in Table D-9.

Table D-9 City of Otowlle - I{istotic Ptoperties

Source: Department of Patks and Recreation of

Bidwell's Bar (330) X 8/8/1e3e Oroville

Cherokee Townsite And Adloining
Spring Valley Nfine p557)

X L2/1,9 /1980 Oroville

Chinese Cemetery (?584) x 3/1/1e82 Otoville

Chine<e Temnle rt770\- --__r_- \' -/ x 1 /11 /1962 Otovtlie

Discovery Site of the Last Yahi Indian
(80e)

X 10/5/1965 Oroville

Garrott's Saw iVlill (P116) X 6/ 6/1e69 Otoville

Jewish Cemetery (P585) .\ 3/1/1e82 Oroville

Lee, Fong, Company 0i1057) 3/11/1,982 Oroville

Long's Bar (P576) X 12/2L/L981 Oroville

Lott Museum-Sank Park (P2) X 8/5/1e66 Orovi.lle

Old Chinese Cemetery p413) X 8/7 /1,e7s Oroville

Old Suspension Bridge (31a) X 7 /12/1e3e Oroville

Oregon City (807) X 6/28/1e6s Oroville

Oroville Carnegie Ltbtary 0J2362) X s/8/2007 Oroville

Oroville Cemetery (?583) X 3/r/1e82 Oroville

Oroville Chinese Tempie 6f431)
'54

7 /30/1976 Orovilie

XOroville Commercial District (Old)

or1211)

7 /28/1,983 Otoville

Oroville Inn (I'{1635) X e/1,3/1ee0 Oroville

Otoville Odd Fellows Home Site,
Bella Vista Hotel (P726)

X 8/17 /te90 Oroville

State Theatre Of 1731) X 9/1.3/1991 Oroville

Nalion:tl
Resource Narnt' (Platpre Number) Rcgistcr

State
Landrnark

Point trl'
Irrte rest

Date
Listetl

Cit\ /
ConrmurritvstefR

Calilorrri:r

City of Oroville

Preserualion

Annex D-20Butte County
|,ctcal llanrrl Nlitigatron Plan I lpdatc
October 20 19



In addition, the City of Oroville 2030 General Plan Open Space, Natural Resources, and Conservation

element details some of the prehistoric archaeological and historic resources. Some of these resources are

located inside the City limits, while others are in the City Sphere of Influence (SOD.

Prehistoric and historic atchaeolog'ical tesoutces in the Planning Arca include:

I{ative American habitation sites, temporaty carnpsites, Iithic reduction stations
(stone tool making locations), milling staions, rock featutes and bwial locations. To
prevent possible looting and/or distutbance, the location ofatchaeological tesoutcea

arc notmaPPed.

A total of 33 sites with ptehistoric components have been recotded within the City of
Orouille SOI. Six of these sites contain histotic cornponents 4s wel|. The most
cornmon rype ofptehistoric site foand in the City of Orouille SOI are milling stations
at locations such as the Feathet Rivet Natute Centet, followed by temporary
campsites, habitation sites, burial locations and rcck featutes. Two sites have l<nown

Native Ameican budals.

Prehistoric sites are often found alongmaiorrivets in the Sacramento Valley, with theit
associated areas ofhigh gtound and natutal levees. Prehistoric sites are also often
found along the various creeks and minot drainages in the foothills of the Sietra

l,{evada Mountains and their adiacent interior valleys and gtasslands. This pattem
applies to the City of Otouille SOf, where prehistoric sites tend to be located along the
Feathet Rivet, its ttibutaries and smallet dninages. In particulat, the banks of the
Feathet River and its tributxies in the llistoric Downtown, Hatntnon, lVestem
Pacific, Canyon lIighlands, northem Oakvale and Kelly Ridge ateas are vety sensitive
for prehistoric atchaeolog'ical resoutces.

Ifistotic atchaeolog'ical site qpes in the SOI include abandoned tanspottation
cottidors and alignments, and temnants of actiuities associated with historic mining,
settlement and agricuhure. Fot the patposes of this General PIan, historic
atchaeolog'ical tesoutces ate distingaished ftom historic tesoutces (the built
enuironment) Iatgely by condition. That is, resources that are still functional (toads
that ate traveled, ditches catrying watet, standing sttuctutes) are considered part of
the built enuircnment. The rcmnants of these sttuctutes are considered atchaeological
tesoutces. Historic archaeological sensitiuity is considered panicularly high along the

banks of the Feather River in the llistoric Downtown, Ifatnmon, Westem Pacific,
IGIIy Ridge, Orouille Dam Atea, Oto Bango4 Foothills and Oakvale areas.

Gtowtlt and Development Ttends

Oroville has seen steady growth. Oroville has seen growth rates as shown in Table D-10. The City saw

large growth between 1960 and 2000, with a dip between 2000 and 2010. Much of the2019 growth is
attributed to the movement of people into Oroville from Paradise due to the Camp Fire.

Butte County
Loc*l Hazrtd Vlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

Citv of ()roville r\nnex D-21



Table D-10 City of Orsville - Populatioa Changes Since USA

Source: 1US Census Bureau, {alifornia Degar-tment of Finance

I-and Use

As require<iby Caiifcrnia Government Code Seciion 6fiA2@) and Public Resources Code Seciion 2762(a),

the Land Use Element of the General Plan addresses the following issues:

resources, recreation, and enjoyment of scenic beauty, education, public buildings and grounds and

other categories ofpublic andprivate uses ofland.

The Land Use Element focuses on development that could potentially occur in both the existing city limits

and the City's Sphere of Influence (SOD. The SOI is the area outside of the city limits that the City intbnds

to incorporate in the future. Land use in the City of Oroville and surrounding area has not changed

substantially since adoption of the 1995 City of Oroville General Plan. However, regional and local market

trends have increased the rate of change over the past few years. Table D-l I shows the acreages of various

existing land uses in the city limits and in the SOI, while Figure D-7 illustrates existing land uses.

Butte County
li,ocal Llazard lVtitigation Plan Update
October 2019

5,3871950

1.3.506,115 7281960

t,427 23.2o/o7,536t970

7,1,47 1.5.2%1980 8,683

3,277 37.4%1990 11,960

8.70h73,004 1,0442000

19.50hL5,546 2,542201,01

6,227 4O.1o/o21,77320192

Populatiorr ehange '|i' ClrarrgcYear

City of Oroville u\nnex D-22



E{ ii{,{ flgl{ rr*
i f ii. E $..iiii! il f fil u r'
i:ii!l I I I I I ftrilrrrrilrll

n
-1--1

I

-Figure D-7 City of Orouille - Land Use Diagram

Source: City of Oroville 2030 General Plan Land Use Element

Annex D-23City of OrovilleButte County
Local Hazatd Litigation Plan Update
October 2019



Tablc D-11 Citt'of Orouille - Existing Land Uses

knd Ure
Ciry I;-i$

(lscr)

Sptno of
Inlurace
(4q!!t

l-&airl - Siadltury ur r,^o

liharid- nUy xi TH'

lri.lPnrij - ltotib lhe PrrL n e2

Co--.tcbldOft! cs fl3

lr*rffrirl {t6 s
m5c/Qm*rc un zn

hildldi! 5rt 16

ftaOpGaFE 2tJ ?$

Aglrceuc l7 IJflI

TfrII<* ,2

Vu 1rl7 ts
Td 7,e, 4gl'
Source: City of Oroville 2030 General Plan Land Use Element

Development since 2014 Plan

The City Building Department tracked tqtal building permits issued since 2014 for the City. These are

tracked by total development, properly use type, andhazardrisk area. These are shown in Table D-12 and,

Table D-13. All developrrent in the identified hazard areas, including the lTo annual chance floodplains,

and moderate or higher wildfire risk areas, were cornpleted in accordance with all current and applicable

development codes and standards and should be adequately protected. Thus, with the exception of more

people living in the area potentially exposed to natural hazards, this growth should not cause a significant

change in vulnerability of the City to identified priority hazards.

Table D-12 Ciry, of Otouille - Total Development Since 2014

o

0 0 U 0Agricultural 0

1 'L 3 4 2Commercial

Industrial 0 1 0 0 1

Residential t3 20 5 1.5 5

2() l5 2017 201ttProper'6 Use 20t62014

Butte Couflty
l,ocal Flazard Nlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville r\nnex D-24



000 00Unknown
88 192214Total

Propertr tlse 2011 2{ll5 2016 2017 2018

Source: City of Oroville Building Department

Table D-13 City of Oroville - Development in l{azatd Arcas since 2014

Source: City of Oroville Building Departrnent
llVloderate or higher wildfire risk area

Future Development

Approximately every four years, the Butte County Association of Governments (BCAG) prepares long-

term regional gowth forecasts of housing, population, and employment for the Butte County area. The

forecasts have been developed by BCAG in consultation with its Planning Directors Group which consists

ofrepresentatives from each of BCAG's local jurisdiction members and the Butte Local Agency Formation

Commission. A low, medium, and high scenario has been developed for each forecast of housing,

population, and smployment. The 2018 process has been delayed due to the regional population re-

distribution and uncertain re-population timeline associated with the 2018 Camp Fire. At this time, it is

anticipatedthatthenewforecastswillbeavailableneartheendof20lg. ThemediumscenariofortheCity

inthe2014-2040 Regional Transportation Plan is shown in Table D-14.

Table D-14 City of Orouille - Futute Population Estimates

Source: Butte County Association of Governments 2014-2040 Regional Ttansportation Plan

More general information on growth and development in Butte County as a whole can be found in "Growth

and Development Trends" in Section 4.3.1 Butte County Vulnerability and Assets at Risk of the Base Plan.

Using GIS, the following methodology was used in determining parcel counts and values associated with

future development and redevelopment projects in the City of Chico'

GIS Analysis

Butte County's 3l2ll20l9 Assessor Data and the County's GIS parcel data were used as the basis for the

inventory of assessed values for both improved and unimproved parcels within the City. This data provides

Butte County
Locrl l;lazard Nlitigation Plan Update

October 2019

0 000Agricultural

I 000Commercial

0U00Industrial

0200Residential

000Unknown 0

00 30Total

.l'% Annual Chance
Flootl

Lzrndslitle
Susccptibilir-"- Area

Wildlirc Risk Arear OtherProperry tlse

30,81626,928 29,33222,2641.8,673Oroville

J urisdiction 2020 2025 2031) 2035 2041)

City of Oroville z\nnex D-25



the land and improved values assessed for each parcel. In this analysis, the parcel data was converted to a
point tayer using a centroid conversion process, in which each parcel was identified by a central point
containing the assessor's data. In addition, Butte County provided a table containing the assessor parcel

numbers (APNs) for the 260 parcels. Using the GIS parcel spatial file and the APNs, the 260 parcels

associated with future development projects for which 'rhe analysis was io be performed was identified.
Utilizing the future development project spatial layer, the parcel centroid data was intersected to determine
the parcel counts within each area.

.Eigr:re-D--&shows-the locations of fiture. devslopment areas-tbe Cit5r is pla,rining 1s-{sv3l6p- Table Il=L5
shows the parcels and acreages of each fuhre development area in the City.

Butte County
Local tlazard lvlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville r\mex D-26



rIr T

I

I B
q

I

.l nHtir tt ut

Figure D-8 Ciry, of Orouille - Future Development Areas

C

$
T

tI
{
u

t
E

I
$

T$
Butte County
Local I-Iazatd lvlitigtion Plan Update
October 2019

Citv of Oroville Annex D-27



Table D-15 City of Otoville - Future Development Locations with Parcels and Acteage

Soutce: City of Otoville

D.5.3. Vulnerability to Specific Hazards

This section provides the vulnerability assessment, including any quantifiable loss estimates, for those

hazards identified above in Table D-5 as high or medium significance hazards. Impacts of past events and

vulnerability of the City to specific hazards are further discussed below (see Section 4.1 Hazard,

Identification in the Base Plan fbr more detaiied iniormation about these hazards and their impacts on the

Butte County Planning Area). Methodologies for calculating loss estimates are the same as those described

in Section 4.3 of the Base Plan.

Butte County
L,ocal lfazard Nlitigation Plan Update
()ctober 201 9

Acacia Estates 2 0 6.7

Buttewoods 2 0 56.13

Calle Vista Estates Unit II 48 44 24.4

Canal Vie'w Estates J 0 8.4

Deer Creek Estates 2 3 0 24.3

Ford Drive 2 0 22.4

Forebay Estates 1 0 40.2

Greenview Estates 1 1 1.9

Heritage Oak Estates 1 46.5

Highlands Estates 1 0 13.3

Linkside Place Phase I 66 6 11.5

Nlartin Ranch 1 0 73.r

Mission Olive Ranch 20 2 6.8

Neison 56 T 0 56.5

Oak Park 1 0 5.1

Rivers Edge 1 0 10.3

fuverview 4 0 38.8

Rosewood Estates I 0 5.0

Vista Del Oro 95 22 15.2

257

J

76City of Oroville Total

Oak Park

466.4

94.3

Unincorporated Butte
County Total

F,^^S A^-^tgf4tlu I ut4r

3

260 76

94.3

560.6

Uuincorporated Br.r tte C()untY

Total Parcel Corrnt Inrprrn'erl Palcel Count Total AclcsFutule Deve lopnrerrt

Cirv of Oroville

City of Oroville Annex D-28



An estimate of the vulnerability of the City to each identified priority hazard, in addition to the estimate of
risk of future occulrence, is provided in each of the hazald-specific sections that follow. Vulnerability is

measured in general, qualitative terms and is a summary of the potential impact based on past occurrences,

spatial extent, and damage and casualty potential. It is categorized into the following classifications:

nonexistent.

minimal.

population and/or built environment. Here the potential damage is more isolated and less costly than a
more widespread disaster.

built environment. The potential for darnage is widespread. Hazards in this category may have
occurred in the past.

Depending on the hazard and availability of data for analysis, this hazard specific vulnerability assessment

also includes information on values at risk, critical facilities and infrastructure, populations at risk, and

future development.

Dam.Failute

Likelihood of Future Occurrence-Occasional
Vulnerability-High

Hazard Profile and Ptoblem Description

Dams are manmade structures built for a vaiety of uses including flood protection, power generation,

agriculture, water supply, and recreation. When dams are constructed for flood protection, they are usually

engineered to withstand a flood with a computed risk of occurrence. For example, a dam may be designed

to contain a flood at a location on a stream that has a certain probability ofoccurring in any one year. If
prolonged periods of rainfall and flooding occur that exceed the design requirements, that structure may be

overtopped or fail. Overtopping is the primary cause of earthen dam failure in the United States.

Location and Extent

Oroville is downstream of multiple dams (which are discussed in greater detail and mapped in the

vulnerability section below), the largest of which is Oroville Dam. The Oroville Dam sits east of Oroville's
City Center, nestled at the mouth of the Feather River Canyon. At 770 feet tall and 6,920 feet long, the

Oroville Dam is,one of the 20largest dams in the world and impounds the second largest reservoir in

California. Lake Oroville has a capacity of 3.5 million-acre feet and is the principal water storage facility
of the State Water Project (SWP). Flows from the failure of these dams could inundate non-urban portions

of the Planning Area. These dams and their inundation areas are discussed in greater detail in the

vulnerability section below. Dam failure is a natural disaster from two perspectives. First, the inundation

from released waters resulting from dam failure is related to naturally occurring floodwaters, Second, dam

failure would most probably happen as a consequence of the natural disaster triggering the event, such as

Butte County
Local. Irlazatd Nlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-29



an earthquake. There is no scale with which to measure dam failure. While a dam may fill slowly with
runoff from winter storms, a dam break has a very quick speed of onset. The duration of dam failure is not

long - only as long as it takes to empty the reservoir of water the dam held back. The City would be affected

for as tong as the flood waters from the dam failure took to drain downstream. Geographical flood extent

from the Cal OES dam inundation zones is shown in Table D-16. Note, the Cal OES dam inundation data

did not include inundation mapping of all dams of concem to the Butte County Planning Area; thus, the

below analysis reflects information based on available data. Other dams may be identified as a concern to

thc City.

Table D-16 Ciry of Otouille Dam fnundation Extents

Source: Cal OES

Past Occurtences

February 11,201,7 - Heavy rainfall during the 2017 California floods damaged the main spillway on

February 7, so the California Department of Water Resources stopped the spillway flow to assess the

damage and contemplate its next steps. The rain eventually raised the lake level until it flowed over the

emergency spillway, even after the damaged main spillway was reopened. As water flowed over the

emergency spillway, headward erosion threatened to undermine and collapse the concrete weir, which could

have sent a 3O-tbot wall of water into the Feather River below and flooded communities downstream. No

collapse occurred, but the water firrther damaged the rnain spillway and eroded the bare slope of the

emergency spillway. An evacuation order was put out for the City of Oroville.

Vulnerability to Dam Failure

Dam failure flooding would vary by community depending on which dam fails and the nature and extent

of the dam failure and associated flooding. Based on the vulnerability assessment in the Base Plan, it is
apparent that a major dam failure could have a significant impact on the City.

Failure of the Oroville Dam could result in release of water held behind the dam, and imrndation of much

of the City and sulrounding area. A major seismic event would be the most likely cause of dam failure. A
number of geologic faults have been mapped in the Oroville area which could cause a seismic event.

Landslides around the reservoir rim have occurred since Lake Oroville has been in operation. These

landslides are not considered to pose a threat to the freeboard ofthe dam or the safety ofthe public.

In addition to Oroville Dam, the City is in the inundation area for Lake Alrnanor, Miner's Ranch, and

Thermalito Diversion.

Butte County
Loczl llazard lvlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

Lake Almanor 1,804 22.83% 789 9.990h 1,015 12.850k

0 0.00o/o 27 0.340hMiners Ranch 27 0.34%

78.04o/o 2,310 29.240h 3,856 48.800hOroville 6,166

2.70o/o 7 0.090h 206 2.610/0Thermalito
Diversion

273

T)anr

Irt tttttl:ttiotr
Area

10 ()l I (tt2lt

Ar:res
lr n i;r'ovcti
Acres

f ry , t/rr lrl I trt2tl

Impll ed
Acres

rI -: -. - tL,lrttlrtrtrr\((l

,4r:rt':r

fi/ .f T., -t'rr r rl I rrr irr

I lrrirnproved
Acrcs

I ttl:ll 4r'tt's

City of Oroville Annex D-30



Impacts

Impacts to the City from a dam failure flood include damage to residential and commercial property,

damage to critical facilities, damage to infrastructure, damage to levees that protect the City, and injuries

or deaths to citizens of the City. Evacuations caused by potential dam failwes can also cause significant

disruption to the City and result in economic impacts to the City and its residents.

Values at Risk

Based on the wlnerability assessment in the Base Plan, it is apparent that a major dam failure could have a

significant impact on the City. The City is located in four Cal OES mapped dam imrndation areas as

described in Section 4.3.4 of the Base Plan. These four dams are:

Butte County
Local FIazxd lvlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville r\nnex D-3'l



f;gg$ssc!'lli IffiA

$CIE !F! E

ifr$ H

rETFF ?

SqEgEsE3 $*$;fi

Figure D-9 City o{ Otot ille - Extrernelv lligh Dam fnundation Areas

ro

$

I
F

c('
!

s.
s
*
ci

';o
o

ts
F

R
5
;
fr
T
U
oI
au
o

E
G
fto

ni

o

\i
"lti

zt

'\nrlex [)-32Ciw of ()rovillcButtc (,ounty,

|,oc'rl l laz'rtd Niitiganon Plan Updatc
Octobcr 20l9



\
6'
\o
I

S

o.i'

$
6-

I

6'

\,4-
N

$.

ts
G

b

v-:9";.;
: -.^
'i = i,'
Nir -
s c-k

7
d.

C
c-

a

-
.s

o

ffil.n r.*.J
I\ftnri:iru o

LEGEND

- 
Hghways

''-Ma;xRoads
-{*- Radroads

- --- Rrverc

Lakes

Citres

Countres

OATS AND DAT IT{UXOATION
AREA EXTENTS

F€deral Hazard Darn Classficatron

O H,sn

Hlgh Oarn lnundaton Areas

i .'LakeAlrnanor
[-ii-1 mrcrs Rancn

i Thermdto Dirersror

Data Source: Cal OES Dam Stahls 1(MD17, Butte county Gts, cat-A0as, lrilap D4e: 7l1no1g

5 [0es



GIS was used to determine the possible impacts of dam failure flooding within the City of Oroville. The

methodology described in Section 4.3.4 of the Base Plan was followed in determining struetures and values

at risk. Multiple analysis tables were created:

values in the singular extremely high hazard dam inundation area.

values in the three high hazard dam inundation atreas.

vaiues in the Oroville inundation areas.

values in the Lake Almanor dam inundation area

values in the Miner's Ranch dam inundation area

values in the Thennalito Diversion dam inundation area

Tabte D--17 City of Oroville - Count and Value of Parcels in AII Extremely l{igh Hazatd Dam
Inundation Ateas

Source: Cal OES, Butte Cowty 3/28/2019 Assessor's Data

Tabile D-18 City of Orouille -Countand Valtte of Patcels inAll llighElazatd Dam Inundation
Areas

Source: CaI OES, Butte County 3/28/2019 Parcel/Assessor's Data

Table D-19 City of Orouille - Count and Value at Risk in Orouille Dam Inandation Atea by
Propety Use

$1,584,003,840fi276,524,176 $776,873,996 fi6Q,972,453 fi585,978,22',1Ciw of Oroville 6,262 4,802

T'ot:rl lrnptovetl
Paru:el Parcel
Corrnt (lour.tt

I'otal Land
Value

Improvctl
Strtrct u re
V:tluc

()ther
\talue

F,sti rn ated
Contents
ValLr.:

'l'trtal Valuc
J trristliction

fi577,213,784fi232,439,950 fi44,27t,667 $216,26t,801City of
Oroville

1,563 1,094 fi91.,571,747

.f urisdiction T'oial
Pirr<'t'l
(iount

I rr r llrr-rv etl
Part:el
Coult

I rll,lr t,iltr(,

Valrrt'

r -,_ ---. II rt)lrttr\'c(l

Stt'tr<: trrre
Valuc

\rtllcl

V:rlrrt

r:..i,-- .-._lr ,st ttrt.rtc(l

C()nlc1lts
Value

T'...,r \i,1....
t trl.ll l.tlll\

$o $7,947 $o fi666,221Agricultural 6 0 fi658,274

$657,575,440$315,471,11.4 $18,639,996 $31.5,47r,1t4Commercial 1,007 678 $100,544,300

fi59,944,199 $191,571,855fi25,400,597 $39,962,799 ff42,318,610Industrial 221 77

$s,eoo fi2L0,562,909 ff733,872,6714,873 4,057 $149,856,487 $427,125,817Residential

$o $o fi377,654155 2 $64,518 fi374,266Unknown

$60,972,453 $585,978,227 $1,584,003,8406,262 4,802 $276,524,176 $776,873,996City of Oroville
Total

Total lrnproverl 'Iotal L,and

Parcel Parcel Valtrc
Count Count

Improved
Stnrctrrrc
Valrre

0tl-rer
\raltre

Estirnated
Corrtcrrts
Valtre

Total ValrrePropertr' fise

Butte County
L<>cal. llazatd Ntitigation Plan Update
()ctobet 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-34



Source: Cal OES, Butte County 3/28/2019 Parcel/i\ssessor's Data

Table D-20 City of Otowlle - Count and Value at Risk in Lake AlmanorDam fnundation Area
by Prcpetty Use

Source: Cal OES, Butte Cowty 3/28/2019 Patcel/Assessor's Data

Table D-21 Ciq, of Orctville - Count and Value at Risk in Minet's Ranch Dam fnundation
Arca by Propetty Use

Source: Cal OES, Butte County 9 Parcel/r\ssessor's Data

Table D-22 Ciy of Orouille - Count and Yalue at Risk in Thermalito Divercion Dam
Inundation Area by Ptopetq/ Use

Soutce: Cal OES, Butte County Assessor's Data

0 $o $o $o $o $oAgricultural 0

$291,312,775588 389 $48,610,851 fi1,29,523,449 fi3,349,747 fi'129,523,449Commercial

$40,861,920 $s3,15s,851 $174080,348Industrial t47 48 $21.,260,503 fi35,437,234

$o $33,582,501 fi.Lll,422,847Residential 749 655 $21,616,845 $67,165,001

$63,388 fi.3!!,266 $o fi377,654Unknown 78-
$91,551,587 $232,439,950 $44,211,667 $216,261,801 $577,193,624City of Oroville

Total
1,562 1,094

Total Improved Total Land
P:rrcel P:rrcel Value
Count Count

Improvetl
Stnrcture
Value

Other
Value

Estim.lte d
Contents
Value

Total VaIr.rePropertv Use

$o $o $o $0Agricultural 0 0 $o

$20,160 $o $o $o $20,160Commercial 7 0

$0 $o $0 $o $oIndustrial 0 0

$o0 0 $o $o $o $0Residential

$o $o0 0 $o $o $oUnknown

$20,160L 0 $20,160 $o $o $oCity of Oroville
Total

Total
Parcel
Count

Improved Tot;rl Land
P:rrcel Value
Count

hnproved
Structure
Value

Other
Value

Estimated
Contents
Value

Tot:rl ValueProperfi, Use

$o $o $o $0Agricultural 0 0 $o

ff212,547 ff291.,443 fi784,125 fi291,443 $982,248Commercial 6 2

1 $331,3s6 $150,858 $0 fi226,287 $708,501Industrial 9

2 $584,056 ff385,261, $0 $192,631 $1,157,948Residential 14

$o8 0 $o $o $o $oUnknown

5 $7,727,959 $827,562 $784,125 $710,361 $2,848,697City of Oroville
Total

37

Total
Parcel
Count

Improved Total Land
Parcel Value
Courrt

Improved
Structu re
Value

Orher
Value

Estimated
C0ntents
Value

Total ValrreProperty Use

9

City of Oroville Annex D-35Butte County
l.ocal l-Iazard Nlitigation Plan Update
October 2019



Population at Risk

The Cal OES dam inundation areas were overlayed on the parcel layer. Those residential parcel centroids

that intersect the dam inundation zones were counted and multiplied by the 2010 Census Bureau average

household factors for Oroville - 2.60. According to this analysis, there is a total population of 0 residents

of the City at iisk to clarti failure flooding frorn these four dams. This is slown inTable D-43.

Table D-23 Ciy of Oroville - Count of Improved Residentia! Parcels and Populatian byFlcod
Zone

Source: FENIA DFIIiM 1/6/2011, Butte County 3/28/2019 Parcel/Assessor's Data, US Census Bureau

Critical Facilities at Risk

An analysis was performed on the critical facility inventory in Oroville in identified dam imrndation areas.

GIS was used to determine whether the facility locations intersects a Cal OES dam inundation area. Details

of critical facililies in extreuroly bigh hazard dau huqdation area$ in the City of Oroville are shown in

Figure D- I 1 and detailed in Table D-24. Detalls of critical facilities in high hazard. dam inundation areas

in the City of Oroville are shown in Figure D-12 and detailed in Table D-25. Details of critical facility
definition, type, name and address and jurisdiction by flood zone are listed in Appendix F.

T,7U3 0 0 2 5Oroville 4,051 10,533 
I

655

NIiner'sR.:rrrch Dam Therrnalito Dir'elsitxr
Inuntlatiorr Area Danr lnundation Area

lmpro,r,ed Populatitxr lmproted Poptrlzrtiorr lrnproved Population Itnprovetl Poptrlation
Rcsidential Re sitlcntial Re sitlcntial Rcsicltntial

Jurisdiction Parcels P:rrcels Parctls Pirrct'ls

L,akc Ahnanor Dzrm
Inurrdation Area

()rovillc Darn
lnrrnclzrtitirr Atea

Butte County
Local Hazard iVtitigation Plan Update
()ctober 20'19

City of Oroviile Annex D-36



j

- ii:lJ\_:

7

=.

=

--3
a,

i - 
-TE 

- ';"-'1t-i 
'lN:-':T -r *'T i-ii,

--i'

1:i:.

,|
$

$
c
i.,

.\;
tsi

ri

13
v\
n
,q
g

.{
<
3
\;

{_:'
i'
ii

i)
:{.

a'
?:

:1.
^l

'rl\
a

o

F

il

!"*\
$*
i-
\j
ti

BL,TTE
(l{-)i INTY 

:ee
g

l 
_: l- 1 i

: tr.ii; i l:

11.1

TFF rl!A fq::
,1 

,.1 , ,. FLi;l,4AS
'.'.i I, n'^ 'iJ

.\!i i..r t ,
BUTTE COUNTY ;

1r.'i i

'' . i-' i ., 'UEl.

Bt-tTTE
il(-)l.iNTY

se
{d. 1r

fblrv or
OROVILLE'."

ar;:.4 Nt\.,,A

I

i

!
'__Lt\.

'.\

.t..'' li tt

*.
'(fr-
I'$,s-E

I
:\

.l

62

Ii

o.j

BLIT-IE
f:.iI ,NTY

'. !t

. . .--- 1d2'

a

trt.rT T'll
(j(ji_lNiY

g
s

.'1"' r-, -': l

t Fi,[Ntr

lJ !l.rr lrr.r'i j:,

- 

al ulu:

f:1.:i:

6

7rJ

,lRlTl,, AL FAi. lL.lT\ (- LTEGclRY

fLr l_ts.- -\

[ . F.'=i t,..t,r;.i:,'',tt

-- f,ir::

L3i.i

i ',: ,r tttr: _.

liH
i..--. *-.- --;

-.!

\1, :,r..

*ld:-t :,!,!,1!i i-..: ,.!i.:, - r'll i:'l.llllr , - -r-.1 
i btlltr .'-r',lr:r lilr; . -tl -l -r: l''1'r:- -r-rl: 't I -' 1.r

ilAhls l\Nti lrAM lNllNtir\llr rll
,\REA EXTi.NI S

f.":' l,i -'.i-.1 .-l .. llll .l:" ll' .11i, 'l

E:.;rt;, , it,-tr
L il',i]1..: , 'lrrll. . | !ll 1' llllj.! .ll t. '-'.t:

i: it i ll+
ilrrrt.rtl,'rb

CITY OF
OROVILLE



Table D-24 City of Orouille - Critical Facilities in Extremely l{igh Ffazard Dam fnundation
Areas

Source: Cal OES, Butte County GIS

Essential Services Facilities J

At fusk Population FaciliLies 4

City of Orovr'lle Total 7

Critical Facili rv Catego4, Facittt, Cotrnt

llutte County
L.ocal Flazatd lVlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroviile Annex D-38



. ,' -
lJ\_ 

=

7

-3

c

BLI:iE C.1jl_ i'.:'/ lt.::T f?,.

- i' .-' -t:: :' - :i!"

.1 I .jr: \ :,tL: -'-. f.t. i ,+ 
,;.:. 

, i. ,

t,

G"

n

I:-
tv

i)

\
t

3
"t{
n

$...i.
r.
fi'
N

nlr
n:.
-i
o"
lo

Jq

\
\
e"
F*
:i
!

:

$
u'
e"

d
'gir

It,

6t.iTTt_
(]i.iUNTY

iid
. f'".

i-t: ::r l; -'- I

.' :ri,iTi.-::.

/,., .* .ll

.i ,dtr
tirr.rlrl,.' l-'r'., ? \r' i'

-*
:T J.TEhA,I.1A .#'

Fr ill'4A-q S1.;TTF
ciitittty

t! 
^r?

BUTT

o&
, e,e

,*ti"t
OROVI

i:dLe l\!'l::rti,l,f
l,(,,,,'Jt'l nl t: ',ili,ir'l

e

. ,.r'l
n

OF
[LE,'

it)

L r-:> + liE,.'A t,

....- 1tj2

'i:'i il !.1 i. 1:'r;
!: l:::: 1,

l! :s:tr: '-::i i:ir .. -r:

E rl F :| F,tlt.Lt:: ,rt

ll
I

I
I

i:

t!
s!

DAMS ANt) i'Atr,l |Nt_rNtrATli_,N
ARFA FXIFIITi

;-,.18 -, -,.i__il j - -,il _::_:.r' -.

O -t.
jt,-jlr . .r'r lltt:t,, rl.,.rtr ':,r.: r:

-Jl t 
^t 

r -i: ,'

l,l tr,-l:i':JJie,

i tilll3 rlr ittrtr: ,,

CITY OF
OROVILLE

-'-!

SJ

c

Bt-rTTE
(.(lt.:N IY I iri

Bl,t11E
L(JI-Jh,I IY

G
e

gl '1'llrli,r> R,tn,: ii
ll'.,,','tl(l t)r.rl, Eilr.':tl

LFI.;EH[I
'----'" i _",!.tr_
' -- ' I!1". J' R,- r:S
-" h-. iilI i,rritl:

i l- 1it i.'

1i

&

RlTl( At FAr ri. iJy r'ATFr-ii-rRY

..:.'' i

F"ll-l
:_l

,_.1" i:
r .,rrtte:.

ffi
o

\.1'.1:,'r rt

-.tLJ:..'.E -; -Ei-.i,r5t;:...= r,:i - bu:l;-,..t.,r:',i -;-:tr-,: i,'.i.-,;='l--:



Table D-25 City o{Orouille - Ctitical.Facilities in l{igh Ifazatd Dam fnundation Ateas

Sourcc: C'al GIS

Futute Development

Although new growth and development corridors would fall in the area flooded by a dam failure, given the
small chance oftotal dam failure and the large area that a dam failure would affect, development in the dam
inundation area will continue to occur.

GtrS Aadysis

Butte County's 3l2ll2Cl9 Assessor Data and the County's GIS parcel data were used as the basis for the
inventory of assessed values for both improved and unimproved parcels within the City. Using GIS, the
260 parcels associated with future development projects for which the analysis was to be performed was
identified. Future development in extremely higfi,hazad, dam inundation areas is shown on Figure D-13
and detailed in Table D-26. Future development in high hazarddam inundation areas is shown on Figure
D-13 and detailed inTabIeD-27,

Essential Services Facilities 9

At Risk Population Faciliues 6

City of Oroville Total 15

(lritical F acilitl' Oareson' -Facihtv Count

Butte County
Local Flazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville r\nnex D-40



E -a
l-)\-

a;-

]E

: \F

. i-r ': l:: )

. r.,',i ,i

bit Tl E
(-li-'l IIYTY

.!,i.
)t: | !!ti"

\

'rQ

.i

i=

a\

!

il
(::

i

[-i-

rj

a-f
o
.::
i!

".v

!.i'

h:

.i

.j
lr

,,::

JS

i*
N
,"t

13{
rf

s

b'
c
'"r

3 _,;T: a.i- ,_ti',_-i'.ltr:ET

8r-rTTE
(-r-,ruN'lY *,

7t)

i EF il,! i \
+

I

i

I

i
;

I

I

:

;

l- _l-tl, j.5

i{-at i r-'
,l

BUTTE COU

I t.t .1--
rrl..,.i'i

':

I

i
j

-!

I
NTY

E."

r..L\.'iLr

l!'"t'

', clrY oF
oRovtLt-

Yr_tiii
.1i

!
:a'

I

I

,l:l
,.lr' ' :r

'1

Ft l1-1P

CI:)I-JNTY

n

l,! ll':,r n.Dt t>

..,--1._,1

BI ;TTI
(lt_)l,.lNTY

LL(ItNL'
--* - - ;ll $., /L

iil

:,1- e L :re:r1lt-i=.-:!

+ -i.3illir;-l:

{r;el:

] L:lr,t
Frt-
lEj,- lres

| -_._J '-nunl:i
Fl I I' rRF i'E vFl. i. p?,ilEltT ARF AS

5

:

Hd

I
I
I

I
a

CITY OF
OROVILLE

trA['ts ANir f,nM iNl-,N[rATli')N
/rhtA LX i LN I S

f::i'-'lJ f'.1--r,.: " -i lt ,-ir:rlCil:,-{l

f.tti'rai, -jt,-ri

E,:-;.".=, .- _t. I r,; ,: ,ft]i:.t;r atqi:
i- lut a

I :r",.r'.iirr' .i[:]



City of Oroville

Acacia Estates 2 0 6.7

Calle Vista Est4_tes- UaSt II _ 44 24.4

Canal View Estates 3 0 8.4

Deer Creek Estates 2 J 0 24.3

Forebay Estates 1 0 40.2

Greenview Estafes - :--
Fleritage Oak Estates 1 46.5

Highlands Estates 1 0 ,I,J.J

Linkside Place Phase I 66 6 11.5

Nlartin Ranch 7 0 73.1

lvlission OLive Ranch 20 ,)
6.8

Nelson 56 7 0 56.5

Oak Park 1 0 5.1

Rivets Edge 1 0 10.3

Riverview 4 o 38.8

Rosewood Estates t 0 5.0

Vista Del Oro 95 22 1.5.2

Oroville Dam Total 252 76 387.9

Unincorporated Butte County

Oak Park J 0 94.3

Unineorporated Butte
County Total

Extremely HighDam
Inundation Atea Total

3

255

0

76

9,# -

482.1

E\trerneh' Flieh f)arn
Inund;ttiol A-r,:a I FrrtLrrc
f)ct t:lonrncrrt

'fotal Prlccl (}rrrnt Improved Parc.-:l Cotrnt Tot,rl Acrcs

Orovtli,: l)arrr

Table D-26 City of Orouille - Futute Developnent Parcel Counts and Acteage in Extemely
Ifigh Dam Inundation Areas

Source: Cal OES, City of Oroville GIS, Butte County 3/28/2019 Parcel/Assessor's Data

Butte County
L,ocal, I-Iazard Nlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-42



^:5

-:l
LJ\_ =

J-_-
?

13

-t

: -,-TE -.-rL,l!'.-. ll,lsEl .,iT '!:., , t:.1 '':

N!]TTF
tlr-it;1'11Y

: ii i

-';""t :

-I:'
^.\:

-:
f9

i

<:

r-,

*.)
I

n
i-t

rr

J
\
Fi

3

\
n
ai*

x.

L
d
Ni:

TEr ihl;
Llr rTI

C:t-;r-lNT\ .{,G.

"d'

/(]

pl lit,'.:1! lri ,,:"i l','l
o.,I

F ) ^"!

I .{;,' ' ' ', 'ir BUTTE COUNTY,/
,, i,.-,r- 2-11? ,

'!:.q

-' ..-, or
:_... ..r:.- NF..r.[l

r:-,rt:f. A lri r 1 ll,-:l
lif;t:. il'i lllllj iri('il',

: CITY OF
OBOVILLE

- :l l''

i
,. 1', t

il

DAhIS AND t,AM INUNOATII-IN
r\RFA t XTE NT i

j:lt -: -i-.rli - i,r: - J)irir: -.

+
'f, li :,..r. llrLrl,-:"1i:rilr A rJr

:lla Al';-:uil

'lt''11t "tttttt'

rf.?
, t..j'.:":-

- -'-

EI-'TiF
,_'r_)l_lNIY

tlr iTTr
C(JL]NI Y

':: .'

ifdtttr:t. '{ ttr,. t

l..ir' :,llti tt,,:i-, ;r'r,r

iti

J

'"r: I li":, ,--r ,..r ;:lj ;-r,' 1|tl,,:'.'.'lf l- Futte,-,1.11i7 ::; r.J 'lir:i h1-rr,-r-t'- irl.i, - 1

iH

I Flif NIr

-- :::- r-t-':

l,:.-tr R, j;
1- <.t l!-l;lrl:

. r .t':

l- -r | ''-:

(_.,.*llltt.:,
FU-JiJRE tIE T E L{-)F'IdEHT ARE.AS

; .. - I ,..,.- ,t:r.r,. : .

CITY OF
OROVILLE



City of Oroville

Oak Park L 0 5.1

Riverview n 38.8

Lake AlmanorTotal

City of Oroville

43.9'0

Rivervisrz z s +7.7-

Thermalito Total 2 0
,14 q

Fligh I)rinr Inuntlation
Areas ,/ Frrturr
f)cvtloprnent

L.ake Almanr,,'

Tot:rl Palccl Oorrnt Improled Pltccl Cr.rrurt '1'ota! A-,:r'eg

Thermalito Diversir-rn

Table D-27 City of Orouille - Future Development Parcel Counts and Acteage in I{igh Dam
Inundation Ateas

Source: Ca1 OES, City of Oroville GIS, Butte County I Data

Dtought and Vater Shottage

Likelihood of Future Occurrence-Likely
Vulnerability-Medium

Hazatd Profile and Problem Description

Drought is different than many of the other natural hazards in that it is not a distinct event and usually has

a slow onset. Drought can severely irnpact a region both physically and economically. Drought afftcts
different sectors in different ways and with varying intensities. Adequate water is the most critical issue
and is critical for manufactu irg, tourism, recfeation, an'd commerciat imd dotnestic use. As ttre population
in the area continues to grow, so will the demand for water.

Location and Extent

As discussed in the Base Pian, drought and water shortage are regionai phenomenon. The whole of the
County, as well as the whole of the City, is at risk. Drought has a slow speed of onset and a va,riable
duration. Drought can last for a short period of time, which does not usually affect water shortages. Should
a drought last for a long period of time, water shortage becomes a larger issue.

Past Occunences

Since drought is a regional phenomenon, past occurrences of drought for Oroville are the same as those for
the County. Those past occuffences can be found in Section 4.2.8 of the Base Plan.

Vulnerability to Drcught and Vater Shotage

Based on historical information, the occurrence of drought in California, including the City of Oroville, is

cyclical, driven by weather pattems. Drought has occurred in the past and will occur in the future. Periods

Butte County
LocoJ, lrlazad, Nlitigation Plan Update
()ctober 2O19

Citv of Oroville r\nnex D-44



of actual drought with adverse impacts can vary in duration, and the period between droughts is often

extended. Although an axea may be under an extended dry period, determining when it becomes a drought

is based on impacts to individual water users. The vulnerability of the City of Oroville to drought is City-

wide, but impacts may vary and include reduction in water supply and an increase in dry fuels. The

increased dry fuels result in an increased fire danger. Areas of Oroville are in the foothill interface and

become more susceptible to wildfire as drought conditions increase. Residents of these areas are often times

dependent upon ground water (water wells), as these water wells begin to fail the ability of the residents to

water landscaping decreases, fire fuel loads increase.

Impacts

The most significant qualitative impacts associated with drought in the planning area are those related to

water intensive activities such as wildfire protection, municipal usage, conunerce, tourism, and recreation.

Voluntary conservation measures are typically implemented during extended droughts. A reduction of
electric power generation and water quality deterioration are also potential problems. Drought conditions

can also cause soil to compact and not absorb water well, potentially making an area more susceptible to

flooding.

Future Development

As the population in the area continues to grow, so will the demand for water. Water shortages in the future

may be worsened by drought. Increased planning will be needed to account for population growth and

increased water demands.

E atthq uake (min ot/maiol and Liq u efaction

Likelihood of Future Occurrence-Occasional/Unlikely
Vulnerability-Medium

Hazatd Profile and Ptoblem Description

The State of California has identified five areas of critical seismic concem including surface ruptures,

ground shaking, ground failure, tsunamis, and seiches. Each of these is caused by earthquake activity

thereby creating hazards for life and properly, which has the potential anywhere in Califomia. Oroville is

not at risk for tsunamis or seiches due to its inland location and the absence of nearby large bodies of water.

Due to the proximity of the Cify to the Cleveland Hills Fault, the City can expect low to medium intensity

shocks from time to time. These earthquakes can cause liquefaction within the City. Liquefaction is a

process whereby soil is temporarily transformed to a fluid formed during intense and prolonged ground

shaking.

Location and Extent

Since earthquakes are regional events, the whole of the City is at risk to earthquake. Chico and the

surrounding area are relatively free from significant seismic and geologic hazards. There are no known or

inferred active faults within the City. The only known active fault in Butte County is the Cleveland Hills

fault, the site of the August 1975 Oroville earthquake. This earthquake had a Richter magnitude of 5.7. Due

Butte County
I'ocal Hazard tVlitigation Plan Update

October 2019

City of Oroville z\nnex D-45



to the proximity of the City to the nearby Cleveland Hills Fault, the City can expect low to medium intensify
shocks from time to time.

The amount of energy released during an earthquake is usually expressed as a magnitude and is measured
directly from the earthquake as recorded on seismographs. An earthquake's magnitude is expressed in
whole numbers and decimals (e.g., 6.8). Seismologists have developed several magniturie scaies, as

discusscd in Scction 4.2.10 of thc Base Plan.

The City of Oroville 2030 General Plan Safety Element noted that in addition to mapped known faults,
there are a large number of other faults within Butte County and in neighboring areas that could be
considered potentially active, based on criteria developed by the California Department of Mines and
Geology. Within Butte County, faults that are considered by some geologists to be potentially active
include the Big Bend fault, which is thought to be capable of generating an earthquake of up to magnitude
7.0 in Butte County; the Foothill shear zone, which extends into southern Butte County, and the Chico
monocline fault, which could produce an earthquake of up to magnitude 7.0, having the most significant
impacts in the Chico area but which couid also severely affect other parts of the county, including Oroviiie.
Other mapped, active faults in the wider region, outside of Butte County, have the potential to generate

seismic activity that could be felt in Oroville. These include:

of Oroville.

miles southwest of Oroville.

earthquake of up to magnitude 6.5 in 1966.

located about 60 miles west of the City.

Another measure of earthquake severity is intensity. Intensity is an expression of the amount of shaking at

any given location on the ground surface. Seismic shaking is typically the greatest cause of losses to

structues during earthquakes. The City is located in an area where few earthquakes of significant
magnitude occur, so both rnagnitude and intensity of earthquakes are expected to remain low. Geographical
liquefaction potential extents for the City of Oroville from the Butte County 2030 General Plan are shown
in Table D-28.

Table D-28 City of Otouille - Geographical Extents of Liquefaction Potential bytutisdiction

Source: Butte County General Plan 2030

Generally High 0 0.000h 0 0.00% 0 0.00o/o

Generally
Moderate

2,586 32.73o/o 1,100 1.3.920 1,486 18.870h

Generaily Low 5,212 65.97% 7,782 22.55Vo 3,430 43.41,oh

Litluet-at:tion
Potential

r2ir of 'fotal
Acres

Improved
Acres

r2ir of Total
Inrproved
Acres

f)nimproved
Acres

'l,ir r>f T'otal
t.lnirrrprove cl

Acles

Total Acres

Butte Counry
Locaf Flazatd Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-46



Past Occurrences

As shown in the Base Plan, only the 1975 5.7 Oroville earthquake federal disaster declaration has occurred

in the County. The HMPC noted no other past occurrences of earthquakes or liquefaction that affected the

City in any meaningful way.

Vulnetability to Earthquake and Liquefaction

Seismic events can have particularly negative effects on older buildings constructed of unreinforced

masonry (URM), including materials such as brick, concrete and stone. The Uniform Building Code (UBC)

identifies four seismic zones in the United States. The zones are numbered one through four, withZone 4

representing the highest level of seismichazard. The UBC establishes more stringent construction standards

for areas within Zones 3 and 4. All of California lies within either Zone 3 ar Zsne 4. The City of Oroville
is within the less hazardous Zone 3.

The General Plan Safety Element noted that where older alluvial sediments underlie the Planning Area,

liquefaction potential is considered to be low. Since soils must be saturated to be at risk of liquefaction, the

areas in Oroville most susceptible to liquefaction include areas within the FEMA lo/o annual chance flood

zone along the Feather River and other drainages, and where there are high groundwater levels.

Earthquake vulnerability is primarily based on population and the built environment. Urban areas in high

seismic hazard zones are the most vulnerable, while uninhabited areas are less vulnerable. There are

minimal amount of URM buildings within the City of Oroville and all of those buildings are privately

owned.

Impacts from Earthquake and Liquefaction

The combination of plate tectonics and associated California coastal mountain range building geology

essentially guarantees earthquake as a result of the periodic release of tectonic stresses. Butte County's

mountainous terrain lies in the center of the North American and Pacific tectonic plate activity. There have

been earthquakes as a result of this activity in the historic past, and there will continue to be earthquakes in

the future of the California north coastal mountain region. The Cleveland Hills fault poses one of the more

significant impact to Butte County and the City as it has the capabilities ofproducing a quake in the upwards

of6.5 or greater.

Fault ruptures itself contributes very little to damage unless the structure or system element crosses the

active fault; however, liquefaction can occur further from the source of the earthquake. In general, newer

conshuction is more earthquake resistant than older construction due to enforcement of improved building

codes. Manufactured housing is very susceptible to damage because their foundation systems are rarely

braced for earthquake motions. Locally generated earthquake motions and associated liquefaction, even

from very moderate events, tend to be more damaging to smaller buildings, especially those constructed of
unreinforced masonry, as was seen in the Oroville earthquake.

Butte County
Locil Hazard IVlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-47



Earthquake Analysis

Due to the limited amount of earthquake risk in the County and City, Hazus earthquake analysis was

performed on a countywide basis only. This can be found in Section 4.3.6 of the Base Plan.

Liquefaction GIS Analysis

GIS was used to determine the possible impacts of liquefaction with'in the City of Oroville. The
methodology described in Section 4.3.6 of the Base Plan was followed in determining structures and values

at risk to the earthquake-based liquefaction.

Values at Risk

Liquefaction potential zones forthe City of Oroville are shown on Figure D-15. As seen on this map,
portions of the City are in the Generally Low and Moderate areas. Table D-29 gives a srunmary of parcel

counts and values in the liquefaction area in the City of Oroville. Table D-30 shows the property use,

improved parcel count, improved values, estimated contents, toial values and estimated loss of parcels that
fall in a liquefaction area in the City.

Butte County
LocoJ llazard iVlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroviile Annex D-48



--^
IJS:

aL<
7

1a

a,

a

6l-.-TE ,- r-ir .\iY-lhiii--

:il-:-:': ii !;'t'l
i:' ,:.r-i.i:

iiII i:\1 rj jj.ri.
- It,'i l-.li'.ft),1 i'{lfli

3UTTE
C(:)I,JN TY

,t : l'f

i.

l*1 -*

^!:

.n

d

i
5St

-
,ai
;
a\
3
i.s;
E
I

tr
!.*a

o

il

c
(.t
4

i

BI.}TTI
(]OIJNTY

,T{i.t,1tii;t
i cjilil.l jj

70

16?

r 'ft

Bt_r T T l:
C(li-rNTY

/0

rJ;

li (1 \.: _- -
RI lTTE

iJC)I.rNTY

i.f r;FNfi

- 

-{t jr#Jr:

l,1i",r *,id:
li,i,lu.t rl

i- lr)tlFFAf Tl()N PrITFNTIAL

. r9t'r,3ll, i,j!
,,rit:i,tll. l'.,1,11':,ttt

.rPl1:ri1i, i ']r',

Fi r,+tt

I 
(. :, .nttrs

.Jt

\.i,,ri .,:
*_- l @

-t:€

- 3tl l.,tttr ; F "e , -ilnl,' rrr srrl : .11 :f ],rl -..r1; ,-.lJ-'/ i-rir L -1 ill.jr l,,,lli: ar t:.: :r'' --,;,I :

LIEOROVI
] CITY OF

CITY OF
OROVILLE

BUTTE COUNTY

,rlrr.rr. ifill
l..-.-...^. €r

I . Il i r:tr\

F.LUI.'IAS

,{5" ' 
i

TEHiI.IA

NE.'



Table D-29 City of Orouille - County and Value of Parcels by Liquefaction Potenaal

Source: Butte County 2030 Genetal Plan, Butte County 3 /28/2019 Parcel/Assessor's Dara

Table D-30 City of Orouille - Counqt and Value of Parcels by Lique{action Potential and
Property Use

Generally
Moderate

2,835 t t1) $130,315,875 fi324,850,206 fi46,863,176 fi285,294973 $770,340,217

Genetally Low 4,310 3,289 $190,035,763 $559,325,A42 fi14,478,1.87 ff366,210,936 fir,072,660,410

City of Oroville
Total

71145 5,501 $320,351,638 $884,175,248 $61,341,363 $651,505,009 $1,783,000,627

Liqrrelhction
Potenti al

Total Improved ''l'oral [.anrl
Par<rel P:rrcel Value
Corurt Count

Inrprovcrl
Sttrrctrr re

V:rlut'

[)ther Value F,stiru:rtetl
(}lrr tcrrI s

V:rlrrt"

I'otal Vrrlue

Agdcultural 0 0 $0 $o $o $o $o

Commercial 741 526 fi69,677,761 $168,438,596 fi4,544,566 $1 fi386,467,487

Industrial 185 66 $23,872,762 $38,806,805 $42,318,6t0 $58,210,208 $187,094,035

Residential 1,812 1,618 fi36,767,96+ fi717,290,539 $0 fi58,645,270 fi196r401,042

Unknown 97 2 $63,388 ff374,266 $o $o ff377,654

Agricultural

Generally
Moderate Total

2,935

I
9

2,212

0 $7,29L,076

$ilto,315,875

I
$324,850,206

I
$o

$46,863,176

fi7,947

I
$285,294,073

I
$o

$770,340,2'.:1

fi'1.,299,023

Commerciai 301 173 $38,161p86 fiL70,572,897 fi1.4,463,240 fi170,51.2,897 $319,950,025

Industdal 42 6 fi2,244,535 ff1.,297,966 $o fi1,937,949 $5,474,450

Residential 3,893 3,rr0 ffr48,337,036 fi387,520,t79 $7,000 $193,760,090 $685,936,912

Unknown 65 0 s1,130 $o $o $o $o

Generally Low
Total

City of Oroville
Total

7,145

4,310

I
3,289

5,501

$559,325,042

$884,175,248

914,478,197

I
$61,341,363

$366,2I0,936

$651,505,009 $1,183,000,627

$1,04,660,4I0

I
$tgo,ots,z6s

I
$320,351,638

I i,,",'{',.ti,'. -|.,.,.'l Lr"\,.,,...,1 "l-,,r.,1 I .,..,1urY r,1,.rr r rurr
Poiential / l)urt cl Patcei V.riut.
Property fJse Coutt Count

Generally Moderete

Generallv l-ou.

T,.>t:rl Y:rl,:cOt!:er \i:rlrr,.' F s tirrr:r!e.-!
C()nrents
V:tl tr.'

Stftrctltrc
Value

Source: Butte County 2030 General Plan, Butte County 9 Assessor's Data

Population at Risk

The liquefaction potential areas were overlayed on the parcel layer. Those residential parcol centroids that
intersect the liquefaction potential areas were counted and multiplied by the 2010 Census Bureau average

household factors for Oroville - 2.60. According to this analysis, there is a total population of 4,207
residents of the City at risk to liquefaction in the Generally Moderate area, with no population in the

Butte County
Local I'Iazx<l lvlitigation Plan Updatc
October 2019

Citv of Oroville r\nnex D-50



Generally High area. This is shown in Table D-3 I . The remainder of the population falls in the Generally

Low area.

Tabte D-31 City of Otouille - Count of Improved Residential Parcels and Population by
Liquefaction Poten tial Atea

Source: Butte County 2030 General Plan, Butte County

Critical Facilities at Risk

Assessor's Dat4 US Census Bureau9

An analysis was performed on the critical facility inventory in Oroville in identified liquefaction potential

areas. GIS was used to determine whether the facility locations intersects a USGS liquefaction area. Details

of critical facilities in a liquefaction potential areas in the City of Oroville are shown in Figure D-16 and

detailed in Table D-32. Detalls of critical facility definition, fype, name and address and jurisdiction by

liquefaction potential area are listed in Appendix F.

1,618 4,207 0 0Oroville

Ge ner:,rllv lVlt.rde ratc

Improved Poptrlation
Residentizrl Parcels

Gcrrerallr High

Improved Poprrlation
Residentierl ParcelsJurisdiction

Butte County
Local llazard Vlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-51



!

aa,4
v 

=-

l.) \_ a

?

l

=

_=

BI-,=T: u:: ..:.:\'.llrSET ):'-,
'l ' i)^-t ill

t.llM(-AL lAr-l.ll i .. tr r:-ii(-fhl
g -::.,:.-: :! .

I .t it:1, ' .. 1, ,.: -

a

t-.

t,.'

i-:.

q,\

-:.
-:,

,i,:

l-l
::-

r.:

:.

r.l

'-'1

:.-
:i

:: .

i':
:r',

:..

\.]
;'..

i,

i.,

- i-/. :i:' i,'li'Lr
:- l)i-itr:i : t

8r_r l iL
ili:)t-.rblTY

I

,'()

r..r I I Tl':; ,I ; i
(-r-,t-JNTY*-o' 10..{t

'*#", o,
r.&llll

OROVILLE , .

tl.

*"r l
'.ri:*

6

I

{,{[
rt '.. --

1b2 '-t
E.

Rr lT--F

'-,-)i 
jNT\/

,r!

Li:ijIN ir

'---.ir r;.r,.

\1", _, i,r.::
*r_* ;t, r 'j;

-ll''::

liirliL
i:rlUNTY

- ,_:.

g,
ll tib

€!
4,.

tlrl
tL

*r

c

/0
Lii.IULI-Ai- I IUN P(J I F-N TIAI.

_:,_,i:Bl .l , Hir;l

jtl,El rr , lrlLr:El litr

riar'rir , l:ri\
l-i'-'"
{_ -1 _.'r"

,BUTTE COUNTY

i:'.llll.nir,

,;ln';
:-l .l

':c!,, t r 
"

,.t?

, ...4r
't 1.i -1

'ttrd

fi E \,/A l

CITY OF
OROVILLE



Essential Services Facilities

1Sfastewater Treatment Plant

1.3Health Care

1,Law Enforcement

-tLogistics Hub

18Essential Services Facilities Total

At Risk Population Facilities

2Schooi

6At fusk Population Facilities Total

Generally Moderate Total

Essential Senrices Facilities

24

3Fire

2Health Cate

2Law Enforcement

)Public Assembly Point f Evacuaion Center

3Radio Sites

3Logistics Hub

1Emergency Operation Center

1DOC

tEmergency Animal Shelter

22Essential Services Facilities Total

At Risk Population Facilities

2School

14At Risk Population Facilities Total

36

60

Generally Low Total

Grand Total

Liquefirction Potential/ Critical Facilin Categon- / Crirical Facitit-v Type

Gerrerallv IlIo<lerate

Faciliw* Count

Generalh'Lorv

Table D-32 City of Orouille - Cdtical "Facilities by Liquefaction Potential

Source: Butte County General Pian, Butte County GIS

Futute Development

Although new growth and development corridors would fall in the area affected by earthquake and

liquefaction, given the small chance of major earthquake and the building codes in effect, development in

the earthquake area will continue to occur. The City enforces the state building code, which mandates

construction techniques that minimize seismic hazards. Future development in the City is subject to these

building codes.

Butte County
Local blazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-53



GIS Analysis

Butte County's 3l2ll20L9 Assessor Data and the County's GtrS pareel data were used as the basis for the

inv€ntory of assessed values for both irnproved and unimproved parcels within the City. Using GIS, the

260 parcels associated with future development projects for which the analysis was to be performed was

identified. Future development in liquefaction potential inundation areas is shown on Figure D-17 and

detailed in Table D-33.

Butte County
LocoJ klazard Mitigation Plan Update
October2Ol9

City of Oroville Annex D-54



x -^-{a
iJ S 

=

=.la

-J

p
a

a i-rl-f : C.1ji_i l\r-r. I N i.:T

J t er':.r.t,'.1

I ni 'lt';lAs
i-

i ; ,(f 
' , l

I eurre couNTY

tirJTTf
cor-rNw

":i::; 
"

i -_ _- I L:u.,r;lrr,\

r:j

l'"i
i

\
i.)

{:

c
EJ

-.
!1

I

t
*
nj

'\-,
'!

o\-

f:

:'
t-'

"e
o

a

:'
*E

o

d
!D

BI-ITTE
(-!)UN IY

70

I]1:.^.:i.ii,:';'t,
j-,' .i::{l

l'-El'rf.l- tr. Y U5i

r.-_

l

I

l

i --.:to2| :"^

I

I

I

,.-., 6 r
l tr:, ,:. F

162

..\BUTTE
L.t-rLlNIY

70

Lir,lil E

( i( )l rNTY

a.

-:lt

LtGL,NL}

-,lhi.fiiir:- - - l"!a;::Rt::.:s
*1- il..i l:,JJd:

Rtt f ,!

L lil?:

t lQllEFAr IICIN PcJTFt{TlAl.
i-:.-ela , F :n
r-':i ,El i. j hl,.:etr:e
i:::, r-,t.r r L ," it

v

J
'\i.iiir,,rr

-t.t:;;rr,,re iriir .,rrrj.i. i."jr*tr.i :1.1|-rJJCl Br,:l.j ,.t.iti,,'-1 '. i j .Ai,r: l,tr1r fr;L :- i,l,: tl,r

lU ILIRL IJEVf:Lt-rf'MtHl ARTAS
; .1.,t,. . ,,_r*r. r[f, rl:::

: CITY OF
OROVILLE

CITY OF
OROVILLE



City of Oroville

Acacia Estates 2 0 6.7

Buttewoods 2 -1 0 5;6-1

Calle Vista Estates Uflit II 48 44 24.+

Canal View Estates J 0 84

Deer Creek Estates 2 3 0 24.3

Fotd Dtive 2 0 22.4

Forebay Estates T o 44.2

Greenvieur Estates 1 7 1.9

Hedtage Oak Estates J 1 46.5

Highlands Estates 1 0 IJ.J

Linkside Place plr4qe I 66 11.5

Matin Ranch 1 0 73.1

Mssion Olive Ranch 20 2 6,8

Nelson 56 7 0 56.5

Oak Park I 0 5.L

Rivers Edge 7 0 10:3

Riverview 4 0 38.8

Rosewood Estates 1 0 5.0

Vista Del Oro 95 22 L5.2

City of Oroville Total 257 76 466.4

Unincorporated Butte County

Oak Park 5 0 94.3

Unincorporated Butte
County Total

Grand Total

3

260

0

76

94.3

560.6

l,icltrc | :tr:iii;ri A rcasT/

Futtrrr Ilc.,.eloFrnerrt

Cencralh. Lov'

-t',-, .t D.,,..,., r a..,,..,. ilni:r,,', r'ct !).lrcl'! { lcr;nt l ll.ri .\r'r'c.:

Table D-33 City of Orouille - Futurc Development ParceI Counts and Acteage in Liquefaction
Potential Ateas

Source: Butte County 2030, City of Oroville GIS, Butte County 9 Parcel/Assessor's Data

Floo d : 1 00 /200 /5 00-Ye ar

Likelihood of Future Occurrence-OccasionaVUnlikely
Vulnerability-Medium

Butte County
L,ocil llazard Nlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-56



Hazatd Profile and Problem Desctiption

Flooding is an important concern throughout the entire Oroville Planning Area, witl flooding hazatds

associated with dam failure and release of water, and flooding associated with major waterways. As

previously described in Section 4.2.11 of the Base Plan, the Butte County Planning Area and the City of
Oroville have been subject to historical flooding. The City of Oroville General Plan Safety Element noted

that the Oroville area has historically been subject to flooding from various rivers and creeks found within

the Planning Area, most particularly from the Feather River and its tributaries. Local flooding was much

more prevalent prior to the construction of the Oroville Dam and its related flood control projects, which

have helped to protect Oroville and many other areas of the County from serious flooding in recent years.

Location and Extent

The City of Oroville is located inside both the FEMA lo/o and 0.2o/o annual chance flood zones. The City

does not have any mapped 0.5% (200-year) flood zones. This is seen in Figure D-l8'

Butte County
Locd. lrlazard Nlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville r\nnex D-57



sfilr {J\{

g
lFa

il

--l..-H

o
5

t
H

ruE

sE

tT

trl.{r,li !
ilifiTIfiTI!II

i lllll: I !

I

Figure D-18 City of Orouille - FEMA DFIRM Flood Zones

I

|a
ra c

F
T

t
I
l
t
$

I
I
F

It
il

I
I

o

$
Annex D-58City of OeovilleBuwe Counfy

Local Haztd Nlitigation Plan Update
October 20T9



Additionally, flood extents can be measured in volume, velocity, and depths of flooding. Expected flood

depths in the City vary, depending on the nature and extent of a flood event; specific depths are unknown-

Flood durations in the City tend to be short to medium term, or until either the storm drainage system can

catch up or flood waters move downstream. Flooding in the City tends to have a shorter speed of onset,

due to the amount of w aler thatflows through the City. Geographical flood extent from the FEMA DFIRMs

is shown in Table D-34.

Table D-34 City of Otouille - Geogtaphical Flood l{azard Extents in FEMA DFIRIVI Flood

Zones

Source: Butte County 1'/16/2011 DFIRNI

Past Occurrences

A list of state and federal disaster declarations for Butte County from flooding is shown on Table D-35

These events also affected Oroville.

Tabte D-35 Butte County - State and Federal Disaster Declaration fton Flood 1950-2018

Source: Cal OES, FEMA

The City also noted that the following events had affects and damages to the Cify:

occurred. No critical facilities were damaged.

Vulnetability to Flood

The General plan Safety Element noted that the Oroville area has historically been subject to flooding from

various rivers and creeks found within the Planning Area, most particularly from the Feather River and its

tributaries. Local flooding was much more prevalent prior to the construction of the Oroville Dam and its

Butte County
Local l,Iazard tvlitigation Plan Update

October 2019

7,315 76.640/067 0.85077.490hIoh Annual
Chance Flood
Hazard

7,382

6.7Lo4.990h 53011.690/o 3949240.2oh Anrtual
Chance Flood
Hazatd

5,048 63.890h34.84098.730 2,7537,801Other Areas

'Zr of Totzrl
Acres

Improved
Acres

iX, of 'Iotal
Irnprovc'tl
Ac-res

Unimproved
Acres

t),ir of Total
I-Ini Inpro'r't:d
Ae res

Fkrod Zone Totatl Acres

17 1950,1955, 1958 (twice), 1962,

79 63, 79 69, r97 0, 1982, 1986,
1,990, 7995 (twice), 1997, 1998,
2008,2077

1955, 1958, 19 62, 1964, 19 69,

1,97 0, 1982, 7986, L995 (twice),
1997, 1.998, 2005, 2017 (ttuee
tjmes),2019

77Flood (including heavy
rain and storms)

Fetle ral Decl:rr:ttions

Years

Stat.' De claratior.ts

Yc:trs

Disaster T-vpe

CountCount

City of Oroville z\nnex I)-59



related flood control projects, which have helped to protect Oroville and many other areas of the County

from serious flooding in recent years.

However, flooding remains an issue which regulatory agencies, the City and Butte County are seeking to

address, in part through mapping of flood hazard areas and study of flooding hazards. Locally, Butte

County, in consultation with the City of Oroville, has completed an assessment of flooding hazards as part

of a Flood Mitigation Plan. This includes the Feather River and Lower Hurruut Crcck Watersheds.

Irnpacts

Floods are among the costliest natural disasters in terms of human hardship and economic loss nationwide.

Floods can cause substantial damage to structures, landscapes, and utilities as well as life safety issues.

Floods can be extremely dangerous, and even six inches of moving water caR knock over a person given a

strong culrent. A car will float in less than fwo feet of moving water and can be swept downstream into

deeper waters. This is one reason floods kill more people trapped in vehicles than anylvhere else. During
a flood, peopie can aiso suifer heart atiacks or electrocution due io electrical equipment shoft outs.

Floodwaters can transport large objects do.+rnstrearn which can damage or remove stationary structures,

such as dam spiiiways. Ground saturation can result in instability, collapse, or other damage. Objects can

aiso be buried or destroyed through sediment deposition. Floodwaters can also break utility lines and

intemrpt ser-vices. Standing water can cause Carnage tc crops, roads, foundations, and electrieal circuits.
Direct impacts, such as drowning, can be limited with adequate waming and public education about what
to do during floods. Where flooding occurs in populated areas, waming and evacuation will be of critical
importance to reduce life and safety impacts from any type of flooding.

Normally, storm floodwaters are kept within defined limits by a variety of storm drainage and flood control

measures in the City. Occasionally, extended heavy rains result in floodwaters that exceed normal high-
water boundaries and cause damage. Flooding has occurred both within the lo/o and 0.2o/o annual chance

floodplains and in other localized areas. The rulnerability of the City to severe flooding is high as it can

result in significant life safety, property damage, environmental, and economic impacts to the City.

Based on the vulnerability of Oroville to the flood hazard, the sections that follow desuribcs significant
assets at risk in the City of Oroville.

Values at Risk

GIS was used to determine the possible impacts of flooding within the City of Oroville. The methodology

described in Section 4.3 .7 of the Base Plan was followed in determining structures and values at risk to the

1% (100-year) and0.2o/o (500-year) annual chance flood event. Analysis is presented in two parts:

Va|ues for Oroville Summarized by DFIRM Flood Zone

Table D-36 is a summary table for the City of Oroville. Parcel counts, values, estimated contents, and total
values in the City are shown for the lo/o and0.2o/o annual chance flood zones, as well as for those properties

Butte (,ounty

L<>cal l;Iazatcl Nlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville Anncx D-60



that fall outside of the mapped FEMA DFIRM flood zones. Table D-37 breaks down Table D-36 and shows

the properfy use, improved parcel count, improved values, estimated contents' and total values that fall in

each floodplain in the CitY.

Tabte D-36 City of orouille - count and value of Parcels at Risk in summaty DFIRIV( Flood

Zones

Source: Butte CountY 1 1 DFIRM, Butte County Parcel/Assessor's Data

*With respect to improve parcels within the floodplain, the actual structures on the parcels may not be located within the actual

floodplain, may be elevated and or otherwise outside of the identified flood zone

**l'his parcel count only includes those parcels in +he 0.2oh anrlual chance flood zooe, exclusive ofthe 170 annual chance flood zone'

The 0.2oh annual chance flood, in acwaltty, also includes all parcels n the loh annual chance flood zone'

Table D-37 City of orouille - count and values of Patcels at Risk by Detailed Flood Zone

and PropertY Use

fi32,245,879fit2,087,296$3s8,940$15,062,584ff6,584,6735r941%o Annual
Chance Flood
Hazard

ff78,213,094 fi2t4,554,239fizi,052,234$91,016,487fi43,4r9,547604 4520.2oh Annaal
Chance Flood
Hazatd

$1,536,200,509fi561.,204,619$58,930,189fi778,096,177fi270,347,4584,9986,447Other Areas
$1,783,000,627$651,505,009fi61,341,363$884,175,2485,501 $320,351,6387,145City of Oroville

Total

'.I'otal Inrproved Tot.rl Land
Parcel Parcel Value
Count Count

Improvecl
Strttcttt re

Value

OtherV:rltrc Estimatccl
Contents
Virlue

'Irrtnl Valuc
Fkrod Zorre

$L22,499$o$o$0$722,4990tAgticirltutal
$27,776,7L7$9,112,008$3s8,940$9,112,008fi4,445,87222JJCommercial

$o$o$0$0$03 0Industtial
ffrl,946,669fi2,975,288$o$5,950,576fiz,016,30247 29Residential

$o$0$0$o$on10Unknown
$32,245,879

$o

$12,087,296

$o

$358,940

I
$o

$15,062,584

$o

$6,584,673

$0

51

n

94

0Agricultural

1%o Annual
Chance
Total

fi737,559,L43fi52,t63,843fi2,002,8s4fi52,163,843fi24,189,383156 96Commercial
fi25,649,422fi1.0,073,624$49,380fi6,715,74e77 fi8,777,39963Industrial
$57,r',t4,135fi15,975,628$0ff31,951,255$10,406,825338370Residentiai

fi23L,540$o$0$185,640$45,900715Unknown

0.2')'1, Anntral Chance F l<>o<l H ttzat<l

Total ValueEstirnated
Corrtents
Vahre

Otl-rer
Valrre

Total l-ancl
V:rlue

Imptovetl
Stnrctrt te
Vzrlue

Floorl Zone T'otel hnProvecl

/ Plopelty Parccl Parcel

Usc Count Count

l'lu, {nnttal (ihrroct: Itlor>d llaz-ard

Butte CountY
Lo cal Llazard Mitigation Plan Update

October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-61



Agdcultural

0.2%
Annual

Total

604

I
8

452

fil,169,577

$43,419,507

I
$91,016,487

I
$7;e4:t

$2,052,234 $78,273,094 w4,554,239

I
'$7,|i6,524

Commercial 853 581 fi79,198,492 fi277,675,642 $16,646,012 $277,675,642 $ss3,681,658

Industrial 161 55 fix7,279,898 fi33,383,Q22 fi42,269,230 $50,074,533 fir66,919,A63

Residential 5,288 4,361 ff172,681.,873 $466,908,887 $7,000 fi233,454,444 fi814,277,150

Unknown t37 1 $18,618 $128,626 fit46,11,4

Other Areas
Total

Grand
Total

$270,347,458

$320,351,638

$778,096,177

$884,175,248

I
$58,930,189

$6!,341,363

$5-61,204,619

$651,505,009 $1,783,000,627

$1,536,200,509

7,145

6,4n

I
4,998

I
5,501

()tlrcr Areas

'l otal V:rlucFlood Zr>ne 'ftrrlrl

/ Propeln Parcel
fJse Courrt

Jotal Land
\i;rlue

0rhcr
Valrre

-Lsriur;rted
Cr>rrtents
Valut'

Improvccl
P'.rrccl
C<itrnt

Irnpnl cd
Stnr cttr lt:
Vzrlrr.r

Source: Butte County'\/1. 1 DFIRM, Butte County Assessor's Data
*With respect to improve parcels within the floodplain, the actual structures on the parcels may not be located within the actual

floodplain, may be elevated and or otherwise outside of the identified flood zone
**This parcel count only inciudes those parcels rn the 0.20h atnual chance flood zonc, cxclusivc of thc 'l7o arrlual chancc 0uod zone.

The0.2oh annual chance flood, in actuality, also includes all parcels in the 1% annual chance flood zone.

Table D-38 summarizes Table D-37 above and shows City of Oroville loss estimates and improved values

at risk by FEMA lo/o and,0.2%o anrnal chance flood zones.

Table D-38 af Orouille - Flood Loss

Source: Butte County 1/16/2011 DFIRM, Butte County Assessor's Data
*!?ith respect to improve parcels within the floodplain, the actual structures on the parcels may not be located within the actual

floodplain, may be elevated and or otherwise outside of the identified flood zone
t+This parcel count only includes those parcels ttt the 0.2o/o annual chance flood zone, exclusive of the loh annual chance flood zone.

The 0.2oh annual chance flood, in actuality, also includes all parcels rnthe 1.oh annual chance flood zone.

According to Table D-37 and Table D-38, the Cify of Oroville has 51 parcels and $27.5 million in values

in the l% annual chance floodplain, andan additional 452 improved parcels and $171.3 million of structure

9

Butte County
L<>cal, L:l,azatd Nlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

1.oh

Annual
Chance

94 51 $6,s84 $15,062,584,6?31 $358,940 $t2,087,296 fi27,508,820 $5,501,764 0.430h

0.20h

Annual
Chance

604 452 fi43,41 $97,016,487,,50?l ff2,052,234 fi78,21.3,094 fi171,281,815 ff34,256,363 2.710h

Grand
Total

698 503 $106,079,071$50,004,1801 $2,417,774 $90,300,390 $198,790,635 $39,758,727 3.14o/o

Fklorl
'Zone

'J'tital Inrpror,ecl T'otul l,;rrtl fmprove<l
Parcel I'arcel Value Stluctule
Count Courrt V:rlue

()ther
Valrre

F.stirnate d
( lolr te rrts

Valuc

'I'olal \":rlue [,r]ss
Flstirn atc

Loss
liatio

City of Oroville Annex D-62



and contents values in the 0.2Yo annual chance floodplain. These values can be refined a step firther.
Applying the 20 percent damage factor as previously described in Section 4.3.6 of the Base Plan, there is a

lo/o chance in any given year of a flood event causing $5.5 rnillion in damages, anda0.2o/o chance in any

givenyearofafloodeventcausing$34.2millionindamageintheCityofOroville. Thelossrutioof0.43%6

and2.7l%o indicates that flood losses for the Cify would be relatively minor and the City should be able to

recover relatively quickly.

Values for Orouille by Watershed

Analysis was performed to determine DFIRM Flood Zones and which watershed they are located in. This

analysis is presented in three tables:

DFIRM flood zone

both DFIRM flood zone and property use type.

Table D-39 Ciry of Orouille - Coant and Value of Parcels by Watershed

Source: Butte County 1 16/2011. DFIRM, Butte County 3/28/2019 Assessor's Data

Table D-40 City of Oroville - Count and Value ofParcels by lVatershed and Summary DFIRM
Zones

ff884,175,248 fi61,34r,363 $651,505,009 fir,783,0i00,627Feather River /
Lower Honcut
Creek Watershed

7,L45 5,501 fi320,357,638

$61347,363 $651,505,009 $7,783,000,627City of Oroville
Total

7,145 5,501 $320,351,638 $884,175,248

'fotal Lnproved Total Lantl
Parcel Parcel Valut:
Courrt Count

Improved
Structtrrt:
V:rlue

Other V:rltre Estimated
Contents
Value

Tot:rl VzrlueWatershetl

$1.5,062,584 $358,940 $72,087,296 fi32,245,879170 Annual
Chance Flood
Hazard

94 51 $6,584,673

$2,052,234 fi78,213,094 fi214,554,239604 452 ff43,41.9,507 fig7,0t6,4870.2oh Annual
Chance Flood
Hazatd

$58,930,189 fi561,204,619 fiL,536,200,5096,447 4,998 fi270,347,458 #778,096,177Other Areas

$67,341,363 $651,505,009 $1,783,000,6277,145 5,501 $320,351,638 9884,775,248Feather River /
Lower floncut
Creek
Watershed
Total

!f alerslred f Totztl lrnproved T'otal l,antl
Floo<l Zone Pzrrcel Parcel Valtte

Cortnt Courrt

Feather Rivt'r / Lower Honcur Creek Watershed

Irnprovetl
Stnrcture
V:rlue

Other Value Estirn?lte(l
Conterits
Valtre

Total Value

Butte County
Local. Llazatd Nlitigation Pian Update

October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-63



City of Oroville
Total

7,145 5,501 $320,351,638 $61,341363$884,175,248 I

I

$651,505,009 $1,783,000,627

W;rtr:r'shcci /
[iLrorl Zorrr:

-['otal lmplove<i i otal l,anrl
P?rr(:r'l Parc{'l \ralrrc
Count Ctiult

Iinpnrvcti
St r'tt r: t rr lc
Valrrc

()tiicr Vaiut' iistinratctl
C()ntents
Valrtt'

-i'ota i \'':rlut'

Sourre: Butte Countv 1 1 DFIRilI, Buttc County 3 20t9 Asscasor's l)ata

Table D-41 City of Orouille - Count and Value of Patcels by lVatetshed, DFIRM Flood Zone,
and Property Use

Lo/o Annual Chance Flood Hazard

Agriculrural 1 0 fi122,499 $0 $0 $0 fi122,4ee

Commercial JJ 22 fi4,445,872 $9,112,008 $358,940 $9,1 12,008 fi21.,176,711,

Industrial 3 0 $o
qn

$o $o $o

47 tr) $4A4$02 $5,q50-Ve w,9:t5,2-88 s10,q46,669

Unknown 10 0 $o $o $o $o $o

7oh Annual Chance Flood
IlazatdTotal

94 51 $6,584,673 $15,062,584 $358,940 $12,087,296 $32,245,879

0.2oh Annual Chance Flood Hazard

,tgricultural 0 n $o $o $0 $o $o

Commercial 156 96 fi24,189,383 fi52,r63,843 fi2,002,854 fi52,1,63,843 $131,559,143

Industrial 63 17 fi8,777,399 fi6,715,749 $49,380 fi10,073,624 fi25,649,422

Residential 370 -t-)6 $10,406,825 $31,,951,,255 $o fi75,975,628 $57,114,1,35

Unknown $45,900 $185,640 $o $o ff237,540

0.2% Annual Chance
Flosd Hazard Total

15

604

1

452 $43,419,507 $91,016,487 $2,052,234 978,213,094 92M,554,239

Other r{rEed

Agricultural 8 0 $7,769,5n $o $7,947 $o fi7,776,524

Commercial 853 581 fi79,798,492 fi277,675,642 ff1,6,646,01,2 $277,675,642 $553,681,658

Industrial 767 55 $17,279,898 fi33,383,022 $42,269,230 $50,074,533 fi766,979,063

Resident-ial 5,288 4,361 fi172,681.,873 $466,908,887 $7,000 $233,454,444 fi814,277,r50

Unknown t37 1 $18,618 fi128,626 fil46,1.1,4

Other Areas Total 6,447 4,998 fi270,347,458 fi778,096,r77 $561,204,619$58,930,189 $1,536,200,509

Feather River / Lower
Iloncut Creek Watershed
Total

City of Oroville Total

7,145

7,L45
I

5,501

I
5,501

$320,351,638

$320,351,638

$884,175,248

$884,175,248

$61341,363

$61,341,363

$651,505,009

$651,505,009 $1,783,000,627

$1,783,000,627

\Yatcrshed,/ Flootl l4rir;c Tot.rl Irrprorrd Tr>tal -arrtl [tnptr>ved
/ Plrpertl tise Parc:el Pan:cl Valtrc Str'ucture

(bunt Oorrrrt Valrr.'

Ire:riher ltir cr 7j Lrnte r floncrrt Cre ck tl'atcrshcd

l.erirnrr..,l 'l',"'l \ '1,".
(lort icrt ts
V:rlttt:

A+l',."

Varluc

Br,rtte Cor:nty
Local I-Iazatd lvlitigation Plan Update
October 2O19

City of Oroville Annex D-64



Source: Butte Cotnty 1/16/2011 DFIRN{, Butte County 3/28/2019 Parcel/Assessor's Data

Flooded Actes

Also of interest is the land area affected by the various flood zones. The following is an analysis of flooded

acres in the City in comparison to total area within the City limits. The same methodology, as discussed in

Section4.3.8oftheBasePlan,wasusedfortheCityofOrovilleaswellasfortheCountyasawhole. Table

D-42 represents a detailed and summary analysis of total acres for each FEMA DFIRM flood zone in the

Cify.

Table D-42 City of Oroville - Flooded Aues

Source: FENIA DFIRM 201,1.

Population at Risk

The DFIRM flood zones were overlayed on the parcel layer. Those residential parcel centroids that intersect

the flood zones were counted and multiplied by the 2010 Census Bureau average household factors for

Oroville -2.60. According to this analysis, there is atotalpopulation of 75 and 874 residents of the City

at risk to flooding inthe lo/o and,0.2%o annual chance floodplains, respectively. This is shown in Table

D-43.

Table D-43 Ciry of Otovilhe - Count of fmprcved Residential Parcels and Population byFlood
Zttne

Source: Butte County 1 1 DFIRM, Butte County 3/28/2019 Assessor's Data, US Census Bureau

Critical Facilities at Risk

An analysis was performed on the critical facility inventory in Oroville in DFIRM flood zones. GIS was

used to determine whether the facility locations intersects a DFIRM flood zone and, if so, what zone it

intersects. Details of critical facilities in a DFIRM flood zones in the City of Oroville are shown in Figure

Butte County
Locd. llazxd lvlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

67 O.O1o/o 1,375 0.1.40/o1,382 0.70Yo17o Annual
Chance Flood
Hazard

0.070 530 0.060h924 0.060/o 3940.2ok Annwal
Chance Flood
Hazard

2,753 0.5r% 5,048 0.55%7,801. 0.540hOther Areas

0.600 6,894 0.76%10,107 0.70o/o 3,28City of Oroville
Total

o/u of Total
Acfes

hnproved
Acres

%, of Tot:rl
Lnproved
Acres

Unimproved
Acres

ttlt of 'Iotttl
tlnimproved
Acres

Flood Zone Total Acres

75 338 87429Oroville

l'2, Annual Chance Flooding

Improved Populatiorr
Residenrial Parcels

0,2'),ir Annual Cl-rance Flooding

Improved Populatiou
Residential Parcels

.f urisrliction

City of Oroville Annex D-65



D-i9 and detaiied in Table D-44. Details of critical faciiiry definition, t5pe, name and address and
jurisdiction by flood zone are listed in Appendix F.

Butte County
L,<>cal Llazzrd Niitigation Plan Update
()ctobcr 20.19

City of Oroville Annex D-66



Figure D-19 City of Orouille - Cdtical Facilities in DFIR-fut Flood Zones

T

I
r,l

cl

E
s

I
t
f
d

i
I
j

F

E

il

I
I

c

$

lr
{l

f,$'l !

Hru
d..
F

rh

urE

5A

,n

tlIiiirlf,lilllll!l!_
Annex D-67City of OrovilleButte County

Locd, I-Iazatd Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019



Essential Services Facilities

Health Care 1

Essential Services Facilities Total I
At Risk Population Facilities

School 1

At Risk Population Facilities Total I
0.2o/o Annwal Chance Flood Hazard Total

Zone X (unshaded)

2

Essential Services Facilities

lWastewatet Treatftefl t Plant 1

Fire 3

Health Care 18

Law Enforcement 3

Public Assembly Point / Evacuation Center 2

Radio Sites 3

Logist-ics Hub 6

Emergency Operation Center 1

DOC aI

Emergency Animai Sheiter I

Essential Services Facilities Total 39

At Risk Population Facilities

School 19

At Risk Population Facilities Total t9

ZoneX (unshaded) Total 58

Other Areas Total

Grand Total

58

60

Flood Zone,/ Critical Facilitl Categon / Ctitical Facilitv Type

0.2o/o Annual Chance Flood Flazard

Facilin'Count

Other Areas

Table D-44 City o{Orcuille - Critical Faciities in DFIR-fut Flood Zones

Source: FEMA DFIRM 1/6/201.1, Butte County GIS

lnsutance Coverage, Claims Paid, and Repetitive Losses

The City of Oroville joined the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) on September24,1984. The City
does not participate in CRS program. NFIP data indicates that as of July 19 , 2018, there were 99 flood
insurance policies in force in the City w ith 529 ,287 ,400 of coverage. Of the 99 policies, 82 were residential
(single-family homes) and 17 were non-residential. Of the 99 policies, 14 were in A zones, and 85 were
om in B, C, and X zones. The GIS parcel analysis detailed above identified 5l improved parcels inthe l%o

Butte County
I'ocaJ, l-lazard Nlitigation Plan Update
October 20 I9

City of Oroville Annex D-68



annual chance flood zone with 14 policies covering them, which equates to 26.9Yo coverage of parcels in

the IYo annual chance flocidptain. There have been 21 historical claims for flood losses totaling

$494,395.16. 3 of these claims were substantial damage claims. NFIP data fuither indicates that there is I

repetitive loss (RL) and 0 severe repetitive loss (SRL) buildings.

Califonia Departnent of Water Resoutces Best Available Maps (BAM)

The FEMA regulatory maps provide just one perspective on flood risks in Butte County. Senate Bill 5 (SB

5), enacted in2007, authorized the California DWR to develop the Best Available Maps (BAM) displaying

100- and 200-year floodplains for areas located within the Nevada-San Joaquin (SAC-SJ) Valley watershed.

This effort was completed by DWR in 2008. DWR has expanded the BAM to cover all counties in the

State and to include 500-year floodplains.

Different than the FEMA DFIRMs which have been prepared to support the NFIP and reflect only the 100-

year event risk, the BAMs are provided for informational purposes and are intended to reflect current 100-

,200-(as applicable), and 500-year event risks using the best available data. The 100-year floodplain limits

on the BAM are a composite of multiple 100-year floodplain mapping sources. It is intended to show all

currently identified areas at risk for a 100-year flood event, including FEMA's 100-year floodplains. The

BAM are comprised of different engineering studies performed by FEMA, Corps, and DWR for assessment

ofpotential 100-, 200-, and 500-year floodplain areas. These studies are used for different planning and/or

regulatory applications, and for each flood frequency may use varied analytical and quality control criteria

depending on the study type requirements.

The value in the BAMs is that they provide a bigger picture view of potential flood risk to the City than

that provided in the FEMA DFIRMs. This provides the community and residents with an additional tool

for understanding potential flood hazards not currently mapped as a regulated floodplain. Improved

awareness of flood risk can reduce exposure to flooding for new structures and promote increased protection

for existing development. Informed land use planning will also assist in identifying levee maintenance

needs and levels of protection. By including the FEMA 10O-year floodplain, it also supports identification

of the need and requirement for flood insurance. The BAM map for Oroville is shown in Figure D-20.

Butte County
L,ocd. l-Iazard Nlitigation Plan Update

October 2019

City of Oroville r\nnex D-69



Figure D-20 City oiOrcville - Best Available fuIap

'@

I :-- -'

Source: California DWlt
l.egend explanation: Bluc - FllMr\ 1oh, ()nngc - Local 1%o (dcvel<>ped from local agencies), Ited - DWR 17or (Awareness

floodplains identif' thc 'loh annuzl chance flood haztd rtcrs using approximate xsscssment procedures.), Pink - USz\CFl 1oh (2002
Sac and San Joaquin River Basins Comp Study), Yellow - USi\CE 0.5o (2002 Sac and San Joaquin River Basins Comp Study), -fan

- FtiA.{,\ 0.2oh, Gtey - Local0.2oh (developed From local agencie s), Purplc - [JS;\CE 0.2%Q002 Sac and San Joaquin fuver Basins

Comp Study).

Future Develooment

No development is occurring in the floodway. However, development may occw in specific flood zones.
This development must meet specific criteria based on the City's flood ordinance and as outlined on the

DFIRM for that particular area. These maps are available on the Butte County Website. Map
06007C0795E located on the Butfe County wehsite contains additional information regarding the floodplain
for the downtown Oroville area.

GIS Analysis

Butte County's 3l2ll20l9 Assessor Data and the County's GIS parcel data were used as the basis for the

inventory of assessed values for both improved and unimproved parcels within the City. Using GIS, the
260 parcels associated with future development projects for which the analysis was to be performed was

identified. Future development in DFIRM flood zones are shown on Figure D-21 and, detailed in Table
D-4s.

Butte County
Loczl I Iazrcl Ulitrganon Plan Update
()ctobcr 2019

(iiry of ()roville ,\nncx D-70



\i
0t:
Fi

t
L
\tq

*
I

$

H

b
G

'ilrt
5
o

\.
U
ij
N

\
[*
a.
N
n
(b
U)

ottr
;6+

8-"-nn tiA-
I'JN Cop 3
o d*{

?

ga

u,
o

=
C
a-
o

o
o

o

25iI
U
-J

u*a

IEGilI

--+-FE
*-*h

llE
ch
CiL(

I

u

\
IT

atllA

BE.MTreTI
ntf-lbrCprfr

b
F

.INTI

FT-
.l

J

p
U

-l t

-di
r

/-
1t

/

.J

I

,mat,''o
WN

T'TIE
o(lrilw

gAMLE
l*AilrlClre
Inrexrry

fare*t
Inm
O-AhdCh.
IO.aArdCr--
Crrxr
i**lrext*rg

&nA
&rAE

I

th lhns FEIAm lefit. Al} GrryGq Ctfrq lS) tb: frta/tg.
5b



1o/o Annwal Chance Flood Hazard

Riverview 2 17.7

1%o Annual Chance Flood Hazard Total 2 17.7

Other Areas

Acacia Estates 2 0 6.7

Buttewoods 2 3 0 56.1

Calle Vista Estates Unit II 48 44 24.4

Canal View Estates 3 0 8.4

Deer Creek Estates 2 3 0 24.3

Ford Drive 2 0 22.4

Forebay Estates 1 0 40.2

Greenview Estates 1- 1, 1..9

Heritage Oak Estates 3 i 46.5

Highlands Estates 1, 0 13.3

Linkside Place Phase I 66 6 11.5

Martin Ranch 1 0 73.r

Nfission Oiive Ranch 20 2 6.8

Nr.l"^- (/, t 0 56.5

n^l- D^-l- 1 0 5.1

Rivers Edge 1 0 10.3

Riverview 2 0 21.1,

Rosewood Estates I 0 5.0

Visra Del Oro 95 22 75.2

Other Areas Total 255 76 448.7

City of Oroville Total

Other Areas

257 76 466.4

Oak Park J 0 94.3

Other Areas Total 3 0 94.3

Unincorporated Butte County Total

Grand Total

3

260

0

76

94.3

560.6

Flood Zone / Futrrre Developrnent

Cih'ot'Oroville

Total Parcel Count Improved Parccl Count Total Actcs

Unincorporate(l Butt€ Coun tv

Table D-45 City o{ Orouilile - Funtre Development Parceis and Acreages in DFIRM Flood
Zones

Source: FEI\&\ DFIRfi{ 1/6/201,1,/ City of Oroviile GIS, Butte County 3/28/2019 Parcel/Assessor's Data

Butte County
L.<>cal l'Lzz.ard Nlitigation PIan Update
0ctober 2U19

Ciw of Orovilie Annex D-72



Flood: Localized Stormwatet Flooding

Likelihood of Future Occurrence-Occasional
Vulnerability-Medium

Hazatd Profile and Ptoblem Description

While flooding happens in the City from time to time in the FEMA floodplains, areas outside of the

floodplain can experience intermittent flooding as well. Localized flooding and other issues caused by

severe weather events, primarily heavy rains and severe storms, can often pose a risk to the community.

Primary concerns include impacts to infrastructure that provides a means of ingress and egress throughout

the community.

Location and Extent

As described above, the City is subject to Iocalizedflooding throughout the City. Flood extents are usually

measured in areas affected, velocity of flooding, and depths of flooding. Expected flood depths in the Cify

vary by location. Flood durations in the City tend to be short to medium term, or until either the storm

drainage system can catch up or flood waters move downstream. Localized flooding in the City tends to

have a shorter speed of onset, especially when antecedent rainfall has soaked the ground and reduced its

capacity to absorb additional moisture.

Past Occurrences

The City noted the following past occurrences of localized flooding:

of the City of Oroville

The City also noted that various areas within the City are prone to localized flooding during heavy rain and

storm events as described further below.

Vulnerability to Localized Flooding

There are two primary sources of stormwater runoff that are of concern to the City: regional runoff, which

originates outside the City, and runoff from properties located inside the City. Regional runoff has

historically posed the greatest threat of flooding to properties in the City; however, flood control facilities

such as Oroville Dam have minimized this threat considerably. As a result, the more immediate concern

for the City is the collection, conveyance, and discharge of stormwater from properties within the City.

The Cify tracks localized flooding areas. Affected localized flood areas identified by the City of Oroville

are summarizedin Table D-46.

Butte County
Local Llazard lVlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-73



Table D-46 Ciry of Oroville - Road Iist of Localized Flooding Problem Areas

Source: City of Oroville

Impacts

Localized' flooding and other issues caused by severe weather events, primarily heavy rains and
thunderstorms, can often pose a risk to the community. Primary concems include impacts to infrastructure
that provides a means of ingress and egress throughoui the community. Ground saturation can result in
instability, collapse, or other damage. Objects can also be buried or destroyed through sediment deposition.
Floodwaters can also break utility lines and intemrpt services. Standing water can cause damage to crops,
roads, foundations, and electrical circuits.

Future Development

Future development in the City will add more impervious surfaces causing more runoff. The City has
addressed localized flooding in the past and will continue those efforts in the future through stormwater
master planning efforts as well as through requirements for new development. The City of Oroville is in
the planning stages of storm drain improvements.

Levee Failure

Likelihood of Future Occurrence-Likely
Vulnerability-Medium

Alice Ave. X

Baid Rock Rci. ,(

Black Bart Rd. X
Cherokee Rd. X X
Datby Rd. X
Foothill Blvd. X
Fotbestown Rd. X x
Hurelton Rd. X

Long Bar Rd. X
Louis Ave. X

Lumpkin Rd. X
Oregon Gulch Rd. X
Railroad Ave. X

Stringtown Rd. x X
Zink Rd. X

Flooding Pa.r'ernent Washotrt
Deferiorertion

Hieh
Wlrtcr

Latndslidc,/ Debris
NIutlslicle

Dou'necl
"f lees

.Road Name

Butte County
Local Elmatd lVlitigadon Plan Update
O.tober 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-74



Hazard Ptofile and Problem Description

A levee is a raised areathat runs along the banks ofa stream or canal. Levees reinforce the banks and help

prevent flooding by containing higher flow events to the main stream channel. By confining the flow to a

naffower steam channel, levees can also increase the speed of the water. Levees can be natural or man-

made.

Location and Extent

There is not a scientific scale or measurement system in place for levee failure. Figure D-22 shows the

location of levee centerlines for federal and non-federal levees in the Oroville Planning Area. The majority

of levees in the Planning Area are non-federal levees, and they are concentrated along the Feather Rivet,

the western and southem fringes of the Thermalito Afterbay, and the southern fringes of the Thermalito

Forebay. Federal levees are located in the southwest portion of the Planning Area, between the Feather

River and the Thermalito Afterbay. The City of Oroville 2030 General Plan Safety Element noted that

levee inundation area maps are not available for the Oroville Planning Area. However, the California

Department of Water Resources mapped I evee Flood Protection Zones for State Water Project levees in

the Sacramento River Basin in August 2011, and only a small portion of the Planning Area is included in

the Levee Flood Protection Zone: approximately 150 acres adjacent to the southeast comer of the

Thermalito Afterbay, which is currently used for open space and designated State Water Project in this

General Plan.

Expected flood depths in the City are not known. The speed of onset is slow as the river rises, but if a levee

fails the warning times are short for those in the inundation area.. The duration of levee failure risk times

can be hours to weeks, depending on the river flows that the levee holds back. The HMPC noted that since

dredging the river bottom has been limited, the bottom of the river has become higher, thus the water levels

reach higher on the banks of the levees. When northem California reservoirs are nearing maximum

capacity, they release water tkough the river systems, causing additional burdens on County levees. The

potential for levee breaches and erosion damage has increased.

Butte County
Local I-lazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

Citv of Otoville Annex D-75



Figure D-22 City of Orouille - Levee Locations

Source: City of Oroville 2030 General Plan

II
!
l
,;

!
6

I{

I
I
I

I
g

I
6

I
,l!t
il

i
t

I
I
i

I

Butte County
Local Elazard fuIitigation Plan Update
October 2019

Ciq' of Oroville Annex D-76



Past Occurences

The City Planning Team noted no past occlurences of levee failures.

Vulnerability to Levee Failure

Levee failure flooding can occur as the result ofpartial or complete collapse of an impoundment, and often

results from prolonged rainfall and flooding. The primary danger associated with dam or levee failure is

the high velocity flooding of those properties downstream of the breach. A levee failure can range from a

small, uncontrolled release to a catastrophic failure. Vulnerability to levee failures is generally confined to

the areas subject to inundation downstream of the facility. Secondary losses would include loss of the

multi-use functions of the facility and associated revenues that accompany those functions.

Levee failure flooding would vary in the City depending on which structure fails and the nature and extent

of the failure and associated flooding. This flooding presents a threat to life and property, including

buildings, their contents, and their use. Large flood events can affect critical facilities and lifeline utilities

(e.g., water, sewerage, and power), transportation, jobs, tourism, the environment, agricultural industry, and

the local and regional economies.

Impacts

Should the levees fail, all of the area protected by the levees would be at risk to flooding causing property

damage and life safety concems. Business losses would be large should facilities be flooded. Additional

issues include dewatering of the levee protected areas, as well as the rebuilding of the levees. Road closures

would occur, and would impede both evacuation routes and ability of first responders to quickly respond

to calls for aid.

Future Development

Future development built in the areas protected by levees is subject to being built to the standards in the

City of Oroville Floodplain Ordinance. Future development in levee protected areas may be affected by

this hazard, thus there will always be some level of concern.

Severe lVeather: Extreme lfeat

Likelihood of Future Occurrence-Highly Likely
Vulnerability-Medium

tlazatd Profile and Problem Desctiption

According to FEMA, extreme heat is defined as temperatures that hover 10 degrees or more above the

average high temperature for the region and last for several weeks. Heat kills by taxing the human body

beyond its abilities. In extreme heat and high humidity, evaporation is slowed and the body must work

extra hard to maintain a normal temperature." Most heat disorders occur because the victim has been

overexposed to heat or has over-exercised for his or her age and physical condition. Older adults, young

children, and those who are sick or overweight are more likely to succumb to extreme heat. Conditions

Butte County
Locil. Llazard Nlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville z\nnex D-77



that can induce heat-related illnesses include stagnant atmospheric conditions and poor air quality.
Consequently, people living in urban areas may be at greater risk from the effects of a prolonged heat wave
than those li.zing in rural areas. Also, asphalt and concrete store heat longer and gradually release heat at
night, which can produce higher nighttime temperatures known as the urban heat island effect. Extreme
heat, coupled with high winds, can trigger PG&E to perform a Public Safety Power Shutdown (PSPS),

which cuts of electricity to those in the City and the County.

Location and Extent

Heat is a regicmal phenomenon and affects the whole of the City. Heat emergencies are often slower to
develop, taking several days ofcontinuous, oppressive heat before a significant or quantifiable impact is
seen. Heat waves do not strike victims irnmediately, but rather their cumulative effects slowly take the
lives of vulnerable populations. Heat waves do not generally cause damage or elicit the immediate response

offloods, fires, earthquakes, or other more "typical" disaster scenarios.

The NWS has in place a system to initiate alert procedures (advisories or warnings) when extreme heat is
expected to have a significant i-tr,lpact on public safety. The expected severity of,the heatdetermines w-hether

advisories or warnings are issued. The NWS HeatRisk forecast provides a quick view of heat risk potential
over the upcoming seven days. The heat risk is portrayed in a numeric (0-4) and color
(green/yellow/orangelrcdlmagenta) scale wlich is sfunilar in approach to the Air Qua-lrry Index- (AQI) or the
UV Index. This can be seen in Section 4.2.2 of $e Base Plan.

Past Occurences

The Ciry Flamling Tsam note that since extrcme heat is a regional phenomenon, events that affected the
County also affected the City. Those past occurrences were shown in the Base Plan in Secrion 4.2.2.

Vulnerability to Extreme Fleat

The City experiences temperatures in excess of 100 degrees during the summer and fall months. The
temperature moves to 105-1 l5oF in rather extreme situations. Health impacts are the primary concern witl
this hazard, though economic impacts are also an issue.

Impacts

The elderly and individuals below the poverly level are the most vulnerable to extreme temperatures.
Nursing homes and elder care facilities are especially wlnerable to extreme heat events if power outages

occur and air conditioning is not available. In addition, individuals below the poverty level may be at
increased risk to extreme heat ifuse of air conditioning is not affordable. This is especially true of homeless
people and the transient population.

Reliance on air conditioning causes a strain on the electrical energy in the City. Occasionally peak demands
outweigh supply and a condition known as brown-out occurs. This.is an extremely dangerous situation for
electrical equipment as it operates without the needed electricity causing damage to the systems. Days of
extreme heut hsvc bccn known to rcsult in mcdical cmcrgcncics, civil unrest, and unpredictable human
behavior. Periods of extended heat and dryness (droughts) can have major economic, agricultural, and

Butte County
Local Hazard Nlitigation Plan Update
Octo'ber 2019

City of Otoville Annex D-78



water resources impacts. Extreme heat can also dry out vegetations, making it more vulnerable to wildfire

ignitions. PSPS can also happen, which cuts off electricity to the City during periods of high heat.

Future Development

Vulnerability to extreme heat will increase as the average age of the population in each City shifts. The

residents ofnursing homes and elder care facilities are especially vulnerable to extreme temperature events.

It is encouraged that such facilities have emergency plans or backup power to address power failure during

times of extreme heat and in the event of a Public Safety Power Shutoff. Low income residents and

homeless populations are also vulnerable. Cooling centers for these populations should be utilized when

necessary. However, many of the residents of the City are accustomed to living with extreme heat and take

precautions to guard against the threat of extreme heat.

Severe lYeathet: Freeze and Wintet Storm

Likelihood of Future Occurrence-Occasional
Vulnerabilify-Medium

Hazatd Profile and Problem Description

According to the National Weather Service (NIWS) and the Western Regional Climate Center (WRCC),

extreme cold often accompanies a winter storm or is left in its wake. Prolonged exposure to cold can cause

frostbite or hypothermia and can be life-threatening. Winter snowstorms can include heavy snow, ice, and

blizzard conditions.

Location and Extent

Freeze and winter storms are regional issues, meaning the entire City is at risk to freeze and winter storm.

While there is no scale (i.e. Richter, Enhanced Fujita) to measure the effects of freeze, temperature data

from the County from the WRCC indicates that there are 21.8 days that fall below 32oF in western Butte

County, with no days falling below 0oF. Freeze has a slow onset and can be generally be predicted in

advance for the Counfy. Freeze events can last for hours (in a cold overnight), or for days to weeks at a

time. Snowfall is measured in snow depths. It is rare for snow to fall in the City, and even rarer that snow

accumulates in the City. Snowfall has an onset that is similar to freeze in the City.

Past Occurrences

The City Planning Team note that since freeze and winter storm is a regional phenomenon, events that

affected the lower elevations of the County also affected the City. Those past occurrences were shown in

the Base Plan in Section 4.2.3.

Vulnerability to Severe Weather: Freeze and Winter Storms

The City experiences temperatures below 32 degrees during the winter months. The temperature moves to

the teens in rather extreme situations.

Butte County
Local. Flazatd Vlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-79



Impacts

Freeze normally does not impact structures, but is a life safety issue. Secondary impacts of extreme cold
can affect the supporting mechanisms or systems of a community's infrastructure. For example, when
extreme cold is coupled with high winds or ice storms, power lines may be downed, resulting in an
interruption in the transmission of that pow€r shutting ciown eiectric fiIrnaces; which may iead to fiozen
pipcs in homcs and busincsscs.

Occasional'ly, winter storms with snow and ice can affect the Ci.ty. Transportation nefworks,
communications, and utilities infrastructure are the most vulnerable physical assets in the City. The ability
for the City to continue to operate during periods of winter storrn and freeze is paramount. The elderly
population in the planning area is most vulnerable to temperature extremes. The residents of nursing homes
and elder care facilities are especially vulnerable to extreme temperature events. It is encouraged that such
facilities have emergency plans or backup power to address power failure during limes of extreme cold.
Transient and homeless populations are also at risk to freeze.

Future Development

Future development should be br.rilt to code. Pipes at risk of freezing should be mitigated be either burying
or insulating them from freeze as new facilities are improved or added. Vulnerability to extreme cold will
increase as the average age of the population in the County shifts. The elderly are more at risk to the effects
of freeze. However, many of the residents of the City are accustomed to living with freeze and take
precautions to guard against the threat offreeze.

Severe W'eathen ffeavy Rain and Storms (Ilail, Lightning; lVind)

Likelihood of Future Occurrence-Likely
Vulnerability-Medium

Hazatd Profile and Problem Description

Storms in the City of Oroville occur annually and are generally characterized by heavy rain often
accompanied by strong winds and sometimes lightning and hail. Approximately l0 percent of the
thunderstorms that occur each year in the United States are classified as severe. A thunderstorm is classified
as severe when it contains one or more of the following phenomena: hail that is three-quarters of an inch or
greater, winds in excess of 50 knots (57.5 mph), or a tornado. Heavy precipitation in the City falls mainly
in the fall, winter, and spring months.

Location and Extent

Heavy rain events occur on a regional basis. Rains and storms can occur in any location of the City. All
portions of the City are at risk to heavy rains. Most of the severe rains occur during the winter months.
There is no scale by which heavy rains and severe storms are measwed. Magnitude of storms is measured
often in rainfall and damages. The speed of onset of heavy rains can be short, but accurate weather
prediction mechanisms often let the public know of upcoming events. Duration of severe storms in
California, Butte County, and the City is often short, ranging from minutes to hours. In some cases, rains

Butte County
Local Llazard lVlitigation Plan Updatc
October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-80



can continue for days at a time. Information on precipitation extremes can be found in Section 4.2.4 of the

Base Plan.

Past Occurrences

According to historical hazard data, severe weather is an annual occuffence in the City of Oroville. Past

heavy rains have flooded the main roadway in the City of Oroville. These heavy rains have caused the storm

drains to overflow onto the streets and nearby businesses. These flooding of city streets have an impact on

public safety entities within the City.

Vulnerability to Heavy Rain and Stotms

According to historical hazard data, severe weather is an annual occuffence in the City. Damage and

disaster declarations related to severe weather have occurred and will continue to occur in the future. Heavy

rain and severe storms are the most frequent type of severe weather occrrrences in the City. Wind and

lightning often accompany these storms and have caused damage in the past. Hail is rare in the City.

Impacts

Impacts to properfy, critical facilities (such as utilities), and life safety can be expected during heavy storms.

Actual damage associated with the primary effects of severe weather have been limited. It is the secondary

hazards caused by weather, such as floods, fire, and agricultural losses that have had the greatest impact on

the City. The risk and vulnerability associated with these secondary hazards are discussed in the flood and

localized flood sections of this Annex.

Future Development

New critical facilities such as communications towers and others should be built to code to withstand hail

damage,lightning, and thunderstorm winds. Future losses to new development should be minimal.

lViIdfirc

Likelihood of Future Occurrence-Highly Likely

Vulnerability-High

Hazard Ptofile and Problem Description

Wildland fire is an ongoing concern for the City of Oroville. Generally, the fire season extends from early

spring through late fall of each year during the hotter, dryer months. Fire conditions arise from a

combination of high temperatures, low moisture content in the air and fuel, accumulation of vegetation, and

high winds. Throughout California, communities are increasingly concerned about wildfire safety as

increased development in the foothills and mountain areas and subsequent fire suppression practices have

affected the natural cycle of the ecosystem.

Butte Couoty
L.ocal Flazard Nlitigation Plan Update

October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-81



Location and Extent

Wildfire can affect all areas of the City. CAL FIRE has estimated that the risk varies across the Cify and

hascreatedrnapsshowingriskvariance. FollowingthemethodologydescribedinSection4.3.L6,awildf,re
maps for the City of Oroville were created. Figure D-23 shows the CAL FIRE FHSZ in the City. As shown
on the mdpS, wilclfi?e thleat within fhdCify is widdly vartecffrom-fdwlo h'rgh.

Butte Couoty
Local Flazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 201'9

City of Oroville Arurex D-82



: -^
lJ\_ a

7

]:

a
I

It: I Y li''ii: " ;iji;iij.i.i f1,,.
:rr i l-ii ,ii,i\'Jl ir ii

t
G'

\!

h'1
I

i\i
a)

\

\){

F

I

l"
d

\f,

A

{'
n{
X
N.!\!

.!
t4

Bt-iTTf
r)i-)r_INTY

70

PLLIi.IAS

L:Jrl

NE.,'A,LI

:IIj-::il r!r::.i)
r)I ITTr:uLliL

c(:)t_rNl Y

. ctTY oF. ,
OROVILEE

., r'''

rd -:,

CITY OF
OROVILLE

I

6i \,

| -illlfr

I
,]

16?

i

Bt_r I lE

'--(-,i 
INTY

,. i,
L

''id.

B{:TTl
CI]t.JNTY

I

i/
J

;l !ii..:-r-l.tl.,i.:..rr:,;i 1l--t!i 1lt5-\0rl-r---i : .tti-,-:ilal .:1ltf.t,..i, I

E::'-e,,;un1. -'l: :ii-*la: ll.:t. --la!; i;1,-ri-i.

i, 
"i 

g:

LI_{JLNU
_..1 .-r*,1,-
--'".--lil:;ri nt:os
- l--.R:):tudJr

ii .!.rr
r i-ai ?3

".r.. 
1

70

s

:
\l l

. .rl,i :r, rillr "r

Iffi

FIRE HAZARO SEVERiTY ZONES

': . zt-, rlrrl
'l,l''

'tr :l it :

., --, i'lut,-,'tt ri rlrd;l!'ill-- UJI

.l::..i1 i t...rt r: i



The City of Oroville 2030 General Plan Safery Element also noted that urban fire risk is greatest in older
structures and neighborhoods built before modem building codes for fire safety and building systems were

in place. Other factors affecting urban fire risk and relative likelihood of loss of life or properfy include

building age, height, and use; storage of flammable material; building construction materials; availability
of sprinkler systems; and proximity to a fire station and hydrants.

Wildfires tend to be rneasured in structure darnages, injuries, and loss of life as well as on acres bumed.

Fires can have a qrdck speed of, onset, especially during periods of drought. Fires can burn for a short

period of time, or may have durations lasting for a week or more. Geographical I FHSZ extent from CAL
FIRE is shown in Table D-47.

Table D-47 City of Otoville - Geographical FIISZ Extents

Source: CAL FIRE

Past Occurrenees

Historical wildfire perimeters from the General Plan Safety Element dating back to 1950 in the Oroville
Planning Alea are mapped in Figure D-24.The rnap clearly illustrates that the majority of wildfires in the

Oroville Pianning Area since 1990 occurred in the areas west of the railroad tracks, including large areas

north of the Thermalito Forebay during the 1990-1999 period, and near the Feather River south of
Thermalito and west of Palermo since 2000. Wildfires during the 1950s and 1960s primarily occurred in
areas east of the railroad tracks, including in the foothills north and east of the city and in the area north of
Palermo.

Butte County
Locil Llazard Mitigation Plan Update
C)ctober 2019

Vew High 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00Vo

High r,565 19.9wo 972 72.30o/o 0 0.000h

Nloderare 4,018 50.85% 807 1,0.27% 0 0.00o/o

Non-
Wildland/Non-
Urban

99 1.25o/o 1 0.010h t9t 2.420k

Urban Unzoned 2,r17 26.79o/o 1,702 1.3.95% 82 '1..04o/o

Fire Harzard
Seyerifi Zt>rres

(Zr ot''I'ttt:rl
Ar:res

lmproved
Acres

'Zr of 'l'otal
lrnprovt:tl
t\r:r'cs

Llrrimptn,etl
Aclcs

"zi, ttl'f ot;rl
i)nirnproved
,,icrcs

'ftrtal Acres

City of ()roville Annex D-84



Figure D-24 City of Otouille - Ifistoric Fite Petimeters

I.tlr

t$l n
lu
ls
la
ls
!r
!x

Source: City of Oroville 2030 Getetal Plan Safety Element

The HMPC noted that the 2018 Campfire threatened the City of Oroville. The potential of wildfires from

these rural af,eas of Butte County caused evacuation preparedness/wamings for the City of Oroville. During

the Campfre, the maps of the fire progress showed the potential wildfres entering the City from the south,

Kelly Ridge area toward downtown Oroville.

Vulnerability to Wildfite

A number of factors affect the behavior of wildland and interface fires, including telrain, weather, wind,

fuels,ari4'seasons. It is well known that fire fravels fasterpphill than down,ar1d is rnore difficult to fight on

sftbp sbpes thAn on le.vel ground. When weather is hot aqd thehumidity istgJv, wlldfnd fires can explode

with intensitfof rapid combustion. Even in the absence 6f strong winds, i fast-moving fire can generate

its own updrafts, particularly in canyons, causing burning brands to be carried high in the air and drop a

long distance ahead. This results in spot fires over a wide radius as the wind changes its direction.

Oroville is not immune to numerous types of grass and brush fires and any one of them may accelerate into

an urban interface wildfire. Such a situation could lead to evacuation of large portions of the population

and the potential for significant loss ofpersonal property, structures, and rangeland. The natural fuels

available in or near the City vary greatly in the rate and intensity of, burning. Fires in heavy brush and

stands of trees burn with great intensity but more slowly than in dry grass and leaves. Dense fuels will
propagate fire better than sparse fuels. The local fire season generally extends from June through early

October, but is now becoming more of a year-round concern.

Butte County
Locd, Elmatd Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Otoville Annex D-85



Impacts

Wildfires can cause short-term and long-term disruption to the County and Cify of Oroville, as evidenced
by the Camp Fire in Paradise and the resultant increase in the population in Oroville due to fire victims
relocating. Fires can have devastating effects on watersheds through loss ofvegetation and soil erosion,
which may impact the County by changing nrnoffpattems, increasing sedimentation, re-duclng natural and
reservoir water storage capacity, and degrading water quality. Fires may result in casualties and can destroy
buildings and infr astructure.

Although the physical damages and casualties arising from wildland-urban interface fires may be severe, it
is important to recognize that they also cause significant economic impacts by resulting in a loss of flrnction
of buildings and infrastructure. In some cases, the economic impact of this loss of services may be
comparable to the economic impact ofphysical damages or, in some cases, even greater. Economic impacts
of ioss of transportation and utility services may include traffic delays/detours from road and bridge closures
and loss of electric power, potable water, and wastewater services. Fires can also cause major damage to
power plants and power lines needed to distribute electricity to operate facilities.

Based on the vulnerability of the City of Oroville to the wildfirehazard, the sections that follow describes
significant assets at risk in the City.

Values at Risk

GIS was used to determine the possible impacts of flooding within the City of Oroville. The methodology
described in Section 4.3.19 of the Base Plan was followed in determining sfiuctwes and values at risk in
fire hazard severity zones. Sumrary analysis results for Oroville are shown in Table D-48, which
summarizes total parcel counts, improved parcel counts and their structwe values by fire hazard severity
zofie.

Table D'48 City of Orouille - Count and Value of Parcels by Fite I{azard Sevedty Zone

Source: CAL FIRE, Butte County 3 9 Parcei/Assessor's Data

Table D-49 breaks out the Table D-48 by adding the properry use details by fire hazard severity zone for
the City. As shown in both of these tables, the City has 1,663 properties in the very high or high frcehazard,
cerrp#frr zn-o

Butte County
L<>cil, llazard fuIitigation Plan Updatc
October 2019

High 1,988 1,663 $81,040,528 fi255,349,705 $1.4,264,880 $174,383,234 fi455,316,71.1,

Moderate 1,761. 7,063 $84,356,508 fi1,84,006,372 fi15,771.,+35 fi123,656,024 fi388,367,444

Non-
Wi-ldland/Non-
Urban

6 0 fi347,035 $0 fi5,473 $o $352,508

Urban Unzoned 3,390 2,775 fit54,607,567 $444,8L9,171 $31.,299,575 fi353,465,751. fi938,963,964

City of Oroville
Total

7,745 5,501 $320,351,638 $884,175,248 $61,347,363 $651,505,009 $1,783,000,627

Fire Flazard
Severitr, Zone

'I'otal Inlproverl 'l'rxal Lantl
Pzrr'<:el Patrt:el Vzrlue
Cuurrt Cotrrrt

Inrproved
Stnrcture
Value

Othel Valrre F,stimate<l
Contents
\,-alue

I'otirl Valut.

City of Oroville Annex D-86



$o $o$o $o $oAgdcultural 0 n

fi12,81.7,540 $97,979,077 fil,46,973,78057 fi13,849,975 fi91,,91.9,077Commercial 86

$1,445,840 $7,123,265 $4,194,7404 2 $339,502 fi748,843Industrial

fi304,748,792fi1.62,681,785 $1,s00 $81,340,8931,877 7,604 ff66,849,921Residential

$0 $o$1,130 $o $oUnknown 0

$455,316,7n

fi932,692

$255,349,705

$o

$14,264,880I
$o

1,988I
6

1,663I
0

$174,383,234I
$o

$81,040,528

$932,692

High Total

Agticuitural

$85,9se,387$35,770,676 $373,745 ff35,71.0,676127 67 $16,21.6,764Commercial

fi20,696,250 ff72,092,321$1,3,797,500 fi'1.5,397,690Industtial 1.27 77 fi1.3,529,301

ff67,249,098 fi229,383,044fi53,677,751. $1,34,498,196 $oResidential 1,458 979

$o $o $o0 $0 $oUnknown 49

$75,777,435

fis,473

$723,656,024

$o

$388,367,444I
$352,508fi347,035

$84,356,508 $184,006,372

$o

Moderate Total

Agricultural

1,761

2

1,063

0

$o $o$o $o $oCommercial 0 0

$0 $o $o0 $o $oIndustrial 2

$o$0 $0 $o2 0 $oResidential

$0$0 $o $o0 0 $oUnknown

$5,473

$2,474

I
$0

$0

$352,508

$13,823

0

I
0

$347,035

fi1.L,349

$0

$oAgricultural

Non-
Wildland/Non-
Urban Total

6

I
t

fi473,484,345fi21.1,321.,740 $s,816,521 $211,321.,740829 575 fi77,767,008Commercial

fi1.1.6,281.,424fi25,552,428 $25,475,080 fi38,328,642100 53 fi1,2,188,494Industrial

$103,815,369 $348,806,718fi207,630,737 $5,5002,374 2,r45 fi64,577,328Residential

$o fi377,654fi314,266 $oUnknown 86 2 $63,388

$1,783,000,627

$938,963,964

$884,175,248

$444,819,171 $31,299,575

$6t,341,363

$353,465,751

$651,505,0097,145

3,390

I
2,775

5,501

$154,607,567

$320,351,638

Urban
Unzoned Total

City of Oroville
Total

Fire Hazard Total hnproved Tot:rl Land
Severiq'Zone f Parcel Patcel Value
Properw L)se Count Cottnt

High

Improved
Structure
Value

Other Value Estim:rted
Contents
Valtte

Total Value

Moderate

Non-Wildland/ Non-Urban

Urban Unzoned

Table D-49 City of Orouille - Count and Value of Parcels by Firc l{azard Severity Zone and
Ptopetty Use

Source: Cr\L FIRE, Butte County 3/28/2019 Parcel/r\ssessor's Data

Butte County
Local I-lazard foIitigation Plan Update

October 2019

Citv of Oroville Annex D-87



Population at Risk

The Fire Hazard Severity Zone dataset was overlayed on the oarcel layer. Those residential parcel centroids
that intersect the severity zones were counted and multiplied by the 201 0 Census Bureau average household
factors for the City of Oroville - 2.60. According to this analysis, there is a total population of 6,625
residents of Oroville af iisk to moderate of higher FIISZs. This is shown ih Table D-50.

Table D-50 City of Orouille - Count of fmprcved Residential Parcels and Population by Fire
Ifazard Sevetity Zone

CAL FIRE, Bufte County 3/28/2019 ParcellAssessor's Data, US Bureau

Critical Facilities at Risk

An analysis was performed on the critical facility inventory in Oroville in identified FHSZs facilities in a
FHSZ in the City of Oroville are shown in Figure D-25 and detailed in Ta.ble D-51. Details of critical
facility definition, type, name and address and jurisdiction by FHSZ are listed in Appendix F.

Oroville 979 2,455 7,604 4,170 0 0

M()derate

lrnproved Population
Residential

Parr:els

tlieh

Improvetl Populalion
Resiclential

Parcels

Verl Flrsh

Irnproled Population
Resiclential

Parce lsI u tistl ic ti r rrr

Butte County
Local llazard Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

Citv of Oroville r\nnex D-88



+.,-
= s,a,v-^

7

aJa

3

!, l.l i: r .' , l,: l lt. :if1
L]RiTIL-AI FA(..II ITY (.,AfF';C)RY ]

t l:--e{llr ic ,.::

I ri Prll : :{r!,i il Jl

-f
}i'
F
d
b

I!.
r\
:l

a\

.l

F
i

C\{*'
c

"r.
:i'
n

f,
C/:

*t

\
q
("rr
c-
,^]

-<

ir

70

lEll'',i,!A
BI TTE

(.;(_)i-rl.l I Y

Fi-Ut,{AS

Y i_J liil

NE\..l.

i ri' ;'ji;
: tt-jli - ,i

8t_JTTE
i .r lt lNlY

I

14o
'' 6.,s

I ^.t,*CITY OF|:-."
OROVILLE

I
BUTTE

J :: '"iirl
' -[-N^'-'- :'l J

i:t
- 
',,L. SA- 

! '
a

I'

{;i
o/\

!
I

rls
ttI

,

'1 (;;/

e

"I e.

: rriei

!-U
{bI

r i'!
iD

16?

Fi( il Tt
Ci]LINTY

U

I L'(:,Lt{tr
_ !i,ji-.ur,S

lJl,"il,,, :r 'ral .J'j

-+- la.lr::ds
:it!.-, L

e
Fi:T]'F

i-,-)uN i Y

I
I

:j

I

&

7 t')

L rl.rs
i-.11l-)

iffi
J

@
I

_:
..!,--*---.--- -l -. - ,,.,

-r1J::J!;tb ,.{i-Flii,A'l!i-'-i,.I $(al1i-UL;-1lr)-:!E-,{--; Lt-'t: 3111'-'- "-11':--tl-.
:':i3[:,llIi'r:i)' 3-r'J| I'r:; :r'':; - !':-l:

I ltlt: llMARIt S[.Vl:RIIY ZLTHFS

. Erj'::j-.

'r'1ll
1,1:i,lei::.

'i 'i] ,r., -::.1r:r:l l!.: i)fii.iil

irll i ,. :al rr:

CITY OF
OROVILLE



Essential Senrices Facilities

Health Care 73

Public Assembly Point / Evacuation Center t
Essenrial Service-s Facilities Total 14

High Total

Essential Senrices Facilities

Wastewater Treatrnent Plant T

Essential Services Facjlities Total I
At Risk Population Facilities

School J

At Risk Population Facilities Total 3

Moderate Total

Essential Services Facilities

4

Fire J

Health Care

Law Enforcement -)

Pubiic Assembly Point / Evacuation Center 1

Radio Sites 3

Logistics Hub 6

Emergency C)peration Center I
DOC 1

Emetgency Animal Shelter I
Essential Services Facilities Total 25

At Risk Population Facilities

Schooi 77

At Risk Populat-ion Facilities Total 17

Urban Unzoned Total

Gmnd Total

42

60

Fir'c Hazalcl Scveritr,'/.ores/ Critical Facilin Categon / Critical lracilirr Tvpc

High

Facilin Cour-rt

llloderate

I-irhan Linzoncd

Table D-51 City of Oroville - Critical Facilities by Firc l{azard Severity Zone

Source: CAL FIRE, Butte County

Butte County
L<>cal tlazzrd, Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

Ciq, of Orovilla r\nnex D-90



Futute DeveloPment

The pattem of increased damages is directly related to increased urban growth spread into historical forested

areas that have wildfire as part of the natural ecosystem' Many wul fire areas have long histories of

wildland fires that burned only vegetation in the past. However, with new development, a wildland fire

following a historical pattern nowburns developed areas. Growth in the City, especially growth in the

wildland urban interface, will increase the risk to wildfire. Adherence to building codes and the use of fire-

resistant construction methods as well as implementing sound vegetation management practices will reduce

the impact of wildfire to future development'

GIS Analysis

Butte county 's 3l2ll20l9 Assessor Data and the county's GIS parcel data were used as the basis for the

inventory of assessed values for both improved and unirnproved parcels within the city' using GIS' the

260 parcels associated with funre development projects for which'the analysis was to be performed was

identified. Future development in FHSZs are shown on Figure D-26 anddetailed in Table D-52'

Butte County
Local I-Iazard Nlitigation Plan Update
()ctober 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-9'[



:.ac

iJ \ :

'?

l;
F.

E

'J
a,
c

'...].l';,"
.i

t..

tt
t'..
C

ii

T'.

3..

i].

i

J-l

i:'
il,

i1;

1-;

.l:

t",;

i.'

fll

:r
11-

i'r
it;

i"t-

L,I
l-l'
r:,
,*i

.l:r

i-.,
i,'
0)

I l'"'*

i
1.

1/

I

i

I

rl

i{,ar

Y LJ5A

NE',1AD

' i.7tt r' tl,
r r:i ; ; ,.r/; \ i,. ;i ;1 ' rlr 

ri I

l ti:A1,1.
BI.TTE

i_r_,t_lNl /
I]TJTTI:

C:(:)l-,NTY

I

I ctTY o
OROVIL

F:

h.E'r*Elt .h.

-. 
(i) L!1 tir"F.

t:J ,., '.

f

- ''1

i,
62

...,...-..1('2

j,i; rr/r'i;r,

..: I i. ,tr,.,

t ,..

' ll, 
' i ri : .i ;rl.l t..,r . . ,.rr,

.J',il. -,';1,.'

rlRt ilAZAI<il SEVE RI I t' ZUTTES
* ,:; '* iil

.:i_

Ltl-; i lE
ilr tl.,liTY

,!:

Ll IJT TE
(lor_rl,ll-/

\4 i€.:

L;ir =:

:l rr'

i. [:tri:H{t

l+lr :i I -.:-;
- l- 'r.-!':1,i.-:

ll I t lfif llrf i/[ t, )pitEil I ARi:A5
. ir.l -,.: .,:..:rl,Ji ...ie,::

, : L,:,..{iul

o
IJ

.lr j

I

'l*n

CITY OF
OROVILLE



Table D-52 City of oroville - Futute Development Patcels and Acteages in Ffue Erazatd

SevetityZoaes

High
6.702Acacia Estates

46.513Heritage Oak Estates

1.3.301Highlands Estates

4.8274lVfission Olive Ranch

5.101,Oak Park
76.432lHigh Total

Moderate
56.105Buttewoods 2
24.44448Calle Vista Estates Unit II
8.403Canal View Estates

24.30JDeer Creek Estates 2

22.402Fotd Drive

0IRanch
7.906iVlission Olive Ranch

56.507Nelson 56

10.30IRivers Edge

38.804Riverview
15.22295Vista Del Oro

383.072234Moderate Total

Urban Unzoned
7.9ILGfeenview Estates

5.0IRosewood Estates

6.912Urban Unzoned Total
466.476257City of Oroville Total

High
94.303Oak Park
94.303HighTotal
94.303Unincorporated Butte

County Total

['ire IIazartl Scverin
Zone f Future
Development

Ciw of Oroville

'.1'otal P;rrccl Cotrrrt Improvcd P:rrcel Cottnl 'f'otal Acres

Urrincorporatcd Btrttt: Counfv

Butte County
Lo cal EIaz ard lVlitigation Plan Update

October 20'[9

City of Oroville Annex D-93



76 560t6

Firc IIazartl Sevcritr
7lxtt / Frrtrrle
I)r'r lloprncrrt

lrrtpt'ovccl Parcel (-'ourrt 'I'tit:rl Acres'l'oial P:it'ccl (lount

Source: CAL of GIS,

D.6 CapabiliryAssessment

Capabilities are the progrirms and policies cwrently in use to reduce hazard impacts or that could be used
to implement hazard mitigation activities. This capabilities assessment is divided into five sections:
regulatory mitigation capabilities, administrative and technical mitigation capabilities, fiscal mitigation
capabilities, mitigation education, outreach, and parherships, and other mitigation efforts.

D.6.1. Regulatory Mitigation Capabilities

Table D-53 lists regulatory mitigation capabilities, includingplanning and land management tools, typically
used by local jurisdictions to implement hazardmitigation activities and indicates those that are in place in
the City of Oroville.

Table D-53 City of Orouille Regulatetryr Miagation Capabilities

Comprehensive/Nlaster Plan f General 2016 Multi-Hazards Plans, Yes
Plan

Capital Improvements Plan 2074 Infrastructure Commercial and Residential. Yes.

Economic Development Plan

Local Emergency Operations Plan 2077 City of Oroville Emetgency Operations Phn. Yes

Continuity of Operations Plan 2077 Emergency Operations Plan. Yes

Transportation Plan 2077 Emergency Operations Plan

Stormwater Management PlanfPrcgram 2079 Eady Planning Stages, No.

Engineering Studies for Sueams

Community Wildfire Protection Pian 2074 Wildftes

Other special plans (e.g., btownf,elds 2014
redevelopment, disaster recovery, coastal SCOR
zone lranagement, climate change
adapaaon)

Building Code Version/Year: 2076 Cahforna Code, Title 24Y

Buiiding Code Effectiveness Grading
Schedule (BCEGS) Score

Scote: Class 3Y

f)ries the plarr/plograrn addlcss lrarz:rrds?
l)oes tlrc plan irlcltifj. ltrojt:t is {o irrt:lude irr iht: rnirigatiorr
qtr'lI eo1,?

Can thc pl:rn hc rrserl to iln;rlenrerrt rnitigatiorr actior,s?Plans
\"/N
Yc:ir

Builtlirrg Code, Pcnnitting, and
Inspections Arc codes adcqu:rtelt cr-rlbrced?Y/N

Butte Cmrnty
Local Hazard Nlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Otoville Annex D-94



Fire department ISO rating: Rating:

Site plan review requirements All new consffuction is reviewed for site complianceY

l'es. Hazard rnitigation incotpotated into ordinancesZontng otdinance Y

Yes. IVlirrots state ordinanceSubdivision ordinance Y

Floodplain ordinance elevations and electrical raised, etc.Y Building

Hillside ordinanceY
(stormwater, steep slope, wildfue)
Natural hazard speciftc ordinance

Flood insurance rate maPs Y

Covers all new develoPmentElevation Certificates Y

Acquisition of land for open space and Y Master Faciliry Plan and parkland set asides for larger

developments.public recreation uses

Erosion or sediment conttol program Y Parcel-specific

Other

leveiseffectiveto fnltumuln1Sand flowreducedwithseveralfor staff, re-staffinghasOroville yearsoperated

Land Use Planning and Ordinances Y/N

Is tlre ordinance an effective measure ft>r reducirrg hazard
impacts?

Is the ordinance adeqrtatelv administered end errforced?

Horv can these capabilities be expanded and improvetl to redtrce risk?

Source: City of Oroville

City of Otouilte 2030 Genetal PIan (2015)

The General plan provides the fundamental basis for the City's land use, development and conservation

policy, and represents the basic community values, ideals and aspirations that will govern the City through

2030. This General Plan addresses all aspects.pf development, including land use; community character;

circulation and transportation; open space, natural resources and conselvation; public facilities and services;

safety; and noise.

California Government Code Section 65300 requires the General Plan to be comprehensive and internally

consistent, and to provide long-term guidance for the communify. Although the General Plan is required to

address the issues specified by State law, it may be organizedin a way that best suits the City of oroville.

The General plan includes a Safety Element that focuses on safety issues to be considered in planning for

the present and future development of the oroville Planning Area. Identified hazards include wildfire,

geologic/seismic, flooding, and other natural and man-made hazards (such as hazardous materials)'

Mitigation-related actions and objective summaries are as follows:

landslides, and other geologic hazards'
./ policy p1.1 Group anJ locate new residential development in such away as to avoid areas of

geologic hazard.,including steep slopes and areas of unstable soils.

./ policy p1.2 Require all new developments to be subjected to a geotechnical study prior to

development upprotul and to mitigate any identified' hazards to a level of insignificance' If
mitigation is not possible, do not approve the development'

Butte County
L<>cal l'lmar:d Nlitigation Plan Update

October 2019

Citv of Oroville Annex D-95



'/ Policy P1.3 Encourage retrofitting of structures, particularly older buildings, to withstand
earthquake shaking and landslides, consistent with state Building Codes and Historic Building
Codes.

'/ Policy P1.4 Ensure that new development incorporates design and engineering that minimizes the
risk of damage from seismic events and landsliding, consistent with state Building Codes and
Historic Building Codes.

Oroville Dam.
'/ Policy P2.1 Discourage development within the Feather River floodplain and other flood-prone

areas, in order to minimize risks associated with flooding.

'/ Policy P2.2lf development occtrs within flood plains, ensure that existing and proposed structures
are provided adequate protection from flood damage and hazards.

'/ Policy P2.3 Continue to work with appropriate locai, State, and federal agencies (particularly the
Federal Emergency Management Agency) to maintain the most current flood hazard and floodplain
information and use it as a basis for project review and to guide development in accordance with
federal, State, and local standards.

'/ Policy P2,4 Continue to participate in the Federal Emergency Management Agency National Flood
Insurance Program - Community Rating System.

'/ Policy F2.5 Where feasible, given flood control requirements, maintain the natural condition of
waterways and flood plains to ensure adequate groundwater recharge and water quality,
preservation ofhabitat, and access to mineral resources.

/ Policy P2.6 Support a multi-use concept of flood plains, flood-related facilities, and. waterways,
including, where appropriate, the following uses:

. flood control;

. groundwaterrecharge;

r waier quality preselation;
. open space;

o agriculture;
o nature study;

o habitatpreservation;
o pedestrian, equestrian, and bicycle circulation;
r outdoor sports and recreation.

'/ Policy P2.7 Cooperate with all affected or interested public and private agencies involved to ensure
that flood control improvements do not result in unacceptable degradation of environmentally
sensitive areas.

'/ Policy P2.8 Incorporate stormwater drainage systems in development projects to effectively control
the rate and amount of runoff, so as to prevent increases in downstream flooding potential.

'/ Policy P2.9 Explore the possibilify of creating an additional stormwater detention area in Dry
Creek.

'/ Policy P2.10 If future studies establish a conclusive relationship between reservoir drawdown,
refilling, and seismic activify, encourage the Department of Water Resources to manage the
Oroville Dam water regime to reduce risk.

Butte Counf.l
Local Llazard Nlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

Oity of Oroville Annex I)-9(r



./ policy p2.11 Prior to project approval, consult Flood Insurance Rate Maps on file with the Planning

Department to identif,i areas in the vicinity of a waterway or drainage course that have not been

subject to detailed study. If the project falls within an areathat has not been studied' perform studies

and, if necessary, require mitigation or restrictions on development.

Goal SAF-3: Protect lives and property from risks associated with wildland and urban fire.
,/ policy p3.l Enforce fire protection standards as specified by the City of Oroville Fire Department'

Butte County Fire Department, and California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection within

rural and undeveloped portions of the Planning Area and in the urban-wildland interface, including

implementation of fire safety ordinances to minimize wildland fire hazards, including incorporation

of fire resistant building and roofing materials, and attainment and maintenance of "defensible

space.,o Defensible space may include revegetation with less flammable species, such as fire

resistant native and adapted species, and the use ofmulch to prevent erosion on bare soil-

,/ policy p3,2 Ensure that the development review process addresses wildland fire risk, including

assessment of both construction- and project related fire risks particularly in areas of the City most

susceptible to fire hazards. Review fire safety plans and provisions, consistent with California

public Resources Code (PRC) 4290 and429l,for new development, including aspects such as

emergency access, site desigu for maintenance of defensible space, and use of non-combustible

materials.
,/ policy p3.3 Require that all development in areas ofpotential wildland fire hazards, including areas

designated by CAL FIRE as High Fire Hazard Severity Zones, include the following:

r Fire breaks adjoining open space areas'

. Adequate access to adjoining open space areas'

r Adequate clearance around structures'

r Fire-resistant ground cover.

r Fire-resistantroofingmaterials.
. Adequate emergency water flow'

./ policy p3.4 Incorporate drought-resistant and fire-resistant plants in public works projects in areas

subject to wildland fires.
,/ policy p3.5 Regularly train Oroville Fire Department staff for wildland firefighting conditions.

Goal SAF-7 Prepare Oroville residents to respond to emergency situations.

,/ policy p7.1 Encourage a high degree of city-levet self-sufficiency in emergency response, but

coordinate with surrounding jurisdictions to the extent possible.

,/ policy p7.2 work with caltrans to coordinate establishment of appropriate emergency access routes

through the City when closure of State highways is necessitated by weather-related or other

emergencies.
,/ policy p7.3 Support the efforts of the Department of Homeland Security, Oroville Fire Departrnent'

Butte County Office of Emergency Services, and other agencies to educate the public about

emergency preparedness and response.

,/ policy p7.4 Use the Butte County LocalHazard Mitigation Plan as the guide for disaster planning

in the Oroville Planning Area.

Butte County
Local l-Iazatd Nlitigation Plan Update

October 2019

City of Otoville Annex D-97



Mi tiga tio n ReIa te d Ordin an ce s

Zaning (Chapter 26)

The purpose of this chapter is to provide specific guidelines for the development of the City in such a
manner as to achieve progressively the general arrangemeRt of land uses and implement the policies
depicted irthe General PlatMore specifically, tftischaptrr is intended to aehievetlre followingobjectives:

To regulate and lirnit the height, number of stories and size of buildings and other strucf,ures hereafter
designed, erected or altered.
To regulate and determine the size of building setbacks and other open spaces;
To regulate and limit the density of the City's residential population.
To divide the City into zoning districts of whatever number, shape and area are deemed best suited to
canJi out these regulations and provide for their enforcement.
To protect, conserve, stabilize and enhance real property values and the City's natural assets.
To provide adequate open space for light and air, and to minimize the risk of fires and other hazards to
public safety.
To promote a safe, efftctive t+aff,tc circulatisn syst€rn and provide for appropriate off-street parking
and loading facilities.
To promote, protect and preserve the general public health, safety and welfare, and to implement the
goals and objectives of the General Plan for the City of Oroville.

Subdivision (Chapter 23)

In the interest of protecting the health, safety and general welfare of the people of the City of Oroville, this
chapter has as its purposes:

the Subdivision Map Act;

General Plan and any specific plans that may be adopted, and to ensure that aproposed subdivision or
land division shall bc considcrcd in rclation to those plans;

submission of maps, plans and specifications for the construction of improvements;

roads, highways, public utilities and other improvements, as well as fee schedules for services rendered
by the City;

and lots, and to ensure that each property has a means ofingress and egress;

ponding, and other detrimental influences which may cause land to be unsuitable for satisfactory
development;

type, or subject to any other impediments affecting the use of the land for human habitation;

s

Butte County
Local, Ffazatd Nlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

Citv of ()roville r\nnex D-98



Building Code (Chaptet 6)

The purpose of this Chapter is to adopt by reference the 2010 edition of the California Building Standards

Code, Title 24 of the Califomia Code of Regulations, subject to the definitions, clarifications, and the

amendments set forth in this Chapter. The purpose of this Chapter is also to provide minimum requirements

and standards for the protection of the public safety, health, property, and welfaxe of the City of Oroville.

This Chapter is adopted under the authority of Government Code Subsection 50022.2, Health and Safety

Code Section 18941.5, and the Califomia Constitution.

Flood Ordinance (Chapter 88)

This chapter shall apply to all areas of special flood hazards within the jurisdiction of the City of Oroville.

The areas of special flood hazard identified by the Federal Emergency Management Agency in the Flood

Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) for the City of Oroville is adopted by reference and declared to be a part of
this chapter. This FIRM is the minimum area of applicability of this chapter and may be supplemented by

studies for other areas which allows implementation of this chapter and which are recommended to the city

council by the floodplain administrator. The basis for establishing the area of special flood hazard is the

flood insurance study (FIS) for Butte County, Califomia, dated January 6,2011, and accompanying flood

inswance rate map panels related to the city of Oroville (FIRMS) and all subsequent amendments and/or

revisions, which are hereby adopted by reference and declared to be a part ofthis chapter.

No structure or land shall hereafter be constructed, located, extended, converted or altered without full

compliance with the terms of this chapter and other applicable regulations. Violations of the provisions of
this chapter by failure to comply with any of its requirements (including violations of conditions and

safeguards established in connection conditions) shall constitute misdemeanor. Nothing herein shall

prevent the city council from taking such lawful action as is necessary to prevent or remedy any violation.

This chapter is not intended to repeal, abrogate, or impair any existing easements, covenants, or deed

restrictions. However, where this chapter and another ordinance, easement, covenant, or deed restriction

conflict or overlap, whichever imposes the more stringent restrictions shall prevail.

In the interpretation and application ofthis chapter, all provisions shall be:

The degree of flood protection required by this chapter is considered reasonable for regulatory purposes

and is based on scientific and engineering considerations. Larger floods can and will occur on raxe

occasions. Flood heights may be increased by man-made or natural causes. This chapter does not imply

that land outside the areas of special flood hazards or uses permitted within such areas will be free from

flooding or flood damages.

Butte County
Locil Elazard lVlitigation Plan Update

October 20-[9

City of Oroville Annex D-99



D"6.2. Administntive/Technical Mitigation Capabilities

Table D-54 identifies the Cify departmeni(s) responsible for activities reiaied to mitigation and loss
prevention in Oroville.

Table D-54 City of Otouille's Administrative and Technical Mitigation Capabiltties

Source: City of Oroville

D.6.3. Fiscal Mitigation Capabilities

Table D-55 identifies financial tools or resources that the City could potentially use to help fund mitigation
activities.

Butte County
Locil. l;lazard Nlitigatioo Plan Update
October 2019

Planning Commission Y Reviews all use permits and maintains zoning code.

iVlitigation Planning Committee Development Review CommitteeY

Nlaintenance programs to reduce risk
(e.g., tree trimming, clearing drainage
systems)

Y Regular sfteet, tfee, storm dfain and parks maintenance

Mutual aid agreements N

Other

Chief Building Official PT Adequate until development pace accelerates

Fioodplain Administrator PT Adequate untii deveiopment pace accelerates

Emergency Manager PT More training and dedicated staff needed

Community Planner PT Adequate until development pace accelerates

Civil Engineer PT Nlinimally adcquatc

FT Adequate uatil development pace acceleratesGIS Coordinator

The City of Oroville Mass Evacuation Notification will consist
in use of Butte Counry evacuation system. In addition, the Ciry
of Otoville will use its' own notification system which is
ongoing. The City of Oroville is collaborating with the Caltfotrua
Department of Water Resource on this proiect.

Other - front counter personnel

Y

3 FT Adequate until developmerit pace accelerates

Warning sys tems /services
(Reverse 911, outdoor warning srgnals)

Hazard, data and information N

Grant writing PT

Hazus analysis N

Staffing levels increased, including dsk management and notification capacltty.

Other

Describe capabilitv
Is coordinati<in e lfective?Admirristration Y/N

Yiw
FT/rr

is staffing adequate r(, cnforce rcguiatiorrs?
Is staff trained on hazards and mitigation?

Is coordination betrveen agcncics and staff cffetrtive?Staff

'fechnical

Horv can these capabilities be exparrdcd and improved to reduce risk?

Citl of Oroviile Annex D-100



Table D-55 City o{Orouille's Fiscal Mitigation Capabiliries

Source: City of Oroville

D.6.4. Mitigation Education, Outreach, and Partnerships

Table D-56 identifies education and outreach programs and methods already in place that could belor are

used to implement mitigation activities and communicatehazard-related information.

Table D-56 City of Orouille's Mitigation Education, Ouffeach, and Partnetslips

Capital improvements Proiect funding VariesY

Authority to levy taxes for specific purposes Streets, landscaping, fu eY

Fees for water, sewer, gas, or elecftic services By individual utilitiesY

Impact fees for new development Parks, police, fire,traffrc, sewer, storm
drainage, schools

Y

Storm water utiJity fee Utility fee not legal in Calif, impact fees yesN

Incur debt through general obligation bonds and/or
special tax bonds

Mello Roos has funded several subdivisions in
the past.

Y

Incur debt through private activities Can access IDB's, CIEDB, etc. as neededY

Communiry Development Block Grant Active userY

Other federal funding programs As oppornrniry presentsY

State funding programs As opportunity presentsY

Improved staffing levels to take advattage of access to consultants and to increas e capacity to consider, create, submit

Other

and implement

Access/
Filigibilitl,

(\'/N)

l-Ias the ftrnding lcs()tlr(:e hetn ttsctl irr p:tst
:rrrd firl vi'lret tv1-rc of ac:li'r,itit:s?

Could the res{}urce be usetl to furttl futtrrc
rrritigation actions?FunclinE Resource

How can these capabilities be exparrded :rnd improved to redrrce risk?

Locd. citizen groups or non-profit otganizaions
focused on environmental protection, emefgency
preparedness, access and functional needs

populat-ions, etc.

Especially local park district and those
dedicated to serving disadvantaged popuiations.

Y

Ongoing public education or information program
(e.g., responsible water use, fue safety, household

preparedness, environmental education)

N

Natural disaster or safety related school programs Y Through the schools

StormReady certifi cation N

Ftewise Communities certification N

Descrihe proglarn / orgart iz:t t ion anti hor,r'

rclirtes to disaster resilien<:c and mitigation
Coultl thc prograrn/tltqauriz:rtion hclp
implernent ftrture ln itigation :rctivities?Ycs/NoPtogram / Organization

Butte County
LocaI Flazatd Nlitigation Plan Update

October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-101



Public-private partnership initiatives addressing N

Addit-ional staffing to replace capaciq lost during recession

Desc ri bt-. pr( )grxrn / o rg:rrr iz :rt iorr :rnd lr olr'
ir liifcs t() tlil;,tsi.:r' lcsili,ci.lr:c .iritl ;triiig:riioir

(-orrl<1 Ilre lrrogr:rrn/ol.g:rrrizrriinlr trt l1r

ilrtlllt lrtttti ftrirtrt rrritillrriir'rr .1.11r 1t1, r-Plr;g.r:rrrr ,/- 
()rg:rnizatior r ! c\/ l'l'!

IIou r:.rrr tlt:sr r':rpabilitir:r bt exp;rndcd arrd irnJrrovcd tu rcduce risk?

Sourcc; City of Orovillc

D.6.5. Other Mitigation Efforts

The City of Oroviiie has many other compieted or ongoing mitigation effons that include the following:

{ Drainage ditches maintenance
,/ Yearly inspection

'/ Yearly obstruction removal and cleanup

'/ Yearly spraying to prevent and minimize unvanted growth of vegetations / obstructions
/ Necessary perrnit frorn related State agencies

'/ City has a Storm Drain Master plan

'/ Assign an officer over storm drain system
r' City is also in the process of updatiirg a Stonn Drain Master Plan

r Include comprehensive survey of the entire system
. Analysis of current system

o Establish priority and budget for upgrade
. Application for MS4 permit

,/ Regular storm drain maintenance

o Debris removal at drainage inlet
. Stomr drain pipes inspection
. Removal of surface debris

. Stre.et speeping

. Leaf pickup program (debris that otherwise will clog storm drains)
r Grate inspection, lockdown, replacement program
r Purchase dedicated machines and tools for storm drain maintenance, including additional street

sweeper, vacuum truck, and leafpickup vehicles.
,/ City is proceeding with studies towards a levee certification

o Levee analysis is underway
r Mitigation projects if necessary

r Share findings with partners, stakeholders, and regulating agencies

o Obtain levee certification

Butte County
Local l{azard Nlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-102



at the public safety building, city hall, and airport.

Center.

D.7 Mitigation Strategy

D.7.1. Mitigation Goals and Obiectives

The City of Oroville adopts the hazard mitigation goals and objectives developed by the HMPC and

described in Chapter 5 Mitigation Stategy.

D.7.2. NFIP Mitigation Strategy

The City of Oroville joined the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) on September 24, 1984. As a

participant of the NFIP, the City of Oroville has administered floodplain management regulations that meet

the minimum requirements of the NFIP. The management program objective is to protect people and
property within the City. The City of Oroville will continue to comply with the requirements of the NFIP
in the future.

In addition, the City of Oroville actively participates with Butte County to address local NFIP issues through
a regional approdch. Many of the program activities are the same for the City of Oroville as for Butte
County since participation at the Counfy level includes all local jwisdictions.

Upon request, the City of Oroville Public Works, Building and Planning Divisions provide map information
services, public hazard disclosure, and flood protection information. This information is readily available
to the public and consists of current and accurate floodmapping. In addition, the Public Works Department
provides information about our stormwater management program and up-to-date information related to the

maintenance of our drainage system.

The NFIP Community Rating System (CRS) is a voluntary incentive program that recognizes and

encourages community floodplain management activities that exceed the minimum NFIP requirements. As
a result, flood insurance premium rates are discounted to reflect the reduced flood risk resulting from the

community actions meeting the three goals of the CRS which are to reduce flood losses, facilitate accwate

insurance rating, and promote tfie awareness of flood insurance. The City of Oroville is not a current
participant in the CRS program.

More information about the floodplain administration in the City of Oroville can be found in Table D-57

Table D-57 Ciry of Otouille Compliance with NFIP

NFIP Topic

Insrrrance Summary

Corn rrten ts

Butte County
Local l;Iazatd Nlitigtion Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-l03



How many NFIP policies are in the community? What is the total premium
and coverage?

99 policies

fi99,829 in premiums

fi29,287,400 in coverage

How many claims have been paid in the community? What is the total
amount of paid claims? How many of the claims were for substantial
damage?

21 paid claims

$494,395in paid clams
3 eubstantial darnage clairns

How many strucfures are exposed to flood risk within the community? 51 n l% annual chance floodplaio
452 in 0.2oh annual chance floodplain

Repetitive Lcss (RL) and Severe Repetitive Loss Properties (SRL) 1 R.L

O SRL

Describe any areas of flood risk vrith [mited NFIP policy coverage

Is the Communiry Fioodplain Administrator or NFIP Coordinator certified? No

Unknown

Provi.de an explanation of NFIP administation services (e.g., permit review,
GIS, education or outreach, inspections, engrneering capability)

Permit review, stormwater capture,
engineering and inspection capabilities

What are the barriers to runnjng an effective NFIP program in the

community, if any?

Staffing levels

Is the community in good staoding with the NFIP? Y

Are there any outstanding compliance issues (i.e., cunent violations)? N

c,\v 8/1,0/2010
GTA9/20/201,6

\,)fhen was the most recent Comrnunity Assistance Visit (CAV) or
Community Assistance Contact (CAC)?

Is a CAV or CAC scheduled or needed?

When did the community enter the NFIP? e/24/1e84

N

Are the FIRNIs digital or paper? Digital

Yvia levee protections outside the 100-
yeat floodplain

Do floodplain development regulations meet or exceed FEMA or State

minimum requirements? If so, in what ways?

Review ofdesign & grading for new
development, stoftrrwater compliance
under Regional Water Quality Conuol
Board permit.

Provide an explanation of the permitt-ing process

Does the community part-icipate in CRS? NO
\X/hat is the community's CRS Class Ranking? N/A

What categories and activities provide CRS points and how can the class be N/A
improved?

Does the plan include CRS planning requirements? N/A

Butte County
L,ocal Flazatd Nlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville r\nnex D-104



D.7.3. Mitigation Actions

The planning team for the City of Oroville identified and prioritized the following mitigation actions based

on the risk assessment. Background information and information on how each action will be implemented

and administered, such as ideas for implementation, responsible office, potential funding, estimated cost,

and timeline are also included. The following hazards were considered a priority for purposes of mitigation

action planning:

It should be noted that many of the projects submitted by each jurisdiction in Table 5-2 in the Base Plan

benefit all jurisdictions whether or not they are the lead agency. Further, many of these mitigation efforts

are collaborative efforts among multiple local, state, and federal agencies. In addition, the countywide

public outreach action, as well as many of the emergency services actions, apply to all hazards regardless

ofhazardpriority. Collectively, this multi-jurisdictional mitigation strategy includes only those actions and

projects which reflect the actual priorities and capacity of each jurisdiction to implement over the next 5-

years covered by this plan. It should further be noted, that although a jurisdiction may not have specific

projects identified for each priority hazard for the five year coverage of this planning process, each

jurisdiction has focused on identiffing those projects which are realistic and reasonable for them to

implement and would like to preserve their hazard priorities should future projects be identified where the

implementing jurisdiction has the future capacity to implement.

Malti-I{azatd Actions

Action 1. Integrute Local Hazard Mitigation Plan into Safety Element of General Plan

Hazards Addressed: Climate Change, Darn Failure, Drought & Water shortage, Earthquake and

Liquefaction, Floods: 100/200/500 year, Floods: Localized Stormwater, Hazardous Materials

Transportation, Invasive Species: Aquatic, Invasive Species: Pests/Plants, Landslide, Mudslide, and Debris

Flow, Levee Failure, Severe Weather: Extreme Heat, Severe Weather: Freeze and Winter Storm, Severe

Weather: Heavy Rain and Storms (Hail, Lightning), Severe Weather: Wind and Tornado, Stream Bank

Erosion, Volcano, Wildfire

Goals Addressed: 1,2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9

Issue/Background: Local jurisdictional reimbursement for mitigation projects and cost recovery after a

disaster is guided by Government Code Section 8685.9 (AB 2140). Specifically, this section requires that

each jurisdiction adopt a local hazard mitigation plan (LHMP) in accordance with the federal Disaster

Butte County
Local I-Iazatd Mlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-105



Mitigation Act of 2000 as part of the Safety Element of its General Plan. Adoption of the LlilvIP into the

Safety Element of the General Plan may be by reference or incorporation.

Other Alternatives: No action

Existing Pianning Mechanisms through which Action wiii be Impiemenred: Safety Eiement of Generai

Pian, especially as incorporated ints local ordinanees and Zoning Code

Responsible Office: City of Oroville Community Development Department

Priority (H, Mo L): High

Cost Estimate: Jurisdictional board/staff time

Potential Funding: Local budgets

Benefits (avoided Losses): Incorporation of an adopted LHMP into the Safety Element of the General
Plan will hetp jurisdictions maximize the cost recovery potential following a disaster.

Schedule: As soon as possible

Action 2. Enhance Pablic Educatian and Awareness af Nataral Hazards anil Public
Understcnding of Disaster Preparedness

Hazards Addressed: Climate Change, Dam Failwe, Drought & Water shortage, Earthquake and

Liquefaction, Floods: 100/200/500 year, Floods: Localized Storr,nwater, Hazardous Materials
Transportation, Invasive Species: Aquatic, Invasive Species: PestsFlants, Landslide, Mudslide, and Debris
Flow, Levee Failure, Severe Weather: Extreme Heat, Severe Weather: Freeze and Winter Storm, Severe

Weather: Heavy Rain and Storms (Hail, Lightning), Severe Weather: Wind and Tornado, Stream Bank
Erosion, Volcano, Wildfire

Goals Addressed: I , 2, 3 , 4, 5, 6, 7 , 8, 9

Issue/Background: The City and County play a key role in public outreach/education efforts to

communicate the potential risk and vulnerability of their community to the effects of natural hazards. A
comprehensive multi-hazard public education program will better inform the comrnunity of natural hazards

ofconcem and actions the public can take to be betterprepared for the next natural disaster event.

Project Description: A comprehensive multi-hazard outreach program will ascertain both broad and

targeted educational needs throughout the community. The City will work with the County and other

agencies as appropriate to develop timely and consistent annual outreach messages in order to communicate
the risk and vulnerability of natural hazards of concern to the community. This includes measures the
public can take to be better prepared and to reduce the damages and other impacts from a hazard event.

The public outreach effort will leverage and build upon existing mechanisms, will include elements to meet

the objectives of Goal 3 of this LHMP Update, and will consider:

Butte County
Local Hazatd Nlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Orovilie Annex D-106



and local, public sponsored events;

service announc ements ;

and events;

Location of Project: Citywide

Other Alternatives: Continue public information activities currently in place.

Existing Planning Mechanism(s) through which Action Will Be Implemented: Existing County

outreach programs will be reviewed for effectiveness and leveraged and expanded upon to reach the broader

region.

Responsible Office: City of Oroville in partnership with the County

Participating Jurisdictions: County and all cities.

Priority (H, M, L): High

Cost Estimate: Annual costs to be determined, and will depend on the scope and frequency of activities

and events as well as volunteer participation

Benefits (Losses Avoided): Increase residents' knowledge of potential hazards and activities required to

mitigate hazards and be better prepared. Protect lives and reduce damages, relatively low cost to

implement.

Potential Funding: Local budgets, grant funds

Timeline: Ongoing/Annual public awareness campaign

Action 3. CiA Infrsstructare Protection

Hazards Addressed: Climate Change, Dam Failure, Drought & Water shortage, Earthquake and

Liquefaction, Floods: 100/200/500 yaffi, Floods: Localized Stormwater, Hazardous Materials

Transportation, Invasive Species: Aquatic, Invasive Species: Pests/Plants, Landslide, Mudslide, and Debris

Flow, Levee Failure, Severe Weather: Extreme Heat, Severe Weather: Freeze and Winter Storm, Severe

Weather: Heavy Rain and Storms (Hail, Lightning), Severe Weather: Wind and Tomado, Stream Bank

Erosion, Volcano, Wildfre

Goals Addressed: l, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9

Issue/Background: The curent infrastructure of the city cannot withstand the fast growth in population.

The city needs a drainage culvert that can withstand the growing population. An overflow of these culverts

Butte County
Local Llazard Nlitigation Plan Update
()ctober 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-107



floods the street of Oroville such as Oro Dam Blvd. These floods will flow into the city sewage system,

which cannot hold the increased capacity.

Project Description: This is a multi-project of increasing the size of the drainage system and improving

sewage system.

Other Alternatives:

Existing Planning Mechanism(s) through which Action Will Be Implemented: Currently in planning

stage.

Responsible Office/Partners: The City of Oroville public works, housing, and planning.

Cost Estimate: According to the City of Oroville, this cost is estimated at $10,000,000

Benefits (Losses Avoided): Potential benefits are health and safety of citizens of Oroville, environmental

hazards of streams and rivers.

Potential Funding: Local, State, and Federal funding

Timeline: 5 Years.

Project Priority: High

Action 4, Planning for Mass Evacuation-NotiJications Early Warning System

Hazards Addressed: Climate Change, Dam Failure, Drought & Water shortage, Earthquake and

Liquefaction, Floods: 100/200/500 year, Floods: Localized Stormwater, Hazardous Materials

Transportation, Invasive Species: Aquatic, lnvasive Species: Pests/Plants, Landslide, Mudslide, and Debris

Flow, Levee Failure, Severe Weather: Extreme Heat, Severe Weather: Freeze and Winter Storm, Severe

Weather: Heavy Rain and Storms (Hail, Lightning), Severe Weather: Wind and Tornado, Stream Bank

Erosion, Volcano, Wildfire

Goals Addressed: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9

Issue/Background: A recent incident of the Oroville Dam cause panic and traffic congestion. This was

cause by citizens attempting to evacuate at once. An early warning system would mitigate fraffic congestion

and risk of safety.

Project Description: This in-progress project is to rebuild the siren in the downtown area of Oroville.

Other Alternatives:

Existing Planning Mechanism(s) through which Action Will BO Implemented

fibers within the sirens.

Rebuilding the

Butte County
L,ocal !-lazard fuIitigation Plan Update
October 2019

Citv of Oroville Annex D-108



Responsible Office/partners: The City of Oroville is partnership with the Department of Water

Resources.

Cost Estimate: $50,000 is the estimated cost to implement this project.

Benefits (Losses Avoided): public safety and mitigate the congestion of traffic for citizens attempting

to evacuate the downtown area.

Potential Funding: Local, state, and federal funding

Timeline: Five-Year Plan.

Project PrioritY: High

Action 5. lV'eed Abatement

Hazards Addressed: Wildfire, Drought, Extreme Heat, High Winds

Goals Addressed: l, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 9

Issue/Background: Fire-Fuel Reduction which has a high potential of causing a fire. Especially in the

eastem areas of the city of oroville. The city of oroville believes a possible fire in these high hazards weed

areas are athreatto the city/county areas in close proximity'

Project Description: Five-person team at 20-hours per weeks, to reduce potential fire causing fuel

Other Alternatives: No action.

Existing planning Mechanism(s) through which Action WiIl Be Implemented: Public works with

Oroville Fire Department working together to reduce fuel'

Responsible office/partners: The City of oroville and Dept. of Water Resources are working together to

implement this Project.

Cost Estimate: According to the City of Oroville, this cost is estimated at $50,000.

Benefits (Losses Avoided): Potential benefits are safety of citizens of Oroville.

Potential Funding: Local and State funding

Timeline: Continuous since 2011. This project will continue for Five-years'

Project PrioritY: High PrioritY.

Action 6. Public Saf"A Power Shut-off (PSPS)

Hazards Addressed: Functions of wildfires, wind, and heat. May be exacerbated by drought'

Butte County
LocaJ. tlazard Nlitigation Plan Update

Octobet 2019

City of Orovilie Annex D-109



Goals Addressed: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 9

Issue/Background: Duringthepastyear2}l8/lg,theCityofOrovillehasendwedseveralpoweroutages
due to the weather. During the power outages, the City of Oroville Govemment utilizes the use of
generators. These generators were not built to withstand the numerous PSPS and need replacement.

Projeet Description: Repiacement of City Generatsrs:

The stakeholders rely on the flow of governmental services such as city hall, airports, and public safety
departments to include public works for assistance. Replacement of these generators will mitigate the loss
of access to city government in times of need such as the PSPS.

Other Alternatives: NO action

Existing Planning Mechanism(s) through which Action Will Be Implemented: The issue of PSPS is in
the planning stages of the LocalHazard Mitigation Plan.

Responsible Office/Partners: The City of Oroville in partnership with Public Utilities Committee.

Cost Estimate: $100,000 is the estimated cost to replace the generators

Benefits (Losses Avoided): The benefit of generator replacement would aiiow the stakehoider
(Community) governmental access.

Potential Funding: Local, State, and Federals Funding.

Timeline: Five-year plan.

Project Priority: High

Action 7. Community Devetropment (Code EnJbrcement) post d.isaster recovery projects.

Hazards Addressed: Fire and subsequent multi hazards

Goals Addressed: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 , 9

Issue/Background: Recent fire disasters to the adjacent areas of the City of Oroville has left the City
vulnerable to unexpected hazards. These unexpected,hazards are created from such things as rapid increase
in population, environmental, flooding, and fires. The City of Oroville Code Enforcement is a subsection
of Community Development and is currently understaffed and makes it difficult to mitigate the potential
risk of fires by conducting building inspections.

Project Description: The project of code enforcement would be to mitigate hazards through citizen
compliance ofbuilding codes and laws. Mitigation of fires through reduction of fuel beds within and outside
the City of Oroville. Collaborate with fire departments and outside agency jurisdictions to mitigate fire
hazards. This project includes public outreach such as presentations at neighborhood watch meetings.

Butte County
Local l;Iazatd Nlitigation Plan Update
October 2019

Citv of Oroville r\nnex D-110



Other Alternatives:

Existing Planning Mechanism(s) through which Action WiIt Be Implemented: The city has

collaborated with the City Fire Department to ensure code enforcement law are being enforced.

Responsible Office/Partners: City Administration and City of Oroville Community Development

Department.

Project Priority: High

Cost Estimate: $25,000

Benefits (Losses Avoided): Mitigate loss of live and properfy.

Potential Funding: Local, Regional, State, and Federal funding.

Timeline: Continuous; however, 3-5 years

Action 8. Flood Sewage Commission-Oroville Region (SC-OR)

Hazards Addressed: Flood, Localized Flood, Dam Failure, Levee Failure

Goals Addressed: I , 2, 3, 4, 7 , 9

IssuelBackground: Concerns regarding the capabilities to retum to the SCOR plant during an evacuation

and coordinating with emergency personnel. When the plant is flooded, all the pumps will shut down and

sewage will back up into town and add to the flooding which will cause an environmental hazard.

Rebuilding sewage infrastructure will be needed to support the growing population, climate change, and

increase rains.

Project Description: Protect the treatment plant and the environment from adverse impact that may occur

when hazardous or toxic wastes are discharged into the sewer system. Joint powers agreement between the

City, Lake Oroville Area Public Utility District and Thermalito Irrigation District.

Other Alternatives:

Existing Planning Mechanism(s) through which Action Will Be Implemented: Designed and

implemented a pretreatment program for publicly owned treatment works with a design flow of greater than

five (5) million gallons per day increased to 6.5 million gallons per day or greater with industrial users

subject to federal categorical Pretreatment Standards.

Responsible OfficelPartners: SC-OR City of Oroville City Council member

Project Priority: High Capital Improvement Plan

Cost Estimate: From Table 8.1 CIP - Sanitary Sewer Master Plan, City of Oroville

Butte County
Local Hazatd Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

City of Oroville Annex D-111



Benefits (Losses Avoided): Avoid contamination of treatment facilities.

Potential Funding: Local revenue

Timeline: Five to Ten years

Butte C-ounty

Local Hazatd Mitigation Plan Update
October 2019

Citv oFOroville Annex D-112



Tell the Council Members to VOTE NO!
The Oroville City Council wants to ban the sale

of flavored tobacco products in your community!

a

a

The Citu pf Oroville is cqnsiderino new
reoulations on the sale of flavored tobacco

The Councilwill consider 4 different options
that will direcfly impact retailers.

The combined impact on relailers will be a
LOSS of over $660k per year.

Chuck Reynolds
Scott Thomson
Art Haley
Janet Goodson
David W. Pittman
Eric J. Smith

r This ordinance could harm yourbusiness!

. lt gives your business to yourcompetitors

r lt will drive away some of your most valuable

customers

ATTEND

crevnolds@citvoforovi lle. oro
sthomson@citvoforoville. oro
ahatlev@citvoforoville. orq
i goodson@ cityof,oroyi I le. oro
dpittm an @ citvoforovil le. ors
esm ith@citvoforoville. oro

ATTEND Public Hearing on pronosed Tobacco
Ordinance

January Th,20l6
oroville city Halt, 173s Montgomery st, oroville, cA 95965

CONTACT YOUR COUNCTL MEMBERS

Mayor
Vice Mayor

Council Member
Council Member
Council Member
Council Member

, Arr{tRlCAN lltrRoLtuM AND CoNv[Nl€Nct

Our mission at APCA is to assist Convenience Store and Gas Station Owners in
increasing their business effectiveness by:

r Encouraging govemmental actions beneficialto the industry

o Providing cost effective products and services to our members.

o Advising and educating the members to run the E bbusinesses effectively.

o lnspire APCA members to adapt high level of business ethics that reflects a

positive image for the industry.

Contact Your Council Member Today - Stand Up, Speak Out & Make a Difference!
HELP APCA HELP YOU! BECOME A MEMBER

www.apca.us

WHAT YOU NEED TO KNOW WHY SHOULD YOU VOTE NO!

SPEAK OUT!! SAY NO!

TAKE ACTION TODAY!!





Hello City Plannem nnd City Couucil

Wc pt'ovided g3 opposition lcttr,'rs lirr Consurnr.rs, Residonts. Reruilem rurrl Visitors to City of Orovillc rvhich impacts thc rwenus aill sorvicoE
to all stakeholden.
Ilcrc are morc pohrts of our conccrn:

l. filrcc 2016, thc lcgul agc to pru'chusc ull tobucco pruducts in Cnlilbrnin including vaping deviccs has bccn 2l (orcept lbr uctivc rnititlry
with vslid ID)

2.- Rflisillg tlrc ngc- to purchasc nlt tobncco prnclucts to 2l ensurps th6l tccns n ho muy turn I tl while still in high school can no tonger purcharo
lobncco producttt tiu their undemge li'iends thereby cutting otTthe rilost cotnmou rurcinl xource tirr robacc.o products,

3. All tohacco pnducts, including vape poducts nre required to he behirrd tlrs counter and not uvuilnhle to illy cuitomen rvithcut the
o$$istnncc of n sulcs clr,.rk.

idcntity antl agc.

onl. chccks ID's and products may bc counlcttbit.

consutnr.rs of protluots tlrcy legully purchusc. iu uur.sturcs.

lL T&rditionul tobaccoproducls suctt f$ meihol cigarttes. u'intergreen cherving tobncco. snus. and cigot's sre not being used by nrinon and
shoultl not lre includcd in any snles bnn that is tlrgctcd to l.cducc tccn lupirrg

9. PTEASE C:ONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLNVORED TOBA('CO AT ALL REIAILIIRS IN TI IE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEIV.
MANY CTJSTOMERS LACK TRANSPOR'TATK)N AND WOI"JLT) NOT BE I.AIR FOR'rHr,M. PR0TICT OUR RIGHTS!

pruvidiug stlcs trrx tcvcuucti to City ol'Orrrvillr,,.

6L

ncsiccntX Rctoitcr7-_..-_

ADDRESS \fs

Aduh Cousunr.rY7'"-

Cr6u\t(^/ d c





Hello City Planners nnd City Council

Wc plovidcd 93 opposilion tsttr,'t's lbr Consurncrs, REsidcnts. Rcruilcrs nnd Visitors to City of Orovillc rvhich impactr lhc rwenus and scrvicos
to flll stokelmldeffi.
llerc nrc morc pohrts ofour concern:

l. Sbrcu 2016, tho lcgsl agc lo purchusc ull tobucco prulucts irr Cllitbnrin including vqring dcvice.s h$s bccn 2t (cxr:cpt lbr uclivc mitirury
with valid ID)

2.- Rilising thc nge to purchasc all tobucco procfilcts to 2l cn$urcs thol tccns rvlro muy tunr ltl rvhile still in high rchool con no longer purchanc
lobacco products lbr their underngc l'riends thereby cuttirg ollthe most commou gocinl source fbr robacco proOuctr.

.1. All tobscco pruducts, including vnpe produr"ls ue required to he behirrd ltro countcr rnd not uvuilnhle to nny customen rvithout the
assislmcc of n snlcs cl".rk,

4. Many of our membsrs have i[vested in tgc verilicatiou solhvnrc that pruvitlcs solcs cle*s with nn udtlitiounl tool to verlff the customcr's
idcntity md ngc.

6. Ilnnniug tlavored tobncco products nl lir"'ensed lobrcco rstailc.rs will push thcse snles onto thc hrtemet or into the illicit market wherc no
onc chccks ID's and ploducts nrny bc countr,.rlbit.

consumcrs of protlucts tlrey legully pulcluse in our.stor.cs.

should nut be includcd in any snles hnn that is tlryctcd to rcducc tccn wpirrg

P. PLEASE C:ONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLNVORED TOBACCO AT ALL REI'AILERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOTJUST A FSIV.
MANY CTJSTOMERS LACK TRANSPOR'TATION AND WOI"JI,D N()T BE I.AIR IloR TTITIM. PR0TECT OUR RIGHTS!

pruvitliug sulcs trrx r.cvcnucs to City ol'Olovillc.

.__Rctnilcl Adull Cousunrcr

6ADDRESS

w r{\$f\u

0\t0\ \ \tfr -,

hrfuq





Hello City Plonners nnd City Council

to nll stakeholdelr.
Ilcrc nrc nrorc points ofnnr conccnl:

l. fhrcc2016,thclcgllugctopurchusunlltobaccoproductsinCrrlitbnrinincludiugvupingclcvicr..shnsbucn2l(sx:cptfoructivemititory
with valid lD)

2.- Rnising tltc ugc to purchnsc ull tobncco pnlclucts to 2l cnsurss that tccns s4ro muy turn I ll n'lrile still in high school can no tonger purchase
tobttcco pmducts thrtheirunderage liiends theleby cutti[g otTthe most cornnou social snurce fbrtotrucco productn.

3. All trrhacco pt'otlucts, irrcluding vupe pxxlucts nre requirefl to he $ehirrd the counter and not gvuikrble to Rny cu;tomen rvithout the
assistnrrcc of u srrlcs cl,.r.k.

klentity and agc.

6. Ilnuning thvored tobncco products nt licensed tohncco lctnih'rs rvill push tlrcse snles onto thc tnremct or into the illicit mnrket whorc no
onc clrccks lD's and p'trducts mny bc countcrlcit.

consum!.rs of produc$ thcy legllly pulchnsu. iu our stur.cs.

shoukl rnt lre includcd in any snles bm $at is t.n'gcted to r.cducc tccn wpilrg

9' PLEASE C:ONTINUE TO PROVIT'E FLNVORED TOIIA('CU AT ALL RI]'IAILERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOTJUST A FEW.
MANV CTJSTOMERS I,ACK TRANSPORTATION AND WOIJI.,I) NOT BIi FAIR I?oR TIItiM. PROTECT OUR RICHTS!

Thrnk you lirr your suppon in listoning to lhu tclnilcrs, thr'it stntTnnd ndult consurrrcrs rvould likc tri oppose this ordilnncc nnd continue
prurritliug lcvcuucs to City llc.

Aduh Consunrcr

.r\

&

ADDRDSS O ---5f rYVnt A,t< 4+
\v-uLlll4 CF 1v1:f





Hello City Plannem nnd City Council

Wc prtvidcd g3 opposition lcttcrs lbr Coruurnurs, Itcsidcnts. Rcrailcrs utl Visitors to City of Orovillc rvhiclr impocts thc rwenus and scnicos
to all stnkeholders.
IIorc arc more pohrts ofour concern:

1.. lt t : 2016, thc lcgal agc to ptuchnsc dl tobucco pruducts iu Cntiforniu inclurling vaping de.viccs has been 2l (uxccpt fur uctive mititlry
witlr valitl ID)

2.- Rflising tlrc sge- to putchffic nll tobncco prcducts lo 2l ensuros thol recn$ n4ro muy tunr t ti rvhite still in lrigh rchool can no tonger purcharo
lobacco products tix their underage ti'iends thereby cuttiug otltlre mo$ common socitt source fbr rotrscco pmductn.

3. All tobocco pmducts, inclurling vilpe products nrc required to he behirrd llrc counter tnd not rwlitnble to nny customen rvirhnut the
ussishncc of n sdcs clc.rk.

idcntity and agc.

6. llnnniug tlnvored tobttcco products il licsnsed tobacco rctailcrs will push thesc snlss onto the lnlcmet or into the illicit market wherc no
onc chccks ID's md p.trducts may trc countr,'r.hit.

consumt'r'lt of products tlrey legully pulchuse iu our.sturrs.

8- Tnrditional tobaccoproducts such os nrenlhol cigalcttes. u'intergreen cherving lotrauco. snus. and cigol's $E not bBing ured by minon and
shoukl not bc includcd in nny snlcs bon that is tnrgctcd tu r.cducc tccn wping

9. PLEASE C:ONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLNVORED TOBAC'CO ATALL REIhILERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOTJUSTAFEIV.
MANY CTJSTOMERS LACK TRANSPORTAN0N AND WOULT) NOT BE I.AIR FOR TTII;M. PROTECT OUR RIGHTST

pruvitliug sulcs hrx tcveuucs to City ol'Olovillc.

Ilssidcnt*.g-.

^DDREss 
(4

+?f

.__Rctail{,.r.- Atluh Cousunrcr

tL{ I

+q
o?o,pA,\bl"l, ,Qrt+





Flello City Planners and City Council

to all stakeholders.
I lere arc' nrolc poiuts of otrr conccnr:

.1. Sfurce20l6,tlrslcgal agclopurchascull tobnccopruductsinCllifonrinincludingvapingclcviccsltasbccn2l(cxceptlbractivcrnilitary
with valid ID)

tobacco products tbl their uuclerage tiiends therr".by cutting oll'tlre most collunou social source fi)r tobacco proclucts.

itssisturcc of a sirlcs clc.rk.

idcntity arrd agc.

onc shccks ID's and products urny hc corurlcrl'cit.

cotrliumcrs olproducts thcy lcgtlly purchusc in oul sturcs.

should not br,'iucludccl in auy sales ban that is taryctcd tu rcducc tccn vnping

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLNVORED TOI}A('CO AT.A,LL RE]AILERS IN TIIE CITY OI' OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW
MANY CTJSTOMERS I.ACK TRANSPOKIATION AND WOIJT.[) NOT BE I.AIR FOR ]'TIT1M. PROTECT OUR RICHTS!

providiug sllcs lax rcvcnucti to City of Orrrvillc.

C*'- fFk ,P TNanre

Rcsitlcnt C] Rct.il!.r' Aduh ('ousunrcr 
_

^DDRESS 
loJ l=l7i^5 Cto^d cn. o0nv.t(e C0f 1 W 1r-





FIello City Plnnnels and ('ity Council

to all stakeholders.
I lerc are nrore poirrts of orrr conccrrrr:

with valid ID)

tobacco pruducts tbr their unclerage liientls theleby cutting otT the lnost conlmou stlcial sourcc. tiu' totracco proclucts.

itssistancc ofa srlcs clcrli.

idcntity and agc.

onc'chccks lD's and ploclucts rnay br,. corurlcll'cit,

consl,uucl's o[producls thcy legtlly pulchnsr' in uul.sturcs.

should not bc includcd in nny salcs lran that is taryctcd to rc'ducc tccn vaping

9. PLEASE C]ONTINUI TO PROVIDE FLNVORIT) TOBN('CO AT ALL RI]INLERS IN TIII] CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A TEW
MANY ('TJSTOMERS I.ACK TRANSPORTATION AND WOTJI,I) NOT BE I.N IR FOR ]'HI]M. PROTICT OUR RI(}HTS!

provicliug stles tax rcvenucs to City ot'Orovillc.

Naure

RcsidcntqZ_ Rclailcr C'ottsulttcL

ADDRtlSS -532





llello City Planners and City Council

to all stakeholders.
I lerc arc rnotc points of otrr conccnr:

'1. Si.ncc 20 16, thc lcgal agc lo purchasc all tobacco ploducts in Californil including vaping clcviccs hns becn 2 I (except for uctivc rnilitary
with valitl ID)

tobacco pt'otlucts tbr theil untlerage liientls theleby cutting otl'the tnost comlllou social source fiu'tobacco products.

assistaucc ofn salcs clc.rk.

idcntity and agc.

onL'chccks ID's and ptoducts nray bc c.orurtcrl'cit,

consunrcrs olproducts thc.y lcgally purchusc in out.storcs.

should not bc includcd hr any sulcs tran that is ttrgctcd to t'cducc tccn vaping

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORID TOI}A('C:O NT.A,LL RE]AILERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A TEW.
MANY ('TJSTOMERS I.ACK TRANSPORI'ATION AND WOI"JI,[) NOT BE I.N IR FOR ]'HTiM. PROTI]CT OUR RIGHTS!

provitling sales lax tcvenues to City of Onrvillc.

(

\r
Rcsitlcnt -__Rcttilcr'__ -Aduh ('ousurncr_-

^DDRDSS 
A7 ftrti^ a.uz l1f+# j crJu'l(1- |fq 6f.A





Hollo City Plnnnem nnd Cig' (ouncil

Wc ptovitlcd 0X opposition lcltcts lbl Consurnr..rs. Rcsidcnts. Rctailsrs md Visiturs to City of Orovillc rvhiclr irnpacts thc rwcnus afil scrvicos
ro sll $takeholdeH.
llerc arc morc points of our u.oncern:

l. fhcg 2016, thc lcgll ugc to ptu'clusc rll tobucco pruducts irr Cnlifornin hrcluding vuping device.s h$x bccn 2 I (cxccpt for uctivc militnry
with valid ID)

2.- R$iring tlrc nge lo purchasc all tobncco prncluct$ ftl ?l cn$u[r]s thal tccns nfio muy tunr I tl rvhile still iu high rchool con no louger purchana
tobacco products lix their undemge tiientls thcreby cutting ntl'tlre mo$ comm()u socint source firr totucco pioducts.

assishncc of u *rtcs cl,.*,

4. Many of out mcmbcn hove investctl in tgc vedtication solhvrrc that pruvitlcs srrlcs cle*s with nn atltlitiouol tool to vcris the oustomor't
idcntity and agc.

6. llnnniug llnvored tobttcco products nt lir,'crxed tohncco retoilcr$ rvill push these sales onto thc lntcmet or into the illicit markct wheir no
onc chccks lD's md p.oducts nray bc e'ouutr,.rtbit.

7. Stal!'widcdnftrcollcctcdbylheDcpurtntctrtofPublicHmlthshorvthuttcsnsuseofirunbusriblctobtccoproductshavedroppedChistoric

consr,uucrs ol'products tlrcy legully purchusr: in uul.slun:s,

shoukl nut be includcd in nny snles bnn that is tlrgctcd to leducu tcen wpirrg

9. PLEASE C:ONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORED TOBA('CO ATALL RE1NILERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOTJUSTAFEW.
MANV CTJSTOMERS LACK TRANSPORTAN0N AND WOIJLT) NOT BE IIAIR IloR'I'TI[:M. PRoTECT OUR RIOHTS!

pruvidiug snlcs trrx rcvsnuc$ to City of Orovillc,

ncsiccnr X --Rctilitsr XAtluh Consunrcr

^DDRDss 
I { pAo*o Av- # ?

\L.Cr+ trarrC@{'





Hello City Plonners nnd City Council

Wc pruvitlcd 03 opposition L.ltcrs lbr Consurnrrs, Rcsidcnts. Rctailers nnd Visitors to City of Omvillc rvhich impoctr thc rwcnus flrl s€fficos
ro :rll stakelmldeH.
Ilerc are morc points ofour conccrn:

'1. Sbrcs 2016, thc lcgll agc to purchmc rll tobucco pruducts in Cnlilbrnin hrcluding vuping dcvicr..s h$rr bccn 2l (cxcspt for lctivc militury
with valid ID)

2. Rttising thc ngc to purchosc tll tobncco prnduct$ to 2l cn$urcs thal tecns rvlro muy turu I8 rvhile still in high rchool can no longer purchane
tobttcco products lbr their undemge liiends tlrereby cuttirg otl'the mo$ cornrnon socicl source fiu'rotracco products.

atssislnncc of u sulcs cl,.rk,

identity and agc.

6. llnuning ilnvored tobacco prnducts nt liccnscd tobncco rctnilcrs rvill prmh tlrcse sales onto the tntemet or into the illicit market whcrc no
onc clrccks ID's and pr.trtluctr may hc countr'rtbit,

7. Statc widc dotn collccled by lhe Dcportmc,nt of Public Hcnlth shorv thar rccns usc of ciombustiblc tobncco products have drcpped to historic

consr,nncr'lt of products tlrcy legrrlly purchuse in rxrr *tur.cs.

lL Tnditional tobacco products such ns nrenlhol cigru'ettes. u'intergreen cherving loh[cco. srrus. and cigors Rrc not bcing us€d by minon and
should not be i[cludcd in any snlcs bnn that is tnrgctcd tu lcducr: tcen vaping

|'. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORED TOBAC'C0 AT ALL RE'IhILIIRS IN TI IE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FE!V.
MANY CTJSTOMERS I,ACK TRANSPORTATION AND WOI.JLT) NOT BE I.AIR FOII'I}ITIM. PROTECT OUR RICHTS!

provitliug snlcs lrtx t'cvsnucli to City of Orovillc,

./
Rcsitlent v Rcl$ilcr Aduh Consunrcr

ADDRDSS

t{r*ana {ntz



!';'.: r'. r.lt

{t



Flello City Planners and City Courrcil

to all stakeholders.
I lcrc arc' urotc poiuts of our corrccrn:

I . Sincc 20 16, thc lcgal agc to purchasc nll lobircco pruducts in Cirlifomin including vaping clcviccs ltils bccn 2 I (cxcept lbr uctivc rnilitary
with valid ID)

lobacco prtlducts tbr their underage liiends thereby cutting otl'llre nrost conlmolr social source ftu'totracco producls.

tssistaucc ofa salcs clcrk.

iclcntity antl agc.

onc chccks ID's and ploclucts rnay bc c.orurtcrlbit.

cotrsumers of products thcy legally purchirsc iu uur storcs,

shorrkl unt bc includcd in any snlcs tran that is targctecl to rc'ducc tc'cn vnpiug

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIT}E FLAVORTD TOIIA('CO NT .{LL REINILERS IN TI IE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW
MANY (\JSTOMERS I.ACK TRANSPoRIATIoN AND WOTJI.,I) NoT BE I.N IR I?OR ]'HEM. PROTF.CT OUR RIGHTS!

ploviding sales lax l'cvenur-is to City ol'Otoville.

ncsiccnt X- Atluh C'onsunrcr K
NDDRtlSS t?l7 tho ho \t/a-,





llcllo City Plnnners nnd City Couucil

Wc provitlcd 02 opposilion lr,'ltes lbr Consulncrs, Itcsidcnts. Rctuilcrs urtl Visitors to City of Oroville rvhich impacts thc rwcnus and sonicot
to:rll $takeholdes.
llarc nrc morc pohrts ofour conccrn:

l. Shcc 2016. thc lcgll ngc lo ptuchmc ull tobucco prorlucts in Cnlilbrnin inctudhrg vaping dcvicc.s hns been 2l (cxccpt for uclivc mititury
with valid ID)

2. R$ising thc nge lo put'chasc ull tobncco prnducts to ? I cnsurcs thal tccns rvlro muy tunr I tt rrhile srilt in high rchoot cqn no longer purchana
lobacco prcductlt thr their undemge liriemls thereby cuttillg olTthe mo$ cotnmon sociut source fbr robacco producl*.

3. All tobacco products, including vupe products nle required trl he behhxl ttro counter and not nvuilnhle to nny ctrstomen rvithurt the
ossistnncc of r sulcs cl,.*.

identity antl agc.

6. llnuning tlavored tobncco products al liccnsed tolmcco rctnilcrs willpush thcse sales onto the tntemet or into ths illicit mnrket whcrc no
onc chccks ID's nnd ploducK nray bc couilc'r.tcit,

7. Statc widc dntn collcclcd by lhe Dcportnrcnt of Puhlic Hcrrlttr shorv ftur rccns usc of iombustitrlc rnbncco protlucte have dropped to historic

cousrnnc$ ol'protluc$ tlrcy legully purchnsc in out'stotc$.

should not be includcd in any snlcs ban that is tnrgctcd to leducs tcen vnpiug

9. PLEASE C:ONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORED TOBAC'CO AT ALL REIhILIIRS IN TI IE, CITY Ot' OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW.
MANV CTJSTOMERS I.ACK TRANSPORTATION AND WOI.JLT) NOT BE I.AIR I10R'I}IT,M. PROTECT OUR RICHTS!

your support in li*tr:ning to thc t'clnilcrs. thcir stnlf nnd ndult colrsurncrs rvonld likr: tri opJrorc thir ordinancc and corilinue
to City of Orovillc.

Rcftrilcr Atlnh Cousurnur

ADDRESS \CL VV- CAAO vy V C
,IA

7





Hollo City Plannes and City Council

Wc provitlcd 03 opposilion lcltcrs lbr Coruurncrs, Residcnts. Rctaitcls ud Visitols lo City og6ron,,lc rvhich impactr lhc rcvcnug anrl sonicor
to flllstakelmldeffi.
Ilcrc arc morc points of our concern:

l. Shrcc 2016, thc legul agc lo purchnsc ull tobucco pruducts in Ctrlifornin inclurlhrg vuping dcvicc.s hns bccn 2l (oxcept for Bclivc rnititory
with valkl ID)

2. Rrising thc ngc to purchase all tobucco prnduct$ to 2l cn$ulrs tlrot recns rvho muy tunr I8 rvhile still in high school can no looger purchane
tobucco products tbr their untlemge li'iends theleby cutting oll'the mo$ corntn()r sociul source lbr tohacco product*.

3. All tobqcco pmducts, including vope products nre required to he behhrrl the count* tnrl not nvuikrhle to nny customen rvithurt tfe
assishncc of n sulcs cl,.rk.

4, Mlny of out membr'rs havc invested in ugc vedfication solhvnrc lhat provit{r.s solcs clerks with nn adtlitional toot to veris thc customsr't
idcntity and agc.

6. llnuniug flavored tobncco products nt licct$ed tohncco rctnik'rs rvill push thcsc snles onto the lntcrnct or into the illicit market wherc no
onr.. chccks ID's und p.trducts mny hc counlcffbit.

7. Statc wide dntn collcclcd by the Dcpuurcnt of Putrtic Hcnlth shorv tlut rccns usc of ctmbustibh'tobncco products have droppcd o historic

consurnsr$ ol'products tlrcy legnlly purchuse in our stur.cs.

8- Trnditional tobscco pmduct$ suslr os m€ilhol cigul'ette$. wintergreen cherving tobnuco. snus. and cigoru nrc not being used by mhon and
should not be includcd in any snles bm rhat is turgatcd ro rcducc rlcn vnpirrg

O. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORED TOBACCO AT ALL RI]IhILERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOTJUST A FEW.
MANY CTJSTOMERS I.ACK TRANSPORTATION AND WOI"JLT) NoT BE FAIR FOR'I}IT1M. PR0TECT OUR RIOHTS!

pruvitliug suft* krx trvcuucr; to City of Orovilh,.,

.-_Rclnilcr' _ _-..._ Aduh Cnnsunr"r-. .t-

^DDREss 
V/ 7 o /g/A S/"*.fL



': :''i .,

(;: :



Hello City Planners and City Council

to all stakeholders.
I-lere ale rnore points of otrr c.onccnr:

I . Si.ncc 2016, the legal age to purchasc ull toblcco products in Califoruin including vaping tlcviccs has becn 2 I (cxcept lbl active rnilitary
with valid ID)

t<lbacco products lbr theil underage li'iends theretry cutting ot'f tlre most colnmon social source fbr tobacco producls.

3. All tobacco prnducts, including vape prnducts ore required to be behind the counter arrd not available to iu'ly custotners rvithout the

assistnrtcc ofa stlcs clcrk.

4. Many of oul mernbcrs havc investcd in age'r,elilicatiou solhvnrc that providcs salcs clcr*s with an additional tool to verily the customer's
identity and age.

onc chccks ID's and protlucts may bc counlcrf'cit.

cousulners ol'products tlrcy lcgtlly pulchase ilt oul'stot'cs.

should not be includcd in any salcs ban that is targctecl to rcducc tcen vnping

9. PLEASE C]ONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLNVORID TOT]AC'CO AT.\LL RETNILERS IN TITE C]ITY OT OROVILLE, NOT JUST N FEW.

MANY ('TJSTOMERS I.ACK TRANSPOKTATION AND WOTJLD NOT BE I;AIR FOR THI]M. PROTI]CT OUR RIGHTS!

provicling sales lax revenues to City of Orovillc'.

Non,.s\ cltn\\q \*tt
Resident Retailcr' Adrrlt Consunrer

ADDRESSa\ N\Jo n alp +t \ 00r'r\ \\a Cq q\rLoq





Hello City Planners and City Council

to all stakeholders.
llere are nrorc points ofotrr conceru:

l. Shce 2016, thc lcgal age to purchasc all tobucco prutlucts in Calilbrnin including vtping deviccs has been 21 (except lbr uclive military
with valicl lD)

tobacco pl'oducts tbr theil underage tiiends thereby cutting olf the nlost conlmolr social source fbr tobacco proclucts.

3. All tobacco products, including vape proclucts ore required to be behind the counter and t'rot available to ony customers rvithout the

assistnncc ofa salcs clcrk.

iderrtity and agc.

onc chccks ID's and proclucts may br. countcrl'cit,

7. State wide data collected by the Departurcrnt ol'Putrlic Hcalth shorv thot tce ns use ol ciorntrusliblc totracco products have dropped to historic

consulners ofproducts thcy lcgally purchase in uul storcs.

should not be includcd in any snlcs ban that is tnrgctcd to lr-'ducc tcen vaping

9. PLENSE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE TLAVORED TOI]A('CO AT ALL RE.TNILERS IN TIIE CITY OT OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW.

MNNY CI.JSTOMERS I-AC]K TRANSPORTATION AND WoIJLT) NOT BE FAIR FOR THEM. PROTECT OUR RI(iHTS!

providing sales tax l'cveuues to City of Oroville.

LU wt\ I

Rcsident Rclailcr

NDDRI]SS u, Y\e-\\

Adult aonru*,ar-\] -

cn '^ {qb{
t\0 C





FIello City Plannem and Cit1, Council

to all stakeholders.
I Ierc are tnotc poirrts of onr conccrn:

l. Shrcq 2016, tlrc lcgal agc to purchasc rll tobtcco pruducts in C'.rlifonrin including vuping dcviccs hns bccn 2l (cxccpt lbr active rnilitlry
with valkl ID)

tobacco prcducts tix their underage liiends thereby cutting otTthe nlost conlmou sociat source fbr tobacco products.

onsistflucc of u srlcs clr,.r*.

idcntity and agc.

txtc cltccks ID's and prrducts uray bl. c.ountr,.rlbit.

cou$umcrs of protlucts thcy legnlly pur.chusc in our.sturus,

should not br'includcd in any sdes lrnn that is tnryctcd to r.educu tccn vnpirrg

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORED TOI]A('CO NT .{LL RE1NILERS IN TIIE CITY OT OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW.
MNNY (:TJSTOMERS I,ACK TRANSP0KI'ATI0N ANT' WOIJI,I) NOT BE I.AIR F(NT'I'HtiM. PROTF,CT OUR RIGHTS!

pruviding srlcs lox I'cveuucs of 0rovillc,

Rcsidcnt Aduh Cousurncr'

^DDRF,ss 
ln M o^0 Avt

AoVI IL CN
qs76r





Hello City Planners and City Council

to all stakeholders.
llere are rnore poirrts of ottr concern:

with vnlid ID)

tobacco proclucts fbr their underage liiends thereby cutting otf tlre nlost conrmoll social sourcc' fbl tobacco protlucls.

3. All tohacco products, including vape products are required to be behind lhe courlter and not availnble to ony customers rvithout the

assistaucc ofa snlcs clcrk.

4. Many oiour rnembels have investcd in agc velitication sollwarc that provitlc's snlcs clcrks with an additinnal tool to verity the customer's

idcntity ancl age.

6. Ilanning tlavored tobacco procluc:ts at liccnscd tohacco rctailcrs will push thcsc sales onto the lntemct ol into the illicit market whete no

onc chccks ID's and products may bc c'ounlcrl'cit.

oonsurncrs ofproducts thcy legally purchase ilr our sturcs.

should not be iucludcd iu any sales bnn that is taqctctl to rcducc tccn vnpirtg

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORED TOBACCO NT ALL RETAILERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW.

MANY CTJSTOMERS LAC]K TRANSPORTATION AND W0TJT,I) NOT BE FAIR FOR THF,M. PROTECT OUR RICHTS!

providing salcs lax revenues to City of Orovillc.

Narne

Rcsitlent Retailcr _Atlrrll Consunrer F c

nDDRnss {ts ,-/*- A4,*- a cr+ \





Hello City Ptanners and City Council

Wc providcd 92 oppositiou lcttcrs tbr Consunrcrs, Rcsidcnts, Rctailcrs and Visilors to City of Oltlvillc rvhich itnpacts lhc tpvenrts and services

to all stakeholders.
I'lere are mole points of orrr concern:

l. Sfurcc 2016, the legal agc to purchasc all tobtcco plotlucts in Califonria including vapiug device,s has becn 2l (except lol active rnilitary
with valid ID)

tobacco proclucts lbr theil underage l'r'ieuds theretry cutting otf the ruost cornmou social source lirl tobacco products.

3. All tobacco ploducts, including vape products nre required to he behind lhe counter and nclt available to atry custonrers tvithout the

assistancc ola salcs clcrk.

idcrrtity ancl agc.

6. Banning ilavored tobacco proclncts at licenscd tohacco rctailers will push thcse sales onto the lntemst or into the illicit market where no

onc chccks ID's ancl ploclucts may bc. countcrl'cit,

consumers of products thcy legally purchasc'iu our storcs.

It. Traclitional tobacco products such as nreuthol cigarettes. wintergreen cherving lobtc,co. srrus. and cigars ate not being used by lninors and

shor.rld not lre includccl in arry salcs bm that is tr]lgctcd to rcducc tcen vaping

9. PLEASE CTONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORED TOI]ACCO AT ALL RETAILERS IN THE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW.

MANY (]TJSTOMERS I-ACTK TRANSPORTATION AND W(XJLD NOT BE FAIR FOR THF,M. PR0TECT OUR RICHTS!

plovicling salcs lax l'cveuues to City of Oroville.

Non,. ifc-^<-r". tn€- Qo.1$.{€v-\

Rcsidcnt Rctailcr Adull Corrsunrer

^DDRnss -3b nno{1o Fv'<* 2 Orov il\"e CS,t69ra5





Hello Clity Planners and City Clouncil

to all stakeholders.
Flere are rnole points of our concern:

1. Si.ncc 2016, thc lcgal age to purchasc all tobacco ploducts in Cnlifomia including vaping dcviccs has bcen 2l (except lbr activc military
with valid ID)

2. Raising thc age to purchase all tobacco products to 2l ensulcs tlral tecns u4ro may turrr ltl rvhile still in high school can no longer purchase

t<lbacco proclucts tbr their underage l'r'iends thereby cutting otl'the mosl conlluou social source fbr tobacco proclucls.

3. All tobacco products, including vape products nle required to be behind the courrter u:d xrt available to arry customers rvithout the
assistancc ofa salcs clcrk.

4. Many of our nrembcrs havc investcd in age veritication solhvarc that plovitlc's salcs clcr*s with an additioual tool to verity the custorner's
iclentity and agc.

onc chccks ID's and pruducts may bc countcrlbit,

consulners of ploducts thcy legally lrulclrase in our'$torcs.

tt. Traditional tobacco products such as nlellthol cigarettes, wiutergreen cherving tobacc<1, srrus. and cigars are not being used by minors and

shoultl not bc' incluclccl in any salcs ban that is tnrgctcd to rcducc'lecn vaping

9. PLEASE C'ONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORED TOBACCO /\T ALL RETNILERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW.

MANY ('TJSTOMT,RS I-ACK TRANSPOKTATION AND WoULD NOT BE FN IR FOR HEM. PROTI]C]T OUR RIGHTS!

plovicling salcs lax l'cvcuucs to City ol'Oroville.

Narne

__Relailcr Atlull Consurner ,/

nDDRDSS 5t Mn,,., Ar^t AE+ *7
ePovJt'tt ' t* q'q'ff





FIello City Planners and Cit1, (-'ouncil

to all stakeholders.
I{ere are urore points of ottr c.onccru:

l. Silce 2016, thc lcgal agc to purchasc all tobacco pruducts in Califomit including vaping dcviccs has bccn 2l (cxcept lbr active rnilitary

witlr valid ID)

tobacco ptoducts tbr their unclerage li'iends thereby cutting ot'f the nlost colnrltol'l social source fbl tobacco products.

assistancc ofa salcs clcrk-

4. Many olour urenrbcrs havc investcd in age verification sothvnrc that plovidcs salcs clcrks with an additional t<tol to verily the customer's

idcntity and age.

6. tlanning ilavored tobacco procluc:ts at liccnscd tobacco retailers will push thcse sales ottto tht' lntenret ot into the illicit market whel'e no

onc chccks lD's and products may br'counlcrtbit,

consuulcrs olproducts thcy lcgally purchusc in out'sttlres.

should not bc includcd in any salcs ban that is tnrgctctl to rcdttcc tcen vaping

9. PLEASE ('ONTINIJE TO PROVIDE FLNVORED TOBACCO AT ALL RETAILERS IN TI{E CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW.

MANY ('IJSTOMERS I-AC]K TRANSPoRTATION AND WOTJT,I) NOT BE I.AIR FOR THL]M. PROTECT OUR RICHTS!

plovicling salcs lax reveuucs to City of Oroville.

*^,,," b, i/, /3e-/,1)V
Resident

ADDRI]SS

Rctailcr Adult Cousunrer

JJI O o't d floo 4pl -)], JYo-: /l ,4
2

?y@





Hello City Planners and Clitl,Council

to all stakeholders.
I.lere are urole poiuts of orrr conccrn:

with valid ID)

2. Raising thc age to purchase all tobncco products to 2l cnsures thnt teens u,lro may turu lll rvhile still in high school oan no longer purchase

tobacco pt'oducts tbr their underage tiiends thereby cutting otlthe luost coulll'rolr social sourcc' firl tot:acco producls.

3. All tobacco ptoducts, including vilpe ploducts iu'e lequired to be behind the counter and not available to arry custotners rvithout the

assistancc ofa salcs clcrk.

4. Many oioul urernb!'rs havc investcd in age velification sollwirlc that provicle's salcs clcrks with an additional tool lo verify {he customcr's

idcntity and agc.

6. Ilanning tlavored tobacco procluc:ts nl licctrsccl lohacco rctailers will push thcse sales olrto the Intemet or into the illicit market whete no
onc chccks lD's and proclucts may bc L'ountcrf'cit,

consulncrs olploducts tlrcy legtlly pulcluse iu our slurcs.

l{. Traditional tobacco products such as meuthol cigalettes. wintergreelr cherving tobacc<1, snus. and cigars ate not being used by minors and

should not bc includcd in any salcs ban that is tugctcd to rcducc tccn vnping

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROV]DE FLNVORED TOI}AC'CO AT.\LL RETNILERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A TEW.

MANY ('TJSTOMF,RS LAC:K TRANSPORTATION AND WoIJLD NOT BE FAIR FOR THtlM. PROTECT OUR RICHTS!

plovicling sales lax lcveuues to City of Oroville.

n.*ia.nt /-*Rctailcr'---

^DDRDSS 
57 ft=t inj

Adult Consunrer /I ---

uaul,Dr,;v.t-



li:



Hello City Planners and Clity Council

to all stakeholders.
l{ere are nrore points ofour concerrr:

I. Sincc 2016, the legal agc to purchasc all tobacco products in Califomia including vapiug clevicc.s has bcen 2l (excepl for active rnilitary

with valid ID)

2. Raising thc age to purchase all toblcco proclucts to 2l elsurcs that teens who nray turn lll while still in high school can lro longer purchase

tobacco prnclucts tbr their unclernge li'iends thelehy cutting otTthe nlosl collrlron social source fbr tobacco products.

3. All tobacco prnducts, including vape produu-ts al'e lequired to he behind the counter arrd not available to ony custolners rvithout the

assistancc ofa salcs clc'rk.

4. Many of oul rnembcrs havc investcd in agc'veritication sothvnrc that plovitlcs salcs clerks with au additiorral tool to verity the customer's

identity and agc.

6. llanning tlavored tobacco proclucts at liccnsccl lobacco rctailels will push thcse sales orlto the lutentet or into the illicit market whet'e no

onc chccks ID's and ploducts may bc c'ounlcrf'cit.

7. Statc wide data collected by the Departrncnt of Public Hc.irlth shorv that teenri use of ionrbustiblc' tobacco products have dropped to historic

consulncrs ofproducts thcy lcgally pulchuse iu our storcs.

tt. Traditional tobacco proclucts such as nenthol cigarettes, wintergreerr cherving tobacco, strus. iutd cigars are not being used by tninors and

should not be includcd in auy salcs lran that is targctcd to rcduce tcen vnpitrg

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORED TOBAC'CO AT ALL RETNILERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW.

MNNY ('TJSTOMF,RS I-AC]K TRANSPORTATION AND WOIJT,D NOT BE I.N IR FOR THEM. PROTECT OUR RICHTS!

providing sales lax l'cveuues to City of Orovillc'.

N

n"*i,t.nt D4 Retailcr Adull Consunrer 7

NDDRDSS Itu vw^o r<ttc-tr 2 TuovilV Lk qsq bS





Flello City Planners and City Council

to all stakeholdels.
I lere are nrole points of our conccm:

L Since 2016, the legal agc to pulchasc alt tobacc,o protlucts in Caliibitia including vaping cleviccs ltas bccn 21 (except lbr active rnilitary

with valid ID)

tobacco products tbr their underage tiiends theretry cuttirrg ot'1'tlre ulost conrn, oll social source tbr tobacco products.

assistflncc ofa salcs clcrk.

identity ancl agc.

6. Bauniug flavored tobacco proclncts at liccrrscd tohacco t'ctailcrs will push thcsc sales onto tlre lutctrtet or into the illicit market whelt rro

onc chccks ID's and ploducts may bc. munlcrt'cit,

consulncrs ofploducts tlrcy lcgally pulchuse in oul stores.

should not bc inch.ulccl in arry salcs ban that is taryctcd to leducc teen vapirrg

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLNVORED TOBACCO AT ALL RETAILERS IN TIIE CITY OT OROVILLE, NOT JUST N FEW
MNNY ('IJSTOMERS I"AC]K TRANSPoKI'ATION AND WOLJLI) NOT BE FAIR FOR THF,M. PROTECT OUR RIGHTS!

plovicling sales lax lcvcnues to City ol'Olovillc'.

Nnrne 4
Rcsident

NDDRT]SS

Rctailcr'

J5 nt) 4Q Pt/t
_ Adult Consurn cr *\,2 __

tflT 11 ln tr// L/1





Hello C'ity Planners and City Council

to all stakeholdel's.
l-lerc are tnore points of our concerrr:

l. Si.ncr-,2016, thc legal age to purchase all tobaccro ploducts in Calilbmia including vaping dcviccs has bccn 2l (except lbractive rnilitary
with valid ID)

tobacco products tbr their unclerage l'r'ierrds therchy cutting otTthe ruost courmou social source fbl tobacco producls.

3. All tobacco products, including vape ;rroducts ole required to be behind tlre courrter and not available to al'ry custorners rvithout the
assistancc oftr salcs clcrk.

idcutity ancl agc.

onc chccks ID's and products rnay bc countcrl'cit,

consurncrs ofproducts thcy legally purchtse in oul stoLcs.

shor.rld not bc' includcd in auy salcs tran that is targctcd to leducc tccn vnping

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLNVORED TOBA('CO AT ALL RETAILERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW
MANY (:TJSTOMERS I,AC]K TRANSPORI'ATIoN AND WOTJLT) NOT BE I.N IR FOR THF,M. PROTI]CT OUR RIGHTS!

providing sllcs tax tevenues to City of Oroville.

Rcsidcnt Rctailer Atluh ('onsunrcr /

^DDR"ss 
/s- /v{\wo AV6 NP+ c oF" virlv C 9s1,t I





Hello City Planners and City Council

to all stakeholclel's.
llere are rnore points of onr concerrr:

l. Sfurcc 2016, thc lcgal agc to purchasc all tobacco producls in Calilbrnio including vapirlg deviccrs has been 2l (cxcept lbr active rnilitnry
with valid ID)

tobacco pr.oductri tbr their underage li'iends thercby cutting off the ulost comn'loll social sourcL' firr lobacco producls,

3. All tobacco prnducts, including vape products ule required to be behintl lhe counter arrd not available to ony custonlers rvithout the
assistancc ofa snlcs clcrk.

4. Many of out'nlernbcrs havc investcd irr ngc'velitication sothvnrc that plovidcs salcs clerks rvith au additioual tool to veri$ the customer's
identity and age.

onc chccks ID's and proclucts rnay bc. countcrl'cit.

cousurners ofploducts thcy lcgally lrulchase in our storcs.

should not bc. includcd in any salcs ban that is tnryetcd to rc'ducc tcen vnping

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE TLAVORED TOI'ACCO /\T ALL RI]TAILERS IN TIIE CITY OT OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW
MANY ('TJSTOMERS I,AC:K TRANSPOR|ATION AND WOUT,t) NOT BE I.AIR FOR'THEM. PROTECT OUR RIGHTS!

ploviding sales lax l'cvenues to City ol'Oroville.

Narne

Rcsident 'tt Rctlilcr Atlrrh Consuurel

^DDRDSS 
6 ? F/vtn1 cht-o( Dr





Flello C'ity Planners and C'ity Council

to all stakeholders.
I Iere nre rnole points of otrr conccnt:

l, Sfurcc 2016, thc legal age'to purchasc all toblcco products in Calilbnria including vuping clcviccs has bccn 21 (except lbr active military
with valid ID)

2. Rnising thc nge to purchase all tobacco plotfircts to 2l ensures thot teens u'ho may hurr I 8 rvhile still in high school can no longer purchase

tobacco products lbr their unclerage liiends theretry cuttiug off the most coll"rmon social source fbl tobacco products,

3. All tobacco proclucts, irrcluding vape prnducts are required to he lrehind lhe counter'tnd not available to any custonrers without the
assistartcc ola salcs clcrk.

idcntity antl age.

onc chccks lD's and proclucts may bc countcrt'cit,

consurners of products tlrcy lcgally lrulclrasc in our storcs.

shoultl not bc' includcd in any salcs ban that is targctcd to lL'ducc tccn vnpiug

9. PLEASE C]ONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLNVORED TOBA('CO AT.\LL RE]AILERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST N FEW.
MANY C'IJSTOMERS I-AC'K TRANSPOKIATION AND WOIJI,t) NOT BE I.N IR FOR THF,M. PROTI]CT OUR RIGHTS!

ploviding salcs hx rcvenues to City ol-Orovillc.

Nanre

Rcsitlcnt Retailcr' Atlult C'onsunrcr

nDDRDSS Q^? o^eJa N (o*\c f-t\d





Hello City Planners ^nd C:ity Clouncil

Wc providcd 92 opposition lctters lbl Consurncrs, Rcsidcnts, Rctailcrs ancl Visilols to Clity of Orovillc rvhich inrpacts thc rcvcnuc aud services
to all stakeholdels.
Here are nrore points ofour concern:

with valid ID)

2. Rnising the nge tn purchase all tobtcco products lo 2l ensurcs that teerls rvho may tuln ll,l rvhile still in high school can rro longer purchase

tobacco products tbr their unclerage ti'iends theleby cuttirlg otl'the most colllmou social source fbr tobacco proclucls.

3. All tobacco products, including vape products nle required to he behind tlre counter and not available to any custonrers rvithout the
assistancc of a salcs clc'r'k.

4. Many of our membc'rs havc invested in age verif-rcation solhvirrc that plovidc's salcs clcr*s with an additional tool to verity the custorncr's
identity and age.

onc chccks ID's ancl ploducts rnay bc countcrl'cit,

consr.uners of products thcy legally purchase in oul storcs.

should not bc includccl in any sales ban that is targctcd to t'educc tcen vaping

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLNVORED TOI]ACCO AT ALL RTTNILERS ]N TITE C]ITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW
MANY CTJSTOMERS LAC]K TRANSPOKTATION AND WOTJt,t) NOT BE FN IR FOR THEM. PR0TECT OUR RIGHTS!

provitling salcs lax l'cvenucs to Clity of Orovillc.

Resident Aduh Cousunrer

^DDRuss ?2q 6fteg otl Gtrlohd
oKorI)\\ ' ,bffbf





Hello City Planners and City Council

to all stakeholders.
Here are rnorc points ofour concern:

I . Si.nce 20 16, thc lcgal agc to purchasc all tobacco products in Cllifonrin including vaping dcviccs has bccn 2 I (except lbr active rnilitary
with valid ID)

tobacco products tbr their unclerage liiends theleby cutting otftbe nlost colnmon social source fbr totracco products.

assistancc ofa salcs clcrk.

identity and agc.

onc chccks lD's and proclucts rnay bc counlcrl-cit,

consl.uncrs olproducts thcy legally purchasc in oul stolcs.

shor.rld not be includcd in arry salcs ban that is targctcd to lr-'duce tecn vaping

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLNVORED TOBACCO NT ALL RETNILERS IN TIIE CITY OT OROVILLE, NOT JUST N FEW
MANY ('TJSTOMERS I-AC]K TRANSPOKTATION AND WoI"JLT) NOT BE IIAIR FOR THF.M. PROTECT OUR RIGHTS!

provicling salcs lax rcvenucs to City of Oroville

t{.,

Rcsident Retailcr: Adult Cousttntcr

ADDRT]SS





"*116 
Clity Planners and City Council

Wc providcd 92 opposition lctters tbr Consumers, Rcsidcnts, Retailers and Visitors to City of Oroville which impacts the revcnue and services

to all stakeholders.
Here are more points of our concern:

l. Sincc 2016, the legal agc to purchasc all robacc<,r ploducts in Califomia including vaping deviccs has bcen 2 I (cxcept for active military

with valid ID)

2. Raising the age to purchase all tobacco proclucts to 2l ensures that teens who may turn lti while still in high school can no longer purchase

tobacco pfoclucts tbr their unclerage tiiends thereby cutting ol'f the most col]tmon social source for tobacco products.

3. All tobacco products, including vape products are required to be behind the coutrter and not available to any customers without the

assistancc oia salcs clcrk.

4. Many of our rnemtrcrs havc invested in age veritrcation softwarc that provides sales clerks with an additional tool to veri$ the customer's

identity and age.

5. Licelsed tobacco rclailers are subject to regular compliancc and sting operations to cllsure that tobacco and alcohol are not sold to rnitlors

6. Banning tlavored tobacco products at licensed tobacco retailers will push these sales onto the lntemet or into the illicit market where no

onc chccks ID's and products may bc countertbit.

7. State wicle clata cclllected by the Deparlrnent of Public Health show that teens use of combustible tobacco products have dropped to historic

lows - srnoking is no longer cool. Banning traditional tobacco products will do nothing to address the vaping issue and will deprive adult

consurners of products they legally purchasc in out' stores.

tl. Traditional tobacco proclucts such as nrenthol cigarettes, wintergreen chewing tobacco, snus, and cigars are not being used by minors and

should not be includcd in any sales ban that is targeted to reduce tecn vaping

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLNVORED TOBACCO AT ALL RETAILERS IN THE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW.

MANY CUSTOMERS LACK TRANSPORTATION AND WOULD NOT BE FAIR FOR THEM. PROTECT OUR RICHTS!

Thank you fbr all your support in listening to thc letailers, their staff and adult consurners woulcl likc to oppose this ordinance and contirlue

providing sales tax revenues to City of Oroville.

*^*" /.-/n/ 7,IJ-( GTn "7 rlel/
7lv

Resident \,/-.-71- Adult Consumer VRetailer

ADDRESS





Flello City Planners and City Clouncil

to all stakeholders.
l lcrc alc nrorc points of otrr conccru:

witlr valid ID)

tobacco pr oducts tbl their unclerage li'iends thereby cuttirrg otT the ulost corlrltoll social source lbl tobacco lrroducts.

assistaucc ofa salcs clc'rk.

idcntity and agc.

onc cltccks lD's and products nray bc c.ururlc.rl'cit.

con$ulllcrs olproducts thcy lcgally pulchusc iu uul stulcs.

shoukl not br,'includcd in any sales ban lhat is taryctctl to t'cducc tccu vnping

9. PLEASD T]ONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLNVORED TOBAC'CO AT .{LL RE'IAILERS IN TIIE CITY OT OROVILLE, NOT JUST A TEW
MANY ('TJSTOMF.RS I.ACK TRANSPOKTATI0N AND WOI.Jt,t) NOT Bt; I.N IR II0R TIIEM. PR0TEC]T OUR RICHTS!

providing sulcs lux rcvcnues to City ol'Orovillc..

Nune fir- N. 3t ?z-sry?(
Rcsidcnt l/ E S Rctailcr'7--**-
ADDRTISS 21 6 C4r3 cz 4

o4o nL(z_ cn . 7st eS

.Aduh Consunr*_/ trt

7N Etuo nPl /





Hello City Plnnnem nrrd City Council

to all stakelroldets.
I Icrc are urorc points of our conccnr:

I . Sfurcs 20 1 6, thc legnl agc to purchusc ull tobrcso products in Cllifourit hrcluding vuping dcvicc's has bccn 2 I (cxcept lbr uctivc rnilitury
with vulkl lD)

tobacco ptoclucts ttrr their underage liiends thereby cutting otl'the nlost cornlltou social source tbr tobacco products.

assisturcc of a srlcs clr,.rk.

identity and agc.

onr,. chccks ID's and poducts nray hc r.ounletlilit.

cousumcrs of protlucts tlrcy le-erlly purchusc iu our.stor.cs.

shoultl uot bc includcd in any snles bau that is tlryctccl tu lcducc tcen vnping

9. PLEASE CIONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLNVORED TOTIA('CO NT.\LL RE'IAILERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW.
MANY CTJSTOMERS I"ACK TRANSPORTATION AND W0I.JLI) NoT BE I.AIR IIOR TI{[;M. PROTECT OUR RIGHTS!

pruvidiug snlcs lax trveuucs to City of Orovillc,

Name /rzllrs R*/ro/o
Rcsidcnt A €ana:aitcr-7---'-- Atlnlt Consunrrl_/€zS-

/5 t zo,(o F zrzADDRESS





tlello City Plnnners arrd City Corurcil

to all stakeholdem.
Ilerc are rnorc points of otu'couccru:

'1. Siircc 2016, lltc lcgal ugc 1o purchasc ull tobtcco ploducts in C.,rlifornit hrcluding vaping dcvicc.s hns bccn 2l (cxcept lbr activc rnilitary
with valid ID)

tobacco ptoducts t'or their undemge liiends thereby cutting otl'the most commou sociRl sourr:e fbr tobacco products.

ilssiritaucc of u srlcs ch".r*.

identity nnd agc.

onc. chccks ID's and protlucts nrny bc c.ouulr,'rl'cit.

consum!'rs of protlucts thcy legolly purchusc iu our sturcs,

shoukl uot be includcd in nny snles ban that is tugctcd to lcducc tccn vnpiug

9. PLIASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORID TOTIA('CO NT .\LL RE]AILERS IN TI IE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST N FEW.
MANY CTJSTOMERS I.ACK TRANSPORTATI0N AND WOI"JI,[) NOT BE FAIR FOIT ]'IIT]M. PR0TECT OUR RIGHTS!

pruvidiug stlcs lax rcvcuucs to City of Or.ovillc,

)"h

nesittcnt K

^DDRESS 
t}

Rckrilsr KAtlult Consurncr'

5 fiorl7 (A(/e-,





Flello City Planners and City Courrcil

to all stakeholders.
Ilcrc are rnort poiuts ofnnr conccrn:

l. Shrcc 20[6, thc lcgul ugc to pru'clusc nll tobrcco ploducts in Cllilbnrin including vaping dcvicc.s hns bccn 2l (cxcept lbr uctive rnilitary
with vulkl ID)

tobttcco prcducts tbr their undemge liiends theleby cuttiu-q otl'the nlost conlmon social source fbr totracco products.

nssistalrcc of n srlcs clcrk.

identity and agc.

onc'chccks ID's and pntducts may bc countc'r.lcit.

con$umcrs o[products thcy le_qillly pulchusc iu our storcs.

tL Traditional tobacco protlucts such ns menthol cigilettes. u'irrtergreen cherving totracccr. snus. and cigars arc not being used by minors and
shoukl uot bc includcd h any snles ban that is tilr'gctcd tu rcducc tccn vapiug

O. PLEASE C:ONTINUE TO PROVIDE TLAVORED TOTTAC'CO NT ALL RE]AILERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW.
MANY CTJSTOMERS I.ACK TRANSPORTATI0N AND WOIJLT) NOT BE I;AIR II(NI TI{[:M. PR0TECT OUR RICHTS!

pu,iding sulcs lrrx rcvenucs to City of Orovillu,

Rcsidcnt K Rctrilcr

-.--
^DDRDss a- t so

of ouitte
tNu{ +l

9"Sauy

Aduh Consunrer K





Flello City Planners and Citl'Council

to all stakeholders.
I lerc nrc urorc points of otu' concern:

I . Si.ucc 20 16, thc lcgal age to plu'chasc ull tobucco products in Ctlilbnri.r including vaping devicc's hits bccn 2 I (cxcept lbr active militrrry
with valid ID)

tobacco products lbr their underage li'iends thereby cuttirrg otTtlre nlost conlmou socinl source ti)r tobacco producls.

assistnncc ofa salcs clc.rk.

4. Many of our urembcrs havc iuvestctl in age'r,erifrcation solhvurc that plovide's salcs cluks rvith an additional tool to verity the customer's
idcntity and agc.

onc chccks lD's anrl products ruay bc c.ourrlcrl'cit.

con$umcrs of products thcy legally put'chasc in oul sturcs.

shoukl not br.' includcd in atry sales ban tlrat is ttryctctl to rcducc tcen vnping

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORID TOT}A('CO AT.A,LL RI]'IAILERS IN TIIE CITY OT OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW
MNNY ('TJSTOMERS I,ACK TRANSPORTATI0N AND WOI"JI,I) NOT BE I.AIR F0II THEM. PROTECT OUR RIGHTS!

provitling sales tax revcnu(:li to City ol'Orovillc'.

v E
Rcsidcnt

ADDITDSS

(,/.{dult Consumcr'

2_t /\ o,1o ft, , +7 Qrcu l(L C A





Flello City Plnnners and City Courrcil

to all stakeholdels.
I Icrc nre tnotc points of onr conccrn:

with valkl ID)

2. Rttisittg thc nge to purchasc all robncco pl'(xflcts to 2l cnsrucs thut tecns s4ro lnay tunr I ll s'hile still in high school can no longer purchase
tobacco proclucts l'or their uutleragc liiends therehy cutting oil'the most conlmol't social source filr tobacco products.

tssistaucc of a srlcs clc.r'k.

icleutity and agc.

onl. chccks lD's and p'oducts nray hc countc.rlbit.

cousruilsni ol'products ttrcy legtlly pulchnsc in our.stotrtr,

It. Tntlitiottul tobacco prodrts such ns nrenthol cigarettes. u'intcrgreen cherving totracco. snus. and cigars ar not bcing used by minon and
shoultl uot be includcd in any snles trm that is tnryctccl to lcducc tccn vaping

9. PLEASE (:ONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLNVORET, TOTTA('C0 NT.\LL REIhILERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW.
MANY C(JSTOMERS I,ACK TRANSPORIATION AND WOI"JI,I) NoT BE I.AIR FOIT TIITIM. PR0TI]CT oUR RICHTS!

Thauk yott lbr lll your support in listcuing to thc rc'tnilcrs, tlrcir stnt'f urrl ndnlt consunrcrs rvoukl likc tti oppose this ordinancc nnd continuc
sllcs trrx

Rcftrilsr Adnh Cousurncr'

ADDRF,SS





tlello City Planners nnd City (-.ouncil

to all stakeholders.
I lerc nrc lnorc points of onr conccnr:

'1. Shrcs20l6,itclegalngelopurclrascllltobtccoproductsiuCnlifonrinhrcludingvopingdcvicssh$sbccn2l(cxceptforactivemilitur
with valid ID)

tobacco prcducts tbr their undemge liiends thercby cutting oll'tlre most colnmon social source tir totracco products.

itssistlncc of u srtlcs clc.r'li.

idcntity nnd agc.

onr"'chccks ID's and ploducts nrny bc countr"'rtbit.

consumcrs of protlucts tlrcy lcgolly purchusc iu our.sturcs.

shoultl not be includcd in any snles bsn that is tnrgctcd tu leducc tccn vnpirrg

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORED TOIJA('CO NT .\LL REIhILERS IN TI IE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW.
MANY CTJSTOMERS I.ACK TRANSPORTATION AND WOI.JT,T) NoT BE I.AIR IloR ]'[II:M. PROTF,CT OUR RIGHTS!

prur,idiug snlcs krx rcveuucs to City of Orovillc,

{Q
ncsi,tcnt-t'-

^DDRrss 
LS [A o n o

dro v;lf<

Atlult consunrcr d'-,/ -- -

'flode x5
CA ts 1b6





Flello City Planners and City Council

Wc providcd 92 opposition lclters tbr Corrsulncrs, Rcsidcnts. Rctailers nnd Visitols to City of Olovillc rvhich impacts thc rsvcnus and scrviccs
to all stakehoklers.
I lcrc ale rnorc poitrts of our conceru:

'I . Siircc 2016, thc lcgal agc lo purclusc all tobtcco products in Cllifornio hcluding vaping dcviccs hils bccn 2 I (cxcept lbr uctive rnilitary
with valid ID)

lobaccrr pt oducts t'or their undemge li'iends thereby cutting ot'l' the nlost commou social source fbr tobacco products.

nssistattco of a sdcs clc.r'k.

identity and agc.

onr,. chccks ID's and ploducts mny bl. c.ountr,.rtbit.

cousuulcrs ofplotlucts tlrcy legnlly purchuse in our slurcs.

shonld unt be includcd h any sales ban that is turyctccl to reducc tcen vnpiug

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLNVORIT' TOIIA('CO AT .A,LL R|j,|NILERS IN TI IE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW.
MANY C(JSTOMERS I,ACK TRANSPORTATI0N AND W0I"JI,I) NOT BI; ITAIR FOII TI{TiM. PROTF.CT OUR RICHTS!

pruvidiug snlcs tax rrvcuucti to City of 0ruville,

__Rckrilcr'__. ,Atlult Cousunrcr_'.

^DDREss#/o 
J.t oro





Flello City Planners and City Couucil

to all stakeholders.
I lerc are rilorc points of our conccru:

l. Silrcc20l6,thclcgal agctopr.rrchlsctlltoblccoprotluctsinCtlilbnritincludingvapingtleviccshasbecn2l(cxccptlbractivernilitary
with valid ID)

tobacco products tbr the ir unclerage li'iends thcrcby cuttiug otT the tuost coulmol'l srlcial source fiu' tobacco products,

assistancc ofa salcs clc.rk.

idcntity and agc.

ouc'chccks lD's anrl plotlucts rnay bu'c.orurlcllbit.

cou$umcrs of producls thcy lcgally purchlsc iu ouL sturr's.

shonld not br. includcd in arry salcs ban that is ttrlgcted to l.educc tcen vnpiug

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORID TOT}AC'CO /\T ALL RI]'IAILERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST N FEW.
MANY('IJSTOMERS I.ACK TRANSPOKTATI0N AND WOTJI.t) NOT BN I.N IR FOII TIITIM. PROTEC:TOUR RIGHTS!

providing sales tu.r rcvenucs to City ot'Orovillc.

C

Atlulr ctrnsurn 
", -, 

l/-

Aoe 4T OrodrtL f h
Rcsitlent D/_ __Rctailcr',_

^DDRriss 
LS fi""^o





Hello City Planners and City Council

to all stakeholders.
Ilcrc arc nrorc points ofotu'conceru:

witlr valid ID)

lobacco products tbr tlte il unclerage I'r'iends therehy cuttirrg otTthe lnosl conllnolt socitl source firr totracco producls.

assistaucc ofa salcs clcrk.

idcntity and agc.

ouc chccks lD's and pl'oducts rnay bc counlcrl'cit.

consruncls ofproducls tlrcy Iegally pruchusc in oul storcs.

shoukl not be ittchrlcd in nuy sales tran tlrat is trrSctcd to rcducu tcen vaping

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORED TOIIA('C0 /\T.A.LL RlllhlLERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW.
MnNY ('IJSTOMERS LACK TRANSPORTATION AND Wotit.I) NOT Bt1 I'n lR I()R TIltiM. PROTEC:T OUR RIGHTS!

providing salcs lax tcveuues to City ot'Orrrvillc.

*,"-R$.\j* !-,L.Lor\)t
ncsiacnt K Rctailcr

^DDRESS 
S 8U.".5 t--,/oocl C itdo-





Flello City Planners and City Council

to all stakeholders.
Ilcrc are urorc poiDts oforu'conceru:

l. Sfurcc 2016, thc lcgal agc to purchnsc tll tobacco pruducts in Cllilbruia hrcluding vuping tlevices ltas bccn 2l (exccpt tbr active rnititary
with valid ID)

2. Raising the age to putchase all tobncco prodrrcts to 2l cnsurcs thot teens n4ro rnay turrr lll n,hile still in high school can no longer purchase

tobacco ptoducts tbr their underage ti'iends thereby cuttilrg ottthe nlost common stlcinl source fiu'tobacco products.

assistlrucc of a srlcs clc.r'k.

identity and agc.

ouc chccks ID's anrl ploducts rnay bc countcrl'cit.

cou$uulcls ofproducts tlrcy lcgally purchasc in oul stolcs.

should uot be includcd in arry sales trnn tlrat is taryctcd to rcducc tecn vnping

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORED TOBA('CO AT.\LL RE]AILERS IN TIIE CITY OT OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW.
MANY ('TJSTOMERS I,ACK TRANSPORTATION AND WOI.JI,I) NOT BE I.AIR FOIi TII[]M. PROTECT OUR RIOHTS!

providing sales tax tcvuuues to City ot'Orovillc.

Drutton Ien0

nesiccnt X--
nonorr,, lQ3

Rcttilcr Aduh Cousunrcr_-. X

ao"fh 5\r( Cv-





Hello City Planners and City Council

Wc providcd 92 opposition lctters tirr Consurners, Rcsideirts. Rctailcl's aud Visitols to City irf Oruvillc rvhich impacts thc ttveuuc aud scrices
to all stakeholders.
I lerc are urorc poiuts of onr conccru:

witlr valid ID)

lobacco pr oducts tbl their underage tiiends thereby crrtlirrg ot't' the nlost conullou sncial source fbr tobacco products,

3. All tobacco products, including r,ape pxrducts tle required to he behirxl the counter and not available to olry custornen rvithout the
assistiutcc of a snlcs clc.r'k.

idcntity and age..

ouc chccks ID's and ploducts nray br,. counlc.rl'cit.

cousumcrs olproduc$ thcy legally purchirsc in oul sturcs,

should not be includcd in auy salcs ban that is tsrycfed to rcducr: tccn vnping

9. PLEASE C]ONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORED TOBN ('C0 AT .A,LL RI'IAILERS IN TI IE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW.
MANY('IJSTOMERS I,ACK TRANSPORTATION AND WOIJI,t) NOT BE I.N IR FOR TTIEM. PR0TECTOUR RICHTS!

providiug salcs lax lcvenucti to City of Oruvillc..

6 on2 /,-

Rcsidcnt
f>><_' Rclailcr Atlult Ctusunrcr' 5>.*-

ADDRtiSS U6 P"l od*ov)t(u





Flello City Planners and City Couucil

to all stakelmlders,
I lcrc alc rnorc points of ont conceru:

witlr valid ID)

tobacco ptoducts tbr their undemge li'ientts thereby cutting otlthe lrlost colntilol'l social source firr tobacco products.

itssistnncc of r salcs clc.rk.

iclentity and agc.

onc chccks lD's and ploducts nray hc countc.rl'cit,

con$umors ofproducts thcy legally purchnsc in oul sturcs.

shoultl not be includcd in auy salcs ban tlrat is tnrgctcd to rcducu. tcen vnping

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORED TOBNC'CO AT.\LL RI]'IAILERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW
MANY ('TJSTOMERS I.ACK TRANSP0RTATION AND WOTJI,t) NOT BN I.N IR FOR TIItJM. PR0TI]C:T OUR RI(}HTS!

provicling salcs tax l'cvenucs to City ot'Orovillc.

Narne ({ tf

Rcsidcnt X Rctailcr'---?--..---

ADDRnss )A fnDqo

Atluh (irnsunr*, )(

YlrR Ut cF qgGs





Flello City Planners and City C-'ouncil

to all stakeholders.
I lere arc' rnorc poirrts of rlrrr corrccru:

with valid ID)

tobacco ploclucts t'or their uudemge liiends theteby cutting otl'the nlost conunon social source lbr tobacco producls.

itssistancc of a srlcs cft,'rli.

itlcntity and agc.

onc'chccks ID's and protlucts rnny hc corurlc.rl'cit,

consumcrs of products tlrcy legllly purchasc iu our.storcs.

should not br,'includctl in any sales trnn that is tnrgctcd to t'cducc teen vngring

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLNVORID TOI}A('C0 AT ALL RE]N LERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST N FEW
MANY CTJSTOMERS I.ACK TRANSPORTATION AND WOTJI,I) NOT BE I.AIR FOR ]'Hi]M. PR0TECT OUR RICHTS!

ploviding sirles tax tcvenucs to City ol'Orovillc.

Na,,re Sfrrea 9nt',
ncsi.tcnr X - Rct0ilcr KAtlrrlt ('onsrrrn.:l'

^DDREsslqT, vL Roqd





Hello City Planners and City Council

to all stakeholders.
I.lcrc are urore points of orrr conccru:

with valid ID)

tobacco ptottucts tbr the ir unclemge tiientls ther'eby cutting ottthe nlost colnmon sncial source li.)r tobacco producls.

assistartcc ofa salcs clc.rk.

idcntity and agc.

onc chccks ID's and proclucts rnay br,. c.ounlc.rl'cit.

consumcts of produols thcy lcgally prulchi.rsc iu oul sturcs.

should uot bc' includcd in arry snles ban that is targc.tcd to rcducc tc'en vnpirrg

9. PLEASE C:ONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORED TOTIAC'CO AT .A,LL RI]'IN LERS IN TI IE CITY OT OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW
MNNY ('IJSTOMERS I,A(:K TRANSPORTATION AND WOIJI,I) NOT BtJ I.N IR FOR TIIDM. PROTF,C:T OUR RIGHTS!

provitling sales ltx lcvetlues to City ol'Orovillc.

('.tCA b

Rcsidcnt

ADDRtlSS ?"brV >-A1C

Atlull Consurncr ./- N--
Orou,ilc cq TSf C 5





FIello City Planners and City Council

to all stakeholders.
I lerc at'c ttrorc poiuts of onr conccru:

with valid ID)

tobacco pttducts tbr the ir unclerage liieruls theleby cutting otTthe nrost conullou siocial source firr totracco producls.

assistancc of a salcs clc'rt.

idcntity and agc.

onc'chccks lD's and pruducts uray bc countcrl'cit,

consumcts olproducts tlrcy legally purchasc irr oul sturu.s.

shoultl not br"' includcd in nny salc's ban that is trrgcted tu lc'ducr: tcen vaping

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORED TOI}A('CO AT ALL RI]'IAILERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW.
MANV CIJSTOMERS I,ACK TRANSPOKTATION AND WOIJI,I) NOT BE I.N IR FOR TIITIM. PROTI]CT OUR RIGHTS!

provicling salcs tux rcvsnucs to City ol'Orovillc'.

N fa {

nesiccnt /- Aduh Constuncr (

ADDRT]SS 'Ltt, Wrnn/*l A(A Vrla,.1



tl



tlello City Plannels and ('ity Council

to all stakeholders.
I.lcrc alc urore points of rlul corrccnt:

l. Sfurcc 2016, thc lcgal agc to purchnsc tll tobacco pruducls in Cnlifornin including vaping cleviccs has bccn 2 I (cxcept for activc rnilitary
with valid ID)

tobacco prtlducts tbr their uuderage liiends theleby cutting otf the nlost comnon social source fiu'tobacco products.

assistaucc ofa salcs clcrk.

idcntity and agc.

ouc'chccks ID's and products nray hc corurte'rt'cit,

consuulcrs ofproducts thcy legally purchase in our. storcs,

should uot br,'includcd in any sales tran that is t$lgcted tu rcducc tccn vnping

9. PLEASE C]ONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLNVORET, TOTIA('CO AT ALL RI]IAILERS IN TI IE CITY OI' OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW,
MNNY CIJSTOMERS I.AC]K TRANSPORTATION NND WOIJI.,t) NoT BE I.AIR F0IT ]'TIEM. PROTECT OUR RIGHTS!

pruviding sllcs lax lcveuues to City of Onrville.

n.*ia.ntJ---Rcrailcr.- .Attulr ('onsurr*r-- K--

^DDRrss 
bq, ilgtgDln ftUg SDft
cac C^q q"q,6 n



t;

t: ,)i

sl . ,

.r i



Hello City Planners ^nd Clity Council

to all stakeholders.
Here are nrore points of our concern:

1. Si.nce 20[6, tltc legal agc to purchasc all tobacco protlucts in Califomia including vapirrg deviccs ltas becn 2l (cxcept lbr active rnilitary
with valid ID)

tobacco products tbr their unclerage tiiends thcreby cuttillg ofl'tlre rllost couln'roll social source fbr totracco products.

assistancc of a salcs ck-.r'k.

idcntity and agc.

6. Bartning tlavored tobacco products at liccnsed (rhacco rctailers will push these sales onto the lnternet ol into the illicit market whel'e no
onc chscks lD's and pr,oducts n:ay bc. countcrl-cit,

consuurcrs ofproducts thcy lcgally purclrase in uur storcs.

It. Traditiorral tobacco products such as nreuthol cigal'ettes. urintergreen cherving lotracco, $nus. and cigars are not being used by tninors and
should not lrr' includcd in arry salcs ban that is targcted to rcdrrcc tccn vaping

9. PLEASE CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORED TOBACCO AT ALL RI]TAILERS IN TIIE CITY OT OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW.
MANY ('USTOMF,RS I,AC'K TRANSPORTATION AND WOTJLD NOT BE I.AIR FOR THF.M. PROTECT OUR RIGHTS!

providing sales tax tcvenucs to City of Orovillc'.

Nanre 5,o*'{' &e^s{ e r
Rcsitlent \'/ Rctailcr Aduh Consumcr

ADDRI]SS
tt 3 F ly lnj Clt** Dr



a



tlello City Planners and City Couucil

to all stakeholders.
I lerc are nrorc poirrts of otrr conccrn:

with valid ID)

tobacco products lbr their uuclerage li'icnds theletry cutting ot'f the ntost comll'loll social source fix'tobacco proclucts.

itssistancc ofa stlcs clclli.

idcntity arrd agc.

6. Ilanrring flnvored tobacco lttntlucts al liccnst'd tobacco rctailcrs will push thesc sales onto tlre lnternet or into the illicit market where no
onc chccks ID's and pruducts urny hc coutrtctl:cit.

consurnsrs olproducls ttrcy legally purchase in uur sturcs.

It. Tmditional tobacco products such as menthol cigarettes. u'intergreen cheling tobacco. srrus. ancl cigars are not being used by minom and
should uot bc'includcd in any sules lran that is tiltgctcd to r.cducc tcen vnpiug

9. PLEASE CTONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLNVORED TOI]AC'CO AT.\LL RE'I^ILERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOT JUST A FEW
MANY ('IJSTOMERS I.ACK TRANSPOKTATION AND W0I"JT,[) NOT BE I.AIR IIOR THI.JM. PROTECT OUR RICHTSI

providing sales lax revenucs to City of Orovillc,

I

Nartre

Adull ('ousurncr

1 15 1u1..^.,? 01"*C 4t 19 l/t





Flello City Plannels and City Council

to all stakeholdem.
I lerc are rnore poirrts of onr corrccnr:

'1. Si.ucc20l6,thclegalugctopurchascall toblccopruductsinCirlifonritincludingvapingdeviccshnslrecn2l(cxccptlbractivcrnilitary
with valid ID)

tobacco ptoducts t'or their uttderage liiends thereby cutting otTthe nlost cornmon social source fin tobacco products.

ttssistaucc of a salcs clcrk.

identity arrd agc.

onc'chccks ID's and products rnay hc couffcrl'cit.

cousl,uucrs of products thcy lcgally pulchasc iu our. sturcs,

It. Tladitional tobacco products snch as nrenthol cigarettes. u'intergleen chelirrg lobacc<1. snus. and cigars are not beiry used by minors and
slroukl not br'includcd in nny sales tran lhat is talgctcd to r.cducc tcen vaping

9. PLEASE C:ONTINUE TO PROVIDE FLAVORED TOI}AC'CO AT.A,LL Rl]]N LERS IN TIIE CITY OF OROVILLE, NOTJUST A FEW.
MNNY CTJSTOMERS I.ACK TRANSP0RTATION AND W()I.JLI) NoT BE I.AIR IT0R 1'[It1M. PROTF.CT OUR RICHTS!

provicling sulcs lax revcnucs to City of Oruville.

Narne

Rcsidcnt Rctailcr' Adull Consurncl X

^DDRriss 
,5 \\Ono Aug *9





RECEIVED 11/18/2019 11: ZBPt'll 5305343718
From: Boyott Petroloum (8001 Fax:12002146504 To:

EFT Notiflcation - Kwik Serv oroville orodam

A1 KI4II l(, $ERV

Faxr (530) 534-3718 PaSor 1 of 2 tlll8,20l9 10127 AM

ill * i9:J=- * "w'il*''*.b*-'"1

{ T".t' ".*12 c Za,

4 *r"-h***== b *qy.'rclll'-\** &r\\ freEvt*-

F- X'.-t': .tU ,€r,\c aFt tr"*h E .f+J.}J



RECEIVED 11/08/2019 0B: 04AM 5305343718
Froml Boyetl Petroleum (8001 Fax:12092146604 To:

A1 Kri\rl K $ERV

Faxr (530) 534-3718 Pagor I of 2 1110712019 7:03 PM

Boyett Petroleum Prices unbranded - Kwik serv 0rovi11e orodam



Remarks for Oroville City Council Meeting. 1/7/20
Resardins Flavored Tobacco Products

In 1968n the State of California banned smoking in all grocery stores, but it still

continued to be legal almost everywhere else.

Then, about 30 years ago, the City of Oroville proposed an ordinance that would

prohibit smoking inside most buildings that are open to the public. The hearing' in this

room, was so contentious, and so crowded, that it had to be moved to the State Theatre.

Even though the ordinance failed, by a vote of 4 to 3, it brought us some very

unwanted attention, Oroville was one of three American cities that were targeted by Big

Tobacco, which pumped nearly 8 thousand dollars into a recall campaign. Our mayor and

two members of our city council lost their jobs over this one issue. And remember: this

ordinance was NOT passed.

Thenn just a few months latero the State of California passed a statewide law that

was even more strict than what Oroville had proposed. We had some exceptions; this new

law had none. If only wend waited just a little while.

Last weehn on New Year's Eve, the president of the United States announced that he

would be placing a nation-wide ban on flavored tobacco products - but it may be only

temporary. He is, of course, facing enormous pressure from tobacco industry lobbyists.

In Mayo this year, there will be an FDA review of all e-cigarettes, and only those that

can demonstrate a benefit for U.S. public health will be permitted to stay on the market.

I don't think we should rely entirely on the federal government to act. But I prefer

to advocate for a statewide law. Why should the 47lcities and 58 counties go through

individual hearings and create a patchwork of separate ordinances?

What our Planning Commissioners objected to about doing a Clty of Oroville

ordinance is that it would create an uneven playing field for our local merchants who sell

these products. People could simply go to a different store in a neighboring city or in the

unincorporated areas ofthe county to purchase these products.

Therefore, I am advocating that you urge the State of California to pass a law

banning flavored tobacco products statewide.





Flavored Tobacco Policies in California
Updated otl06/2020

L. Alameda

2. Albany :

3. Alturas
4. Anderson

5. Berkeley

6. Beverly Hills

7. Burbank

8. Burlingame

9. Capitola

10. Cloverdale

L1. Contra Costa County

L2. Corte Madera

L3. Culver City

14. Delano

15. El Cerrito
16. Fairfax

L7. Fremont

18. Half Moon Bay

19. Hayward

20. Hermosa Beach

21. Lafayette

22. Laguna Niguel

23. Larkspur

24. Livermore

25. Los Angeles County

26. Los Gatos

27. Manhattan Beach

28. Marin County

29. Mono County

30. Novato

31. Oakland

32. Oxnard

33. Palo Alto

34. Portola Valley

35. Redondo Beach

36. Richmond

37. Sacramento

38. San Anselmo

39. San Carlos

40. San Francisco

41. San Leandro

42. San Mateo County

43. San Pablo

44. San Rafael

45. Santa Barbra County

46. Santa Clara County

47. Santa Cruz

48. Santa Cruz County

49. Santa Maria
50. Saratoga

51. Sausalito

52. Sonoma

53. South San Francisco

54. Ventura

55. Ventura County

56. Watsonville

57. West Hollywood

58. Windsor

59. Woodland
60. Yolo County





CITY OF OROVILLE
RESOLUTION NO. 8829

A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING AND
DIRECTING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A AMENDED AND RESTATED
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF OROVILLE AND
THE OROVILLE CITY EMPLOYEES' ASSOCIATION

(Agreement No. 1432-151

BE lT hereby resolved by the Oroville City Council as follows:

The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute an
Amended and Restated Memorandum of Understanding between
the City of Oroville and the Oroville City Employees' Association. A
copy of the Amendment is attached hereto as Exhibit "A".

2. The City Clerk shall attest to the adoption of this Resolution.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Oroville City Council at a regular meeting held

on January 7 , 2020, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Charles Reynolds, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:

Scott E. Huber, City Attorney Bill LaGrone, City Clerk

1





AMENDED AND RESTATED

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

Between the

CITY OF OROVILLE

And the

oRovlLLE GITY EMPLOYEES', ASSOCIATION (OCEA)

For the period between

THROU ARY 6 2

This Memorandum of Understanding, hereinafter referred to as the "Memorandum", has been approved by City

|CouncilResolution11o.g75a_-adoptedatitsRegularMeetingof@

Formafted: Left: 0.5", Right: 0.5", Top: 0.5", Bottom:
0.5'

Formatted: Font: 20

AN



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section

1. Recognition of Oroville City Employees' Association (OCEA)
2. Scope of Representation
3. Maintenance of Benefits
4. Meeting Release Time
5. City Rights and Responsibilities
6. Layoff Policy
7. Boot Allowance
8. Call-Back Pay
9. Blood Bank Donation Time
10. Shift Differential
11. Compensation, Overtime, and Defened Compensation
12. Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)
13. Medical, Dental, Life, Vision, and Long-Term Disability lnsurance
14. Rec,ognition for Length of Service
15. Compensatory Time and Professional Growth
16. Random Drug and Alcohol Testing
17. Vacation Policy
18. Holidays
19. Sick Leave
20. Personal Time Off
21. Bereavement Leave
22. Matemity Leave
23. Military Leave
24. Approved Leave ofAbsence without Pay
25. Jury Duty
26. Bulletin Boards
27. Payroll Deductions
28. Discipline
29. GrievanceProcedures
30. PeacefulPerformance
31. Savings Clause
32. Notice of Changes, Revisions and/or New ltems
33, Code of Ethics
34. Term and Opening Clause
Attachment Exhibit "A" - Tier 1 and Tier 2 Salary Schedutes
Attachment Exhibit "B" - City of Oroville Drug-Free Workplace Certification
and Substance Abuse Policy Statement
Aftachment Exhibit "C" - Code of Ethics

Paqe

3
3
3
3
3
4
I
I
I
I
I

11

11
13
14
15
15
16
17
18
'18

18
18
19
19
19
19
20
22
24
24
24
24
25
26

27
41



Section 1. RECOGNITION OF OROVILLE CITY EMPLOYEES'ASSOCIATION
(ocEAl

The City formally recognizes the OCEA as the majority representative for all City employee
CLASSIFICATIONS set forth in Exhibit "A' excluding confidential employees'

Section 2. SCOPE OF REPRESENTATION

The scope of representation of the meeting and confening shall include those matters as set forth in the
California Government Code Section 3504 et seq.

Section 3. MAINTENANCE OF BENEFITS

It is understood and agreed that there exists within the City, certain personnel rules, and regulations,
policies, and benefits regarding members covered by this Memorandum. ln the event of proposed

changes to City Personnel Rules and Regulations, the OCEA shall be advised, for the purpose of
enabling the Ciiy and the OCEA to meet and consult as soon as possible with respect to any proposed

changei. me iity shall not have the right to change City Personnel Rules and Regulations which
contravene specific provisions of this Memorandum without prior meeting and conferring with the

OCEA.

Section 4. MEETING RELEASE TIME

The City agrees to allow each OCEA member a total of four (4) hours of release time per calendar year

to attend quarterly OCEA meetings. The above release time can only be used in one (1) hour blocks.

Use of the release time must have the prior approval of the member's department head well in advance
of the meeting. lf, in the sole discretion of the member's department head that the use of the release
time will disrupt City operations, release time will be denied. Such release time can only be used for
attendance at the quarterly meetings and shall not rollover into the next calendar year if not used.

Section 5. CITY RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

City retains, solely and exclusively, all the rights, powers and authority exercised or held prior to the

execution of thii memorandum, except as expressly limited by a specific provision of this
memorandum. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the rights, powers, and authorityretained
solely and exclusively by the City as enumerated herein, include, but are not limited to the following
subject to the requirements of this memorandum and/or any provision of law whether it be statutory or
judicial: To manage and direct its business and personnel; to manage, control, and determine the
mission of its deplrtments, building facilities and operations; to create, change, combine or abolish
jobs, departments and facilities in whole or in part; to subcontract or discontinue work for economic or
bperational reasons; to direct the work force; to increase or decrease the work force and determine the
number of members needed; to hire, transfer, promote and maintain the discipline and efficiency of its

members, to establish work standards, schedules of operation and reasonable work loads; to specifo or
assign work requirements and require overtime; to schedule working hours and shifts; to adopt rules of
conduct and penalties for violation thereof; to determine the type and scope of work to be performed

and the services to be provided; to determine the methods, processes, means, and places of providing

services and to take whatever action necessary to prepare for and operate in an emergency.

Nothing in this Section shall be construed to limit, amend, decrease, revoke or otheruise modify the

rights vested in the City by any law regulating, authorizing or empowering the City to act or refrain from

acting.

Section 6. LAYOFF POLICY

6.1 Purpose



6.2

6.3

6.1 .1 The City may initiate a layoff due to lack of work, lack of funds, or change in the organization.

City of Oroville - OCEA Cooperative Efforts

6.2.1 When the City determines that layoffs are imminent, it shall provide written notification to OCEA.
Further, in the spirit of cooperation, the City or the OCEA may request a meeting to joinly discuss
alternatives to layoff, including, but not limited to, athition or a reduction in work hours. ev-ery effort stralt
be made to fill vacant position(s) that are determined to be a necessity in the City with quaiified laid-off
employee(s).

6'2.2 Notwithstanding the effort to work cooperatively, the City has the exclusive right to determine the
methods, means, numbers and kinds of personnel by which services are to be provided. The City's
decision to make a reduction in force and/or layoff an employee(s) is not subject to the duty to meet
and confer. However, the parties will meet and confer regarding the impact of those determinaiions.

Definitions

For the purposes of this section:

6.3'1 Layoff - separation of employee(s) from the active work force due to lack of work, lack of funds
or change in the organization.

6.3.2 Temporary Employee - an at-will non-benefited employee who is hired on a temporary basis and
works less than 1,000 hours in a fiscal year.

6.3.3 Probationary Employee - any employee tentatively appointed to a position prior to becoming a
permanent employee.

6'3'4 Fulltime Permanent Employee - benefited employees who successfully complete their
probationary period and who regularly work a minimum of 32 or more hours per week.

6.3.5 Part-time Permanent Employee - benefited employees who successfully complete their
probationary period and who regularly work less than 32 hours per week.

6.3.6 Displacement Rights (Bumping) - a permanent employee who has more seniority may remove
another employee in a lower classification and take their place.

6.3.7 Seniority - The length of service of consecutive time served from an employee's date of hire with
the C_ity. Service seniority for unpaid military leave will be considered in the manner prescribed by State
and Federal law. Continuous employment includes paid leaves of absences.

lf a City temporary employee is subsequently appointed to a fulltime position with the City, the
employee's seniority shall be calculated from the date of temporary appointment, as long as theie has
beenro break in continuity of service. This does not include Temp Agency employmeni with the City
(i.e., Express Personnel, etc.).

ln a. case where two (2) or more employees in the same class in the same department have the same
seniority date, the date of their employment application to the City of Oroville will determine seniority
(See Oroville Personnel Rule 7. Seniority).

6.3.8 Lateral Displacement - An employee who has more seniority may remove another employee from
within their same classification pursuant to 6.S.3.

6.3.9 Classification - a specific job title.

Order of Lavoff & Procedure

4

6.4



6.5

6.4.1 Whenever it is determined that a layoff must occur within a job classiflcation, the order of layoff

shall be:

1. temporary employee
2. probationary employee
3. part-time and fulltime permanent employee

6.4.2 ln each type of employment, the employee(s) with the least overall city seniority in the affected job

classification(s) shall be laid-off first.

6.4.3 ln the event that two (2) or more employees in a job classification within a Department have the

same seniority, then the employee with the least seniority with the City shall be laid-off. lf there is no

distinction between seniority of two (2) or more employees, the order of layoff will be determined by the

date on their application for employment with the City.

Displacement Riqhts

6.5.1 An employee may displace any other employee in a lower classiflcation within their Department, if
they have rnore seniority and can meet the minimum qualifications. An employee.may also displace

another employee in any position in any Department that they held previously. This does not include

working in an out-of-class position.

OCEA employees may only displace an employee within the OCEA bargaining unit.

Only Administrative Assistants and Staff Assistants may displace laterally into another Department if
they have accrued seniority. However, an employee who elects to displace laterally into another
Department shall serve a ihree (3) month probationary period in the new Department. Monthly

evaluations will be given to the employee. lf two (2) of the three (3) month evaluations are

unsatisfactory, the piobationary period may be extended an additional three (3) months. lf the

employee do-es not pass their piobationary period, the employee will be laid-off in accordance with this
MOU.

6.5.2 Employees who are designated for layoff or displacement may elect, in lieu of layoff or
displacement one of the following:

'l . Displace laterally within the same classification (See 6.3.8)'
2. Displace into a lower classification (See 6.3.6).

An employee who chooses to exercise their displacement rights must accept the salary, hours and

working conditions of their new position. An employee will be allowed only one (1) displacement per

layoff occunence.

6.5.3. For the purposes of displacement, departments and positions are defined as follows:

Administration Department
Assistant Citv Clerk

Finance Deoartment
Accountant
Accounting Technician

Communitv Development Deot.
Associate Civil Engineer
Assistant Planner
Associate Planner

Business Assistance and Housinq Deoartment

----.-Building 
Maintenance Technician ll

Housing Develop./Building Maint. Supervisor
OfficeiField Aide
Admin/Program Analyst ll
Program Analyst I

Code and Construction Compliance Specialist

Public Works and Parks & Trees Deoartment
Cement Finisher
Cultural Facilities Coordinator
Equipment Mechanic

5



Building lnspector
Construction lnspector
Counter Technician
GIS SpecialisUEng. Tech
Office Coordinator

Lead Mechanic
Parks Maintenance Technician lll
Parks Maintenance Technician ll
Parks Maintenance Technician I

Lead Public Works Operator ltl

Administrative Assistant Signal Technician/Electrician
Staff Assistant PublietlVorks-Suporv.iser

Svstem Ooerator I

tol.
ead Tree Worker

6.6

6.7

6.5.4. An employee who exercises their displacement rights shall be paid in the new job classification at
the same salary range step (i.e., Step D to Step D; Step F to Step F; etc.).

6-5.5 lf an employee with permanent status chooses not to displace an employee in a lower job
classification or laterally displace an employee, they shall be laid-off, and the bity agrees no[ to
challenge unemployment benefits.

6.5.6 An employee may request layoff in lieu of the opportunity to displace an employee by notifying the
Personnel Department in writing within five (5) business days of the notice of iay6ff. lf'an emp6yee
requests layoff in lieu of displacement, they shall forfeit all recall rights except to a vacancy in the same
classification from which the employee was laid-off. ln this case, the employee shall be eniifled to recall
rights for a period of one (1 ) year from the effective date of the layoff.

6'5.7 An employee who is in a promotional probationary status and is affected by a layoff or is
displaced by an employee exercising their displacement rights shall be allowed to return to their former
job.classification where they held permanent status, and the employee will be allowed to invoke any of
their displacement rights. lf the job classification in which the employee previously held permanent
status no longer exists, the employee will be allowed to invoke any of their displacement rights. lf the
employee has no displacement rights to invoke, they will be laid-off without any right of recall.

6.5.8 A new City employee who has not completed their probationary status has no layoff rights.

6.5.9. Future salary step adjustment opportunities shall be made in accordance with the OCEA
Memorandum of Understanding and/or the City's Personnel Rules. Time served in the job classification
since the most recent step increase prior to when the layoff/displacement occured, shall count toward
the interval required for consideration of salary step advancement.

Senioritv List

6.6'J At least five (5) business days prior to written notices of layoff, the City shall provide a current
seniority list to affected employee(s) and the Association's Labor Repreientative for the OCEA
bargaining unit. The seniority list shall show the employee names, classification, seniority date, and the
Procggs for reporting discrepancies. The seniority list shall be deemed correct unless an employee or
the OCEA notifies the Personnel Department to the contrary, in writing, within five (5) business diys of
the receipt of the seniority list.

Notification of Lavoff

6.7.1 The City will provide a written Notice of Layoff to all affected employee(s) within ten (10) business
days in advance of the effective date of layoff. The written Notice of Layoff will include a list of all
positions in which the employee may invoke any of their displacement rights. The written Notice of
Layoff will be hand-delivered to the employee and the employee will sign for receipt of the Notice. The

6



Association's Labor Representative will receive a copy of all written Notice of Layoff at the same time

the affected employee(s) are notified.

6.7.2 Any employee who is on a paid or unpaid leave or not in attendance at their worksite shall be

affected by the l'ayoff in accordance with the provisions of this Section. With such written Notice of
Layoff, theemploy-ee shall be informed of their rights to which they are entitled and the procedure to be

foliowed, including a list of all positions in which the employee may invoke any of their displacement

rights. The Notice of Layoff shall be mailed to the employee via U.S. certified/return receipt mail to the

lait known address filed with the Personnel Department. The Association's Labor Representative will

receive a copy of all written Notices of Layoff at the same time the affected employee(s) are notified.

6.7.3 Laid-off/Displaced employees shall be paid accrued leaves in accordance with the OCEA

Memorandum of understanding, applicable city policies and rules, and applicable Laws.

6.8 Re-EmplovmentFollowinq Lavoff/Displacement

6.8.1 Employee(s) shall be entitled to re-employment rights for a period of one (1) year from the

effective Oaie dt'layoff or displacement. To expedite re-employment, more than one (1) laid-

off/displaced employee may be notified when an opening occurs. The laid-off/displaced employee(s)
will be re-hired in inverse order of layoff. A laid-off/displaced employee shall be required to meet the
qualifications of the classification to which they are recalled (i.e., license(s), certification(s), etc.).

6.8.2 When a vacancy occurs in a job classification, the laid-off or displaced employee(s) eligible to

retum to that job ddssification shall be recalled in the inverse order of layoff. Employees with
permanent status who were laid-off or displaced are eligible to return to the job classification in.which
permanent status was held but shall have no recall rights to any job classification in which probationary

status was held at the time of layoff or displacement.

6.8.3 Laid-off/Displaced Employees: The effective date of layoff shall be the employee's last day

working at the City. When a vacancy exists, and employees are to be re-employed, notice of the

openingls; shall be sent via U.S. certified/return receipt mail, to the last known address on file in the
p'ersonn'ef Department. lt shall be incumbent upon the laid-off employee to advise the Personnel

Department, in vwiting, of any change in address. The laid-off employee shall have five (5) business

days, following the notification from the City, to notifo the City, in writing, of their intent to retum to work.

6.8.4 An employee who exercises their re-employment rights shall be paid the salary range step they

received immediately prior to layoff/displacement. Future salary step adjustment opportunities shall be

made in accordancswith the OCEA Memorandum of Understanding and/or the City's Personnel Rules.

Time served in the job classification since the most recent step increase prior to when the

layoff/displacement occurred, shall count toward the interval required for consideration of salary step

advancement.

6.8.5 Laid-off/Displaced employees who accept re-employment will earn sick leave and vacation at the

same accrual amounts the employee received prior to being laid-off/displaced, and any sick leave

balances will be restored.

6.8.6 The laid-off employee shall have a reasonable period of time to return to work, not to exceed

fifteen (15) business Oay!. f tfre laid-off employee fails to respond to the notice of re-employment within

five (S) business days or fails to report to work within the reasonable time period as set forth above,

they will forfeit all re-employment rights.

6.8.7 A laid-off/displaced employee shall lose their re-employment rights due to: 1) resignation; 2)

retirement; 3) failurb to return io work when re€lled by the City; or 4) when the City has not recalled an

employee to work for a period of one (1) year.

Section 7. BOOT ALLOWANCE

7



A Boot allowance of Two.Hundred ($200.00) Dollars per year shall be provided to all employees as a
requirement or necessity to perform their duties. This amount shall be paid in the month oi October for
the following classifi cations:

Public Works Operators l, ll and lll
Park Maintenance Technicians l, ll and lll
Lead Equipment Mechanic
Lead Public Works Operator
Lead Tree Worker
Collection Svstem Operator I

Collection System Operator ll
Lead Collection Svstem Operator
Equipment Mechanic
Traffic Signal Tech/Electrician
C€m€n++inisher
Building Maintenance Technician ll
Building lnspector
Cls€p€€ialist
Asse€iate€ivt+€ngin€€{
Construction lnspector
Code and Construction Compliance Specialist
Sr. Code Enforcement Specialist
Code Enforcement Specialist

Section 8. CALL.BACK PAY AND ON CALL pAy

8.1 Definition of Call-back: When an employee is not currently working their normal assigned work shift and
is called back to work either prior to arriving or departing from the employee's worksite.

8.2 ln the event of a call-back or return to duty, a member shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours of pay
at the rate of one and. one-half (1 %) times the regular rate of pay. lf the time worked exceeds two (2)
hours, then the member shall receive pay for the time worked 

-at 
one and one-half (1 %) times thd

regular rate of pay, calculated to the nearest ten (10) minutes. OCEA members who arb calied back to
work (as opposed to regularly scheduled overtime or continuation of a shift) shall not be required to
take compensatory time off during the work week.

8.3 Time worked contiguous to and after a normally assigned work shift shall be treated as normal
overtime.

FmDlovees shall be collpensated with on-call pav of$2.00 oer hour(16 hours at $2.00 per hour) and
9q8/.dav fo, Saturdav, S
the Department Head. their pav ratie will be at 1 and % their noiffi



hours in lieu of On-Call pav. Once the event is over. at the start of the next hour the emDlovee shall

return to the hourlv On-Call pav rate.

Section 9. BLOOD BANK DONATION TIME

A member wishing to donate blood to the City Blood Bank Fund shall be released from work for the

final hour of the work-day for such purpose. The verification of such donation shall be returned to the

department head for inclusion with the bi-weekly attendance report in order for the member to receive

credit for time worked.

Section {0. SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL

10.1 Employees who are required to work a majority of their shift between the hours of 5 :00 p.m. and 7:00

a.m. shall be compensated an additional 5% for all hours worked during that shift.

10.2 Employees who are required to work on weekends (Saturday and Sunday) shall receive an additional
5o/o fior all hours worked on those days.

10.3

hail

reeeive{headditienal-+5P6

Stepg g[qBr thg ]iF[, 1 -:

the discretion to accelerate time between Steps E-f .and,E-!G Lo,"qne Cl) "ygar fot .gutgtalding--- -
oerformance and upon written recommendation to, and approval bv. the Personnel Officer.

Section 11. COMPENSATION. OVERTIME AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION

11.1 Effective October 2,2018, Tier 1 and Tier 2 salary schedules will be implemented and are attached as

Exhibit A. Employees hired before October 2,2018 will be Tier 1 employees, with no change to the

existing salary schedule and employees hired on or after October 2, 2018 will be Tier 2 employees'
Tier 1 salary ichedule will remain at 5% in between each step, A-H and Tier 2 salary schedule shall be

2.5% in between each steP, A - O.

1 1 .2 Efea€tiveJaouary#eb€,€liC+blejeeadvansemen+{e-Step-@@emptsyee'-must+ave
eempleted twe (i) years within their eunent elassifi€atien, Upen ratifi€alen and adeptien ef thig MO9;

Sfop H shatl be €reated €onsisting of a 2,5elo Galary in€rease abeve Step C, Empleyees at St€p G

be-elgible{oradvaneemenlte Step H the empleyee muslhave eernpleted ene (1) year at Step G within

their eurrent elassi{ieatien.
{i;_ryqqJ,!!i,."c 1"to,!t|?tsi"o' qi- , ----l

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0,5"

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatt€d: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Arial

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Indent: 0.5'

between B-O.-

11.3 AdditionalCompensation

Upon ratification of this MOU, employees shall receive a 1$3o/o salary increase.

Effective July 1,201+P, employees shall receive a 34% salary increase
Effective Julv 1, 2021 . emplovees shall receive a 3% salarv increase.

Effective Julv 1. 2022. emplovees shall receive a 3% salarv increase'

Formatted: Font: Not Bold



11'4 @en eempletien ef the prieryear's GAFR
(+vhi€hever-ec6u+s first)' -if{otaleere oity+evenues-inerease rne{elhan 7a,6rthe eftyan4OeEA +/ll. meet
!+Ciseus+ agotentialadditional+ala+f inorease,

revenuesdeerease mere than 5%, the City and oeEA will meet t€_disesss a petentiai sa+aqfdeerease
@17, 1% inerease in lieu ef layeffs,

+otafe*fof0r€viile eoreRevenueBase Property+ax,.Sates &.UseTax, Transienloeeupaney Ta;t
LltilttyUserJax.F-ran€hise+ax-.an+MotraF.V€hi€le.i+tieu' TheGityegreesto.advise anaprovi'ae+ne
OGEArevenu+ uBdates-

11.6 Out of Class Pav

a. A member assigned to temporary duties of thirty (30) days or less in a higher job classification
shall not receive the pay of the higher job classification.

b. A member who, within the fiscal year of July 1, through June 30, accrues more than thirty (30)
days of temporary duties in a higher job classification, shall receive an additional Rve p6rieni
(50/o), but not less than the boftom step, nor more than the top step of that higfier job
classification, commencing with the thirty-first (31"t) day of such duiies in a fiscal yeai. Sucn
time shall not accrue from one fiscal year to the next.

c. lf it is known at the time of assignment that the member will be assigned to duties in a higher job
classification for thirty-one (31) days or more, the member shall immediately rec6ive-an
additional five percent (5%) above the member's normal pay, but not less than the bottom step,
nor more than the top step of the higher classification.

11.6 Overtime

Members required to work in excess of forty (40) hours per week shall receive one and one-half (1 %)
times their regular rate of pay for all hours in excess of forty (40) hours. ln computing the hours worked
in any week, time off duty for compensatory time off and Holidays shall be calculatld as 1me worked.
Earned overtime shall be paid in the_regular biweekly payroll; provided, however, that the member may
elect to have the monetary value of the overtime assigned to an individual account of compensatory
time off duty with a maximum accumulation of 120 hours. A membe/s decision to elect CTO instead oi
overtime pay is irrevocable. CTO shall be cashed out on the first paycheck in March and December of
each year, or with the approval of the City Administrator in the case oi an emergency.

Altered Schedules

At the discretion of the City and agreement with the OCEA, altered schedules oI 4110 or 5/8 may be
implemented. lf schedules are altered, then the use for vacation, sick leave, holidays, and comp iime
will coincide with the new schedule. For example, if a member works a 4/10 schedule and a holiday
falls within the 4 days, employee would be paid for 10 hours. lf the holiday falls on the regularly day ofi,
the employee would flex that holiday to another work-day.

Defened Comoensation

Effective the first payroll period in July 1989, the City shall offer regular full-time OCEA members the
opportunity to participate in a Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan with National Deferred, without
a City contribution. Effective the first payroll period in July 2001, the City shall offer regular fulltime
O_CEA members the opportunity to participate in a Section 457 Deferred bompensation plan with the
ICMA, without a City contribution.

. , Formatted: hdent: Hanging: 0.5"

'! Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Right: 0", Line spacing:
single, Hyphenate, Tab stops: Not at -0.5" + O"

11.7

11.8

10



1 1.9 License and Certificates

lf a certificate or a license is required for a position, the City will reimburse employees for the cost of the
certificate or license. ln addition, if there is a renewal charge, the City will reimburse that as well.

11.10 The Citv will provide $750 annuallv, for the term of the MOU, (non PERSable funds) for eagh Unit

spendinq iccount. Disbursements shall be made on the first pav period in Julv of vears 2020. 2021 .

2022.

11.11 Flex Positions - The followino OCEA classifications shall become flex oositions. Meaning that once an

emploveeJrlqpts all t[e"e-ducatigr]. ggrtificathn, ?nd qugl!,figqrion te.pgiqen.entp,foJ the [exqqlq.p in th9.
classification series and if fundino is available. thev will automaticallv be promoted into the position and

will be placed at Step A of the new salarv ranqe or at a step of the new ranqe which is approximatelv

five percent (5%) hiqher than the emplovees previous base salarv (whichever is hiqher): but in no case

shall the emplovee be compensated above the top step of the new salarv ranqe. The followina

classifications will be flex positions:

.Park,MainlenanqgJggh I 4. Park Maintenance Teclll
PublicWorksOperatorl @
Staff Assistant ?. Adminigtrative Assigtant..

Plannino Assistant .--? Associate Planner

Formatted: Font: Arial

Formatted: Font: Arial

Formatted: Font: 11

Formatted: Font: Arial

Formattedr Font: Arial

Formattedi Font:

Formatted: Font: Arial

Formatted: Font: Arial

Formatted: Font: Arial

Formatted: Font: Arial

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Indenh Leftt 0",

Formatted: Font: Arial, Bold

Formatted: lndent:

Formattedr Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Arial

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"

nccountinq Technician 1 
- 

Acaaunllns-Te-sh-! -[

Collection Svsiem Operatoii J Collection Svstem Operator ll
,r\\i

.11.12 The 6i1v shall assume li?hility for notary duties performed by gCEA mgmbers in the qcope of their Citv ' 
""'),'. , 

,. r,,,,
emDlovmentl

.',\. rrr\,\
J 1-13 New Emplovee Orientaiion 'l,il,,

11

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

: 0.5"
representative.

The Citv aqrees to notifv the union via email to the Labor Relations Reoresentative. the tim.e-. date ?!d'
lorcation oithe desiqnated time to meet with the new employee(s) as soon as oracticallv possible

indior will qive 10 davs' notice if the orientation meetinq is known to be scheduled to take place '10

davsin adGnce. The desiqnee will receive up to 30 minutes release time. plus travel to and from
the meeting. with the new emolovee.

The CitV will allow the Labor Relations Representative and/or his/her desiqnee 30 minutes alone -to'
meet with tfre, new emplovee before or after the orientation meetinq or another time that is mutuallv

aqreed uoon.

The Citv aqrees to provide, via electronic file, the followino information for each new emplovee in the* - -
Unit:

Name, iob title. department. work location. phone numbers for work, home and cell. if applicable.' - -
personal email and home address.

The Citv aqrees to provide the union this same information for all bargaininq unit emolovees on or'
about the 1"r of each quarter (Januarv, April. Julv and Octobertr

Section 12. PUBLIG EMPLOYEES'RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERSI

1l

0.5'

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"

Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.5"

Formatted: Font: Arial, 11 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"



12.1 The City agrees to continue providing OCEA "Classic Members" with the 2o/o al SS formula and
employees shall pay the 7olo employee contribution. This payment shall be deducted in accordance
with IRS code 414(h)(2), making all such payments pre{ax. ln addition, "Classic Members" shall have
their retirement benefit calculations based off their single highest year.

12.2 Effective January 1,2013 and upon hire, all new members to the CaIPERS Retirement System shall
receive the 2o/o at 62 retirement formula and shall pay 50% of the normal benefit formula and
contribution rate and shall have their retirement benefit calculations based off their three (3) highest
years.

"New members" shall be defined as an individual who becomes a member of the California public
Employees Retirement System (CaIPERS) for the first time or re-enroll on or after January 1 , 2013, and
who was not an active member of another public retirement system prior to that date, and who is not
subject to reciprocity with another public retirement system.

All members that do not fit into the definition of new members will be considered "Classic Members" of
CaIPERS.

12.3 The city agrees to maintain the 4th Level 1959 survivor Beneflt for all members.

lfl-the-€ve€t-the-Ctty-detennines-+hat irnplemel*at+en-ef-enhanee++eti;ement--bene4ls-ts-O6EA
rnembers-is€€onemiea+yfeaslblia-the€ity.agnee+te+e-open-negrotiations,

section 13. MEDIGAL. DENTAL. LtFE. vtstoN. AND LoNG-TERM ptsABtLtry tNsuRANCE

13.1 Medical lnsurance

The City agrees to continue to provide insurance benefits for members and their dependents who are
otherwise qualified and who desire coverage of medical, dental, life, vision, and longterm disability
insurance.

The City agrees to contribute the following amounts towards employee and dependent medical
insurance, effective May 19,2015:

Tier 1

EE Only
EE+1
EE + Family

Gold PPO
100%
$906.40
$1,075.s0

HDHP.lO%
100o/o

$879.92
$1041.10

Silver PPO
10Oo/"

$853.46
$1,006.68

Etreetive-Jaftrary €OaqjFthe+POgregliums-in€reassr+p+e than. S%; OGEA an+the.€+tfwill-meet
te-d.iseussan-iner€ase-t€-th€€itybsonkilaution-teward$+A€di€al{nsuran€+

Tier 2

Health lnsurance for represented employees hired by the City on or after October 2, 2O1B - Cit,J
contributions for fier 2 employees shall be limited to the Silver PPO medical plan for employee, spouse
and/or children at the contribution levels below. Employee only, can elect a different pian-but will pay
the difference. There shall be no city contribution towards spouse and/or children on any other plan
than the Silver PPO.

HDHP-,IO%

12

_Gold PPO Silver PPO Formatted: Indent: Left: 1", First linei 0.5"



EE Only Silver PPO Premium Rate for EE Only 100%
EE + 1 $0 $0 $853.45
EE + Family $0 $0 $1'006.68

lf the current plans become unavailable within the above cost parameter, and a substitute plan or plans

with comparable benefits and cost are not available, then the OCEA and the City may reopen this issue

for negotiation during the term of this Memorandum, and the parties shall then meet and confer as soon

as poJsible in order to mutually attempt to resolve the situation. ln addition to the above, the City shall

pay for each member the cost of life, vision and longterm disability insurance.

13.2 Dental lnsurance

ln addition, the City contributes $66.40 per month towards dental insurance for the employee and their

dependents.

13.3 Lonq-TermDisabilitv

Effective December 1 , 1989 the City shall have the carrier of the Long-Term Disability Policy amend its

waiting period to 90 calendar days.

13.4 State Disabilitv lnsurance (S.D.l.)

Effective on or after April 1, '1991 , and pursuant to an Employee State Disability lnsurance (S.D.l.)

election, OCEA members may participate in the S.D.l. Program'

a) Excludinq Vacation from SDI required use of accrued leave'

Leaves of absence will require the full use of accrued sick leave, CTO and Safety Time before SDI may

be taken. Vacation time will be excluded from required use'

13.5 Health lnsurance Review Committee:

The City agrees to participate in a Joint Health lnsurance Review Commiftee for the purposes of
reviewing current insurance health benefits and Enhanced Retirement Benefits. The Human Resource
Analyst ind up to two (2) representatives from each City employee bargaining group may attend the
meeiings on behalf of the City of Oroville. The purpose of the Commiftee is ongoing review of health,

dental ind vision plans and making recommendations to the City Council, City Administrator and the

OCEA members regarding benefit levels, services, methods of cost containment, alternative plans and

the like. Committee members shall establish guidelines for conducting meetings, frequency of meetings
and the Committee work program. Employee representatives shall not be charged vacation or other
leave time if such meetings aie held during the member's normal work hours, nor shall such members
receive overtime or call-back pay for service on the Committee. The Committee shall have access to

such non-confidential information as necessary to carry out its purpose'

The Committee will also study PERS, PARS, or Longevity steps for the purposes of enhancing the

retirement benefit.

13.6 Approval of Future Plan Chanqes

a) When the City or OCEA members agree that future changes in the health and dental insurance
plan benefits or structure are needed, they shall be approved by a majority of the employees of
the City of Oroville who are covered by the plan and who vote on such changes.

The Health lnsurance Review Committee established in Section 12.4 shall review and

recommend to the Oroville City Council those proposed changes in the plan benefits and

structure to be voted upon by the members pursuant to Subsection 12.5 (a). The proposed

changes reviewed by the Committee may be initiated by the Committee, by City bargaining

13

b)



units, or by the City, by and through the City Administrator. After review and acceptance of
Commiftee recommendations by the City Council, the City Clerk shall, within fifieen (15)
calendar days, conduct a secret ballot election of covered members. The City Clerk shall ti.ren
report the results of the election to the Committee and the City Council. Notwithstanding the
provisions hereof, if the Committee declines to recommend the City proposal to be submitGd to
a vote of the covered members, the City bargaining units agree to meet and confer with the City,
upon the City's request, concerning any such proposal. lf, after a reasonable period of
negotiations, including implementation of established impasse procedures, an agreement has
not been reached on the City's proposal, the City may submit the proposal to a vote of all
covered members, in which case the results of the election shall be final.

Section 14. RECOGNITION FOR LENGTH OF SERVTCE

ln recognition for many years of continuous service as a City of Oroville employee, effective July 1,
2007, the City shall make an annual award to each qualifying employee in the amounts shown below:

Annual Award
$1 50.00 per year
$300.00 per year
$500.00 per year
$600.00 per year

The City Council shall decide on the timing and manner for the award presentations.

Tier 2 employees hired on or after October 2,2018, will not be eligible for Length of Service Awards.

Section 15. EDUCATIONAL INCENT|VE

1 5.2 Educational lncentive

All employees shall be eligible upon receipt of pertinent documentation for education incentive pay as
follows:

B.A. or B.S. degree $250.00/Mo., unless a B.A. or B.S. degree is one of the qualifiing characteristics of
the job classification.

AtA. o1 AS, Degree $125.00/Mo., unless an A.A. or A.S. degree is one of the qualifying characteristics
of the job classification.

Employees that obtain 60 units after 0710112011 shall be eligible to receive $125.00/mo.

Employees that obtained 60 or less units before 07101111 must obtain an A.A. or A.S. degree to be
qualified for educational incentives.

Section 16. RANDOM DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTTNG

OCEA members agree to the City of Oroville's Substance Abuse Policy and procedures for random
drug/alcohol testing, administered by DATCO, as outlined in Exhibit "a". ttre Ciiy may utilize any or all
of the following non-regulated testing options: Pre-Employment Drug/Alcohol,-random drug/aicohol,
reasonable suspicion drug/alcohol; follow-up drug/alcohol; post-Accident drug/alcohol; retur:n to duty
drug/alcohol; and breath alcohol testing.

Section 17. VACATION POLICY

17 '1 Every member who, on the most recent anniversary date of employment shall have been in the
service of the City for a period of one (1) year or more shall be entitied to a vacation as follows:

t4

Lenoth of Continuous Service
15 years through 19 years
20 years through 24 years
25 years through 29 years
30 years or more



Two (2) weeks (ten (10) working days) with pay if the member shall have been in service of the
City for a period of one (1 ) year but less than five (5) years prior to such anniversary date.

Three (3) weeks (fifteen (15) working days) with pay if the member shall have been in the
service of the City for a period of five (5) years but less than twelve (12) years prior to such
anniversary date.

Upon completion of twelve (12)years of service with the City, the member shall be entitled to
one (1) additional day of vacation with pay, and on each anniversary date of service thereafter
to a maximum vacation benefit with pay of four (4) weeks (twenty (20) working days).

17.2 Unused Vacation

Unused vacation benefits may be accumulated from prior anniversary years; provided, however,

the member shall cease to earn benefits that exceed two (2) times the individual member's
annual eamed vacation. lncluded in the calculation of the accrual ceiling are the vacation days
earned as sick leave incentive as herein provided.

A member who has properly attempted to schedule vacation to avoid forfeiture that may be
imposed by the accrual ceiling may petition the department head and City Administrator to carry
over vacation in excess of the ceiling, but in no case shall the excess be subject to pay-off. The
department head has the prerogative to assign the member time off for excess accrual.

17 .3 For the purpose of this Section 17, VACATION POLICY, years of service shall mean years of
unbroken seniority with the City which shall in no event be calculated from a date prior to the
time the member actually commenced working for the City.

17.4 A member who on the most recent anniversary date has qualified for a vacation but whose
employment is terminated prior to taking such vacation shall be entitled to pay in lieu thereof.
The City shall not pay an amount in excess of the ceiling set forth in Section 17, VACATION
POLICY, except as provided in Subsection 17.2.

17.5 A member who during an anniversary year is on leave of absence without pay for a period

exceeding thirty (30) consecutive days shall fail to qualify for full vacation benefits but shall be

entitled to prorated vacation benefits. A member whose employment is terminated prior to the
completion of the anniversary year shall be entitled to prorated vacation. Vacation shall be
prorated by dividing the straight time hours actually worked by 173.3, and then multiplying that
factor by 1/12th the vacation the member would have earned had the anniversary year been
fully worked.

17.6 Conversion of Excess Vacation Carryover Hours to Sick Leave

Whenever an employee's accumulation of vacation hours exceeds the maximum vacation
c€lrryover allowance due to furloughs or denial of time off requests by their supervisor or
department head, the excess number of vacation hours may be converted to sick leave hours

and credited to the employee's sick leave accumulation balance at the end of the fiscal year.

This shall be done at the employee's written request and with notification to the City
Administrator or his/her designee.

Section 18. HOLIDAYS - This section will remain the same unless all barEaininq units aqree to
eliminate Lincoln's Birthdav to receive New Year's Eve.

18.1 The following holidays shall be observed by the City:

(1) New Year's Day
(2) Martin Luther King Day
(3) Lincoln's Birthday

l5



18.2

Section 19.

19.1

19.2

19.3

19.4

19.5

19.6

19.7

(4) President's Day
(5) Memorial Day
(6) lndependence Day
(7) Labor Day
(8) Veteran's Day
(9) Thanksgiving Day
(10) The Day afterThanksgiving Day
(11) Last Day before Christmas Day
(12) Christmas Day

when a designated holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday will be observed as the
paid holiday in lieu thereof. lf the designated holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday
will be observed as the paid holiday in lieu thereof.

Members shall be credited for each holiday by eight (8) hours of straight time pay.

SICK LEAVE

sick leave is a privilege which can only be allowed in case of actual sickness or injury by a
member or an individual of their immediate family which compels a member to be absent from
work. To qualify for sick leave, a member must notify his/her supervisor prior to the time set for
beginning daily duties, in accordance with personnel procedures established by the city.

A member may be allowed a leave of absence from duty without loss of salary on account of
sickness or injury. Sick leave with pay is earned at the rate of one (1) workday for each month of
service beginning the first of the calendar month following regular probationary employment.

A member returning to duty after an absence of more than two (2) consecutive work days
without loss of salary on account of sickness or injury shall provide his/her immediate
supervisor, for filing in the member's personnel file, a doctor's certificate or personal affidavit
verifring the employee was ill or injured.

A member whose condition is deemed to be permanent and stationary for either on/off duty
injuries may, at the discretion of the City, be returned to work on a light or limited duty station for
purposes of vocational and medical rehabilitation. Such action shall only be taken upon the
recommendation of a physician, chosen and compensated by the city, and shall be for a fixed
time. ln the absence of clear and convincing evidence to the contrary, should the injury be job
related and rehabilitation period fail and the member return to an industrial leave stjtus, ihe
initial trauma shall be considered in assessing the leave period. This section shall be
implemented by an individual agreement between the City and the member and be signed off by
the City's physician.

Sick leave shall not be granted to any member who is absent from duty due to illness or injury
incurred while working for other than the City of Oroville.

Members shall accumulate unused sick leave without limitation as to a maximum number of
days.

subject to the same requirements of advance notice and approval, a unit member may be
granted a maximum of three (3) days leave of absence in any calendar year without loss of pay
in cases of personal necessity. Such leaves shall be deducted from the member's accumulated
sick leave. Personal necessity includes but is not limited to an accident involving the member's
person or property; appearance in court as a litigant or witness under official order. This leave
specifically does not include any recreational use or any use related to present or prospective
employment.

l6



19.8 As of October 2,2018, and upon retirement, Tier 1 employees with 5 or more years of service
shall be able to convert 100% of his/her accumulated unused sick leave to purchase medical
insurance, calculated by the hourly rate of pay, at the time of retirement, by the number of
unused sick leave hours gq members may convert accumulated unused sick leave for PERS

service credit.

As of October 2,2018, and upon retirement, Tier'l employees with less than 5 years of service
shall be able to convert up to a maximum of 240 hours of his/her accumulated unused sick
leave to purchase medical insurance, calculated by the hourly rate of pay, at the time of
retirement, by the number of unused sick leave gf members may convert accumulated unused

sick leave for PERS service credit.

As of October 2,2018, any member hired on or after this date shall be a Tier 2 employee and

shall not be able to convert any of hisiher accumulated unused sick leave to purchase medical

insurance. However, members hired on or after this date shall be able to convert accumulated
unused sick leave for PERS service credit.

1g.g A member shall not be required to use any sick leave for any medical and/or dental
appointment(s) but may use accumulated vacation time or mmpensating time off in lieu thereof.

19.10 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth above in this section, the City agrees to
amend its contract with PERS to allow sick leave conversion for PERS Retirement Credit. The
members have the option of selecting the provisions set forth above in this section or may
convert their unused sick leave for service credit upon retirement.

19.11 Except as provided in Subsections 19.10 and 19.12, a member shall not receive any cash
payment from the City for unused sick leave upon voluntary or involuntary termination from
employment.

Section 20. PERSONAL TIME OFF

Effective O7lO1t2O11 and on each July first during the term of this contract, all represented employees shall be

credited with 24 hours of Personal Time Off (PTO). OCEA member may take PTO to coincide with the holiday

season, November 1"i through January 1"i or other requested time which is approved by their department
head. Additionally, OCEA members may be required by their department head to take PTO to coincide with the
holiday season. PTO days must be used within the fiscal year they are credited, or the time will be lost.

Section 21. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

Employees who have completed six (6) months of service are entitled to receive up to five (5) days
bereavement leave which shall not be charged to the employee's sick leave, when compelled to be absent
from duty by reason of death, or where death appears imminent of an immediate family member, as

determined by the attending physician. An employee desiring such leave shall notiff, in writing, the department
head of the iime of absence expected and the date of return to City service. lmmediate family includes:

spouse, natural, step or legal child or parent, brother, sister, grandparent, grandchild, mother-in-law,
father-in-law, brother-in-law or sister-in-law.

Section 22. MATERNITY LEAVE

Maternity leave shall be in accordance with applicable State and/or Federal law pursuant to California
Government Code 19991.6 as curently in effect and/or amended.

Section 23. MILITARY LEAVE

Military leave shall be granted in accordance with the provisions of State law. All members entitled to military

leave ihall give the City Administrator an opportunity within the limits of military regulations, to determine when

such leave shall be taken.
17



Section 24. APPROVED LEAVE OF ABSENCE WTHOUT pAy

The City Administrator at his/her unrestricted discretion, may grant a regular or probationary member leave of
absence without pay or seniority for not to exceed three (3) months. After three (3) months, the leave of
absence may be extended up to twelve (12) months by the City Administrator. Longei |eaves of absence shall
be approved by the City Council. No such leave shall be granted except upon written request and approval in
writing. Upon expiration of a regularly approved leave, or within a reasonable period oi time aftei notice to
return to duty, the member shall be reinstated in the position held at the time leave was granted. Failure on the
part of a member on leave to report promptly at its expiration shall be deemed to be i resignation and said
member shall be notified of such resignation in writing.

lf the approved leave of absence is for more than thirty (30) days, the member:

a) Shall not accrue seniority or employee benefits of any kind.

b) Shall be responsible for the full payment of the monthly cost of any premiums for health, life or long-
term disability insurance plans if the member desires to retain the coverage afforded by such plans.

Section 25. JURY DUTY

A member who is called or required to serve as a trial juror, upon notification and appropriate verification
submitted to hisiher supervisor, shall be entitled to be absent from his/her duties with the iity during the period
of such service or while necessarily being present in court as a result of such call. No deduition shill be made
from the salary of a member while being interviewed for or while serving on jury duty. Jury fees collected shall
be turned over to the Finance Department to help defray membe/s costi whiie 6n jury duty.

Section 26. BULLETIN BOARDS

A re_asonable amount of space shall be provided on the bulletin board in the membeds lounge, upon which the
OCEA may post notices of meetings, elections, appointments, results of elections, recreational and social
affairs, classes, seminars, and other matters pertaining to members and ocEA affairs.

Section 27

27.1

PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

OCEA Dues

It is agreed that the city, during the terms of this Memorandum, shall deduct ftom each
membe/s paycheck OCEA dues. The authorized OCEA dues amount will be remitted in one (1)
check to the OCEA. The OCEA shall indemnify and hold the City harmless against any and ail
claims against the City as a result of implementation of this section.

A. Misstatement of facts during the hiring process;
q Falsification of any entry on a City document (e.g., time card, expense report);
C. Disclosure of confidential information;
D. lnsubordinationorwillfuldisobedience;
E. lncompetence, inefficiency, or unsatisfactory job performance;

l8

Section 28. DISCIPLINE

28.1 Discipline

The City may discharge or suspend from employment any member who has completed the specified
probationary period for cause. Examples of mnduct or performance deficiencies that may warrant
discipline include, but are not limited to:



F. Discriminatory, discourteous or unbecoming behavior;
G. Theft, misuse, or unauthorized use or possession of City property;

H. Dishonesty;
l. Misconduct (e.g. any behavior that brings harm or discredit to the City;

J. Being under thL influence of illegal drugs or alcohol or possessing illegal drugs while on City
property or on official business.

K. bonviction of a felony or misdemeanor that involves moral turpitude, or any other convictions of
or pleas of nolo coniendere (no contest) or diversion for such offense, which adversely affects

or brings discredit to the CitY;
L. Excessive absence ortardiness;
M. Absence without approved leave;
N. Violation of City iule, policy, or procedure; (e.g. violence in the workplace policy, unlaMul

harassment, etc.)
O. Soliciting outside work from personal gain during the conduct of City business; engaging in

outside 
-employment 

for any business under contract by the City; participating in any outside

employmeni that adversely affects the employee's city work performance; and engaging in
unauthorized outside employment;

p, Loss or failure to maintain any license, certification, and/or clearance which is required as a
minimum qualification or condition of employment for the employee's position.

ln the event a member feels the discharge or suspension is not for cause, the OCEA shall have the

right to appeal the case through the grievance procedure.

Probationary members may be discharged for any reason, which in the sole discretion of the City is just

and sufficient and such discharge shall not be subject to appeal.

28.2 Removal of Disciplinarv Documents and Submission of Written Rebuttals

a) The parties agree that Letter of lnstructions, Counseling Memorandums and/or Letter of
Reprimands are the first steps of progressive discipline.

b) Letter of lnstructions, Counseling Memorandums and/or Letter of Reprimands, and any

and all related documents/materials, at the written request of the employee, will be

removed from any and all of the employees personnel file(s) after four (4) years have

elapsed. ln any event, all adverse materials will be considered null and void after such
four (4) year period with the following exceptions:

1. lf further disciplinary action concerning any misconduct occurs within four (4)
years from the initial disciplinary action, then there will be no requirement to

remove the adverse material. lf there is no further disciplinary action conceming
any misconduct within four (4) years from the last occunence, at the written
request of the employee, all adverse materials including all related documents,
and materials, will be removed from the employees file and considered null and

void.

2. This provision does not apply to disciplinary suspension, demotion, termination,
workplace violence or sexual harassment, if an employee has been found to be

in violation of these items.

c) An employee has the right to provide a written rebuttal to any of the above within thirty
(30) days of receipt of the documentation which will be attached to the original document
and placed in the employees official personnel file(s) in the Personnel Department.

28.3 Presumption of Delivery

l9



Any written notice shall be conclusively presumed delivered to the member on the date the
written notice is personally served on the member. ln the event that any notice is sent to a
member by certified mail, return receipt requested, the notice shall be conclusively presumed
delivered to the member on the date the receipt was signed. ln the event the certified mail is
refused, or in the event the member is absent without leave and no person at the address to
which the certified mail is sent signs for such certified mail, then it shall be presumed that the
notice was delivered as of the date the postal service returned the certified mail to the return
address.

28.4 Departmental Action Prior to lmposition of Discipline

Except in €ses of emergency, at least five (5) calendar days prior to the effective date of any
disciplinary action against members with permanent status, the department head or person
authorized by him/her shall give the member written notice of the proposed disciplinary action,
reasons for such action, a mpy of the charges and material upon which the action is baied, and
the right to respond either orally,or in writing, or both, to a neutral department head agreed io by
the City Administrator and the OCEA who shall serve as the Skeliy Officer. The Jepartment
head who shall be designated the Skelly Officer shall be determined on a rotating basis. The
department head of the department in which the member works will be ineligibljto hear the
Skelly appeal.

28.5 Notice of Disciplinary Action

whenever a disciplinary action is taken against a member, the member shall be notified in
writing. Such notification shall include but is not limited to:

A statement of the disciplinary action taken against the member.
A summary of the facts upon which the disciplinary action is based.
A statement advising the member that written notice of the disciplinary action is to be
placed in the member's official personnel file and that the member shall have the right to
appeal under the grievance procedure as set forth in this Memorandum.

a)
b)
c)

28.6

Section 29.

29.1

29.2

The written notice of disciplinary action may be either personally served or mailed to the
member by certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to ihe last address which the
member has furnished the City.

Appeals of Discipline for Permanent Members

A member may appeal a disciplinary action by filing a grievance at step 3 of the grievance
procedure within ten (10) days of receiving the notice of disciplinary action.

GRIEVANCE AND ADVISORY ARBITRATION PROCEDURES

A grievance shall be defined as a dispute concerning the application of the City of Oroville
Personnel Rules and Regulations: Rule s, section 5.s; Rule 1'l; and Rule 14, or a matter
involving the interpretation of the alleged violation of any provisions of this Memorandum, other
than appeals subject to the foregoing Section 27.6.

There shall be an earnest effort on the part of both parties to settle the grievance promply
through the steps listed below. working days are considered to be MonJay tnrougn rrioay
excluding City holidays.

Step 1:A member's grievance must be submitted to the immediate supervisor within fifteen (15)
calendar days from the date the grievance is first known, or the grievance is waived. The
immediate supervisor should give an answer to the member bylhe end of the fifth (5th)

20



calendar day following the presentation of the grievance. lf the answer does not resolve
the grievance or if an answer is not given, the member may proceed to Step 2'

Step 2: lf the grievance is not resolved in Step 1, the OCEA Representative may, within five (5)

calendar days after the written reply of Step 1, request a meeting with the department
head or his/her designee. Such meeting shall be held at a mutually agreeable time to
review, discuss and attempt to resolve the grievance. Such meeting will take place within
ten (10) calendar days after the date of the written reply of Step 1.

Step 3: lf the grievance is not resolved in Step 2, the OCEA Representative may, within five (5)

calendar days after the Step 2 meeting, request a meeting with the City Administrator.
Such meeting will be held at a mutually agreeable time to review, discuss and aftempt to
resolve the grievance. Such meeting will take place within ten (10) calendar days from
the date of the Step 2 meeting.

Step 4:(a)lf the grievance is not resolved in Step 3, Step 4 shall be refenal by either the City ogf

OCEA to advisorv arbitration. Step 4 shall be taken within twenty (20) calendar days
after the date of the written reply of Step 3.

(b) Upon receipt of request by the OCEA to submit a grievance to advisorv arbitration,
the City will set a day acceptable to both parties. The City and OCEA will choose from
the State of Califomia Mediation and Conciliation Service (SCM&CS) an arbitrator to
become the individual to hear all cases involving the parties. The City and OCEA agree
to act expeditiously in the selection of an arbitrator. lf the OCEA and the City fail to reach

mutual agreement on the selection of the arbitrator, each party shall, at a meeting of its
representatives, alternately strike a name from the list of arbitrators provided by the
SCM&CS. The first party to strike a name shall be determined by lot. The costs of
advisorv arbitration shall be borne equally by the city and the ocEA. The city and the
Association shall pay the compensation and expenses for their respective witnesses. At
the OCEA's request, the City shall release members from duty to participate in

arbitration proceedings.

(c) The arbitrator shall hold such hearings and shall consider such evidence as the
arbitrator deems necessary and proper. The first hearing shall be held as soon as is

practicable for all parties involved. The rJeeisian-ef-the arbitrator shall be-final and
binding-on'submit his/her findings and recommendations in writins to the City-he-lQeEA
and the qrievant. O#A.and-the-aggrieved-rne+nber;

request, unless extended bv the Citv Council, bui in no event more than 45 calendar
davs.

(de) Failure by either the City or the OCEA to meet any of the aforementioned time limits
as set forth in Subsections 28.2(1), 28.2(2\, 28.2(3), 28.2(a), or 28.2(4b) will result in

forfeiture by the failing party; except however, that the aforementioned time limits may
be extended by mutual agreement. Grievances settled by forfeiture shall not bind either
party to an interpretation of this Memorandum, nor shall such settlements be cited by

either the City or the OCEA as evidence in the settlement of subsequent grievances'

2t



(efl Notwithstanding the aforementioned procedure, any individual member shall have
the right to present grievances to the City and to have such grievances adjusted without
the intervention of the OCEA, and be given the same opportunity to have the arbitrator
hear and rule on grievances as prescribed in 4(b) and 4(c) provided that the adjustment
shall not be inconsistent with the Memorandum and further provided that the OCEA's
President shall be given an opportunity to be present at such adjustment.

29,3 Time limits as set forth above may be extended by mutual agreenient between the City, the member or
the OCEA, but neither the City, nor the OCEA member shall be required to agree except in the case of
the temporary absence of the City Administrator. ln such case, the time limils will commence with the
first day of the return to work of the City Administrator. All meetings will be conducted in Oroville.

29.4 lf the member or the OCEA does not submit the grievance to the next step or meet within the time limits
specified, then the grievance will be considered automatically withdrawn. lf, after Step 1, management
does not reply in a timely manner or meet within the time limits specified, then the grievance may be
processed by the member to the ne)d higher level if so requested by the member or the OCEA.

Section 30. PEAGEFUL PERFORMANCE

The parties to this Memorandum recognize and acknowledge that the services performed by the members
covered by this Memorandum are essential to the public health, safety, and general welfare of ihe residents of
this jurisdiction. OCEA agrees that under no circumstances during the term of this Agreement will the OCEA
recommend, encourage, cause or permit its members to initiate, recognize, participatain, nor will any member
take part in any strike, sit-down, stay-in, sick-out, slow-down, or picketing related to labor relations matters
(hereinafter collectively refened to as work stoppages), in any office or department of this City, not to curtail
any work or restrict any production, or interfere with any operation of the City. ln the event of any such work
stoppage by any member, the City shall not be required to negotiate on the merits of any dispute which may
have given rise to such work stoppage until said stoppage has Ceased.

Section 31. SAVINGS CLAUSE

It is understood that this Memorandum is subject to all applicable Federal and State Laws, City Ordinances
and Regulations of the City Charter. Where there is a conflict between the City Charter, City Code and/or this
Memorandum of Understanding, the City Charter shall conhol over the City Code and/or the Memorandum of
Understanding, and the City Code shall control over the Memorandum of Understanding. lf any part or
provision of this Memorandum is in conflict or inconsistent with the above-entitled laws or regulitions, or
othenvise held to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidation of such p6rtion of the
Memorandum shall not invalidate the remaining portions hereof, and they shall remain in full foice and effect.
ln the event any portion of this Memorandum is in mnflict with any non-negotiated policy, procedure, manual or
directive, the provisions of this memorandum shall prevail.

The above section shall only apply to Laws, Ordinances, Regulations and Charter that are in place at the time
of the ratification of this Memorandum. No new statues shall impair an existing contract, unless otheruise
required.

Section 32. NOTICE OF CHANGES. REV|S|ONS AND/OR NEW TTEMS

The City will provide the OCEA with ten (10) working days written notice of any changes, revisions or new
items which effects any ordinance, rule, regulation, policy, procedure, or resolution direCfly relating to matters
within the scope of representation proposed to be adopted by the City Council and shall b6 given the
opportunity to meet and confer with the City prior to adoption.

Section 33. CODE OF ETHICS

Association members shall abide by the code of Ethics attached hereto as Exhibit "c".

22



Section 34. TERM AND OPENING CLAUSE

This Memorandum of Understanding shall commence upon ratification and adoption and shall continue in full
force and effect until-09130120{9_[!@!. This agreement shall remain in full force and effect until a new
Agreement is signed by the parties herein.

With Respect to negotiable wages, hours and working conditions not covered by this Agreement, the City of
Oroville agrees to make no changes without prior agreement with the Association'

ThisMemorandumre@mmendedtotheCityCounciloftheCityoforovilleon@
2020.

OCEA CITY OF OROVILLE

Stephen Chioini, OCEA President ms,Mayor

Attested:

@pres ,{ntorimCityclerk

Approved as to Form

Sharen Lindberg, Secretary Scott E. Huber, City Attorney

23



EXHIBIT
rrArr

24



EXHIBIT -B''

CITY OF OROVILLE

Drug-Free Workplace Certification and Substance Abuse Policy Statement

As with any City policy, the CITY OF OROVILLE reserves the right to change, alter, amend, and interpret this
policy without notice.

The purpose of this policy is to assure worker fitness for duty and to protect our employees and the public from

risks'posed by the use of alcohol and controlled substances. This policy is also intended to comply with all

applicable Feieral regulations governing workplace anti-drug programs. "The,Drug-Free Workplace Act of
tbbO" lcovernment C-ode Section 8350 et seq.), requires the establishment of drug free workplace policies

and the reporting of certain drug-related offenses to Federal authorities.

The ClTy OF OROVILLE recognizes that the use of alcohol and/or controlled substances in the workplace is

not conducive to safe working conditions. ln order to promote a safe, healthy and productive work environment
for all employees, it is the objective of the City to have a work force that is free from the influence of alcohol

and controlled substances.

A. APPLICABILITY
This policy applies to all employees and contractors when they are on City property or when performing any

City ielatdd business. lt applies to off-site lunch periods and breaks when an employee is scheduled to return

to work. Visitors, vendors, and contracted employees are governed by this policy while on City premises, and

they will not be permitted to conduct business if found to be in violation of this policy'

A listing of the CITY OF OROVILLE'S employee function and/or position classifications can be found in

Appendix 'A" of this policy statement. An employee is considered to be performing a job function whileactually
performing duties reiated to the job function, preparing to perform such duties, on call or available for such

duties as described in the job description, or immediately following the performance of such duties.

B. PROHIBITED SUBSTANCES

"Prohibited substances" addressed by this policy include the following:

Drugs:
Amphetamines, barbiturates, benzodiazepines, cocaine, marijuana, methadone, methaqualone, opiates,

phencyclidine (PCP), and propoxyphene.

Alcohol:
This use of beverages or substances, including any medication, containing alcohol such that it is present in the

body at a level in excess of that stated in Department of Transportation guidelines while actually performing,

ready to perform, or immediately available to perform any City business is prohibited. 'Alcohol" is defined as:

the intoxicating agent in beverage alcohol, ethyl alcohol, or other low molecular weight alcohol, including

methyl or isopropyl alcohol.

C. PROHIBITED CONDUCT

Manufacture, Trafficking, Possession, and Use: Any employee engaging in the unlaMul manufacture,

dist6bution, dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance or alcohol on City premises, in City

vehicles or whiie conducting City business off the premises is absolutely prohibited. Violation will result in
removal from duty and referral to an Employee Assistance Professional (EAP).

lmpaired/Not Fit for Duty: Any employee who is reasonably suspected of being impaired, under the influence of
a prohibited substance, or not fit for duty shall be removed from his/her job duties and be required to undergo a

25



reasonable suspicion controlled substance or alcohol test. Employees failing to pass this reasonable suspicion
controlled substance or alcohol test shall remain off duty and be referred to an Employee Assiitance
Professional (EAP). A controlled substance or alcohol test is considered positive (failed) if the individual is
found to have a quantifiable presence of a prohibited substance in the body above the minimum thresholds
defined in the Department of Transportation guidelines.

Alcohol Use: No employee_may report for duty or remain on duty when his/her ability to perform assigned
functions are adversely affected by alcohol or when his/her alcohol @ncentration ii o.o+ or greateri No
employee shall use alcohol while on duty. No employee shall use alcohol within four hours of reportlng for duty
nor during hours that he/she is on call. Violation of this provision is prohibited and will subject the emltoyee to
removal from duty and referral to an Employee Assistance professional (EAp).

Compliance with Testing Requirements: All employees are subject to controlled substance testing and alcohol
testing. Any employee who refuses to mmply with a request for testing, who provides false information in
connection with a test or who attempts to falsify test results through tampering, contamination, adulteration, or
substitution shall be removed from duty immediately and be referred to an Employee Assistance professional
(EAP). Refusal to submit to a test can include an inability to provide a urine specimen without a valid medical
explanation, as well as a verbal declaration, obstructive behavior or physical absence resulting in the inability
to conduct the test.

TreatmenVRehabilitation Program: An employee with a conholled substance and/or alcohol problem will be
afforded an opportunity for treatment in accordance with the following provisions:

Positive Controlled Substance and/or Alcohol Test: A Rehabilitation Program is available for employees who
have tested positive for a prohibited substance on a one-time basis bnly. Employee will be immediately
terminated on the occurrence of a second verified positive test result.'Program costs and subsequeni
controlled substance and/or alcohol testing costs will be paid by the employee. When recommended by the
Employee Assistance Professional (EAP), participation and completion of the rehabilitation program is
mandatory. Failure of an employee to attend and/or complete a prescribed program will result in ienirination
from employment. Prior to retumto-duty testing, an employee must follow the rehabilitation program
recommended by the EAP and agree to and sign a Return-To-Duty Agreement. The duration and frequericy of
follow-up testing will be determined by the EAP but will not be shorter ihan one year or longer than five years.

Voluntary Admittance: All employees who feel they have a problem with conholled substances and/or alcohol
may request voluntary admission to a rehabilitation program. Requests must be submitted to an Administrator
or his/her designee for review. Program costs and subsequent controlled substance and/or alcohol testing
costs will be paid by the employee. An employee failing to complete the program will be subject to terminatioi
from employment. An employee completing a rehabilitation program must agree to and sign a Return-To-Duty
Agreement, pass a returnto-duty controlled substance and/oi alcohol tesi and be subj6ct to unannounced
follow-up testing for 36 months following return to duty. A positive result on the return-tb-duty test or on the
unannounced follow-up tests within a 36-month period will result in termination ftom employment.

Participants in the rehabilitation program may use accumulated paid time off, vacation and floating holidays, if
any.

D. NOTIFYING THE CITY OF CRIMINAL DRUG CONVICTION

Pursuant to the "Drug Free Workplace Act of 1990 any employee who fails to immediately notify the City of any
criminal controlled substance statute conviction shall be subject to disciplinary action, up tb and including
termination of employment.

E. PROPER APPLICATION OF THE POLICY

The City is dedicated to assuring fair and equitable application of this Substance Abuse Policy. Therefore,
supervisors are required to administer all aspects of the policy in an unbiased and impartial manner. Any
supervisor who knowingly disregards the requirements of this policy, or who is found to deliberately misuse the

26



policy with respect to his/her subordinates shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including

termination.

F. TESTING FOR PROHIBITED SUBSTANCES

Analytical urine controlled substance testing will be conducted as required under Department of Transportation
guid6lines. All employees shall be subject io testing prior to employment, randomly, for reasonable suspicion,

ind following an aciident. ln addition, all employees will be tested prior to returning to duty_after failing a
controlled su-bstance test. Employees who have retumed to duty will be subject to unannounced follow-up tests

for up to five years, as determined by an Employee Assistance Professional (EAP). Employees shall also be

subject to testing on randomly selected, unannounced basis.

Testing shall be conducted in a manner to assure a high degree of accuracy and reliability and using

techni{ues, equipment, and laboratory facilities which have been approved by the Department of Health and

Human Servicei 1OnnS). All testing will be conducted consistent with the procedures put forth in the

Department of Transportation guidelines.

The controlled substances that will be tested for include alcohol, marijuana, cocaine, opiates, amphetamines'

and phencyclidine (PCP). An initial controlled substance screen will be conducted on each specimen. For

those specimens thit are positive, a confirmatory Gas Chromatography/Mass Spectrometry (GC/MS) test will

be performed. The test will be considered positive if the controlled substance levels present are above the

minimum thresholds established in the Department of Transportation guidelines.

Any employee who has a confirmed positive controlled substance test will be removed from his/her position,

informed of educational and rehabilitation program available, and evaluated by an Employee Assistance

Professional (EAP).

The City affirms the need to protect individual dignity, privacy and confidentiality throughout the testing
process.

Employees may be tested under any of the following circumstances:

pre-Employment Testing: All applicants shall undergo urine controlled substance testing prior to employment'

Receipt of a satisfactory test result is required prior to employment and failure of a controlled substance test

will disqualifo the applicant from further consideration for employment. Pre-Employment testing requirements

will be conducted in compliance with cunent law.

Reasonable Suspicion Testing: All employees will be subject to urine testing when there is a reason to believe

that controlled substances or alcohot use is adversely affecting job performance while on duty' A reasonable

suspicion referral for testing will be made on the basis of documented objective facts and circumstances which

are consistent with the effLcts of substance abuse. Examples of reasonable suspicion include, but are not

limited to, the following:

1. Adequate documentation of unsatisfactory work performance or on-the-job behavior.

2. Physical signs and symptoms consistent with prohibited substance use.

3. Occurrence of a serious or potentially serious accident that may have been caused by

human enor while on duty.

4. Fights (to mean physical contact), assaults and flagrant disregard or violations of
established safety, security, or other operation procedures.

Reasonable suspicion determinations will be made by a supervisor who is trained to detect the signs and

symptoms of controlled substance and alcohol use and who reasonably concludes that an employee may be

aiversely affected or impaired in his/her work performance due to prohibited substance abuse or misuse.

27



PosfAccident Testing: Employees will be required to undergo controlled substance testing if they are involved
in.an accident with any City equipment or City vehicle or personal vehicle when employde is driving for work
related business that results in any damage, injury or fatality. This includes all employee! who are ori duty and
operating the equipment or vehicle and any other employee whose performance could have contributed io the
injury or accident. A post-accident test will be conducted if an accident results in injuries: (1) which requires
medical treatment; (2) where one or more pieces of equipment or vehicles incur damage that requires
extensive repair or towing: or (3) when required by Workers,Compensation Guidelines.

Following an accident, the employee will be tested as soon as possible, but not to exceed eight hours for
alcohol and 32 hours for controlled substances. Any employee wiro leaves the scene of the accident without
appropriate authorization prior to submission to controlled substance and alcohol testing will be considered to
have refused the test and subject to termination. Post-accident testing of employees will include not only the
operation personnel, but any other covered employees whose performance could have contributeO t6 tne
accident.

Random Testing. Employees will be subjected to randomly selected, unannounced testing. The random
selection will be by a scientifically valid method. Each employee will have an equal chance-of being tested
each time selections are made. Employees will be tested eith-er just before departure, or during duty] or just
after the employee has ceased performing his/her duty.

Return-to-Duty Testing: All employees who previously tested positive on a controlled substance test must test
negative and be evaluated and released to duty by the Employee Assistance Professional (EAp) before
returning to duty. Employee-s will be required- to undergo unannounced follow-up controlled substance testing
following returning to duty. The duration and frequency will be determined by the EAp. However, it shall not bE
less than 6 tests during the first 12 months or longer than 60 months in total, iollowing return to duty.

Employee Requested Testing: Any employee who questions the result of a required controlled substance test
under Department of Transportation guidelines may request that an additional test be conducted. This
additional test may be conducted at the same laboratory or at a different DHHS certified laboratory. The test
must be conducted on the original sample. All costs for such testing are to be paid by the employee unless the
second test invalidated the original test. The employee's request for a retest must b6 made to the MRO within
72 hours of notice of the initial.test result. Requests after 72 hours will only be accepted if the delay was due to
documentable facts that were beyond the control of the employee.

G. EMPLOYEE ASSESSMENT

Any.employ_ee who tests positive for the presence of controlled substances will be assessed by an Employee
Assistance Professional (EAP). The EAP will evaluate each employee to determine what assistjnce, if any,ifre
employee needs in resolving problems associated with prohibited substance abuse or misuse.

lf an employee is returned to duty following rehabilitation, he/she must agree to and sign a Return-To-Duty
Agreement, pass a return-to-duty controlled substance test and be subjectlo unannounc6d follow-up tests for
a period .of one to five years, as determined by the EAP. The cosi of any rehabilitation and subsequent
controlled substance testing..is borne by the employee and is on a onetime basis only. Employee will be
immediately terminated on the occunence of a second verified positive test result. empfyeei may use
accumulated paid time off, vacation and floating holidays, if any, to participate in the prescribe-d rehabilitation
program.

H. CONTACT PERSON

Any questions regarding this policy should contact the following city representative:Name: Liz Ehrenstrom
Title: Human Resource Analyst ll
Address: 1735 Montgomery St., Oroville, CA 9S96b
Telephone: (530)538-2407

28



I. DEFINITIONS

ACCIDENT - means an unintended happening or mishap where there is loss of human life (regardless of fault)'

bodily injury, significant property Oamabb, or an inlury as defined by Workers' Compensation Guidelines'

ALCOHOL - means the intoxicating agent in beverage alcohol, ethyl alcohol or other low molecular weight

alcohol including methyl or isopropyl alcohol'

ALCOHOL USE -means consumption of any beverage, mixture, or preparation, including any medication

cont"ining"tnyl alcohol. Since ingestion of a given amount of alcohol produces the same alcohol concentration

in an individual whether the ilcohol com-es from a mixed drink or cough syrup, the Dep.artment.of

ir"naport"tion prohibits the use of any substance containing alcohol, such.as prescription or over{he-counter

meOi&tion or liquor-filled chocolatei. Prescription medications containing alcohol may have a greater

impairing affect due to the presence of other elements (e g', antihistamines)'

CHAIN OF CUSTODY - means the procedures to account for the integrity of each urine specimen by tracking

its handling and storage from point of collection to final disposition'

CITY - means the CITY OF OROVILLE'

CITY TIME - means any period of time in which the employee is actually performing, ready to perform, or

immediately available to perform any job functions.

COLLECTION SITE - means a place designated by the City where individuals present themselves for the

purpose of providing a specimen of either urine and/or breath'

CONFIRMATION TEST - means a second analytical procedure to identify the presence of a speciftc drug or

metabolite which is inoepenoent oi the r"r"en test and which uses a different technique and chemical principle

from that of the screen test in order to ensure reliability and accuracy. (Gas chromatography/mass

spectrometry (CG/MS) is the only authorized confirmation method of cocaine, marijuana, opiates'

amphetamines, and phencyclidine.)

CoNTROLLED SUBSTANCE (DRUG) TEST - A method of detecting and measuring the presence of alcohol

and other controlled substances, wheiher legal or illegal, in a person's body. A controlled substance test may

be either an initial test oi conRrmation te-st. Rn iriitiat conirolled substance test is designed to identiry

specimens having concenitutioni of a particular class of drug above a specified concentration level' lt

eiiminates negative specimens from further consideration.

Controlled substances will be tested under the Department of Health and Human Services guidelines' The

prir"w tiniti"f or screening) controlled substance test threaholds for a verified positive test result are those that

are equal to or greater than:

grams
ng/ml
ng/ml
ng/ml
ng/ml
ng/ml
ng/ml
ng/ml
ngiml
ng/ml
ng/ml

Alcohol
Amphetamines
Barbiturates
Benzodiazepines
Cocaine Metabolites
Marijuana Metabolites
Methadone
Methaqualone
Opiates
Phencyclidine
Propoxyphene

0.o2
1 000
300
300
300
50
300
300
2000
25
300

29



A confirmation drug testing is a second analytical procedure to detect the presence of a specific drug or itsmetabolite. The confirmation procedure is conducted independent or ftre' initiai test and uses a differenttechnique and chemical principle in order to confirm reliability ano accuracy. ihe confirmatory controlledsubstance test thresholds for a verified positive test result are those that are eqrial to or greater than:

Alcohol
Amphetamines
Amphetamine
Methamphetamine (1)
Barbiturates
Benzodiazepines
Cocaine Metabolites (2)
Marijuana Metabolite (THC) (3)
Methadone
Methaqualone
Opiates

Morphine
Codeine
6-Acetylmorphine (4)

Phencyclidine
Propoxyphene

500

0.04

200
200
150
15
200
200

2000
2000
10
25
200

grams

ng/ml
ng/ml500

ng/ml
ng/ml
ng/ml
ng/ml
ng/ml
ng/ml

ng/ml
ng/ml
ng/ml
ng/ml
ng/ml

(1) Specimen must also contain amphetamine at a concentration greater than or equal to 200 ng/ml(2) Benzoylecgonine
(q) Delta-9-tetrahydrocannabinol-9-carboxylicacid
(4) Test for 6-Acetyrmorphine when morphine concentration exceeds 2000 ng/mr

CoVERED EMPLoYEE - means a person including a volunteer, applicant, or transferee, who performs a job
function for the City.

DEPARTMENT oF TMNSPORTATION GUIDELINES - the procedures for controlled substance and alcoholtesting (49 CFR Part 40) in all the transportation industries.

DRIVER - means any person who operates a motor vehicle. This includes full time, regularly employed drivers;casual, intermiftent or occasional drivers; leased drivers and independent, owner--operator contractors who areeither directly employed by or under lease to an employer or who operaie a commercial motor vehicle at thedirection of or with the consent of an employer.

DRUG (CONTROLLED SUBSTANOE) METABOLITE - means the specific substance produced when thehuman body metabolizes (changes) a given drug (controlled suustancel as it p-asses tnrougn the body and isexcreted in urine.

EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROFESSIONAL (EAP) - An employee assistance professional is an individualwho,assists.the work organization, its employees and their t"rity r"ru-rc with personat and behavioralproblems including, but not limited to: health, marital, family, financiil, 
"rconor, 

org, r"gal emotional, stress, oiother personat concerns which may adversely affect emproyee job p#;;;";;;E'productivity.
EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE 

?ROGRAM - An employee assistance program (EAp) is a worksite based program
designed to assist in the identification and resolution ot proouciivit| proiGrJ associatea with emptJyeesimpaired by personal concems including, but not limited io: neattn,'m'a-ritat; i""'it, financial, ir*nj, j1ug,
legal, emotional, stress, or other personal concems which may adversely affect employee job performance.

The specific core activities of EAp's include:

1. Expert consultation and training to appropriate persons in the identification and

30



resolution of job-performance issues related to the aforementioned employee personal concems, and

confidential, appropriate and timely problem assessment services;

2. Referrals for appropriate diagnosis, treatment and assistance;

3. The formation of linkages between workplace and community resources that provide such services;

and w follow-up services for employees who use those services'

EeUIPMENT - means any and all machinery, material, gear and the like in and/or around the City plants, on

City premises, or on customer property and/or premises'

MEDICAL REVTEW OFFICER (MRO) - means a licensed physician responsible foranalyzing laborato.ry results

Se;rateO by an employefs cdntrott6O substance (drug) teiting program. The MRO is knowledgeable about

substance abuse disorders 
"nd 

h". appropriate medical'training to inierpret and evaluate positive test results'

posT-AcclDENT CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE TESTING - conducted after accidents on employees whose

performance could have contributed to the accident. For drivers this is determined by a citation for a moving

traffic violation and for att fatat accidents even if the driver is not cited for a moving traffic violation. see

Accident.

PRE-EMPLOYMENT CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE TESTING -conducted before applicants are hired or after

an offer to hire, but before actually performing any functions for the first time.

PROHIBITED DRUGS (CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES) - means Alcohol, Marijuana, Cocaine, Opiates'

Amphetamines, or PhencYclidine.

pRoHIBITED SUBSTANCES - means and is synonymous to drug abuse and/or alcohol misuse or abuse.

RANDOM CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE TESTING - conducted on a random unannounced basis just before'

during or just after performance ofjob functions.

REASONABLE SUSPICION CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE TESTING - CONdUCtEd WhEN A tTAiNEd SUPETV|SOT

observes behavior or appearance that is characteristic of alcohol misuse or cnntrolled substance abuse'

REFUSE TO SUBMIT (TO A CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE TEST) - means that an employee fails to provide-

un 
"J"qrate 

urin" ,"rpl" toi t".ting without a valid medical explanation after that employee received notice of

the requirement to be tested ol. 
"igag"" 

in conduct that clearly obskucls the testing proces! (i.e., verbal

declarations, obstructive behavior or-ph-ysical absence resulting in the inability to conduct the test.)

REHABILITATION - The total process of restoring an employee to satisfactory work performance.through

constructive confontation, refenal to the EAP and participaiion in enp recommendations such as education,

treatment and/or support gro;ps io resolve personai, pfrydicat or emotional/mental problems which contributed

to job problems.

RETURN-TO.DUTY AND FOLLOW-UP CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE TESTING - CONdUCtEd WhEN AN

individual who has violated ihe prohibited alcohol or controlled substance conduct standards returns to

p"rforring safety sensitive-duties. Follow-up tests are unannounced and at least 6 tests must be conducted in

the first 12 months aner an emptoyee retums to duty. Follow-up testing may be extended for up to 60 months

following return to duty upon the EAP recommendation.

RETURN-TO-DUW AGREEMENT - means a document agreed to and signed by the employer, employee and

the Employee Assistance professional that outlines the terms and conditions under which the employee may

return to duty after having had a verified positive controlled substance test result.

SCREENING (lNlTlAL) TEST - means an immunoassay screen to eliminate negative urine specimens from

further consideration.

31



S.UPERV.ISoR - means.a person in authority who has had one hour of training on the signs and symptoms ofalcohol abuse and an additional hour of trainlng on the signs and symptoms oriontrotrca substance abuse.

vEHlcLE - means a bus, pickup truck, van, automobile or vessel used for transportation.

WoRKERS' coMPENsATloN GUIDELINES - means the procedures for determining the eligibility forworkers,compensation benefits as determined by Labor code and resulting case law.

APPENDIX B1

EMpLoyEEFUNcno?.lXrBi"R??JhlSNcLASSrFrcAroNs

The CITY oF oRovlLLE, as of this date has established. a compelling need for the following job descriptions.The compelling need is based on clear and factual vocaiional-assessments which strongly indicateinappropriate behavior by those employees.serving in any one, or any combination of the listeji"oi, 1njvresult in harm to people, the environment, public or fersonai property, oiunaJsireJ ioss of capital or goods.

Jo! Type:

City Administrator
Drives on City Business and makes critical

Chief of Police
Drives on Business and makes

Fire Chief
Drives on City Business and makes

Community Services Director
on City Business and makes

Director of Parks and Trees
on City Business and makes critical independent

Director of Finance

@
Deve. Director

Drives on cityeusi@
decisions

on and makes independent
iudgment

Job Type: Compellinq Need:

Deputy Fire Chief
Drives on Business and makes critical independent

Drives on Business and makes critical independent

Drives on Business makes critical

Police Lieutenant
Project Manager/Sr. Civit
Engjneer

Planning Manager
Drives on Business a makes critical

Drives on City Business and makes critical
Building Official/Fire Marshall

Battalion Chief
Drives on City Business and makes critical

Management Analyst lll
Drives on City Business and makes independent

Accounting Manaqer
Drives on City Business and makes critical independent

on City Business and makes independent
decisions

Public Works & Parks Oper
Manager

Human Resource Manaqer
Drivesoncityeusin@
judgment decisions

32



Job Tvoe Compelling Need:

Assistant Civil Engineer Mav Drive on City Business.

Traffic Sional Technician/Electrician May Drive on City Business.

Buildinq/Fire lnspector Mav Drive on City Business.

Housing Development & Building
Maintenance Supervisor

May Drive on City Business.

Associate Planner Mav Drive on CitY Business'

RedeveloDment Aqencv Coordinator May Drive on City Business.

Administrative/Proqram Analvst I I Drive on Business.

GIS Specialist Mav Drive on City Business.

Enoineerino Assistant Mav Drive on City Business.

Code Enforcement Specialist Mav Drive on Citv Business.

Enqineerinq Technician May Drive on City Business.

Prooram Analvst I May Drive on City Business

Counter Technician Drive on Business

Assistant Planner May Drive on City Business.

Cultural Facilities Curator Drive on Business.

Technical Director/Facilities Operator May Drive on City Business.

Acc.ountino Technician Drive on Business.

Administrative Assistant on Business.

Staff Assistant Drive on

Office/Field Aid May Drive on City Business.

Cement Finisher Mav Drive on Cil

Job Tvoe: Compellinq Need:

Police Serqeant
on City Business makes critical

decisions

Police Detective
on City Business and

decisions
critical independent

Police Officer
on City Business and

decisions
critical independent

Code Enforcement Specialist
Drives on City Business
iudoment decisions

and makes critical indePendent

Dispatcher Supervisor Makes

Police Administrative
Assistant

Maintain a Drug-Free

Disoatcher critical decisions

Community Services Officer
Drives on and makes independent

Police Records Technician Maintain a

Compelling Need:

Fire Captain
Drives on City Business
iudqment decisions

and makes critical indePendent

Fire Enqineer
Drives on City and makes critical

Fire Fiqhter
Drives on City Business and makes critical independent

33



PROCEDURES for the CtTy OF OROVTLLE

A, PROCEDURES. REASONABLE SUSPICION TESTING

1. An employee who may possibly be under the influence of alcohol and/or controlled substances is
observed by a supervisor.

2' Any employee may identifo someone suspected of alcohol and/or controlled substance to any
supervisor. Employees should realize, however, that it is against City policy to make false or malicioui
statements about otheremployees and doing so can result in disciplinary action being taxen againstihe
offending employee. However, the supervisor must witness fiist hand the employee,s signs and
symptoms.

3. The supervisor is then obligated to ensure that the matter is immediately investigated. lf possible, two
supervisors determine.(independently or together) that the employee in question-may inOdeO Ue unOei
the influence of alcohol and/or controlled substances.4. When the superviso(s) suspect and believe that the employee may be under the influence of alcohol
and/or controlled substances, the employee is then jmmediately suspended from duty t*itfr p"Vi 

".0driven by city staff .(or others designated) to the city specified coiliction site. eecalie 
"t 

5 i.jrti.g
facility requirement, the employee in question must show proof of identification, such as a photo driver,I
license or state-issued photo identification card.

Whenever practical, an Adminishator should be notified in advance of the employee being taken to the
collection site.

5. At the collection site, the employee will be required to submit a urine sample to the on-duty technician.
Care will be taken to provide the employee with maximum privacy without compromising th'e integrity of
the sample.

6. The City will take precautions to prevent the employee being tested ftom going back to work and driving
their own car home. lnstead, the employee will be given aisistance in o"btain-ing a ride home from tnE
collection site.

7. The employee whose controlled substance test results are verified negative will be reinstated. The
employee whose controlled substance test is verified positive by tfre V-eOicat Review Officer will be
refened to a City specified outside Employee Assistance Professional who will assess the 

"rpfoyeJ,condition and make a recommendation for treatment which, if accepted by the City, must be f"lf6*6JLV
the.employee. Failure to follow the accepted recommendations or refuial to submit to return-to-Juty
and unannounced follow-up testing will result in the employee's termination.

B. PROCEDURES. RANDOM TESTING

1' The Compliance Company notifies the supervisor to send the employee to the collection site for
controlled substance testing.

2' The supervisor notifies the employee to go to the collection site for alcohol and/or controlled substance
testing 

-immeqiately. Because of a testing facility requirement, the employee in question rust ttave
proof of identification, such as a photo driver's license or state-issued photoidentification card.

3. At the collection site, the employee will be required to submit a urine sample to the on-duty technician.
Care will be taken to provide the employee wiih maximum privacy without compromising thl integrity of
the sample.

4. Th-e employee whose controlled substance test is verified positive by the Medical Review Officer will be
refen.ed to a City specified outside Employee Assistance Frofessional who will assess the 

"rpf"V"J.condition and make a recommendation for treatment which, if accepted by the City, must Ue tolrow6J iV
34



the employee. Failure to follow the accepted recommendations or refusal to submit to returnto-duty

and unannounced follow-up testing will result in the employee's termination.

C. PROCEDURES - POST ACCIDENT

1. The employee notifies a supervisorthat an accident has occurred'

2. The supervisor determines that the circumstances of the accident warrant a poslaccident test.

Thereafier, the supervisor directs the employee to immediately go to the collection site for controlled

substance testing. Because of a testing faciliiy requirement, the employ.ee_in question must have proof

of identification, iuch as a photo driver'i license or state-issued photo identification card.

3. At the collection site, the employee will be required to submit a urine sample for controlled substance

testing to the on-duty techni;ia;. Care will be taken to provide the employee with maximum privacy

without compromising the integrity of the sample.

4. An Administrator will be notified that an accident has occurred and that the employee was instructed to

go to the collection site.

S. The employee whose controlled substanc,e test results are verified negative will be reinstated. The

employee whose controlled substance test is verified positive by the Medical Review Officer will be

refdneA to a City specifled outside Employee Assistance Professional who will assess the employee's

condition and make a recommendation foitreatment which, if accepted by the City, must be followed by

the employee. Failure to follow the accepted recommendations or refusal to submit to returnto-duty

and unannounced follow-up testing will result in the safety-sensitive employee's termination.

D. PROCEDURES -RETURN-TO'DUTY and FOLLOW-UP

1. The Compliance Company notifies the City to send the employee to the collection site for mntrolled

substance testing.

2. The supervisor notifies the employee to immediately go to the collection site for conholled substance

tesiing.' aecause of a testing' facility requirement, the employee in question must have proof of

identiication, such as a photo-driver's'license or state-issued photo identification card.

3. At the collection site, the employee will be required to submit a urine sample for controlled substiance

testing to the on-duiy technician. Care will be taken to provide the employee with maximum privacy

without compromising the integrity of the sample

4. The employee whose confirmation test result is verified positive will be terminated.

E. PROCEDURES - CHAIN OF CUSTODY-CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE SPECIMENS

1 . At the time a specimen is collected, the employee will be given a copy of the specimen

collection procedures.

2. Urine will be in a tamper-resistant urine specimen container which will remain in full view

of the employee until sealed and initialed.

3. lmmediately after the specimens are collected, the urine bottles will, in the presence of

the employee be labeled and then initialed by the employee. lf the sample must be cpllected at the site

other than the controlled substance testing laboratory, the specimens will then be placed in the

transportation container. The container will be sealed in ihe employee's presence and the employee will

be asked to initial or sign the container. The container will be sent to the designated testing laboratory

on that day or the earliest business day by the fastest available method'

35



4. A chain of custody form will be completed by the on-duty technician during the specimen
collection process and attached to and mailid with the specimen.

F. PROCEDURES.SPECIMEN COLLECTION OF STRANGE AND/OR RECOGNIZABLE
SUBSTANCES

1. An employee is observed with a strange and/or unrecognizabre substance.

2. The supervisor, in the presence ofa witness, places the strange and/or unrecognizable
substance into a clear plastic bag. The bag is sealed, labeled*and signed by O-ottr tne supervisor and awitness.

3. An incident report is made and signed by both the supervisor and a witness.

4. The plastic bag containing the specimen and a copy of the incident report is taken to the
collection site for hansportation to the laboratory foi analysis.

36



EXHIBIT ..C"

Code of Ethics

Responsibilitv

I understand that the community expects me to serve with dignity and respect, as well as be an agent of the democratic process.

I avoid actions that might cause the public to question my independent judgment.

I do not use my office or the resources of the city for personal or political gain.

I am a prudent steward of public resources and actively consider the impact of my decisions on the financial and social stability of the city and its citizens.

Fairness

I promote consistency, equity and non-discrimination in public agency decision-making.

I make decisions based on the merits of an issue, including research and facts-

I encourage diverse public engagement in our decision-making processes and support the public's right to know.

Respect

I treat my fellow city officials, staff, commission members and the public with patience, courtesy, civility, and respect, even when we disagree on what is best for

the community and its citizens.

Honestv

I am honest with all elected officials, staff, commission members, boards, the public and others.

I am prepared to make decisions when necessary for the public's best interest, whether those decisions are popular or not.

I take responsibility for my actions, even when it is uncomfortable to do so.

Formatted: Left: 0.5", Right: 0.5", Top: 0.5", Bottom:

0.5", Width: 11" 8.5"




	01.07.2020 Packet
	Top
	1. Closed Session - potential litigation
	2. Closed Session Item 1 - Labor Negotiations
	1. Presentation - Riverbend Family Apartments
	1. Minutes of 12.3.19 and 12.17.19
	12.03.19 Minutes
	12.17.19 Minutes

	2. Affordable Housing Sustainable Communities (AHSC) Grant Application
	SR-AHSC Grant Application 12.30.19
	AHSC Program Grant v2

	3. Sewer Division Job Descriptions
	__010720 STAFF REPORT Collection System Operator I, II and Lead Job Description
	___Collection System Operator I DRAFT
	___Collection System Operator II DRAFT
	___Lead Collection System Operator DRAFT

	4. OCEA Memorandum of Understanding
	__010720 STAFF REPORT OCEA MOU (1)

	5. FIRST READING OF A DRAFT ORDINANCE TO PROHIBIT THE SALE OF FLAVORED TOBACCO
	COUNCIL STAFF REPORT Jan 7 2020 re flavored tobacco
	proposed code changes to ban flavored tobacco with revisions
	Planning Commission Oct 29 and Nov 21 meeting materials

	6. ADOPTION OF BUTTE COUNTY LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN
	LHMP
	LHMP Resolution

	7. ADOPTION OF FORMAL MEETING SCHEDULE FOR 2020
	Meeting Schedule Staff report
	2020 Meeting Calendar - DRAFT

	i. Comcast Correspondence 1.7.20
	Letter - Comcast 12.27.19

	Bottom
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Handouts from Meeting
	Blank Page


